
COMMISSIONER 
BOARD MEETING 

June 27, 2024 
5:30 PM 

SRFR STATION 31 TRAINING ROOM 

VIA ZOOM

SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE 

WASHINGTON 

1



 

 

 

Agenda 

2



  
 

 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE 
SRFR Station 31 Training Room / Via Zoom 

163 Village Court, Monroe, WA 98272 
June 27, 2024, 1730 hours 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
BADGE CEREMONY FOR FIRE MARSHAL’S OFFICE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
UNION COMMENT  
 
CHIEF’S REPORT 
 
COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Policy Committee – May 9, 2024 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Approval of Vouchers 
Benefits Vouchers: 24-01517-24-01527; ($744,178.28) 
AP Vouchers: 24-01529 to 24-01613; ($331,637.92) 
 
Approval of Payroll 
June 15, 2024 ($1,427,823.80) 
 
 
 

Meeting Chair Last Mtg.  Next Mtg. Reporting 
Capital Facilities Steinruck 6/25/24 7/23/24 Yes 
Finance Committee Elmore 6/27/24   7/25/24 Yes 
Sno911 Waugh 6/20/24 7/18/24 Yes 
Sno-Isle Commissioners Fay 6/6/24 9/5/24 No 
Leadership Meeting Schaub 4/24/24 7/24/24 No 
Policy Committee Schaub 6/13/24 7/11/24 No 

3



  
 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

Approval of Minutes 
Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes June 13, 2024 
Approve Special Board Meeting Minutes June 18, 2024 
Approve Special Board Meeting Minutes June 20, 2024 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Discussion 
Continuous Improvement: Hiring Committee 
 
Action 
PERS Resolution 2024-5 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Discussion 
Policy Review 

• Policy 103 Governing Rules and Board Policies 
• Policy 215 Community Advisory Committee 
• Policy 330 Ride-Along Program 
• Policy 607 Heat Illness Prevention Training 
• Policy 904 High-Visibility Vests 
• Policy 905 Body Armor 
• Policy 920 Roadway Incident Safety 
• Policy 1028 Uniform Regulations 

 
Policies to be Superseded/Rescinded 

•    SCFD7 Policy 4 Entrance Requirements for All Personnel 
•    SCFD7 Policy 22 Response to Requests for Assistance 
•    SCFD7 Policy 49 Automobile Usage 
•    SCFD7 Policy 68 Paid Family and Medical Leave 

 
Station 31 Remodel 
 
Action 
Station 83 Change Orders 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
ATTENDANCE CHECK 
Regular Commissioner Meeting July 11, 2024, at 1730 - Station 31 Training Room/Zoom. 
 
 
 

4



  
 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
RCW 42.30.140(4)(a): Labor Negotiations 
RCW 42.30.110(1)(g): To Review the Performance of a Public Employee 
RCW 42.30.110(1)(b): Discussing the Purchase of Real Estate 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

5



6



 

 

 

Commissioner 
reports 

7



committee 
meeting minutes

8



 
Commissioner Policy Committee Meeting Minutes  

May 9th, 2024 16:30 

Members Present: Commissioner Schaub, Commissioner Fay, Commissioner Elmore (online) 

Staff Present: DC McConnell, D/O Dahl 

Meeting called to order: @ 16:30 Committee Chair Commissioner Schaub called the meeting to 
order.  

Approval of Minutes: Commissioner Policy Committee meeting minutes 4/11/2024 were approved 
as submitted by email, unanimously. Minutes were included in the 4/25/24 board packet. 

Discussion: Staff provided an update on the policies in the process. Committee discussed changing 
the format of the agendas to PDF so they can be viewed on Apple devices. 

Reviewed Policies:  

• 103 Governing Rules and Board Policies 

o Approved – Discussed all of the changes. 

• 215 Community Advisory Committee 

o Approved – Explained purpose of this new policy and the development of this group. 

• 330 Ride-Along Program 

o Approved – With one edit to clarify exception for riders under 18. 

• 607 Heat Illness Prevention Training 

o Approved. 

• 904 High-Visibility Safety Vests 

o Approved – Discussed whether the standard for vests needed to be included. 

• 905 Body Armor 

o Approved. 

• 920 Roadway Incident Safety 

o Approved - Added use of appropriate PPE to procedural responsibilities. 

• 1028 Uniform Regulations 

o Approved. 

9



Rescinded/Superseded Policies: 

• SCFD7 Policy 4 Entrance Requirements for All Personnel 

o By Policy 1046 Entrance Requirements for All Personnel 

• SCFD7 Policy 22 Response to Requests for Assistance 

o By Policy 301 Emergency Response 

• SCFD7 Policy 49 Automobile Usage 

o By Policy 1045 Automobile Usage 

• SCFD7 Policy 68 Paid Family and Medical Leave 

o By Policy 1038 Paid Family and Medical Leave 

Closing comments and discussion: The committee discussed the process for superseding and 
rescinding old policies as they are updated or replaced in Lexipol. Some new and legacy policies are 
direct reflections, others have been either combined into one new policy or split into multiple policies. 
The legacy policies will have ongoing reviews to identify when they are ready to start the process. 

Next Meeting set for June 13th @ 16:30.     

Meet adjournment @ 17:20  

10



 

 

 

Consent Agenda 

11



06/15/2024

Fund: Shop - Expense #050

Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue
Claims Voucher Summary Page 1 of 1

We the undersigned Board of Directors of the above-named governmental unit do hereby certify that the merchandise or
services hereinafter specified have been received and that the vouchers identified below are approved for payment.
Date: _____________________ Signatures:

Voucher Payee/Claimant Amount
1099

Default

24-01517 30,342.09DEPARTMENT OF RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
24-01518 22,454.74DIMARTINO & ASSOCIATES
24-01519 587.50FIRE 7 FOUNDATION
24-01520 75,114.57HRA VEBA TRUST
24-01521 450,519.18LEOFF TRUST
24-01522 20,892.11MATRIX TRUST COMPANY
24-01523 388.50TD AMERITRADE INSTITUTIONAL
24-01524 33,823.18TRUSTEED PLANS SERVICE CORP
24-01525 109,276.41VOYA INSTITUTIONAL TRUST CO
24-01526 402.50WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGISTRY
24-01527 377.50WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGISTRY

744,178.28
744,178.28

Page Total
Cumulative Total

12



6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 1 of 13

Docket of Claims Register
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue, WA APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

By Docket/Claim Number

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

1,039.50ACROSS THE STREET PRODUCTIO 24-015290012
25641 BlueCard Online Training (x3) Invoice 06/17/2024 BlueCard Online Training (x3) 001-506-522-45-49-02 1,039.50

323.70AJ'S LANDCARE, INC 24-015302189
121216066 Service Call (Sprinkler Repair/Irriga on Invoice 06/10/2024 Service Call (Sprinkler Repair/Irriga on 001-507-522-50-48-00 323.70

460.08ALDERWOOD AUTO GLASS 24-015310024
20612 Shop Parts Invoice 06/04/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 460.08

132.09ALLEGIS CORPORATION 24-015320030
3006495 Shop Parts Invoice 05/02/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 132.09

13



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 2 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

3,054.84AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC 24-015332106
11WV-CCPM-99H9 CO2 PFD-Rearming Kit, NRS Mesh Gea Invoice 06/11/2024 CO2 PFD-Rearming Cartridge Kit - M82 001-504-522-20-35-00 21.54

NRS Mesh Gear Bag (Black) & Throw Ro 001-504-522-20-35-00 150.95
13KC-X3VN-6XPW Zip Ties Sz Small 200pk (2024 Water Sa Invoice 06/10/2024 Zip Ties Sz Small 200pk (2024 Water Sa 001-515-522-30-35-00 4.91
144M-XML6-VX3R Shop Supplies  Invoice 01/26/2024 Shop Supplies  050-511-522-60-31-05 20.68
1639-CR9T-4WRL CO2 PFD-Rearming Cartridge Kit 24gm Invoice 06/10/2024 CO2 PFD-Rearming Cartridge Kit 24gm 001-504-522-20-31-01 43.06
17HG-HNCP-J6TF Shop Parts Invoice 06/02/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 131.27
17PF-KYWW-94TF LED Desk Lamp (BC Office) - ST31 Invoice 06/06/2024 LED Desk Lamp (BC Office) - ST31 001-507-522-50-35-00 34.98
196T-T34C-4WVX 3" Castor Stem Wheels (Set 4)(x2)  - ST Invoice 06/05/2024 3" Castor Stem Wheels (Set 4)(x2)  - ST 001-504-522-20-48-02 63.16
197Q-LQK4-LTV7 Dewalt 20V MAX Charger (DCB115) - S Invoice 06/12/2024 Dewalt 20V MAX Charger (DCB115) - S 001-507-522-50-35-00 55.68
1CDP-1RNK-CD6X Shop Parts Invoice 05/25/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 38.99
1D14-RDQN-6TT3 Shop Parts Invoice 06/12/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 160.08
1DW4-KQMC-71M4 2 Gallon Garden Pump Sprayer - Logis Invoice 06/06/2024 2 Gallon Garden Pump Sprayer - Logis 001-507-522-50-35-00 32.42
1DW4-KQMC-7T6C Rubber Lead Air Hose 10  (Supplies) - Invoice 06/06/2024 Rubber Lead Air Hose 10  (Supplies) - 001-507-522-50-35-00 31.99
1FTW-C96P-MVQ3 Shop Parts Invoice 06/07/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 108.30
1GJN-6MT7-3C6W 4  LED T8 Hybrid LED Bulbs 20pk - Log Invoice 06/12/2024 4  LED T8 Hybrid LED Bulbs 20pk - Log 001-507-522-50-31-00 118.26
1HXV-PJG6-6GYM Memory Foam Bathroom Rugs (x5) - ST Invoice 06/04/2024 Memory Foam Bathroom Rugs (x5) - ST 001-507-522-50-31-00 143.45
1J1G-YPYK-G3FN Shop Parts  Invoice 06/12/2024 Shop Parts  050-511-522-60-34-01 409.80
1J6R-YTKX-D6VH Sensor Reflector (BRT-2X2) Repair - ST Invoice 06/06/2024 Sensor Reflector (BRT-2X2) Repair - ST 001-507-522-50-48-00 19.20
1MY7-NVWQ-QFDD Cabinet Replacement Keys 2ct - Logis Invoice 06/08/2024 Cabinet Replacement Keys 2ct - Logis 001-507-522-50-48-00 17.21
1NDK-GRFP-773W 120 Waterproof Mini Labels (x2) - Spec Invoice 06/06/2024 120 Waterproof Mini Labels (x2) - Spec 001-514-522-20-35-04 27.94
1QGL-XQXM-9C63 Yellow Jacket Extension Cord 100  (He Invoice 06/04/2024 Yellow Jacket Extension Cord 100  (He 001-506-522-45-31-03 340.59
1QHP-TWVL-CGDM Iron Boat Dock Cleats 2pk - Boat 82 Do Invoice 06/06/2024 Iron Boat Dock Cleats 2pk - Boat 82 Do 001-507-522-50-48-00 23.73
1TQG-QF3R-KD4C Co er Pin Clips 10pk, Hitch Pin Clips 10 Invoice 06/12/2024 Co er Pin Clips 10pk, Hitch Pin Clips 10 001-504-522-20-35-00 36.20
1TRP-1DMY-KH14 Office Supplies (Shop) Invoice 06/12/2024 Office Supplies (Shop) 050-511-522-60-31-03 240.66
1VPJ-HQ3P-C13J NRS Inflatable Life Jacket (x2) - A83/M8 Invoice 06/06/2024 NRS Inflatable Life Jacket (x2) - A83/M8 001-504-522-20-35-00 409.92
1WJG-7634-M93Q Air Purifier Replacement Filters - ST 77 Invoice 06/07/2024 Air Purifier Replacement Filters - ST 77 001-507-522-50-31-00 106.82
1XFR-6T1H-7PFL USB to HDMI Adapter - Training Divisio Invoice 06/04/2024 USB to HDMI Adapter - Training Divisio 001-506-522-45-31-03 35.58
1XWT-LYLQ-3LX4 Stainless Steel Painters Blade - Logis c Invoice 06/05/2024 Stainless Steel Painters Blade - Logis c 001-507-522-50-35-00 17.08
1YDY-QHN4-R6KL Dewalt 20V Leaf Blower & 20v MAX Ba Invoice 06/09/2024 Dewalt 20V Leaf Blower & 20v MAX Ba 001-507-522-50-35-00 210.39

302.12APPLIANCE MECHANIC 24-015341881
19900 Dishwasher Service Call (Stops Mid Cyc Invoice 06/01/2024 Dishwasher Service Call (Stops Mid Cyc 001-507-522-50-48-00 302.12

64.03ARG INDUSTRIAL 24-015352263
N065791 Shop Parts Invoice 06/18/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 64.03

46,276.59AXTHELM CONSTRUCTION, INC. 24-015362349
202337-06 Sta on 83 Remodel (Contract Pa-App # Invoice 05/31/2024 Sta on 83 Remodel (Contract Pa-App # 300-507-594-50-62-83 46,276.59

14



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 3 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

1,102.03B&H FIRE AND SECURITY 24-015371971
6244 Fire Alarm Monitoring (April/May/June Invoice 03/19/2024 Fire Alarm Monitoring (April/May/June 001-507-522-50-41-00 91.73
6252 Fire Alarm Monitoring (April/May/June Invoice 03/19/2024 Fire Alarm Monitoring (April/May/June 001-507-522-50-41-00 90.55
6276 Fire Alarm Monitoring (Apr/May/June Invoice 03/19/2024 Fire Alarm Monitoring (Apr/May/June 001-507-522-50-41-00 147.29
6489 Fire Alarm Service Call - ST 71 Invoice 06/07/2024 Fire Alarm Service Call - ST 71 001-507-522-50-48-00 351.16
6547 Fire Alarm Monitoring (July/Aug/Sept 2 Invoice 06/12/2024 Fire Alarm Monitoring (July/Aug/Sept 2 001-507-522-50-41-00 91.73
6548 Fire Alarm Monitoring (July/Aug/Sept 2 Invoice 06/12/2024 Fire Alarm Monitoring (July/Aug/Sept 2 001-507-522-50-41-00 91.73
6555 Fire Alarm Monitoring (July/Aug/Sept 2 Invoice 06/12/2024 Fire Alarm Monitoring (July/Aug/Sept 2 001-507-522-50-41-00 90.55
6579 Fire Alarm Monitoring (July/Aug/Sept 2 Invoice 06/12/2024 Fire Alarm Monitoring (July/Aug/Sept 2 001-507-522-50-41-00 147.29

33,519.35BICKFORD MOTORS INC. 24-015380058
1273918 Shop Parts Invoice 05/30/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 86.78
1273929 Shop Parts Invoice 05/29/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 630.67
1273933 Shop Parts Invoice 05/30/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 7,396.47
1273948 Shop Parts Invoice 05/29/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 98.45
1273961 Shop Parts Invoice 05/29/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 1,161.31
1274419 Shop Parts Invoice 06/04/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 129.95
1274930 Shop Parts Invoice 06/12/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 25,577.32
1274931 Shop Parts Invoice 06/17/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 152.83
1275022 Shop Parts Invoice 06/14/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 1,457.07
1275044 Shop Parts Invoice 06/14/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 812.79
1275103 Shop Parts Invoice 06/13/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 299.70
1275127 Shop Parts Invoice 06/14/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 164.82
CM1273906 Shop Parts Credit Memo 05/30/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 -141.78
CM1273929 Shop Parts Credit Memo 05/30/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 -78.76
CM1273961 Shop Parts Credit Memo 05/30/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 -109.40
CM1274930 Shop Parts Credit Memo 06/18/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 -105.68
CM1274930A Shop Parts Credit Memo 06/18/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 -3,500.80
CM1275022 Shop Parts Credit Memo 06/18/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 -512.39

9,110.22BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 24-015390065
85358584 Medica ons & Medical Supplies Invoice 05/24/2024 Medica ons & Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 536.10
85358585 Medica ons & Medical Supplies Invoice 05/24/2024 Medica ons & Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 1,900.05
85360093 Medical Supplies Invoice 05/28/2024 Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 181.60
85365413 Medical Supplies Invoice 05/31/2024 Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 1,217.09
85365414 Medical Supplies Invoice 05/31/2024 Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 614.95
85365415 Medical Supplies Invoice 05/31/2024 Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 363.91
85367606 Medica ons & Medical Supplies Invoice 06/03/2024 Medica ons & Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 3,137.35

Small Tools & Equipment  001-509-522-20-35-00 330.76
85369311 Medica ons & Medical Supplies Invoice 06/04/2024 Medica ons & Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 769.71
85369312 Medical Supplies Invoice 06/04/2024 Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 58.70

2,586.35BRAKE & CLUTCH SUPPLY INC 24-015400070
129837 Shop Parts Invoice 06/10/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 2,586.35

15



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 4 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

34.99BRAUN NORTHWEST INC 24-015410073
38824 Shop Parts Invoice 05/20/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 34.99

739.99CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC 24-015421913
33105696 Copier Machine Lease - ST 82, Admin Invoice 06/11/2024 Copier Machine Lease - ST 82, Admin 001-512-591-22-70-00 443.39
33159366 Copier Machine Lease - Admin  Invoice 06/11/2024 Copier Machine Lease - Admin  001-512-591-22-70-00 296.60

1,734.84CENTRAL WELDING SUPPLY 24-015430096
00002084850 Oxygen Cylinder Rental (Inventory) Invoice 05/31/2024 Oxygen Cylinder Rental (Inventory) 001-509-522-20-45-00 70.47
0002083732 Oxygen Cylinder Rental (Inventory) Invoice 05/31/2024 Oxygen Cylinder Rental (Inventory) 001-509-522-20-45-00 257.62
0002086383 Oxygen Cylinder Exchange/Re-Fill (x8) Invoice 06/03/2024 Oxygen Cylinder Exchange/Re-Fill (x8) 001-509-522-20-45-00 579.66
0002087938 Oxygen Cylinder Exchange/Re-Fill (x2) Invoice 06/05/2024 Oxygen Cylinder Exchange/Re-Fill (x2) 001-509-522-20-45-00 127.47
0002090646 Oxygen Cylinder Exchange/Re-Fill (x6) Invoice 06/10/2024 Oxygen Cylinder Exchange/Re-Fill (x6) 001-509-522-20-45-00 265.13
0002090647 Oxygen Cylinder Exchange/Re-Fill (x4) Invoice 06/10/2024 Oxygen Cylinder Exchange/Re-Fill (x4) 001-509-522-20-45-00 233.15
0002092442 Oxygen Cylinder Exchange/Re-Fill (x3) Invoice 06/12/2024 Oxygen Cylinder Exchange/Re-Fill (x3) 001-509-522-20-45-00 201.34

37.28CITY OF MONROE 24-015440110
ST31IRR-MAY24 Water (Irriga on Meter) - ST 31 Invoice 06/04/2024 Water (Irriga on Meter) - ST 31 001-507-522-50-47-02 37.28

154.67CITY OF MONROE 24-015450110
ST32-MAY24 Water, Stormwater & Sewer - ST 31 Invoice 06/04/2024 Water, Stormwater & Sewer - ST 31 001-507-522-50-47-02 154.67

870.85CITY OF MONROE 24-015460110
ST31-MAY24 Water, Stormwater & Sewer - ST 31 Invoice 06/04/2024 Water, Stormwater & Sewer - ST 31 001-507-522-50-47-02 870.85

511.35CITY OF MONROE 24-015470110
ADMIN-MAY24 Water, Stormwater & Sewer - Admin B Invoice 06/04/2024 Water, Stormwater & Sewer - Admin B 001-507-522-50-47-02 260.79

300-507-522-50-47-00 250.56

1,528.00COLUMBIA SOUTHERN UNIVERSI 24-015480125
339870061224 Jacobs - Tui on EMS 2301 and EMS 33 Invoice 06/13/2024 Jacobs - Tui on EMS 2301 001-506-522-45-49-10 764.00

Jacobs - Tui on EMS 3301 001-506-522-45-49-10 764.00

512.53CROWN FIRE PROTECTION 24-015491584
20514 Revised Air System Drain Assembly -ST Invoice 06/13/2024 Revised Air System Drain Assembly -ST 001-507-522-50-48-00 512.53

5,092.61DELL MARKETING LP C/O DELL U 24-015500154
10755687170 Dell 7780 Invoice 06/21/2024 Dell 7780 and dock 001-513-522-10-35-00 5,092.61

428.16DENISE MATTERN 24-015510155
INV11618 Per Diem Reimb. (2024 Tyler Connect C Invoice 06/04/2024 Per Diem Reimb. (2024 Tyler Connect C 001-503-522-10-43-00 428.16

660.45EAGLE ENGRAVING, INC. 24-015522416
2024-4078 Blackington Slide Bar 2/3/4/5 Commen Invoice 05/20/2024 Blackington Slide Bar 2/3/4/5 Commen 001-504-522-20-31-01 660.45

624.00EISENHOWER CARLSON PLLC 24-015532412
114024 Legal Services Conference Call (HRA/VE Invoice 06/10/2024 Legal Services Conference Call (HRA/VE 001-512-522-10-41-03 624.00

112.80ELECTRONIC BUSINESS MACHINE 24-015541875
AR279772 Copier Machine Usage - Admin Bldg (C Invoice 06/10/2024 Copier Machine Usage - Admin Bldg (C 001-502-522-10-31-00 112.80

16



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 5 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

587.10EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPART 24-015550183
2024 UNEMPLOYMENT-Q1 FEE- Unemployment Late Penalty,Dishonore Invoice 06/08/2024 Unemployment Late Penalty,Dishonore 001-512-522-20-20-14 587.10

2,300.77EVERGREEN POWER SYSTEMS, IN 24-015561642
36655 Electrical Srvc Call (App Bay Cord Drop Invoice 06/06/2024 Electrical Srvc Call (App Bay Cord Drop 001-507-522-50-48-00 863.47
36656 Electrical Srvc Call (App Maint. Tent) - S Invoice 06/06/2024 Electrical Srvc Call (App Maint. Tent) - S 001-507-522-50-48-00 623.01
36657 Electrical Srvc Call (Exhaust Fan Repair) Invoice 06/06/2024 Electrical Srvc Call (Exhaust Fan Repair) 001-507-522-50-48-00 814.29

2,008.58FASTFIELDFORMS 24-015572296
14314 Mobile Forms So ware Monthly Subsc Invoice 05/07/2024 Mobile Forms So ware Monthly Subsc 001-516-522-30-49-04 1,004.29
14527 Mobile Forms So ware Monthly Subsc Invoice 06/07/2024 Mobile Forms So ware Monthly Subsc 001-516-522-30-49-04 1,004.29

181.01FIRECOM 24-015582121
INV354002 Shop Parts Invoice 06/11/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 181.01

136.75FITNESS EXPERTS 24-015590072
612202 Treadmill Repair (Prev.Maint.Belt Adjus Invoice 06/12/2024 Treadmill Repair (Prev.Maint.Belt Adjus 001-510-522-20-48-00 136.75

1,171.08FREIGHTLINER NORTHWEST 24-015600222
PC304022772;01 Shop Parts Credit Memo 05/21/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 -17.10
PC304023357;01 Shop Parts Invoice 06/17/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 1,155.46
PC304023477;01 Shop Parts Invoice 06/19/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 32.72

2,323.63FUELCARE - THE CLEAN TANK 24-015612378
10205 Fuel Sampling/Disposal - ST 71 Invoice 06/12/2024 Fuel Sampling/Disposal - ST 71 001-507-522-50-48-00 2,323.63

3,500.66GALLS, LLC 24-015620226
028111732 Duty Boots Invoice 06/03/2024 Duty Boots 001-504-522-20-31-07 153.43
028122909 Polyester/Wool Double Breasted Class Invoice 06/04/2024 Polyester/Wool Double Breasted Class 001-504-522-20-31-07 564.59
028122910 Polyester/Wool Double Breasted Class Invoice 06/04/2024 Polyester/Wool Double Breasted Class 001-504-522-20-31-07 486.40
028122911 Polyester/Wool Double Breasted Class Invoice 06/04/2024 Polyester/Wool Double Breasted Class 001-504-522-20-31-07 456.07
028122949 Garrison Leather Belt Invoice 06/04/2024 Leather Belt 001-504-522-20-31-07 30.64
028122965 1/2 Zip Turtleneck Sweatshirt Invoice 06/04/2024 1/2 Zip Turtleneck Sweatshirt 001-504-522-20-31-07 110.66
028134824 Polyester/Wool Class A Dress Pants Invoice 06/05/2024 Polyester/Wool Class A Dress Pants 001-504-522-20-31-07 171.83
028134827 Polyester/Wool Class A Dress Pants Invoice 06/05/2024 Polyester/Wool Class A Dress Pants 001-504-522-20-31-07 171.83
028134842 Cargo Pants Invoice 06/05/2024 Cargo Pants 001-504-522-20-31-07 219.90
028147682 Clip-On Neck e w/ Bu onholes Invoice 06/06/2024 Clip-On Neck e w/ Bu onholes 001-504-522-20-31-07 122.28
028159772 Cargo Pants Invoice 06/07/2024 Cargo Pants 001-504-522-20-31-07 217.71
028170679 Duty Boots Credit Memo 06/07/2024 Duty Boots 001-504-522-20-31-07 -177.07
028177174 S/S Sta on Wear Shirt Invoice 06/10/2024 S/S Sta on Wear Shirt 001-504-522-20-31-07 322.89
028189013 Blank Embroiderable Patch Invoice 06/11/2024 Blank Embroiderable Patch  001-504-522-20-31-07 74.56
028189061 Quarter Boots Invoice 06/11/2024 Quarter Boots 001-504-522-20-31-07 224.51
028194222 Duty Boots Invoice 06/11/2024 Duty Boots 001-504-522-20-31-07 134.71
028201627 Uniform Metal Badge (x1) Invoice 06/12/2024 Uniform Metal Badge (x1) 001-504-522-20-31-07 62.29
058111732 Duty Boots Invoice 06/03/2024 Duty Boots 001-504-522-20-31-07 153.43

351.18GENERAL FIRE APPARATUS 24-015631571
18774 Shop Parts Invoice 06/17/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 351.18

17



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 6 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

22,541.31GLATFELTER SPECIALTY BENEFITS 24-015641593
346606129 District Group Term Life Insurance Invoice 04/02/2024 Dist. Group Term Life Insurance (Fire P 001-505-522-30-20-14 1,343.76

Distrct Group Term Life Insurance (Adm 001-502-522-10-20-14 823.68
Distrct Group Term Life Insurance (Pub 001-515-522-30-20-14 148.20
District Group Term Life Insurance (Adm001-502-522-10-20-14 3,520.86
District Group Term Life Insurance (EM 001-509-522-20-20-14 221.76
District Group Term Life Insurance (Fin 001-503-522-10-20-14 3,443.88
District Group Term Life Insurance (Log 001-507-522-50-20-14 1,459.97
District Group Term Life Insurance (Par 001-508-522-20-20-14 1,720.50
District Group Term Life Insurance (Sho 050-511-522-60-20-14 2,633.78
District Group Term Life Insurance (Sup 001-504-522-20-20-14 7,861.22
District Group Term Life Insurance (Tra 001-506-522-45-20-14 -636.30

69.82GRAINGER 24-015650238
9145480662 Sta on Opera ng Supplies Invoice 06/10/2024 Sta on Opera ng Supplies 001-507-522-50-31-00 62.87
9148111462 Sta on Opera ng Supplies Invoice 06/11/2024 Sta on Opera ng Supplies 001-507-522-50-31-00 6.95

1,710.00HARBORVIEW INVESTMENT LTD 24-015661660
07/2024 Paramedic School Housing Rent (#2-10 Invoice 07/01/2024 Paramedic School Housing Rent (#2-10 001-506-522-45-49-37 1,710.00

67.01HIGHWAY AUTO SUPPLY 24-015670257
697535 Shop Parts Invoice 05/31/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 67.01

448.09HUGHES FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC 24-015680260
608247 Shop Parts Invoice 06/18/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 448.09

152.19IMS ALLIANCE 24-015691878
24-1524 Passport Name & Locker Tags (x40) Invoice 05/28/2024 Passport Name & Locker Tags (x40) 001-504-522-20-31-01 131.64
24-1641 Passport Name Tag (x8) Invoice 06/10/2024 Passport Name Tag (x8) 001-504-522-20-31-01 20.55

376.96KENT D. BRUCE CO., LLC 24-015700313
15969 Shop Parts Invoice 05/30/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 376.96

701.97L.N. CURTIS & SONS 24-015710349
INV825280 Shop Parts Invoice 05/17/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 701.97

150.50LEAH SCHOOF 24-015721835
INV11620 Per Diem Reimb. (24'WFCA Commissio Invoice 06/02/2024 Per Diem Reimb. (24'WFCA Commissio 001-506-522-45-43-00 150.50

2,318.61LOWE'S 24-015730352
934046-MWTMCZ Electric Dryer (Replacement) - ST31 Invoice 04/22/2024 Electric Dryer (Replacement) - ST31 001-507-522-50-48-00 545.62
973934-MVGIYX 6FT Dishwasher Cord Kit - Logis cs  Invoice 04/11/2024 6FT Dishwasher Cord Kit - Logis cs  001-507-522-50-35-00 14.53
978973-MWKIJW Golden Cali Pebbles x20 (Rocks) Repair Invoice 04/19/2024 Golden Cali Pebbles x20 (Rocks) Repair 001-507-522-50-48-00 182.49
995208-MXITTK #2 BTR KD Lumber (Repair Picnic Tbl) - Invoice 04/25/2024 #2 BTR KD Lumber (Repair Picnic Tbl) - 001-507-522-50-48-00 72.09
995211-MXITTL Cut Off Wheel x2, Gri tx2, 40pc Drill Bit Invoice 04/25/2024 Cut Off Wheel x2, Gri tx2, 40pc Drill Bit 001-504-522-20-35-00 87.20
995387-MXITTO Washers,Nuts,Paint Roller,Water Selnt Invoice 04/25/2024 Washers,Nuts,Paint Roller,Water Selnt 001-507-522-50-48-00 84.32
998195-MWHPFW White Pebbles x20 (Drain Field Repair) Invoice 04/18/2024 White Pebbles x20 (Drain Field Repair) 001-507-522-50-48-00 234.55
998295-MWHPFX Pipe Fabric, White Pebbles(rocks) Repa Invoice 04/18/2024 Pipe Fabric, White Pebbles(rocks) Repa 001-507-522-50-48-00 199.80
998579-MWIGHV BBQ for sta on 71  Invoice 04/18/2024 BBQ for sta on 71  001-507-522-50-35-00 898.01

18



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 7 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

4,000.00MATTHEW J. BEECROFT 24-015742348
JUL2024 EMS Servcs Contract: Medcial Supervis Invoice 07/01/2024 EMS Servcs Contract: Medcial Supervis 001-509-522-20-41-02 4,000.00

491.40MOBILE HEALTH RESOURCES 24-015750379
24432 Monthly EMS Pa ent Experience Surve Invoice 05/31/2024 Monthly EMS Pa ent Experience Surve 001-509-522-20-49-02 491.40

1,938.30MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVIC 24-015760387
IN2065276 Breathing Air Compressor (Prev/Maint Invoice 06/06/2024 Breathing Air Compressor (Prev/Maint 001-504-522-20-41-01 1,568.60
IN2067455 SEEK Thermal Imaging Camera Repair Invoice 06/11/2024 SEEK Thermal Imaging Camera Repair 001-504-522-20-48-02 369.70

452.84NORTHWEST PROPANE LLC 24-015772358
U028B672 OnSite Mobile Propane Delivery (193.4 Invoice 06/11/2024 OnSite Mobile Propane Delivery (193.4 001-507-522-50-47-03 452.84

969.75NORTHWEST SAFETY CLEAN 24-015780424
24-45547 Bunker Gear Cleaning, Repairs & Altera Invoice 05/28/2024 Bunker Gear Cleaning, Repairs & Altera 001-504-522-20-48-11 969.75

18,092.53OAC SERVICES, INC. 24-015792333
148816 Professional Services PRC/APP/EVAL - S Invoice 06/13/2024 Professional Services PRC/APP/EVAL - S 300-507-594-50-62-32 8,305.55

Professional Services PRC/APP/EVAL - S 300-507-594-50-62-81 4,486.57
148817 Professional Srvc CM Labor/Constrcn M Invoice 06/13/2024 Professional Srvc CM Labor/Constrcn M 300-507-594-50-62-31 884.51

Professional Srvc CM Labor/Constrcn M 300-507-594-50-62-83 4,415.90

168.53ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC 24-015802252
368959710001 Paper,Tissue,Mrkr,Notbk,Fldr,Duster,Pn Invoice 06/06/2024 Duster/Hndle,Wipes,Tissue,Sharpener, 001-507-522-50-31-00 51.33

Mesh Pencil Holder, Business Card Hold 001-502-522-10-35-00 1.94
Notbk,Mrkrs,Fldrs x2,Tape,Copy Papr - 001-502-522-10-31-00 102.41

368963270001 Expo Markers 8pk, Paper Pad 12pk - ST Invoice 06/06/2024 Expo Markers 8pk, Paper Pad 12pk - ST 001-502-522-10-31-00 12.85

2.33O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 24-015810433
2960-472581 Shop Parts Invoice 06/01/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 2.33

16.69PACIFIC POWER BATTERIES 24-015820451
17148736 Shop Parts Invoice 06/12/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 16.69

254.62PUGET SOUND ENERGY 24-015830483
ST81-MAYJUN24 Natural Gas - ST 81 Invoice 06/06/2024 Natural Gas - ST 81 001-507-522-50-47-03 254.62

628.34PUGET SOUND ENERGY 24-015840483
ADMIN-MAYJUN24 Natural Gas - Admin Bldg Invoice 06/07/2024 Natural Gas - Admin Bldg 001-507-522-50-47-03 320.45

300-507-522-50-47-00 307.89

307.88PUGET SOUND ENERGY 24-015850483
ST82-MAYJUN24 Natural Gas - ST 82 Invoice 06/06/2024 Natural Gas - ST 82 001-507-522-50-47-03 307.88

400.57PUGET SOUND ENERGY 24-015860483
ST33-MAYJUN24 Natural Gas - ST 33 Invoice 06/12/2024 Natural Gas - ST 33  001-507-522-50-47-03 400.57

3,171.54PURCELL TIRE & SERVICE CENTER 24-015870484
24268213 Shop Parts Invoice 06/06/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 1,132.44
24268370 Shop Parts Invoice 06/12/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 852.59
24268415 Shop Parts Invoice 06/14/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 952.39
24268502 Shop Parts Invoice 06/18/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 234.12

19



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 8 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

50.91RICOH USA, INC. 24-015880501
108350097 Copier Machine Lease - ST 74/Logis cs Invoice 06/06/2024 Copier Machine Lease - ST 74/Logis cs 001-512-591-22-70-00 50.91

390.69RONALD RASMUSSEN JR 24-015891867
INV11622 Per Diem Remib. (Sta on Design Confe Invoice 05/31/2024 Per Diem Remib. (Sta on Design Confe 001-507-522-50-43-00 390.69

150.50RYAN LUNDQUIST 24-015900516
INV11621 Per Diem Reimb. (24'WFCA Commissio Invoice 06/02/2024 Per Diem Reimb. (24'WFCA Commissio 001-506-522-45-43-00 150.50

703.35RYAN MURSTIG 24-015912196
INV11619 Per Diem Reimb. (Sta on Design Confe Invoice 05/31/2024 Per Diem Reimb. (Sta on Design Confe 001-507-522-50-43-00 703.35

160.11SEA-WESTERN INC 24-015921921
INV33039 Turnout/Bunker Gear - Coat Hanging N Invoice 06/11/2024 Turnout/Bunker Gear - Coat Hanging N 303-504-594-20-64-04 160.11

3,936.15SEQUOYAH NETWORK SERVICES 24-015930536
3828 Locu on System (Upgrd/Replc/Install) Invoice 03/12/2024 Locu on System (Upgrd/Replc/Install) 303-507-594-50-64-00 3,936.15

140.05SILVER LAKE WATER & SEWER DI 24-015940544
ST77-MAY24 Water & Sewer - ST 77 Invoice 05/31/2024 Water & Sewer - ST 77 001-507-522-50-47-02 140.05

185.30SILVER LAKE WATER & SEWER DI 24-015950544
ST77FM-MAY24 Water (Fire Meter) - ST 77 Invoice 05/31/2024 Water (Fire Meter) - ST 77 001-507-522-50-47-02 185.30

877.00SISKUN POWER EQUIPMENT 24-015960546
473114 MotoMix Pre-Mixed/2Stroke Engine Fu Invoice 06/11/2024 MotoMix Pre-Mixed/2Stroke Engine Fu 001-506-522-45-31-03 877.00

26,560.00SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTR 24-015970520
24.17 RLB Facility Site Rental (4/6-30 & 6/1-7 Invoice 06/24/2024 RLB Facility Site Rental (4/6-30 & 6/1-7 001-506-522-45-45-00 10,225.00
24.18 RLB Facility Site Rental (1/15,4/6,5/1-2 Invoice 06/21/2024 RLB Facility Site Rental (1/15,4/6,5/1-2 001-506-522-45-45-00 16,335.00

1,215.00SNOHOMISH COUNTY PLANNING 24-015981550
I000641381 ILA Fire Inves ga on Services (Case 20 Invoice 06/10/2024 ILA Fire Inves ga on Services (Case 20 001-505-522-30-41-00 607.50
I000641391 ILA Fire Inves ga on Services (Case 20 Invoice 06/10/2024 ILA Fire Inves ga on Services (Case 20 001-505-522-30-41-00 607.50

24.12SNOHOMISH COUNTY PUD 24-015990565
116129589 Electricity - ST 82 Garage/Storage Bldg Invoice 06/12/2024 Electricity - ST 82 Garage/Storage Bldg 001-507-522-50-47-01 24.12

259.90SNOHOMISH COUNTY PUD 24-016000565
109541959 Electricity - ST 77 Invoice 06/10/2024 Electricity - ST 77  001-507-522-50-47-01 259.90

483.96SNOHOMISH COUNTY PUD 24-016010565
119423974 Electricity - ST 72 Invoice 06/12/2024 Electricity - ST 72  001-507-522-50-47-01 483.96

20



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 9 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

1,289.28SPEEDWAY CHEVROLET 24-016020572
142647 Shop Parts Invoice 06/10/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 411.69
142648 Shop Parts Invoice 06/06/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 5.71
142705 Shop Parts Invoice 06/13/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 321.76
142732 Shop Parts Invoice 06/13/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 16.51
142733 Shop Parts Invoice 06/13/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 220.35
142736 Shop Parts Invoice 06/13/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 34.45
142784 Shop Parts Invoice 06/18/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 41.08
255463 Shop Parts Invoice 05/30/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 237.73

1,228.53SPRAGUE PEST SOLUTIONS 24-016032057
5462488 Monthly Pest Control Services - ST 73 Invoice 06/04/2024 Monthly Pest Control Services - ST 73 001-507-522-50-41-00 110.01
5462489 Pest Control Perimeter Services (Triann Invoice 06/10/2024 Pest Control Perimeter Services (Triann 001-507-522-50-41-00 133.34
5462490 Monthly Pest Control Services - ST 82 Invoice 06/12/2024 Monthly Pest Control Services - ST 82 001-507-522-50-41-00 109.11
5462491 Pest Control Perimeter Services (Triann Invoice 06/12/2024 Pest Control Perimeter Services (Triann 001-507-522-50-41-00 132.25
5462492 Monthly Pest Control Services - ST 83 Invoice 06/12/2024 Monthly Pest Control Services - ST 83 001-507-522-50-41-00 109.11
5462493 Pest Control Perimeter Services (Triann Invoice 06/12/2024 Pest Control Perimeter Services (Triann 001-507-522-50-41-00 132.25
5462494 Monthly Pest Control Services - ST 81 Invoice 06/12/2024 Monthly Pest Control Services - ST 81 001-507-522-50-41-00 109.11
5462495 Pest Control Perimeter Services (Triann Invoice 06/12/2024 Pest Control Perimeter Services (Triann 001-507-522-50-41-00 132.25
5462498 Monthly Pest Control Services - ST 72 Invoice 06/12/2024 Monthly Pest Control Services - ST 72 001-507-522-50-41-00 118.04
5462499 Pest Control Perimeter Services (Triann Invoice 06/12/2024 Pest Control Perimeter Services (Triann 001-507-522-50-41-00 143.06

33,023.66STRYKER MEDICAL 24-016041634
9206327792 Disposable SP02 Sensor (20pc x2)  Invoice 05/31/2024 Disposable SP02 Sensor (20pc x2)  001-509-522-30-31-01 681.28
9206339912 4Yr LP15 Prevntv Maint. Agree. Pymnt Invoice 06/01/2024 4Yr LP15 Prevntv Maint. Agree. Pymnt 001-509-522-20-48-01 32,342.38

12,144.10SYSTEMS DESIGN WEST, LLC 24-016050587
20240893 EMS Transport Billing Monthly Services Invoice 06/11/2024 EMS Transport Billing Monthly Services 001-509-522-20-41-05 12,144.10

1,345.50TELEFLEX, LLC 24-016061645
9508490561 Medical Supplies ('EZ-IO' Needle & Sta Invoice 05/28/2024 Medical Supplies ('EZ-IO' Needle & Sta 001-509-522-30-31-01 1,345.50

240.46THE SEPTIC GROUP 24-016072305
121037 Service Call (Obstrc Removal & Drainfie Invoice 06/04/2024 Service Call (Obstrc Removal & Drainfie 001-507-522-50-48-00 240.46

1,390.29TRUE NORTH EMERGENCY EQUIP 24-016080610
A17680 Shop Parts Invoice 05/06/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 95.43
A17693 Shop Parts Invoice 05/07/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 95.08
A17932 Shop Parts Invoice 06/04/2024 Shop Parts 050-511-522-60-34-01 1,199.78

764.68ULINE, INC 24-016092221
178798853 Room Divider for Sta on 71 Invoice 05/30/2024 Room Divider for Sta on 71 001-507-522-50-35-00 764.68

21



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 10 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

53,457.43US BANK 24-016100624
USBANK-MAY24 District Credit Card Charges - May 2024 Invoice 05/25/2024 2024 Conference (Hilton Gardeb Inn) C 001-506-522-45-43-00 -1,056.37

2024 Tyler Conference (Marrio ) Hote 001-503-522-10-43-00 1,193.40
2024 Tyler Conference (Marrio ) Hote 001-503-522-10-43-00 1,193.40
2024 Tyler Connect Conference Hotel - 001-503-522-10-43-00 1,193.40
3 Ring Binder (x3), Index Dividers (x3) - 001-502-522-10-31-00 75.75
AA Baggage Fee (Design Build Conf) - S 001-506-522-45-43-00 35.00
AA Baggage Fee (Design Build Conf) - S 001-506-522-45-43-00 35.00
Ace Hardware (Tools)  001-507-522-50-35-00 20.75
Adjustable Dash Phone Holder (x2)  001-513-522-10-35-00 68.79
Airport Parking (Design Build Conf.) - S 001-506-522-45-43-00 108.00
Allpads Lock (Training Trailer Padlock) - 001-506-522-45-31-03 199.99
Bit Holder, Socket Holder, Gloves, Wren 001-507-522-50-35-00 102.77
Brkfst/Snacks (Interview Panel FF) (x9) 001-503-522-10-49-06 75.26
Business Cards SRFR (Vista Print)  001-502-522-10-31-00 331.41
Calendar Wiz Professional  001-513-522-10-49-04 29.00
Carbinar (x2) - TrainingDivision  001-506-522-45-35-00 28.00
Circ Saw ( New Engine #5)  001-504-522-20-35-00 2,262.95
CLT Workshop (Heathman Hotel)  001-506-522-45-43-00 8,022.12
CMC Bag/Pack Lotus Gear - Special Op 001-514-522-20-31-09 225.51
Coffee & Donuts BC Mee ng 5/21 (x17 001-504-522-20-31-01 62.04
Coffee (Starbuc) Annual Water Academ 001-514-522-20-31-09 43.16
CPSE Registra on (Fire/EMS) WorkSho 001-516-522-45-49-02 650.00
CPSE Registra on (Fire/EMS) Worksho 001-516-522-45-49-02 650.00
Crucial 32GB Kit DDR5-5600 SODIMM 001-513-522-10-35-00 240.66
Daily Dispatch Employment Ad - HR 001-502-522-10-44-00 977.50
Delivery Drop Box - Logis cs 001-507-522-50-35-00 109.27
Design Build Conference Airfare - Scho 001-507-522-50-43-00 386.20
Dinner 5/13 (CLT Retreat) (x17) 001-506-522-45-43-00 653.10
Dinner 5/14 (CLT Retreat) (x17) 001-506-522-45-43-00 1,103.27
Dirt (Drain Field Repair) - ST72 001-507-522-50-48-00 85.10
Etsy (Custom Engraving)  001-502-522-10-49-07 37.71
Extension Cord (Apparatus) -  ST83/82 001-504-522-20-31-01 207.66
Fire Ex nguisher Harness (x2) - ST 33 A 001-504-522-20-31-01 163.42
Fire Rescue Interna onal (AirFare) - Tit 001-506-522-45-43-00 372.20
Fire Rescue Interna onal Registra on - 001-506-522-45-43-00 699.00
Galls Uniform Purchase 001-504-522-20-31-07 142.09
Garbage Dump  001-507-522-50-48-00 31.00
Garden Hose - ST 81 001-507-522-50-35-00 30.20
Gatorade 24ct (x12)  001-504-522-20-31-01 297.67
Gatorade 24ct (x12)  001-504-522-20-31-01 301.81
Glacier West Storage Unit 001-507-522-50-45-00 146.00
Greater Lake Stevens Chamber Reg. - (x 001-502-522-10-49-06 240.00

22



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 11 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

USBANK-MAY24 District Credit Card Charges - May 2024 Invoice 05/25/2024 Harbour Freight - Shop Tools  050-511-522-60-35-00 26.24
Health & Safety (Adjustment/Invoice)  001-510-522-20-35-01 45.32
Henry's Donuts - Ba allion Chief M ng 001-504-522-20-31-01 15.19
Henry's Donuts (Interview Panel FF) (x9 001-503-522-10-49-06 27.43
Home Depot (Airtool, Adjust Wrench, T 001-506-522-45-31-03 295.40
Home Depot (Blades,Hammer,Tools) - T 001-506-522-45-31-03 814.00
Home Depot (Ink,Paint Mrkr,Tote - Trai 001-506-522-45-31-03 135.25
Home Depot (Return Tool) - Training  001-506-522-45-31-03 -58.98
Home Depot (Rope Cleat, Bungee,Bolts 001-506-522-45-31-03 97.47
Home Depot Tool Return - Training Div 001-506-522-45-31-03 -16.32
Hotel (JW Marriot) - 2024Tyler Confere 001-513-522-10-43-00 909.09
ICC (2021 WA State Fire Code Manual) 001-505-522-30-31-00 854.63
ICS 400 Advance Incident Edi on (Virtu 001-506-522-45-49-02 300.00
Infec on Control Traing Course (Corey/ 001-509-522-45-49-02 950.00
Ipads (Training Division New Recruits) ( 001-506-522-45-35-00 3,549.91
Lake Stevens Chamber Reg Brekfst - Ob 001-502-522-10-49-06 60.00
Lowe's (Lumber & Tools) - Training Divi 001-506-522-45-31-03 124.56
LS Best Storage (x2)  001-507-522-50-45-00 150.00
Lumber (Door Replacement Repair) - S 001-507-522-50-48-00 2,644.13
Lunch (Conto's Pizza & Pasta) Chaplain 001-509-522-20-49-04 106.23
Lunch (Costco) Annual Water Academy 001-514-522-20-31-09 157.31
Lunch (Costco) Swi er Class 3Days (x4) 001-514-522-20-31-09 234.85
Lunch (Data Analyst Interview Panel) (x 001-503-522-10-49-06 53.66
Lunch (Jersy Mikes) Ann. Water Academ001-514-522-20-31-09 481.82
Lunch (Payroll/HR Mee ng) Union 778 001-503-522-10-49-06 136.39
Lunch (Qdoba) Annual Water Academy 001-514-522-20-31-09 536.99
Lunch (QFC) Annual Water Academy 5/ 001-514-522-20-31-09 22.32
Lunch (QFC) Annual Water Academy 5/ 001-514-522-20-31-09 24.98
Lunch (QFC) Swi water Class (x5) 001-514-522-20-31-09 30.95
Lunch Ixtapa (Interview Panel FF) (x10) 001-503-522-10-49-06 222.97
Lunch Jet City Pizza (Interview Panel FF 001-503-522-10-49-06 147.37
Lunch Larry's Smkhs (Interview Panel F 001-503-522-10-49-06 192.66
Lunch Maltby Cafe (Interview Panel FF 001-503-522-10-49-06 260.23
Lunch Thai Clearview (Interview Panel 001-503-522-10-49-06 208.48
Magne c Socket Holder 26pc - Logis c 001-507-522-50-35-00 18.59
McDaniels Hardware- Shop Supplies  050-511-522-60-34-01 55.79
Microso  'Office 365 E1' Mnthly Licens 001-513-522-10-49-04 15.32
Monroe Chamber Luncheon Registra o 001-502-522-10-49-06 96.00
New Hire/Job Open Adver sement (Ne 001-502-522-10-44-00 249.00
PEER Fitness Cer fica on Fees (Exercis 001-506-522-45-49-02 49.00
PEER Fitness Cer fica on Fees (Exercis 001-506-522-45-49-02 49.00
PMI Pick Off Strap - Training Division 001-506-522-45-35-00 63.86
PNW Fire Conference Regist. - B. Grace 001-509-522-45-49-02 375.00

23



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 12 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

USBANK-MAY24 District Credit Card Charges - May 2024 Invoice 05/25/2024 Polycarbonate Combo Nozzle (x2) - ST3 001-504-522-20-35-00 58.21
Post WorkShop Me ng (Schoof,O'Brie 001-502-522-10-49-06 65.45
Refreshments (Comm. Mee ng) 5/22/ 001-502-522-10-49-06 11.44
Renaissance (Design Build Conf.) Hotel 001-507-522-50-43-00 673.74
Renaissance (Design Build Conf.) Hotel 001-507-522-50-43-00 673.74
Renaissance (Design Build Conf.) Hotel 001-507-522-50-43-00 673.74
Renaissance (Design Build Conf.) Hotel 001-507-522-50-43-00 673.77
Renaissance (Design Build Conf.) Hotel 001-507-522-50-43-00 673.74
Renaissance (Design Build Conf.) Hotel 001-507-522-50-43-00 673.74
Report Of Sale (Tahoe 2002/Surplus)-D 001-502-522-10-49-06 13.65
Rotary Club of Monroe Memebership D 001-502-522-10-49-01 100.00
Rubber Mats - Logis cs 001-507-522-50-35-00 34.48
Rubber Mats - Logis cs 001-507-522-50-35-00 24.82
Safety Ad Fees (Spring/Summer 2024)  001-515-522-30-42-01 200.00
Shop Parts  050-511-522-60-31-01 8.74
Shop Supplies  050-511-522-60-31-05 134.89
Sky River Bakery Pastry (Interview Pane 001-503-522-10-49-06 56.34
Sky Valley Chmabers Lunch - J. Bowen 001-502-522-10-49-06 15.00
Snacks (CLT Retreat) (x17) 001-506-522-45-43-00 49.54
Snacks (FF/FFPM Interview Panel) - HR 001-503-522-10-49-06 91.53
Snacks (FF/FFPM Interview Panel) 1st- 001-503-522-10-49-06 40.46
Snacks (Forkli  Training) (x8) - Logis cs 001-507-522-50-49-00 99.22
Snacks (Index General Store) Swi awat 001-514-522-20-31-09 10.27
Snacks (Interview Panel FF) (x9) 001-503-522-10-49-06 72.55
Snacks (QFC) Run Review 5/14 001-509-522-20-49-04 52.09
Snacks 5/15 ( Fred Myer) Data Analyst 001-503-522-10-49-06 54.49
Snacks 5/16 ( Fred Myer) Data Analyst 001-503-522-10-49-06 72.56
Snacks Brkfst (Interview Panel FF) (x9) 001-503-522-10-49-06 2.76
Snacks Fred Myer (Interview Panel FF) 001-503-522-10-49-06 42.45
SpringHill (2024 WFCA Conference) Ho 001-506-522-45-43-00 1,009.40
Streamline Digital Custom Embroidery 050-511-522-60-31-01 9.84
Survey Monkey Renewal  001-503-522-10-49-01 108.01
Survey Monkey Subscrip on Dues 001-506-522-45-49-00 108.01
Tansport. Design Build Co (Uber) to Aip 001-507-522-50-43-00 82.12
Tansport. Design Build Co (Uber) to Ho 001-507-522-50-43-00 105.57
Target (Electronics)  001-502-522-10-31-00 16.38
Tarp for Drain Field Repair - ST72 001-507-522-50-48-00 18.57
The Fire Store (Lg Rope Bag) - ST81 Ret 001-504-522-20-35-00 -58.23
TrainUp (Intune Class Registra on) Pau 001-513-522-45-49-00 2,320.50
Tyler Connect Conf. (Parking Fees) - Ma 001-513-522-10-43-00 77.99
UPS Shipping (Regulator/Repair)  001-502-522-10-42-00 82.58
Vimeo Business Annual Subcsrip on/R 001-513-522-10-49-04 157.10
VIMEO Business Pro Fees 001-506-522-45-49-00 653.51

24



Docket of Claims Register APPKT01617 - 06.27.2024 Board Meeting ER

6/25/2024 11:12:10 AM Page 13 of 13

Docket/Claim #
Vendor #

Vendor Name Payment Amount
Distribution AmountAccount NumberItem DescriptionPayable DatePayable TypePayable DescriptionPayable Number

USBANK-MAY24 District Credit Card Charges - May 2024 Invoice 05/25/2024 Vistaprint (Business Cards & Banner) Ev 001-506-522-45-31-03 210.71
VodaSafe Handheld Equipment/Suppli 001-514-522-20-31-09 5,571.49
WA DOL License & Registra on (A3083 001-502-522-10-49-06 52.25
Water 48 Case Pallet 001-504-522-20-31-01 474.75
Water 48 Case Pallets 001-504-522-20-31-01 481.35
Water Delivery & Dispenser Rental (Sho 050-511-522-60-31-04 60.42
Water, TP, Glue Cleaner - Logis cs 001-507-522-50-31-00 35.14
Ziploc Frozen Qrt Bags (x2) - ST71 001-507-522-50-31-00 41.28

1,015.75VERATHON MEDICAL 24-016110631
80911584 Medical Supplies Invoice 06/11/2024 Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 534.39
80912487 Medical Supplies Invoice 06/12/2024 Medical Supplies 001-509-522-30-31-01 481.36

95.43VESTIS 24-016120040
6560393980 Maint. Srvcs Towels, Floor Mat & Mop Invoice 06/06/2024 Maint. Srvcs Towels, Floor Mat & Mop 001-507-522-50-48-00 26.52
6560393981 Shop Supplies/Uniform Rental/Laundry Invoice 06/06/2024 Shop Supplies/Uniform Rental/Laundry 050-511-522-60-41-04 68.91

7,499.81WAVE 24-016130651
132631801-0010856 Fiber Op c Connec on - County (Rocke Invoice 06/23/2024 Fiber Op c Connec on & Cable/TV Ser 001-513-522-50-42-01 7,499.81

331,637.92Total Payment Amount:Total Claims: 85

25



06/25/2024

Fund: General Fund #001

Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue
Claims Voucher Summary Page 1 of 3

We the undersigned Board of Directors of the above-named governmental unit do hereby cer fy that the merchandise  
or services hereina er specified have been received and that the vouchers iden fied below are approved for payment.

Date: ____________________ Signatures:

Voucher Payee/Claimant Amount
1099

Default

24-01529 1,039.50ACROSS THE STREET PRODUCTIONS
24-01530 323.70AJ'S LANDCARE, INC
24-01531 460.08ALDERWOOD AUTO GLASS
24-01532 132.09ALLEGIS CORPORATION
24-01533 3,054.84AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC
24-01534 302.12APPLIANCE MECHANIC
24-01535 64.03ARG INDUSTRIAL
24-01536 46,276.59AXTHELM CONSTRUCTION, INC.
24-01537 1,102.03B&H FIRE AND SECURITY
24-01538 33,519.35BICKFORD MOTORS INC.
24-01539 9,110.22BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC
24-01540 2,586.35BRAKE & CLUTCH SUPPLY INC
24-01541 34.99BRAUN NORTHWEST INC
24-01542 739.99CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC
24-01543 1,734.84CENTRAL WELDING SUPPLY
24-01544 37.28CITY OF MONROE
24-01545 154.67CITY OF MONROE
24-01546 870.85CITY OF MONROE
24-01547 511.35CITY OF MONROE
24-01548 1,528.00COLUMBIA SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY
24-01549 512.53CROWN FIRE PROTECTION
24-01550 5,092.61DELL MARKETING LP C/O DELL USA LP
24-01551 428.16DENISE MATTERN
24-01552 660.45EAGLE ENGRAVING, INC.
24-01553 624.00EISENHOWER CARLSON PLLC
24-01554 112.80ELECTRONIC BUSINESS MACHINES
24-01555 587.10EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT
24-01556 2,300.77EVERGREEN POWER SYSTEMS, INC
24-01557 2,008.58FASTFIELDFORMS
24-01558 181.01FIRECOM
24-01559 136.75FITNESS EXPERTS

116,227.63
116,227.63

Page Total
Cumulative Total

26



06/25/2024

Fund: General Fund #001

Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue
Claims Voucher Summary Page 2 of 3

We the undersigned Board of Directors of the above-named governmental unit do hereby cer fy that the merchandise  
or services hereina er specified have been received and that the vouchers iden fied below are approved for payment.

Date: ____________________ Signatures:

Voucher Payee/Claimant Amount
1099

Default

24-01560 1,171.08FREIGHTLINER NORTHWEST
24-01561 2,323.63FUELCARE - THE CLEAN TANK
24-01562 3,500.66GALLS, LLC
24-01563 351.18GENERAL FIRE APPARATUS
24-01564 22,541.31GLATFELTER SPECIALTY BENEFITS
24-01565 69.82GRAINGER
24-01566 1,710.00HARBORVIEW INVESTMENT LTD
24-01567 67.01HIGHWAY AUTO SUPPLY
24-01568 448.09HUGHES FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC
24-01569 152.19IMS ALLIANCE
24-01570 376.96KENT D. BRUCE CO., LLC
24-01571 701.97L.N. CURTIS & SONS
24-01572 150.50LEAH SCHOOF
24-01573 2,318.61LOWE'S
24-01574 4,000.00MATTHEW J. BEECROFT
24-01575 491.40MOBILE HEALTH RESOURCES
24-01576 1,938.30MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES, INC.
24-01577 452.84NORTHWEST PROPANE LLC
24-01578 969.75NORTHWEST SAFETY CLEAN
24-01579 18,092.53OAC SERVICES, INC.
24-01580 168.53ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC
24-01581 2.33O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
24-01582 16.69PACIFIC POWER BATTERIES
24-01583 254.62PUGET SOUND ENERGY
24-01584 628.34PUGET SOUND ENERGY
24-01585 307.88PUGET SOUND ENERGY
24-01586 400.57PUGET SOUND ENERGY
24-01587 3,171.54PURCELL TIRE & SERVICE CENTER
24-01588 50.91RICOH USA, INC.
24-01589 390.69RONALD RASMUSSEN JR
24-01590 150.50RYAN LUNDQUIST

67,370.43
183,598.06

Page Total
Cumulative Total

27



06/25/2024

Fund: General Fund #001

Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue
Claims Voucher Summary Page 3 of 3

We the undersigned Board of Directors of the above-named governmental unit do hereby cer fy that the merchandise  
or services hereina er specified have been received and that the vouchers iden fied below are approved for payment.

Date: ____________________ Signatures:

Voucher Payee/Claimant Amount
1099

Default

24-01591 703.35RYAN MURSTIG
24-01592 160.11SEA-WESTERN INC
24-01593 3,936.15SEQUOYAH NETWORK SERVICES
24-01594 140.05SILVER LAKE WATER & SEWER DISTRICT
24-01595 185.30SILVER LAKE WATER & SEWER DISTRICT
24-01596 877.00SISKUN POWER EQUIPMENT
24-01597 26,560.00SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT #4
24-01598 1,215.00SNOHOMISH COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICE
24-01599 24.12SNOHOMISH COUNTY PUD
24-01600 259.90SNOHOMISH COUNTY PUD
24-01601 483.96SNOHOMISH COUNTY PUD
24-01602 1,289.28SPEEDWAY CHEVROLET
24-01603 1,228.53SPRAGUE PEST SOLUTIONS
24-01604 33,023.66STRYKER MEDICAL
24-01605 12,144.10SYSTEMS DESIGN WEST, LLC
24-01606 1,345.50TELEFLEX, LLC
24-01607 240.46THE SEPTIC GROUP
24-01608 1,390.29TRUE NORTH EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT INC
24-01609 764.68ULINE, INC
24-01610 53,457.43US BANK
24-01611 1,015.75VERATHON MEDICAL
24-01612 95.43VESTIS
24-01613 7,499.81WAVE

148,039.86
331,637.92

Page Total
Cumulative Total

28



District Name: Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue

Direct Deposits: $1,096,716.39

Paper Checks: $0.00

Taxes: $331,107.41
Allowed in the sum of: $1,427,823.80

Reviewed by:

District Administrative Coordinator

Prepared by:

Payroll Specialist

Approved by Commissioners:

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the foregoing payroll is, just, true and correct, that the persons whose names appear theron actually performed labor as 

stated on the dates shown, that the amounts are actually due, and that the salary warrants and related benefit warrants shall be issued. 

6/15/2024 Payroll

Payroll Summary and Authorization Form for the:

29



  
 

 
Commissioner Meeting – June 13, 2024 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS MEETING MINUTES 
SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE 
SRFR Station 31 Training Room / Via Zoom 

163 Village Court, Monroe, WA 98272 
June 13, 2024, 1730 hours 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
Chairman Elmore called the meeting to order at 1730 hours. In attendance were Commissioner Edwards, 
Chairman Elmore, Vice Chairman Fay, Commissioner Gagnon, Commissioner Schaub, Commissioner 
Steinruck; and via Zoom were Commissioner Waugh and District Secretary Snure. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
N/A 
 
UNION COMMENT  
President Fisher commented that they have a tentative agreement on the represented chief officers’ 
contract, and they voted on it yesterday with 12 yes and 0 no. They look forward to the 
Commissioners seeing the contract soon. 
 
CHIEF’S REPORT 
As presented. Chief O’Brien congratulated Driver Operator Lengkeek and Battalion Chief Elmore on 
their retirements. We have had the second round of interviews for firefighter / paramedic, and plan to 
start the Chief’s interviews next week. Thank you to the Hiring Committee and HR for their efforts. 
We will have the third round of interviews for Deputy Chief in July and then we look forward to the 
Chief’s interviews. The Station 72 septic system has failed, and we need to connect to a sewer line. In 
the meantime, we are utilizing the septic tank as a holding tank, and we now have Engine 72 
restationed back over there. We have a signed agreement with Snohomish Fire District 4 on the RLB 
Training Center. We are having good monthly meetings with Chief Waller and Chief Eastman 
regarding working together and strengthening our partnerships. Chief O’Brien also thanked 
Community Relations for their hard work with the schools this week. 
 
COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
Sno-Isle Commissioner Meeting – Vice Chairman Fay commented that the Sno-Isle Commissioner Meetings 
for July and August have been cancelled, and their next meeting will be in September. 
 
Policy Committee – Commissioner Schaub commented that they have reviewed six additional policies, 
Policies 601, 602, 605, 610, 910, and 921. They continue to make good progress. 
 
COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
N/A 

30



  
 

 
Commissioner Meeting – June 13, 2024 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Approval of Vouchers 
Benefits Vouchers: 24-01353 to 24-01368; ($1,542,539.79) 
AP Vouchers: 24-01369 to 24-01516; ($568,294.09) 
 
Approval of Payroll 
May 31, 2024 ($5,303,760.85) 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes May 23, 2024 
 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as submitted. 
Motion by Commissioner Steinruck and 2nd by Commissioner Schaub. 
On vote, Motion carried 7/0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Discussion 
Continuous Improvement: Strategic Plan 
Chief O’Brien asked Deputy Chief McConnell to give some brief highlights on our Strategic Plan. 
 
Deputy Chief McConnell commented that we learned from the 2024 Sikora Report that we need to take 
action, and we need to create a connection with our members with effective communication. He 
reviewed our communication methods including the shared drive for documents, website, Chief’s videos, 
annual program appraisals and compliance report, Commission Executive Workshop Communications, 
Leadership Meetings, 8:05 meetings, memos and emails. He also identified some communication 
challenges and offered suggestions for improvement: increase Chief’s videos; expanded 8:05 attendance; 
update Leadership Meeting format; expansion of CLT, Hiring, and Ops Committees; access to leadership, 
officer meetings, station visits; prioritize face to face communications; solicitation for website rebuild; 
leverage tech platforms; and increased reporting access, frequency and relevance. Specifically with the 
Strategic Plan we need to do better at sharing the impact of plan completion and highlighting the 
connection of new programs and initiatives to the Strategic Plan. Similarly with the accreditation process, 
we need to communicate the why and highlight the direct impact of the accreditation process.  
 
Deputy Chief McConnell commented that we want to be responsive to internal and external stake 
holders’ needs and concerns. The Strategic Plan and accreditation process are the foundation to our 
common goals and unifying vision. Increased communication is an ongoing priority. 
 
Vice Chairman Fay commented another frustration is the ownership issue. We would like to set the bar 
high, so that the Strategic Plan is a part of our members’ day, so it becomes a part of our culture. It has to 
happen together, and all of us need to be a part of the solution. Deputy Chief McConnell commented that 
so many people have come to the organization post plan development, and if we can be very thoughtful 

31



  
 

 
Commissioner Meeting – June 13, 2024 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

with the creation of the next Strategic Plan with in-person collaboration, we can create the buy-in and 
ownership. It has a lot to do with looking ahead. 
 
Action 
Policy Review 

• Policy 318 Safe Haven for Newborns 
• Policy 322 Child Abuse Reporting 
• Policy 323 Disposition of Valuables 
• Policy 325 Adult Abuse 
• Policy 335 Firefighter Rescue Survey 
• Policy 604 Hazard Communication Program Training 
• Policy 710 Non-Official Use of District Property 
• Policy 903 Communicable Diseases 

 
Motion to approve Policies 318, 322, 323, 325, 335, 604, 710, and 903 as submitted. 
Motion by Chairman Elmore and 2nd by Commissioner Edwards. 
On vote, Motion carried 7/0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Discussion 
N/A 
 
Action 
N/A 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Chairman Elmore – It has been discussed at the Snohomish Fire District 4 Regional Partners Meeting and 
at the Sno-Isle Commissioners Meeting, that throughout the county public safety has had issues getting 
their permits, which is very costly in numerous ways for the community. We hope to get something in 
writing that would give priority to emergency personnel for permit issues. 
 
Also there will be a meeting on Tuesday, June 18th and located at Snohomish Fire District 4 
Headquarters. There will be a social at 1700 hours and then a meeting with regional partners at 1800 
hours. Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue will have four Commissioners in attendance, so this will need to 
be a Special Meeting. 
 
ATTENDANCE CHECK 
Regular Commissioner Meeting June 27, 2024, at 1730 - Station 31 Training Room/Zoom. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
RCW 42.30.140(4)(b): Labor Negotiations 

32



  
 

 
Commissioner Meeting – June 13, 2024 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 

Chairman Elmore called for an Executive Session to begin at 1805 hours for 10 minutes with no decision 
to follow. Chairman Elmore resumed the regular Board of Commissioners Meeting at 1815 hours. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Chairman Elmore adjourned the meeting at 1815 hours. 
 
 
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Rick Edwards 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Chairman Troy Elmore 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Vice Chairman Randy Fay 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Paul Gagnon 

  
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Jeff Schaub 

 
  

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Jim Steinruck 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
        Commissioner Roy Waugh 

33



  
 

 
Special Commissioner Meeting – June 18, 2024 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE 

Snohomish County Fire District 4 Headquarters 
1525 Avenue D, Snohomish, WA  98290 

June 18, 2024, 1800 hours 
 

 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
Chairman Elmore called the meeting to order at 1800 hours. In attendance were Commissioner Edwards, 
Chairman Elmore, Commissioner Schaub, and Commissioner Steinruck.  
 
 
MEETING WITH REGIONAL PARTNERS 
Chiefs and Commissioners from Snohomish County Fire District 4/Snohomish, Granite Falls Fire, 
Snohomish County Fire District 5/Sultan, and Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue were in attendance. 
  
Commission Chair from Snohomish County Fire District 4 opened discussion: 

• What can we do in five years together? How about in 20 to 30 years from now? 
• At the last meeting we discussed the following: 

o Permitting for new fire facility construction. 
o Could we share reserve apparatus? 
o Should we coordinate station locations? 
o Is the current funding process working? 

  
Chairman Elmore discussed: 

• A common Fire Commissioner Orientation Program with a resource list. 
  
Discussion about future growth in Snohomish County: 

• Rural clusters 
• Communication challenges 
• Need notification from County Fire Marshal for future growth 

  
Could we be joint purchasing to reduce costs? 
  
Could we create a medical coverage trust? 

• Medical coverage 
• A County primary care provider for all participants? 
• There was a program like this in Spokane 

  

34



  
 

 
Special Commissioner Meeting – June 18, 2024 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Station Location Coordination 
  
Regional BLS Transports 
  
Countywide ALS 
  
The public safety tax that the County is proposing should be addressed by this group. 
  
Wall Times 
 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
N/A 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
N/A 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Chairman Elmore adjourned the meeting at 1942 hours. 
 
 
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Rick Edwards 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Chairman Troy Elmore 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Vice Chairman Randy Fay 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Paul Gagnon 

  

35



  
 

 
Special Commissioner Meeting – June 18, 2024 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 
____________________________________________ 

Commissioner Jeff Schaub 
 
  

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Jim Steinruck 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
        Commissioner Roy Waugh 

 
 

36



  
 

 
Special Commissioner Meeting – June 20, 2024 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE 
SRFR Station 31 Training Room / Via Zoom 

163 Village Court, Monroe, WA 98272 
June 20, 2024, 1700 hours 

 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
Chairman Elmore called the meeting to order at 1700 hours. In attendance via Zoom were Commissioner 
Edwards, Chairman Elmore, Vice Chairman Fay, Commissioner Gagnon, Commissioner Schaub, 
Commissioner Steinruck, Commissioner Waugh, and District Secretary Snure.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
N/A 
 
UNION COMMENT  
Battalion Chief Eagle thanked the Commissioners for calling a Special Meeting. 
 
REPRESENTED CHIEF OFFICERS AND ASSISTANT FIRE MARSHAL CBA 
Chief O’Brien thanked the Union for their hard work and also thanked Assistant Chief Lundquist and 
the District’s negotiating team. This is a solid contract that does well for the Union and the citizens. 
 
Assistant Chief Lundquist asked if the Commissioners had any questions, and there were no additional 
questions. 
 
Motion to accept the Represented Chief Officers and Assistant Fire Marshal contract as submitted. 
Motion by Commissioner Waugh and 2nd by Chairman Elmore. 
On vote, Motion carried 7/0. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
N/A 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Chairman Elmore thanked the Union and Assistant Chief Lundquist and team for their efforts.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Chairman Elmore adjourned the meeting at 1705 hours. 
 

37



  
 

 
Special Commissioner Meeting – June 20, 2024 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Rick Edwards 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Chairman Troy Elmore 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Vice Chairman Randy Fay 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Paul Gagnon 

  
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Jeff Schaub 

 
  

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Jim Steinruck 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
        Commissioner Roy Waugh 

 
 

38



 

 

 

Old Business 
discussion 

39



 

 

 

Old Business 
Action 

40



 
 

SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE AND RESCUE 
 

RESOLUTION #2024-5 
 
A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH AN EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM FOR PERS 2 AND PERS 3 

EMPLOYEES 
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Fire Commissioners of Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue have found it in the best 
interest of the district and its employees to establish an early retirement incentive for PERS 2 and PERS 3 employees; 
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Fire Commissioners of Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue recognize that the cost of 
health insurance discourages employees from taking retirement prior to age 65; 
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Fire Commissioners of Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue has determined that replacing 
employees at retirement age with new employees provides a cost savings that can be shared with retirees by 
establishing a retiree medical benefit. 
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Fire Commissioners of Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue have found that an early 
retirement incentive generates net savings to the district from regular salaries, longevity, and vacation. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF SNOHOMISH REGIONAL 
FIRE AND RESCUE, SNOHOMISH COUNTY, STATE OF WASHINGTON THAT: 
 

1. To participate in the early retirement incentive program, employees must be at least 62 years old on the date 
of their retirement, and their age plus years of service at Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue must equal 78 
or more. Also, the employee must be eligible for PERS 2 or PERS 3 retirement. 

2. During months when eligible retirees have other outside health insurance, the district will not pay for their 
insurance under this incentive. Retirees are required to notify the district if they have other insurance coverage, 
or they will forfeit any available future coverage under this incentive. 
The retirement medical and VEBA benefit will end after 3 years or upon the employee’s eligibility for Medicare, 
whichever comes first. 

3. Except for employees retiring in 2024, employees wishing to retire and use this benefit must notify the district 
by July 1st of the preceding year. Notification must include the date of separation/retirement. 

4. An employee who gives notice of retirement to the district, and is approved for the benefit, but then 
subsequently does not retire on the date specified in the notice, will permanently forfeit eligibility for this benefit. 

5. The monthly medical and VEBA benefits will be based upon 50% of the medical premiums then in effect for a 
single employee, plus $75 in VEBA benefits per month. The retiree will be responsible for paying 50% of the 
benefits. 

6. Each year, the calculated gross savings for each retiree as calculated for that year shall be transferred from 
the general VEBA fund into the retirement reserve account until the estimated total cost of the retirement 
medical and benefit has been funded.  

7. The retirement medical and VEBA costs shall be paid from the retirement reserve account. 
8. The Board of Fire Commissioners shall have the unilateral right to modify, change, or rescind the Resolution 

at any time for the years following 2024 based on economic circumstances as determined by the Board. 
 
ADOPTED AT A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS, SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE AND 
RESCUE THIS 27TH DAY OF JUNE 2024.  
 
                                                               
Rick Edwards, Commissioner    Troy Elmore, Commissioner 
     
                                                        ______        
Randy Fay, Commissioner    Paul Gagnon, Commissioner  
 
            
Jeff Schaub, Commissioner   Jim Steinruck, Commissioner   
     
                                                        ______        
Roy Waugh, Commissioner   Attest to: District Secretary  

41



 

 

 

New Business 
Discussion 

42



 

 

 

 

 

 

Initiative Name: Draft Policy Approval #POL-2406 

 

Executive member responsible for guiding the initiative:  DC McConnell  

 
Type of Action:                                                            ☐ 
 
Initiative Description: 

• Brief Description 
• Goal of Initiative 
• Initiative Results (deliverables) 
• Connection to Strategic Plan 
• Supporting Documentation 

(attach) 
o Scope of work 
o Contract(s) 
o Project proposal(s) 
o Presentation(s) 

• If Financial: Reason RAB must 
be approved outside of the 
annual budget process 

The agency is working through adoption of updated policies developed in 
the Lexipol format. The policy approval process includes division head 
review, staff policy committee review, labor review, senior staff review, 
commission policy committee review, and final board adoption. This is an 
ongoing process requiring monthly review and approval.  
 
Draft Policy:  

• 103 Governing Rules and Board Policies 
• 215 Community Advisory Committee 
• 330 Ride-Along Program 
• 607 Heat Illness Prevention Training 
• 904 High-Visibility Vests 
• 905 Body Armor 
• 920 Roadway Incident Safety 
• 1028 Uniform Regulations 

Policies to be superseded/rescinded 
• SCFD7 Policy 4 Entrance Requirements for All Personnel 

(SRFR Policy 1046 Entrance Requirements for All Personnel) 
• SCFD7 Policy 22 Response to Requests for Assistance 

(SRFR Policy 301 Emergency Response) 
• SCFD7 Policy 49 Automobile Usage 

(SRFR Policy 1045 Automobile Usage) 
• SCFD7 Policy 68 Paid Family and Medical Leave 

(SRFR Policy 1038 Paid Family and Medical Leave) 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
 

Expense:       ☐ Increase      ☐ Decrease     N/A  
Revenue:      ☐ Increase      ☐ Decrease     N/A  
 
Total amount of initiative (attach amount breakdown if applicable): $  
Initial amount: $  
Long-term annual amount(s): $  
 
 
Currently Budgeted:                   ☐ Yes      ☐ No    Amount: $  
 

Request for Action by the Board (R.A.B) 
The purpose of the RAB is to provide a standardized format 
for presenting initiatives requiring action by the Board of Fire 
Commissioners. The RAB serves as a guide and checklist 
intended to provide the detailed, relevant, information 
needed to help the Board take action on projects, programs, 
and other initiatives.  

Motion Resolution 

43



Budget Amendment Needed:   ☐ Yes     ☐ No    Amount: $  
• If yes: Fund(s)/line item(s) to be amended: 

 
 
Risk Assessment: Risk if approved: N/A 

 
 
 
Risk if not approved: Increased liability due to outdated policies that do not match current 

agency practices or meet organizational needs. 
 
 
 

 
Legal Review: 
 
 

       
      Initiative conforms with District policy/procedure number (attach):  
      Initiatives that require legal review (contracts, other initiatives):  

• Contracts 
• Has been reviewed and approved by legal 
• Includes all costs 
• Includes term 
• Includes ‘do not exceed’ language 

 ☐     N/A 
 

 

Presented to, and Approved by, Senior Staff                Yes      ☐     No     

 

Commissioner Sub-Committee Approval 

    
Initiative presented to commissioner sub-committee:     Yes    ☐  No 
Approved by commissioner sub-committee:          Yes     ☐  No    
N/A:        ☐   
 

 
For Fire Chief Approval:   RAB document complete 

 
  Supporting documentation attached 
 
☐  Information sent to Fire Chief, Senior Staff, and Board Support (Mindy Leber) 
 

Fire Chief will approve and distribute by email to the Board of Commissioners – RAB 
executive/senior staff will be cc’d on the email distribution 

 
Fire Chief will coordinate with Senior Staff for RAB introduction 

 
 

RAB Executive: Confirmed email sent to Board by Fire Chief            ☐   Yes        ☐    No      

 
Board of Fire 
Commissioners 

RAB initiatives go through the following process: 
 

1. Senior Staff approval to move forward to a committee/board 
2. Initiatives are introduced to the appropriate committee for review 

44



3. Initiatives are introduced at an initial commissioner meeting as a Discussion Item 
o The Senior Staff member assigned to develop the initiative presents initiative to the 

Board (maximum time for presentation is ten minutes) 
4. At a second commissioner meeting, initiatives may be assigned as an action item for 

approval 
 

 

Execution: It is the responsibility of the RAB Executive to execute implementation, processing, and tracking. 

 
 

45



Policy

103
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 1

Governing Rules and Board Policies
103.1   AUTHORITY
Status. Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue is a municipal corporation organized and operating
pursuant to Title 52 RCW.

Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners "the Board" possesses the powers and
authority as set forth in Title 52 RCW and other applicable provisions of the Revised Code of
Washington.

Purpose. The Board of Commissioners hereby establishes the following Governing Rules and
Board Policies to guide the conduct of the Board in managing the operation of the District. These
rules shall be in effect upon adoption by resolution of the Board and until such time as they are
amended or new rules are adopted in the manner provided by these rules.

103.2   COMMISSIONERSHIP, QUORUM, VOTING, AND VACANCIES
Commissioner Positions.  The Board of Commissioners consists of seven (7) Commissioner
positions each with a six-year term. Elected Commissioners shall take office at the first meeting
in January following an election, provided that Commissioners elected to fill the remainder of a
vacant term may take office at the first meeting following the certification of the election.

Commissioner Oath.  Commissioners shall take an oath of office before beginning to perform the
duties of the office, but no more than ten days prior to the date the Commissioner's term begins.

Individual Commissioners.

1.  Each Commissioner is an elected or appointed representative of the residents of the
District.  Commissioners are entitled to vote on all matters coming before the Board
and to make and second motions regardless of whether the Commissioner is serving
as chair.

2. Individual Commissioners do not have authority to manage or direct the affairs of
the District.  Administrative and managerial powers may only be exercised by those
persons to whom such powers are delegated by action of the Board.  The principal
executive and administrative officer of the District is the Fire Chief who has the
responsibility for the management of the daily affairs of the District, for the supervision
of District personnel and for the establishment of a chain of command to carry out
such supervision.

3. Commissioners are encouraged to become familiar with the District operations. The
Fire Chief or designee shall provide new Commissioners with a District orientation,
station visits and staff introductions.  Commissioners are encouraged to notify the Fire
Chief prior to visiting a fire station.  If prior notice is not feasible, the Commissioner
shall notify the Fire Chief after the visit.

4. Individual Commissioners communicating with personnel shall not present themselves
as representing official positions of the Board of Commissioners. It is a policy of the

46

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?Cite=52
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?Cite=52


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 2

District, that individual Commissioners shall not supervise, direct or discipline District
personnel. It is the entire Board's role to supervise the Fire Chief.

5. Commissioners may communicate directly with the Fire Chief to address significant
or time sensitive concerns or issues with  District operations.

6. The Fire Chief shall be the primary contact with District legal counsel.  It is suggested
that all contact go through the Chair and Fire Chief; however, any Commissioner may
contact legal counsel.

Quorum. A quorum shall constitute a majority of the Commissioners.

Voting. The Board shall act by majority vote except where statutory requirements require a super
majority or unanimous vote in which case the statutory requirement shall control. Voting shall
occur as follows:

1. Voice vote. A generalized verbal indication by the Board as a whole of "yea or nay"
vote on a matter, the outcome of which vote shall be recorded in the official minutes
of the Board. Silence of a Commissioner during a voice vote shall be recorded as a
vote with the prevailing side, except where such a Commissioner abstains because of
a stated conflict of interest or appearance of fairness.

2. Roll call vote. A roll call vote may be requested by the Chair or by any Commissioner.

3. Abstentions. It is the responsibility of each Commissioner to vote when requested on
a matter before the full Board. However, a Commissioner may abstain from discussion
and voting on a question because of a stated conflict of interest or appearance of
fairness.

4. Votes by Chair. The Chair may vote on the same basis as any other Commissioner.

Absences. Commissioners will inform the Chair or Board Secretary if they are unable to attend
any Board meeting, or if they knowingly will be late to any meeting. The minutes will show the
Commissioner as having an excused absence unless the Board approves a motion declaring the
absence to be unexcused.

Remote Attendance.  Commissioners may attend meetings remotely provided that such
arrangements are made in advance with the Chair or Board Secretary and provided that
technology permits the remote Commissioner to hear and be heard by the other Commissioners
and any public and staff attending the meeting.

Removal of Commissioner. If a Commissioner has two (2) consecutive unexcused absences
from regularly scheduled meetings, the Board of Commissioners may direct the Board Secretary
or designee, to notify the Commissioner by mail that failure to attend the next regularly scheduled
meeting, without an approved excuse, will result in the position being declared vacant. In such an
event, the vacant position shall be filled in accordance with Section 103.2 Vacancies.

Vacancies. In case of a Board vacancy, the remaining Commissioners shall fill such vacancy by
appointment. The appointee shall meet the following minimum requirements:

1. U.S. Citizen

47



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 3

2. 18 years old or older 

3. Registered voter Residing in the District for at least 30 days

4. No Felony Convictions unless the individual has had his or her civil rights restored
subsequent to the conviction. Conviction of anything less than a felony does not
preclude  an individual from holding public office.

5. No contractual conflict of interest with the District, i.e a contractual relationship with
the  District that exceeds $3,000 per month in compensation.

 The Board has 90 days from the date the vacancy occurs to fill the position, in a public meeting
and as outlined in accordance with RCW 42.12.080:

1. After a vacancy occurs, the remaining members of the governing body must nominate
at least one candidate at a meeting of the governing body. The governing body
must then cause notice of the vacancy and the name of the nominated candidate or
candidates to be posted in three public places in the special purpose district, including
on the district's website if the district has a website, for a minimum of 15 days. During
the notice period, registered voters who reside in the special purpose district may
submit nominations to the remaining members of the governing body.

2. The notice must state that a vacancy exists, must identify the candidate(s) who are
already nominated, must indicate that the Board will accept additional nominations
from District registered voters, and outline the process and parameters the Board will
use to fill the vacancy.

3. If the Board does not fill the vacancy within 90 days, the Board's authority to fill the
vacancy terminates and the County legislative body is required to fill the vacancy.

4. As provided in chapter 29A.24 RCW, each person who is appointed shall serve until
a qualified person is elected at the next election at which a member of the governing
body normally would be elected. The person elected shall take office immediately and
serve the remainder of the unexpired term.

103.3   BOARD CHAIR SELECTION AND DUTIES
Selection of Chair. Annually at the first meeting in January of each year, or if required at other
times by changes in the Commissionership, the members thereof, by majority vote, shall designate
one Commissioner to serve as Chair and one Commissioner to serve as Vice Chair for the ensuing
year. Nominations will be called for and closed by the governing Board before the vote.

Conduct of Meetings. The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Board and, in the absence of
the Chair, the Vice Chair will act in that capacity. If both the Chair and Vice Chair are absent and
a quorum is present, the Board shall elect one of its members to serve as Chair until the return
of the Chair or Vice Chair.

Duties of the Chair:

1. Shall preserve order and decorum at all meetings of the Board and cause the removal
of any person from any meeting for disorderly conduct;

2. Shall observe and enforce all rules adopted by the Board.

48

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=42.12.080
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=29A.24


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 4

103.4   BOARD SECRETARY
The Board shall appoint a qualified individual to serve as Secretary to the Board of Commissioners
as required by RCW 52.14.080.  The Secretary shall take an oath of office and shall perform all
duties as required by law or as assigned by the Board.

103.5   BOARD MEETINGS
Open Public Meetings. All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public and all persons shall
be permitted to attend any meeting of this body, except as provided in RCW Chapter 42.30. The
Board Secretary, or designee, shall be responsible for preparing agendas for all Board meetings.
The Board Secretary, or designee, shall cause to be prepared minutes of all of the Board meetings,
which minutes shall contain an account of all official actions of the Board. The open public portions
of the Board meetings shall be electronically recorded and retained for the period of time as
provided by State law.

Regular Meetings. The date, time and location of the regular meetings of the Board shall be
established by Resolution of the Board.

Special Meetings. Special Meetings may be called by the Chair or by any four (4) members of
the Board by written notice delivered to each member of the Board in the manner required by
RCW 42.30.080.

Emergency Meetings. Emergency meetings may be called by the Chair, in accordance with RCW
42.30.070.

Executive and Closed Sessions. The Board may hold executive sessions pursuant to a purpose
authorized under RCW 42.30.110 and may hold closed meetings pursuant to RCW 42.30.140.
Attendance in executive sessions or closed meetings shall be limited to the Commissioners
and such other staff members and consultants authorized by the Chair or a majority of the
Commissioners. The public is restricted from attendance. Executive and closed sessions shall
not be recorded.

Cancellation of Meetings. Meetings may be canceled by the chair or by a majority vote of
the Board and proper notice given by the Board Secretary.

Meeting Relocations. Regular Meetings may be relocated if necessary to meet the needs of
the Board.  For regular meetings, temporary or permanent relocations shall be established by
Board Resolution or through the use of the adjournment/continuation procedures set forth in RCW
42.30.090 and RCW 42.30.100.

103.6   ORDER OF BUSINESS AND REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Agenda Preparation. All items to be included on the Board's agenda for consideration should be
submitted to the Board Secretary or designee, in full by Noon two days preceding each regular
Board meeting. The Board Secretary or designee shall then prepare a proposed agenda according
to the order of business, for approval by the Chair, or Chair's designee. A final agenda will then

49

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=52.14.080
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30.080
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30.070
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30.070
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30.110
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30.140
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30.090
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30.090
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30.100


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 5

be prepared by the Board Secretary, or designee and distributed to Commissioners as the official
agenda for the meeting. The agenda shall be posted on the District website at least 24 hours in
advance of the meeting but may be modified at any time.  The agenda format of the Regular Board
meetings shall be substantially as follows:

1. Call to order. The Chair shall call the meeting to order.

2. Flag salute. The Chair, Commissioners and, at times, invited guests will lead the flag
salute.

3. Roll call. The Chair will call the roll. Commissioners may request to be excused from
a meeting by requesting the same of the Chair in advance of the meeting.

4. Agenda modifications. Changes to the Board's published agenda may be requested
and announced at this time.

5. Announcements, Proclamations and Presentations. A proclamation is defined as
an official announcement made by the Chair or the Governance Board regarding a
non-controversial event, activity or special interest group which has a major authority-
wide impact.

6. Public Comment. Members of the audience may comment on items relating to any
matter related to District business under the Public Comment period. Comments are
limited to three (3) minutes per person, and a total of fifteen (15) minutes per topic
pursuant to the rules established under Section 103.8 Public Comments of these
Rules. Citizens may also speak on individual agenda items on the printed agenda at
the time they are considered by the Board when specifically invited to do so by the
Chair.

7. Union Comment. Union Representatives may comment and inform the Board of
issues of interest to the Unions.

8. Chief's Report.  The Fire Chief, or Fire Chief's designee, shall provide a report
informing the Board of the operations of the District.

9. Board Committee Reports/Meeting Report. Board Committee Chairs report on
action and activities of their respective Board Committees and other meetings
attended.

10. Consent Agenda. Approval of the Consent Agenda, including items considered to be
routine and non-controversial, may be approved by one motion. Items on the Consent
Agenda include but are not limited to the following. Any Commissioner may remove
any item from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and action.

(a) Approval of minutes.

(b) Fixing dates for public hearings and appeals.

(c) Approval of claims and vouchers, bid awards and contracts.

(d) Other items designated by the Governance Board.

11. Old Business. Unfinished business of a general nature.

12. New Business. Business that has not been previously before the Governance Board.

50



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 6

13. Good of the Order.

14. Future Meetings.

15. Executive Sessions.  When executive sessions are required the Chair shall
announce the time of the executive session and the purpose of the executive session
with specific reference to the statutory authority for the executive session.  The Chair
may, but is not required, to announce whether action is anticipated to follow the
executive session.  Executive sessions may be extended as necessary by announcing
the time extensions.

16. Adjournment.

Recess. The foregoing agenda may be interrupted for a stated time as called by the Chair to
recess for any reason.

103.7   CONDUCT AT MEETINGS AND DEBATES; RULES OF PROCEDURE
Interruption. No member of the Board, including the Chair, shall interrupt or argue with any other
member while such member has the floor, other than the Chair's duty to preserve order during
meetings.

Courtesy. All speakers, including members of the Board, which includes the Chair, in the
discussion, comments, or debate of any matter or issue shall address their remarks to the Chair,
be courteous in their language and deportment, and shall not engage in or discuss or comment
on personalities, or indulge in derogatory remarks or insinuations in respect to any other member
of the Board, or any member of the staff or the public, but shall at all times confine their remarks
to those facts which are germane and relevant to the question or matter under discussion.

Challenge to Ruling. - Any member of the Board, including the Chair, shall have the right to
challenge any action or ruling of the Chair, or member, as the case may be, in which case the
decision of the majority of the members of the Board present, including the Chair, shall govern.

Rules of Order.  These Rules establish the governing rules of order for the Board.  In the event
a situation arises in which these Rules do not adequately address or resolve a procedural issue,
then, except where such rules conflict with these rules or state law, except as modified below, the
rules of procedure for small boards established in the latest edition of  Roberts Rules of Order,
Newly Revised,  shall control.

1. If a motion does not receive a second, it dies. Matters that do not constitute a motion
include nominations, withdrawal of motion by the person making the motion, request
for a roll call vote, and point of order or privilege; therefore a second is not needed
for those matters.

2. A motion that receives a tie vote is deemed to have failed.

3. When making motions, Commissioners shall be clear and concise and not include
arguments for the motion within the motion.

51



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 7

4. After a motion has been made and seconded, the Commissioners may discuss their
opinions on the issue prior to the vote.

5. If any Commissioner wishes to abstain, from a vote, that Commissioner shall
advise the Governance Board, and shall remove and absent himself/herself from the
deliberations and considerations of the motion, and shall have no further participation
in the matter. Such advice shall be given prior to any discussion or participation on the
subject matter or as soon thereafter as the Commissioner perceives a need to abstain,
provided that, prior to the time that a Commissioner gives advice of an intent to abstain
from an issue, the Commissioner may confer with the District Attorney to determine
if the basis for the Commissioner's intended abstention is appropriate. If the intended
abstention can be anticipated in advance, the conference with the District Attorney
should occur prior to the meeting at which the subject matter would be coming before
the Board.

6. A motion may be withdrawn by the maker of the motion at any time without the consent
of the Board.

7. A motion to table is non-debatable and shall preclude all amendments or debates
of the issue under consideration. A motion to table is to be used in instances
where circumstances or situations arise which necessitate the interruption of the
Commissioners' consideration of the matter then before them. A motion to table, if
passed, shall cause the subject matter to be tabled until the interrupting circumstances
or situations have been resolved, or until a time certain, if specified in the motion to
table. To remove an item from the table in advance of the time certain requires a
majority vote.

8. A motion to postpone to a certain time is debatable, is amendable and may be
reconsidered at the same meeting. The question being postponed must be considered
at a later time at the same meeting, or to a time certain at a future Regular or Special
Governing Board meeting.

9. A motion to postpone indefinitely is debatable, is not amendable, and may be
reconsidered at the same meeting only if it received an affirmative vote.

10. A motion to call for the question shall close debate on the main motion and is not
debatable. This motion must receive a second and fails without a majority vote; debate
is reopened if the motion fails.

11. A motion to amend is defined as amending a motion that is on the floor and has been
seconded, by inserting or adding, striking out, striking out and inserting, or substituting.

12. Motions that cannot be amended include: Motion to adjourn, lay on the table, roll call
vote, point of order, reconsideration and take from the table. A motion to amend an
amendment is not in order.

13. Amendments are voted on first, then the main motion as amended (if the amendment
received an affirmative vote).

14. Debate of a motion only occurs after the motion has been moved and seconded.

52



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 8

15. When a question has been decided, any Commissioner who voted in the majority may
move for reconsideration, but no motion for reconsideration of a vote shall be made
until the next Regular Board meeting.

16. The District Attorney shall act as the Board's parliamentarian and shall decide all
questions of interpretations of these rules which may arise at a Board meeting.

17. These rules may be amended, or new rules adopted, by a majority vote of the full
Board.

103.8   PUBLIC COMMENTS
Persons addressing the Board, who are not specifically scheduled on the agenda, will be
requested to step up to the podium, give their name and address for the record, and limit their
remarks to three (3) minutes. All remarks will be addressed to the Board as a whole. The Board
Secretary or designee, shall serve as timekeeper. The Chair, or a majority of the Board, may
make exceptions to the time restrictions of persons addressing the Board when warranted, in the
discretion of the Chair or the Board.

Any person making personal, impertinent or slanderous remarks while addressing the Board shall
be barred from further audience participation by the Chair, unless permission to continue is granted
by a majority vote of the Board.

103.9   PUBLIC HEARINGS AND APPEALS
Quasi Judicial Hearings.  Quasi-Judicial hearings require a decision be made by the Board using
a certain process, which may include a record of evidence considered and specific findings made.
The following procedure shall apply:

1. The Fire Chief or designee will present the District's position and findings. Staff will be
available to respond to Board questions.

2. The proponent spokesperson shall speak first and be allowed (10) minutes unless
extended by the Chair. The Board may ask questions.

3. Each side shall then be allowed five (5) minutes, unless extended by the Chair, for
rebuttal, with the proponent spokesperson speaking first, followed by the opponent
spokesperson.

4. The Board Secretary or designee, shall serve as timekeeper during these hearings.

5. After each proponent and opponent spokesperson have used their speaking time, the
Board may ask further questions of the speakers, who shall be entitled to respond but
limit their response to the question asked.

Public Hearings.  Public hearings where a general audience is in attendance to present
arguments for or against a public issue:

1. The Fire Chief or designee shall present the issue to the Board and respond to
questions.

53



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 9

2. A person may speak for three (3) minutes. The Chair may make exceptions to the time
restrictions of persons speaking at a public hearing when warranted, in the discretion
of the Chair.

3. The Board Secretary or designee, shall serve as timekeeper during these hearings.

4. After the speaker has used the speaker's allotted time, the Board may ask questions
of the speaker and the speaker may respond, but may not engage in further debate.

5. The hearing will then be closed to public participation and open for discussion among
Commissioners.

The Chair may exercise changes in the procedures at a particular meeting or hearing, but the
decision to do so may be overruled by a majority vote of the Board.

103.10   BOARD MEETING STAFFING
District Secretary. The District Secretary, or designee, shall attend all meetings of the Board
unless excused by the Chair or the Fire Chief and in such event, an acting District Secretary may
be designated to attend the meeting by the Chair or the Fire Chief.

Fire Chief. The Fire Chief or designee shall attend all meetings of the Board unless excused.

District Attorney. The District Attorney may attend all meetings of the Board when requested
by the Fire Chief or the Chair and, upon request, give an opinion, either written or oral, on legal
questions.

103.11   BOARD RELATIONS WITH STAFF
Mutual Respect. There will be mutual respect from both District staff and Commissioners of their
respective roles and responsibilities when, and if, expressing criticism in a public meeting.

Roles. District staff will acknowledge the Board as policy makers, and the Commissioners will
acknowledge District staff as administering the Board's policies.

Communications. All written informational material requested of District staff by any individual
Commissioners shall be submitted to (or made available to) all Commissioners unless other
reasons preclude such distribution, in which case the reasons shall be communicated to the
Commissioners by the Chair or designee.

1. Commissioners shall not attempt to coerce or influence District staff in the selection
of personnel, the awarding of contracts, the selection of consultants, the processing
of development applications or the granting of District licenses or permits.

2. Commissioners shall not attempt to change or interfere with the operating rules and
practices of the District.

3. No Commissioner shall direct the Chair to initiate any action or prepare any report that
is significant in nature or initiate any project or study without the consent of a majority
of the Board.

54



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 10

4. Individual requests for information can be made directly to the Fire Chief unless
otherwise determined by the Chair. If the request would create a change in work
assignments or District staffing levels, the request must be made through the Chair.

103.12   BOARD COMMITTEES AND COMMUNITY LIAISONS
Standing Committees. Standing Committees of the Board of Commissioners shall each have
threeCommissioners and are established as follows:

1. Finance Committee. Reviews and provides guidance regarding matters of finance,
budget, contracts, human resources, labor issues, risk management, etc.

2. Capital Facilities Committee. Reviews and provides guidance regarding matters of
real property, fire stations, facilities, maintenance, vehicles, etc.

3. Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC). Provides for citizen participation in the
planning process and critical issue review for the District. Commissioners shall lead
the committee and work to involve citizens to review, validate, gather, and provide
citizen input on any given topic requested by the Board.

(a) Citizen members of the CAC shall be selected by the Commissioners.

Ad Hoc Committees. The Board may establish Ad Hoc Committees as necessary to address
specific issues of interest to the Board and the District.

Committee Appointments.  Committee appointments shall be made by the Board Chair after
seeking input from the Commissioners.  Committee appointments shall generally be made at the
first Board meeting in January but may be adjusted or changed at any time to meet the needs of
the Board. Board Committees, except the CAC, shall not consist of a quorum of the Governing
Board as defined in these rules.

Committee Authority. Board Committees are purely advisory in nature, shall not have any
decision making authority, and are not authorized to "act on behalf of" the Governing Board as that
term has been defined by the Washington State Supreme Court in Citizens Alliance for Property
Rights v. San Juan County, 184 Wn.2d 428 (2015). Board Committees are not intended to meet
the definition of a Public Agency under RCW 42.30.020(1) and such meetings shall not be required
to comply with the Open Public Meetings Act

Community Participation.

1. Commissioners shall serve as community liaisons with other governmental entities
and community organizations as identified by the Board.

2. All Commissioners are encouraged to attend local government and County meetings,
service clubs, chambers of commerce, and other organizations. Attendance and
participation of such activities should be coordinated. Individual Commissioners could
be slated to attend.

103.13   BOARD REPRESENTATION
If a Commissioner appears on behalf of the District before another governmental agency, a
community organization, or through the media, for the purpose of commenting on an issue,

55

http://caselaw.findlaw.com/wa-supreme-court/1714861.html
http://caselaw.findlaw.com/wa-supreme-court/1714861.html
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30.020
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 11

the Commissioner needs to state the majority position of the Governance Board if known, on
such issue. Personal opinions and comments which differ from those of the Board majority may
be expressed if the Commissioner clarifies that these statements do not represent the Board's
position. Commissioners need to have other Commissioner's concurrence before representing
another Commissioner's view or position with the media, another government agency or
community organization.

103.14   CONFIDENTIALITY
Commissioners should keep confidential all written materials and verbal information provided
to them during Executive Sessions, to ensure that the District's position is not compromised.
Confidentiality also includes information provided to Commissioners outside of Executive
Sessions when the information is considered exempt from disclosure under exemptions set forth
in the Revised Code of Washington.

103.15   BOARD COMPENSATION
Commissioner Compensation.  Commissioners shall receive compensation in the manner
provided in RCW 52.14.010 implemented in accordance with the following rules. It is the function
of the Board to approve the services that any member is authorized to perform for the District.
  Commissioner shall be entitled to receive the full amount of compensation authorized by statute
for the following activities:

1. Actual attendance at all regular and special meetings of the Board.

2. Attendance at Board designated committee meetings.

3. Attendance at regular Fire Commissioners Association meetings and at meetings of
the Board of Directors of the Association if the Commissioner is a member of the
Board.

4. Attendance at Washington Fire Commissioners Association meetings, conferences
and seminars.

5. Attendance at District related seminars and educational classes.

6. Attendance at District open house functions.

7. Travel time when a separate day of travel is required because of the location and
scheduling of the activity.

8. Attendance at other District related activities approved by the Board.

9. Or, in performance of other services or duties on behalf of the District as approved by
the Board of Commissioners.

Waiver of Commissioner Compensation. Any Commissioner may waive all or any portion of his
or her compensation payable under this section, by a written waiver filed with the Board Secretary
prior to the date on which the compensation would otherwise be earned. The waiver shall specify
the time period or the specific activities for which the waiver is made.

56

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=52.14.010


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 12

Commissioner Expense Reimbursement. Commissioners shall, on approval by the Chair,
receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending activities, meetings and
events held outside of the District per the District's Travel Policy.

103.16   ACCESS TO DISTRICT RECORDS
Each  Commissioner shall have access to District records during regular business hours of the
District; provided, that the review or examination of the records shall not interfere with the normal
operation of the District staff.  Commissioners shall not remove original District records from
District buildings.  The administration shall provide copies of records requested by Commissioners
subject to the following limitations:

No copies of confidential records will be provided without prior approval of the Board.

Copies will be provided promptly, provided the copying shall not unduly interfere with normal
operations of the administrative staff.

District records and information obtained from District records may not be used by Commissioners
for non-District business nor disclosed to unauthorized persons.

103.17   PERSONAL LIABILITY PROTECTION
Insurance. Commissioners shall be included as named insureds on all applicable District
insurance policies.  In the event a Commissioner shall be individually named as a defendant in
any litigation arising out of the performance by the Commissioner of District business and the
District's insurance carrier shall deny coverage and refuse to provide defense to the action, the
District shall provide the Commissioner with defense coverage and liability protection subject to
the following conditions:

1. The cause of action must have arisen as a result of the action or non-action
of the Commissioner while acting within the scope and authority of the office of
Commissioner.

2. The cause of action must not have arisen as a result of intentionally negligent or
criminal conduct of the Commissioner.

Liability Protection Procedure.  The following procedure shall be used to determine if the District
shall provide the defense and liability coverage for a  Commissioner.

1. The matter shall be referred to the District's Attorney for investigation and review.

2. The District's Attorney or designee shall fully investigate the facts and circumstances
of the litigation and the actions of the defendant Commissioner.

3. The District's Attorney shall report to the Board in writing the results of the investigation
and research.  A copy of the report shall be furnished to each Commissioner under
the attorney-client communication privilege.

4. The Board shall make the final determination based on the report and investigation
of the attorney.

57



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 13

103.18   ETHICS
Purpose.  The District and its Commissioners find that the proper operation of a fire protection
district, as a taxpayer-supported public entity, requires that public officers, and particularly elected
officials primarily responsible for the lawful management of the municipal corporation, be ethical,
independent, impartial and responsible to the people, as fiduciaries. This policy is limited in scope;
it only applies to the Commissioners of this District.

Policy. The policy of the District is that this Ethics Policy shall be strictly adhered to, and that it
shall be interpreted liberally so as to accomplish its purpose. The goal of the District is to establish
and maintain the highest ethical standards for its leaders, so that they may establish an example
for all District employees to emulate. The expectations of the Board and the District shall be that
the prohibitions contained herein will always be honored and that the recommendations contained
herein will be aspired to, and achieved whenever feasible.

Definitions. The following terms or words shall have the following meanings, throughout this
ethics policy:

1. Major Infraction: A major infraction means and includes misfeasance, malfeasance,
violation of the oath of office, violation of the Washington State or U.S. Constitution or
a state statute or any other offense listed herein that involves honesty or integrity.

2. Minor Infraction: A minor infraction means any ethics code violation not deemed to
be major.

3. Misfeasance: Misfeasance is defined by statute, and means any wrongful conduct
that affects, interrupts or interferes with the performance of official duties. Additionally,
misfeasance means the performance of a duty in an improper manner or with the
appearance of impropriety.

4. Malfeasance: Malfeasance is defined by statute, and means any wrongful conduct
that affects, interrupts or interferes with the performance of official duties. Additionally,
malfeasance means the commission of an unlawful act.

5. Violation of oath of office: This term is also defined by statute and means the neglect
or willful failure of an elected public official to perform faithfully the duties imposed by
law. Violation of a statute, particularly one that prescribes a duty for a  Commissioner,
would be an example of a violation of the oath of office.

Prohibited Conduct- A Commissioner Shall Not:

1. Have an interest, financial or otherwise, direct or indirect, or engage in a business
or transaction or professional activity, or incur an obligation of any nature that is in
conflict with the proper discharge of the Commissioner's duties.

2. Be beneficially interested, directly or indirectly, in a contract, sale, lease, purchase, or
grant that may be made by, though, or under the supervision of the Commissioner, in
whole or in part, and shall not accept, directly or indirectly, any compensation, gratuity,
or reward from any other person beneficially interested in any such contract, sale,
lease, purchase, or grant, except as set forth below.

58



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 14

3. Use his or her position to secure special privileges or exemptions for himself, herself,
or others.

4. Give or receive or agree to receive any compensation, gift, reward, or gratuity
from a source other than the District, for a matter connected with or related to the
Commissioner's services unless provided for by law.

5. Receive, accept, take, seek, or solicit, directly or indirectly, anything of economic value
as a gift, gratuity, or favor from a person if it could be reasonably expected that the gift,
gratuity, or favor would influence the vote, action, or judgment of the Commissioner,
or be considered as part of a reward for action or inaction.

6. Accept employment or engage in business or professional activity that the
Commissioner might reasonably expect would require or induce him or her by reason
of his or her official position to disclose confidential information acquired by reason of
his or her official position.

7. Neither disclose confidential information gained by reason of the Commissioner's
position, nor may the Commissioner otherwise use such information for his or her
personal gain or benefit.

8. Except in the course of official duties or incident to official duties, assist any person,
directly or indirectly, in a transaction involving the District, where such Commissioner's
assistance is, or to a reasonable person would appear to be, enhanced or affected by
the Commissioner's position.

9. Employ or use any District staff or other person, District funds or money, or District
property under the Commissioner's official control or direction, or in his or her official
custody, for the private benefit or gain of the Commissioner, an employee of the
District, or another person, except as allowed by law. This section does not prohibit use
of public resources to benefit citizens or others when such is part of District functions
or official duties, or otherwise allowed by law.

10. Use the facilities, personnel or resources of the District to assist or oppose a campaign
for election or for the promotion or opposition to a ballot proposition, except pursuant
to one of the recognized exceptions to RCW 42.17A.555.

11. Participate, by voting or otherwise, in any issue that comes before the Board, when
the Commissioner has any direct or indirect personal or financial stake in the outcome
of the matter.

12. Campaign for, or accept appointment or election to, any public office that would
be incompatible with the office of Commissioner, if concurrently serving as a
Commissioner.

Recommended Conduct - At All times a Commissioner should:

1. Respect and comply with the law.

2. Act at all times in a manner that promotes public confidence in the office of
Commissioner.

3. Participate in establishing, maintaining, and enforcing high standards of conduct and
personally observe those standards.

59

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.17A.555#:~:text=No%20elective%20official%20nor%20any,any%20person%20to%20any%20office


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Governing Rules and Board Policies

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Governing Rules and Board Policies - 15

4. Exhibit unquestionable integrity and have an uprightness of character and soundness
of moral principle.

5. Show respect for others through temperance, fairness and civility in the execution of
their duties and conduct of their personal life.

6. Have the courage to do what is right and stand up for those without power or authority.

7. Have compassion that is inherent to understanding another's problems while
controlling and understanding personal feelings.

8. Conduct political campaigns in an honest and forthright manner, without attacking
others in a negative way.

9. Lead by example.

10. Never forget that public office requires public trust and confidence.

Exceptions.

1. A  Commissioner is allowed by state statute to be financially involved in a contract
with the District, so long as payment to the Commissioner or his/her business does not
exceed $1,500.00 in any calendar month, provided that such Commissioner shall not
vote on any such contract in which he/she is beneficially interested. Moreover, such
interest shall be disclosed to the Board and noted in the minutes before formation of
the contract.

2. A Commissioner may accept a gift in the form of food or beverage on infrequent
occasions in the ordinary course of performance of duties, but no such gift shall exceed
a value of fifty dollars ($50.00).

3. A Commissioner is not deemed to have an interest in a contract, as those terms are
used herein, if the Commissioner has only a remote interest in the contract, so long as
disclosure is made. A remote interest means, for example, the interest of a nonsalaried
officer of a nonprofit corporation, the interest of an employee of a contracting party,
where the compensation of that employee (Commissioner) consists entirely of fixed
wages or salary, the interest of only a landlord or tenant of the contracting party, or
the interest of a less than 1% shareholder of a contracting corporation or cooperative;
provided that this exception does not apply to a Commissioner who attempts to
influence, or does influence other District officers with respect to entering into the
contract.

Complaints. All complaints or requests for investigation of an alleged violation of this policy shall
be in writing and signed by the complainant.

60



Policy

215
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Community Advisory Committee - 1

Community Advisory Committee
215.1   PURPOSE
Agency Content

The purpose of the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) is to foster collaboration and
engagement between Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue (SRFR) and the local community. As a
well formed committee, the CAC is comprised of community members who represent the diverse
perspectives and backgrounds found in SRFR's service area. While the CAC does not possess
formal authority, it serves as an essential conduit for community input, recommendations, and
advocacy.

215.2   POLICY
Agency Content

It is the policy of Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue to be a responsive partner serving the
community. SRFR strives to seek feedback and recommendations from the community regarding
all operations and services of the District. This policy establishes the framework for meaningful
collaboration between SRFR and the community, ensuring that community voices contribute to
the district's future planning and decision-making.

215.3   DEFINITIONS
Agency Content

Capital Improvement Plan - The district's planning document that develops a timeline and
considers a funding mechanism for any additional capital improvements necessary to maintain
existing service capacity and to meet the increased demand for services predicted by the SRFR
Standards of Cover.

Committee - The volunteer appointed citizen body known as the Snohomish Regional Fire
& Rescue Community Advisory Committee (CAC). The CAC is an uncompensated volunteer
position.

Board - The Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue Board of Commissioners, the authority through
whom the powers and duties of the Committee are created.

Planning Documents - Any document developed and used by the district to establish strategic
direction, evaluate fire service performance and maintain concurrency.

Self-Assessment Document - The district's response to the Commission on Fire Accreditation
International's (CFAI) Fire and Emergency Services Self-Assessment Manual and its series of
"Performance Indicator" requirements that has been submitted for peer review and compliance
with the CFAI requirements for obtaining status as an Accredited Agency.

Staff Liaison - The district staff member(s) appointed by the Fire Chief to work with the Committee.

Standard of Cover - A systems approach toward fire service deployment that evaluates
community risk and expectations to take a comprehensive approach toward establishing

61



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Community Advisory Committee

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Community Advisory Committee - 2

appropriate levels of service capable of safely, efficiently and effectively dealing with the identified
risk.

Strategic Plan - The district planning document that defines the agencies strategy, or direction
for the future, along with decisions on allocating resources including capital and people to pursue
the identified specific strategies.

215.4   COMPOSITION & SELECTION
Agency Content

1. The CAC should consist of twelve members, appointed by the SRFR Board of
Commissioners.

2. Members should be selected to ensure a broad range of perspectives, including
residents, business owners, community leaders, and other stakeholders dispersed
equitably throughout the district.

3. Terms of service shall be two (2) years long and should be staggered to maintain
continuity.

4. At least three Commissioners should attend each meeting.

5. The District shall provide administrative support for all CAC activities.

215.5   APPOINTMENT, ELECTION AND DUTIES OF OFFICERS
Agency Content

1. Officers:

1. The officers of the committee shall consist of a Chair and Vice Chair.

2. Chair:

1. The Chair, appointed by the Board, shall:

1. Preside at and call to order all meetings of the Committee.

2. Work with the Staff Liaison to plan the agenda for the Committee.

3. Coordinate with the Staff Liaison and make sure that all directives or
requests to the Board by the Committee come through the Committee
Chair only and that this protocol and chain of command is observed by
all members.

4. Be the representative and spokesperson of the Committee or designate
an alternate to serve in the Chair's stead if the Vice-Chair is not available.

5. Report to the Board on Committee activities and recommendations in a
timely manor.

6. Propose amendments or changes to this policy as supported by the
majority of the committee.

3. Vice Chair:

62



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Community Advisory Committee

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Community Advisory Committee - 3

1. In the absence of the Chair, will assume all duties of the Chair.

2. Election of the Vice Chair for the upcoming year shall be held at the first meeting
in January.  The Vice chair shall be elected by a simple majority vote of a quorum
of the Committee, shall take office immediately and shall serve until a successor
is elected. In the event the Vice Chair position is vacated the Committee shall fill
the position by a simple majority vote at the first meeting following the creation
of the vacancy.

215.6   COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES
Agency Content

1. Recommendations and Planning

1. Reviewing SRFR plans, policies, and initiatives.

2. Providing feedback and recommendations to enhance SRFR services,
operations, and community outreach.

3. Assist in long-term planning and strategic decision-making.

2. Information Exchange

1. Meeting periodically to receive updates from SRFR leadership on district plans,
projects, and developments.

2. Engaging in open and constructive dialogue with SRFR representatives.

3. Advocacy and Support

1. Advocating for community needs and priorities within SRFR's planning
processes.

2. Promoting community awareness of SRFR initiatives.

3. Encouraging community awareness of SRFR programs and services.

215.7   MEETINGS
Agency Content

1. Agenda and Minutes:

1. All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Washington Public
Meeting Act. The staff liaison shall be responsible for preparing and publishing
the committee agenda as approved by the Committee Chair.

2. Committee meeting minutes shall be prepared by the staff liaison and published
upon approval of the Committee to support transparent Committee findings and
recommendations.

2. Frequency of Meetings:

1. The CAC should meet at least bi-annually.

3. Meeting Dates:

63

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Community Advisory Committee

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Community Advisory Committee - 4

1. The date, time and location of the Committee's regular meetings shall be
coordinated by the staff liaison and committee chair and communicated to the
Board.

4. Rules of Conduct.

1. Be knowledgeable of the governing, Regulations and Policies of the CAC and
uphold the "Rules of Practice" adopted the CAC.

2. The most recent edition of "Robert's Rules of Order for Small Bodies" shall be
used to guide parliamentary proceedings.

215.8   CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Agency Content

1. Notification of Conflict of Interest.

1. Whenever the Committee is considering a matter that raises a question of an
appearance of a conflict of interest for a particular member, the member is
responsible for alerting the Chair and Staff Liaison prior to the meeting of their
situation.  Members are initially responsible for determining when a conflict of
interest exists.

2. No committee member may have an interest, financial or otherwise, direct or
indirect, or engage in a business or transaction or professional activity or incur
an obligation of any nature that is in conflict with the proper discharge of the
committee members' official duties.

3. A committee member asked to vote on an issue that may be a conflict of interest,
should abstain from the vote.

4. Regardless of the number of abstentions to the vote, the majority of yes or no
votes shall decide the matter before the committee.

2. Conduct at Meetings Where a Member has a Conflict of Interest.

1. If any member has a conflict of interest with any particular item, the member
shall notify the Committee and the public in attendance of the conflict of interest.
  The member shall not participate in the discussion of the item unless invited
to do so by a member of the Committee. In any case the member shall not be
party to consideration or the voting on the item.

64



Policy

330
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Ride-Along Program - 1

Ride-Along Program
330.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Discretionary  MODIFIED

Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue recognizes that fire service professionals and students can
learn and gain valuable insight from observing, on a first hand basis, other organizations as they
respond to emergency incidents. An additional purpose of this policy and concurrent procedure is
to allow the District to provide reciprocal opportunity for observation to personnel from other fire
service organizations. Additionally, the Ride-Along Program provides an opportunity for citizens to
experience fire service functions first hand. The District's Ride-Along program may not be feasible
for everyone. Riders must have the physical ability to rapidly mount and dismount apparatus to
prevent delays in emergency response. Riders must also be able to withstand weather variations
common to Washington State for a significant period of time. The District will attempt reasonable
accommodations to allow the ride-along to occur. However, if unable to allow the ride-along due
to physical limitations, SRFR will then strive to accommodate informational station tours or other
appropriate substitutes, if so desired.

330.1.1   REFERENCES
Agency Content

Procedure: 330 Ride-Along Program

Required forms attached to procedure 330 Ride-Along Program:

• SRFR Ride-Along Request Form
o Contains HIPAA Acknowledgment Form

• District Release of Liability

330.2   POLICY
Discretionary  MODIFIED

It is the policy of Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue to provide an opportunity for citizens,
students, and other fire service professionals to experience the fire and EMS service functions
and operations of Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue when specific criteria are met.

330.3   RIDE ALONG REQUESTS
Discretionary  MODIFIED

Ride-along applications by EMS student observers and other medical professionals or trainees
shall be forwarded to the Deputy Chief of EMS for approval, if approved the Deputy Chief will
assign the ride-along applicant to a Battalion Chief for scheduling their ride-time.

Ride-along applications from civilians or fire service professionals from other organizations shall
be forwarded to the Assistant Chief of Operations or his/her designee, if approved the Assistant
Chief or his/her designee will assign the ride-along applicant to a Battalion Chief for scheduling
their ride-time.

65



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Ride-Along Program

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Ride-Along Program - 2

Generally, the amount of ride-along observers throughout the District is limited to one (1) per shift.
The Fire Chief, or designee, may allow for more than one observer on a case-by-case basis.

330.3.1   PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS
Discretionary  MODIFIED

1. Ride-along participants shall be in compliance with the provisions of the Health
Insurance Portability & Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). Those ride-along
participants without formal HIPAA training will be supervised in a manner where patient
privacy rights are protected. Where possible, a copy of HIPAA certification shall be
attached to the SRFR Ride-Along Request Form.

2. Participants shall not be allowed to use any equipment with audio, photography or
video recording capabilities that might infringe upon patient privacy rights, unless prior
approval has been granted through the Assistant Chief of Operations or Deputy Chief
of EMS.

3. Participants are required to wear a seat belt and follow all applicable safety practices
while riding in District apparatus.

4. Participants must be at least 18 years old unless specifically approved in advance by
the Deputy Chief of Operations.

5. Prior to participating in a ride-along, every person must acknowledge the risks and
sign the District Release of Liability Form and HIPAA Acknowledgment Form.

6. The participant must be in good health and must not be suffering from any illness or
injury, including cold, flu or respiratory infection on the day of the ride along.

7. The participant's application forms shall be fully completed and all signatures obtained,
in advance, prior to allowing the ride-along to observe.

330.3.2   ELIGIBILITY
Discretionary  MODIFIED

The Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue ride-along program is offered to everyone meeting
the requirements of this policy and concurrent procedure. If there are multiple applicants on
specific days then residents, students and those employed within the District may take priority.
Every attempt will be made to accommodate interested persons; however, any applicant may be
disqualified without cause.

The following factors may be considered in disqualifying an applicant and are not limited to:

• Being under 18 years of age.

• Prior criminal history.

• Pending criminal action.

• Pending lawsuit against the District.

• Denial by any supervisor.

• Poor health or other condition that cannot be reasonably accommodated.

66



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Ride-Along Program

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Ride-Along Program - 3

330.3.3   AVAILABILITY
Discretionary  MODIFIED

The ride-along program is available on most days of the week, with certain exceptions. The ride-
along times are established by the Battalion Chief. Exceptions to this schedule may be made
as approved by the Fire Chief, or the authorized designee. The Fire Chief, Assistant Chief of
Operations, Deputy Chief of EMS or the affected Battalion Chief may disapprove a ride-along
participant if such detail interferes with prior arrangements or other considerations which may
effect the normal operations of the District. In such cases, alternate arrangements should be made
at the earliest convenience.

330.3.4   SUITABLE ATTIRE
Discretionary  MODIFIED

Any person approved to ride along is required to be suitably dressed in collared shirt, blouse or
jacket, slacks and shoes. Sandals, t-shirts, tank tops, shorts and ripped or torn blue jeans are not
permitted. Fire service professionals from other organizations, EMT students and other uniformed
persons may wear their Class B equivalent uniform or casual business attire. Jewelry and tattoos
should comply with the Personal Appearance Standards Policy. The Battalion Chief may refuse
a ride-along to anyone not properly dressed.

330.4   COMPANY OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES
Discretionary  MODIFIED

The company officer shall advise the on-duty Battalion Chief that a ride-along is present in the
fire apparatus before going into service. Company officers shall be responsible for supervision of
ride-along participants assigned to their station; and enforce the content of this policy. Company
officers shall consider the safety of the ride-along at all times. Company Officers should use
discretion when encountering a potentially dangerous situation, and if feasible, require the
participant to remain in the fire apparatus.

330.5   CONTROL OF RIDE-ALONG
Discretionary

The company officer shall maintain control over the ride-along at all times and instruct him/her in
the conditions that necessarily limit their participation. These instructions should include:

(a) The ride-along will follow the lawful directions of any district member.

(b) The ride-along will not become involved in any investigation, discussions with victims
or handling any fire equipment.

(c) Either the ride-along or the company officer may terminate the ride at any time.
Reasonable effort will be made to return the observer to his/her home or to the fire
station if the ride is terminated.

67



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Ride-Along Program

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Ride-Along Program - 4

(d) Company officers will not allow ride-alongs to be present in any residence or situation
that would jeopardize their safety or cause undue stress or embarrassment to a victim
or any other citizen.

(e) Under no circumstance shall a civilian ride-along be permitted to enter a private
residence with the fire crew without the express consent of the resident or other
authorized person.

330.6   EMERGENCY RESPONSE PARTICIPATION
Agency Content

Riders are not permitted to engage in any emergency service activities unless they are emergency
medical students (EMT's or Paramedics) that are participating in the delivery of emergency
medical care as part of their requirements for the program they are enrolled in.

EMS students who perform emergency services activities must be properly trained in the PPE,
tools and equipment they will be using to perform said activities.

330.7   AGENCY PARTNERSHIPS
Agency Content

In addition to providing the Ride-Along Program Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue will facilitate,
when feasible, direct partnerships with other fire departments to allow members to come shadow
their position within their agency at SRFR. This addition to our program is intended to provide
experience to other fire service professionals and teaching opportunities to district members in a
way that benefits the District and it's relationship with neighboring agencies.

When the District directly works with another agency, the process will be handled by the Deputy
Chief of Operations and/or the Deputy Chief of EMS. The Deputy Chiefs will work with the
partnering agency to fulfill these requirements:

• The District Release of Liability Form shall be reviewed and signed by each member
wishing to shadow at SRFR.

• The partnering agency will need to provide confirmation to the district that their
members are HIPAA trained.

Partnering agency employees will be expected to bring their own PPE and class B agency uniform
for the shadow shift.

When new agency partnerships are established in accordance with this section, Local 2781 shall
be notified.

68



Policy

607
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Heat Illness Prevention Training - 1

Heat Illness Prevention Training
607.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
State  MODIFIED

The purpose of this policy is to establish and maintain a training program that complies with state
mandates for the prevention of heat illness in members who are exposed to high-heat conditions.
This policy identifies which members must receive training, the required curriculum, supervisory
training and responsibilities, and training record documentation (WAC 296-305-05004).

607.1.1   DEFINITIONS
State  MODIFIED

Definitions related to this policy include:

Acclimatization - The temporary adaptation of the body to work in the heat. Acclimatization peaks
in most people within four to 14 days of working at least two hours per day in the heat.

Heat - related illness - A serious medical condition resulting from the body's inability to cope with
a particular heat load, and includes but is not limited to heat cramps, heat exhaustion, and heat
stroke (WAC 296-305-01005).

607.2   POLICY
State  MODIFIED

It is the policy of Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue to promote member health and safety by
establishing a heat illness prevention training program and requiring member participation. In
addition to the safety precautions described in the Heat Illness Prevention Program Policy, the
District shall ensure that effective training is provided to members before the member begins work
that should reasonably be anticipated to result in heat illness.

607.3   SUPERVISOR TRAINING REQUIREMENTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
State  MODIFIED

Supervisors shall be provided additional training on the following topics prior to supervising
members who will be working in the heat (WAC 296-305-05004):

(a) The procedures to follow to implement the applicable provisions in this policy

(b) The procedures to follow when a member exhibits symptoms consistent with possible
heat illness, including emergency response procedures

(c) The procedures for moving or transporting a member to a rendezvous location
accessible to an EMS provider, if necessary

607.4   TRAINING RECORDS
Best Practice  MODIFIED

The Deputy Chief that oversees training shall be responsible for maintaining records of all heat
illness prevention training provided to members. Records should include, but are not limited to,
the following:

69

https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=296-305-05004
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=296-305-01005
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=296-305-05004


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Heat Illness Prevention Training

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Heat Illness Prevention Training - 2

(a) The dates of the training sessions

(b) A list of the topics or a summary of the content of the training sessions

(c) The names or other identifier and job title of all members who received the training

(d) The names, certificate number and qualifications of persons conducting the training

The Deputy Chief should maintain the training records in accordance with established records
retention schedules.

70



Policy

904
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** High-Visibility Safety Vests - 1

High-Visibility Safety Vests
904.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Federal  MODIFIED

The purpose of this policy is to describe the guidelines to protect members who may be exposed
to hazards presented by passing traffic, construction vehicles and disaster recovery equipment
and to comply with applicable safety regulations (Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for
Streets and Highways, 23 CFR 655.601).

904.2   POLICY
Federal  MODIFIED

It is the policy of Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue that all personnel shall wear class II high-
visibility safety vests in addition to appropriate personal protective equipment (PPE) whenever the
emergency scene is located on or near a roadway where firefighters are subject to the hazards of
moving traffic, construction vehicles or disaster recovery equipment. Members who are working
on roadways and are not directly exposed to fire, flame, excessive heat or hazardous materials
are expected to wear a high-visibility vest. This includes pump operators, support personnel and
command officers. When it is anticipated that the emergency scene will be located on a roadway,
high-visibility safety vests should be donned along with other appropriate (PPE) at the time of
dispatch.

High-visibility vests should also be worn any time a member or a supervisor believes increased
visibility would improve safety or efficiency.

71

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-G/part-655/subpart-F/section-655.601


Policy

905
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Body Armor - 1

Body Armor
905.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice  MODIFIED

Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue is committed to reducing or eliminating occupational risks and
hazards whenever possible in an effort to improve member safety. The purpose of this policy is
to identify body armor as a practical safety measure that should be used to reduce some of the
occupational risks and hazards confronting members.

905.1.1   DEFINITIONS
Agency Content

Definitions related to this policy include:

Active Shooter – An individual actively engaged in killing or attempting to kill people in a confined
and populated area.

Slumper – Anyone reported as unresponsive in a vehicle. Possibly due to DUI, medical issue,
or sleeping.

Body Armor - Any bullet-resistant material intended to provide ballistic and trauma protection for
the person wearing the body armor. Ca. Pen. Code § 16288

Soft Armor –   minimum Level IIIA  - Tested to stop.357 SIG and.44 Magnum ammunition fired
from longer barrel handguns. No rifle ammunition protection.

Hard Armor –   minimum Level IV  - Tested to stop.30 cal steel core armor-piercing rifle
ammunition.

Ballistic helmet - Helmets intended to protect the wearer against gunfire.

• Stops NIJ-STD-0106.01 Level IIIA threats including 9mm, 44 mag &.357 SIG (NIJ
0106.01) with Fragmentation Protection: STANAG 2920 & MIL STD 662F

905.1.2   REFERENCES
Agency Content

Policy 332 Scenes of Violence

WAC 296-305-02012 - State Requirements for Fire Departments utilizing body armor.

California Penal Code § 16288

905.2   POLICY
Best Practice  MODIFIED

It is the policy of Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue to provide body armor to district members
who may be exposed to any of the occupational risks and hazards the armor is designed to protect
against. Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue authorizes members to utilize district-issued body
armor whenever members believe it may be prudent or appropriate to do so. It is not the intent of
the District to have members utilize body armor on a routine basis, but rather to have body armor

72

https://california.public.law/codes/ca_penal_code_section_16288
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=296-305-02012
https://california.public.law/codes/ca_penal_code_section_16288


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Body Armor

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Body Armor - 2

available to personnel for situations that may be violent, potentially violent or otherwise pose a
risk to safety that the use of body armor could reduce or eliminate.

A supervisor may mandate the use of body armor in any situation or circumstance that may warrant
the use of armor.

905.3   USE OF BODY ARMOR
Best Practice  MODIFIED

1. Level IIIA soft armor shall be used in the following situations:

1. Any shooting, stabbing, police standby, or situation involving violence.

2. Any incident determined by dispatch to be an 'unsafe scene' (USS).

3. Fights, regardless of if any weapons are reported to be involved.

4. Slumper calls.

5. Suspected or confirmed illicit substance overdoses.

6. Any domestic violence, family dispute, or address that has been flagged for such
hazards or flagged for known violence against public safety personnel.

7. Incidents involving mass civil disturbances, protesting, rioting, or looting.

8. Incidents involving groups or organizations with a known history of violent
encounters or activities.

9. Any incident where an explosive device may be present or suspected.

10. Any incident when law enforcement representatives recommend the use of body
armor.

11. Any time deemed necessary by the IC or person in charge of the crew. (e.g.
Prison/Jails, Homeless encampments)

12. In addition to the requirements listed above, personnel have the discretion to
wear body armor at any time they feel necessary.

2. Body Armor shall be upgraded to hard armor plates and ballistic helmets in the
following situations:

1. When assigned to operations in "Warm Zones" per Policy: 332 Scenes of
Violence

2. Any time deemed necessary by the IC or person in charge of the crew.

3. Soft armor shall continue to be worn while transporting a patient from any situation
listed above. 

4. At a minimum, Level IIIA soft body armor shall be worn until any of the following occurs:

1. The scene is determined to be safe, and all threats have been mitigated.

2. The IC, or person in charge of the crew, states it is safe to remove.

3. Personnel have cleared the scene and are in service.

73



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Body Armor

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Body Armor - 3

905.4   STORAGE OF BODY ARMOR
Agency Content

All district-issued body armor should be stored in full compliance with the manufacturer's guidance.
Generally, all body armor should be stored such that it is not subject to direct sunlight or extreme
temperatures and is protected from moisture or high humidity. Body armor should be stored in a
location that is reasonably accessible to members as needed. During times of known or anticipated
violent events, body armor may be temporarily moved to and stored in any location that makes it
more readily and quickly accessible to members.

905.5   MAINTENANCE AND SERVICE LIFE OF BODY ARMOR
Agency Content

All district-issued body armor shall be inspected and maintained in accordance with the
manufacturer's instructions. All district body armor will be immediately removed from service at
any time that it is damaged, any time it fails the manufacturer's inspection criteria or when it has
exceeded its rated service life.

905.6   SELECTION AND PROCUREMENT OF BODY ARMOR
Agency Content

When members of this district use body armor, Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue shall provide
the necessary equipment in accordance with (WAC 296-305-02012):

(a) The body armor fits properly based on the manufacturer's recommendations and is
not used beyond the warranty expiration date.

(b) Members are trained in the use, limitations and situations in which the body armor
should be worn.

(c) Body armor meets the National Institute of Justice (NIJ) threat level requirements
(WAC 296-305-02012(3)).

74

https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=296-305-02012
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=296-305-02012


Policy

920
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/05/14, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Roadway Incident Safety - 1

Roadway Incident Safety
920.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
Best Practice

The purpose of this policy is to set forth district Fire Chief responsibilities for development of
practices used by members who are engaged in any operations occurring on roadways.

920.2   POLICY
Best Practice  MODIFIED

It is the policy of Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue to provide maximum protection and safety
to members working in or near motor vehicle traffic

920.3   FIRE CHIEF RESPONSIBILITIES
Best Practice  MODIFIED

The Fire Chief or his/her designee should ensure that the District adopts a procedure that
addresses scene safety while working in or near motor vehicle traffic. Procedures should include
but not be limited to:

• Use of the Incident Command System at all roadway incidents.

• Coordination and cooperation with law enforcement on-scene, including establishing
a unified command, depending on the location, size, and complexity of the incident.

• Scene identification and size-up.

• The use of appropriate PPE.

• Establishing a temporary traffic control zone including:

• Placement of apparatus.

• Size of the traffic control zone.

• Use of traffic control devices.

• Personnel assigned to traffic control duties.

920.3.1   MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD)
State  MODIFIED

Procedures should also include any requirements in the manual of uniform traffic control devices
adopted by the state, including but not limited to the following (WAC 468-95-010):

• Use of emergency vehicle lighting.

• Safe positioning of emergency vehicles.

• Use of traffic flaggers.

75

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=468-95-010


Policy

1028
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Uniform Regulations - 1

Uniform Regulations
1028.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
This policy establishes clear and consistent standards for the professional appearance of fire
department personnel through proper uniform wear. It aims to:

• Promote professionalism and public trust: A well-maintained and standardized
uniform fosters a professional image for the fire department, enhancing public trust
and confidence in our services.

• Ensure safety and functionality: Uniforms meeting National Fire Protection
Association (NFPA) standards and the Washington Administrative Code
296-305-02001, as it relates to station work uniforms, prioritize the safety of personnel
by providing appropriate protection during various fire and emergency situations.

• Maintain a cohesive departmental identity: Consistent uniform regulations create
a unified visual representation of the fire department, fostering a sense of pride and
unity among personnel.

• Enhance order and discipline: Clear guidelines for uniform wear contribute to a
disciplined and orderly work environment within the fire department.

1028.1.1   PERSONNEL AFFECTED

• All uniformed members.

• Administrative support staff members.

• Logistics Technicians and fleet shop personnel.

1028.2   REFERENCE
Chapter 296-305

NFPA 1500

NFPA 1971

NFPA 1975

Washington State Fire Chiefs Recommended Class A Dress Uniform.

IAFF Local 2781 Collective Bargaining Agreement, Article 19.

General Teamsters Union Local 38 Agreement, Article 17.

Procedure: 1028 Uniform Regulations

1028.3   DEFINITIONS
Administrative Support Staff – Non-combat, who are represented by Teamsters Local 38 with
exception to the Public Information and Education Officers and Specialists.

76

https://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=296-305-02001
https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?dispo=true&cite=296-305


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Uniform Regulations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Uniform Regulations - 2

Business Casual – Shall mean business type attire to produce a professional image.

Class A Uniform – Shall mean formal/dress uniform.

Class B Uniform – Shall mean the daily work uniform.

Class C Uniform – Shall mean work wear authorized for use during special details, select time
frames, and as approved by the supervising officer or manager.

Confidential and Exempt Administrative Staff - All non-combat, non-represented personnel
exempt from overtime including, but not limited to the the Business Administrator, Human
Resources Director, Human Resources Analysts, Chief Finance Officer, Information Technology,
etc.

Fire District Uniform Provider Web Portal – Shall mean the approved website for uniform
ordering.

Chief Officer – The Fire Chief, Assistant Fire Chief, and Deputy Chief.

Shift Officer – Battalion Chief.

Company Officer – Any Captain, Lieutenant, MSO.

Line Personnel – Any uniformed member including the Public Information and Education Officers
and Specialists.

Safety Shoes – Shall mean appropriate black footwear with crush protection and a puncture-
resistant device in the sole and which meets the performance requirements of NFPA 1971.

1028.4   POLICY
As a highly visible public service agency, it is prudent to maintain a visual appearance that reflects
professionalism at all times.  It shall be the policy of Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue that
uniforms and work clothing is issued, worn, maintained, and surrendered in accordance with this
policy and procedure 1028 Uniform Regulations.

1028.5   UNIFORM STANDARDS
This section outlines the specific requirements for attire worn by fire department personnel on
duty, during training, and at official events.

1028.5.1   UNIFORM ENSEMBLES
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue utilizes the following uniform ensembles:

• Class A Uniform: Formal attire worn for ceremonial occasions, award ceremonies,
public appearances, and any occasion authorized by the Fire Chief or his/her
designee.

• Class B Uniform: Standard duty attire worn during prescribed hours for administrative
tasks, fire inspections, community events, and public education activities.

77



Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Uniform Regulations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Uniform Regulations - 3

• Class C Uniform: Station wear for everyday use within the fire station, during training
exercises not involving live fire, after-hours, and for non-public administrative duties.

• Casual Business Attire: Prescribed dress for Administrative Support Staff, Confidential
and Exempt Administrative Staff.

• Shop and Logistics Attire: District issued uniform and protective components reserved
for Logistics Technicians and Shop Mechanics.

Specific requirements are detailed in the Uniform Regulations procedure.

1028.5.2   ADDITIONAL STANDARDS

1. The District provides laundering appliances at all fire stations for employee use. All
line personnel and officers that respond to emergencies shall utilize these appliances
with sanitation capabilities for cleaning of uniforms (WAC 296-305-02001(4)).

2. All uniforms must be clean, wrinkle-free, and in good repair.

3. Uniforms must be properly sized and fit the wearer appropriately.

4. All authorized badges, insignia, and name tags must be worn as prescribed in the
Uniform Regulations procedure.

5. Unauthorized alterations or additions to uniforms are not permitted.

• Exception: Alterations authorized in the Uniform Regulations procedure.

6. Shift personnel must not wear any clothing that is determined to be unsafe due to
poor thermal stability or poor flame resistance (fabrics that melt, drip, burn, stick to
the skin) when engaged in or exposed to the hazards of structural firefighting. (WAC
296-305-02001(6.c))

• This applies to all garments and undergarments that are not provided by the
District.

• Items shall be made from all or mostly cotton.

1028.6   RESPONSIBILITY

1. All members are responsible to abide by the affected provisions of the Uniform
Regulations policy and procedure.

2. All District staff shall be subject to disciplinary action according to the District Table of
Offenses and Penalties for lost items that pose a risk to the general safety and security
of other District members or citizens at large.

1. For example: lost badges or District I.D. cards.

3. Members are responsible for maintaining a compliment of no less than two (2)
complete uniforms. When items become worn, damaged, or permanently soiled
members shall utilize the Fire District Uniform Provider Web Portal to order
replacements as soon as practicable.

1028.6.1   DISTRICT RESPONSIBILITY
Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue shall:

78

https://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=296-305-02001


Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue
Policy Manual

Uniform Regulations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/06/25, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Snohomish Regional Fire &
Rescue

***DRAFT*** Uniform Regulations - 4

• Develop and maintain a uniform program and committee to ensure issued items meet
current standards and District needs.

• Provide all "district issued" uniform elements to it's employees at no cost to the
employee.

• Maintain laundering equipment and supplies at all fire stations for shift personnel
(WAC 296-305-02001(4)).

79



80

Sean.Dahl
Sticky Note
Reviewed 7/25/2022



81



82

Sean.Dahl
Sticky Note
Reviewed 7/26/2022



83

Sean.Dahl
Sticky Note
Reviewed 7/27/2022



84



85

mleber
Sticky Note
Please reference MOU 2022-01 for effective date.



86



 

 

 

 

 

 

Initiative Name: Station 31 Shop Remodel- GenCap Construction 

 

Executive member responsible for guiding the initiative:  DC Rasmussen 

 
Type of Action:                                                            ☐ 
 
Initiative Description: 

• Brief Description 
• Goal of Initiative 
• Initiative Results (deliverables) 
• Connection to Strategic Plan 
• Supporting Documentation 

(attach) 
o Scope of work 
o Contract(s) 
o Project proposal(s) 
o Presentation(s) 

• If Financial: Reason RAB must 
be approved outside of the 
annual budget process 

This initiative is to contract with GenCap Construction for the Station 31 
Shop Remodel Project as the responsible low bidder. 
 
See attached: 

• Contract Documents 
• Bid Tabulation 
• Estimated Cost Sheets 
• Asbestos removal Quote 

 
Contract Documents have been reviewed by Legal and OAC. 

 
 

 
Financial Impact: 
 
 

Expense:        Increase      ☐ Decrease    ☐ N/A  
Revenue:      ☐ Increase      ☐ Decrease    ☐ N/A  
 
Total amount of initiative (attach amount breakdown if applicable): $  
Initial amount: $ $3,947128.00 
Long-term annual amount(s): $ 
 
  

Bid Price GenCap Base Bid $2,230,000.00 
Bid Alt #1 Carport/Vehicle Storage $227,000.00 
Bid Alt #2 Re-Roof Station 31 $782,000.00 
Roof- Asbestos Abatement Abatement of roof paint $50,000.00 
Total Pre-Tax  $3,289,000.00 
Tax  $299,299.00 
10% Do not exceed Cover any CO/unforeseen 

costs 
$358,829.00 

 Total $3,947,128.00 
Original Cost Estimation $3,656,495.00 Difference of  $290,633 

 
 

Request for Action by the Board (R.A.B) 
The purpose of the RAB is to provide a standardized format 
for presenting initiatives requiring action by the Board of Fire 
Commissioners. The RAB serves as a guide and checklist 
intended to provide the detailed, relevant, information 
needed to help the Board take action on projects, programs, 
and other initiatives.  

Motion Resolution 

87



Currently Budgeted:                   ☐ Yes      ☐ No    Amount: $  
 
Budget Amendment Needed:   ☐ Yes     ☐ No    Amount: $  

• If yes: Fund(s)/line item(s) to be amended: 
 

 
Risk Assessment: Risk if approved:  

 
Risk if not approved:  
 
 
 

 
Legal Review: 
 
 

       
☐      Initiative conforms with District policy/procedure number (attach):  
      Initiatives that require legal review (contracts, other initiatives):  

• Contracts 
• Has been reviewed and approved by legal 
• Includes all costs 
• Includes term 
• Includes ‘do not exceed’ language 

 ☐     N/A 
 

 

Presented to, and Approved by, Senior Staff              ☐  Yes      ☐     No     

 

Commissioner Sub-Committee Approval 

    
Initiative presented to commissioner sub-committee:    ☐ Yes    ☐  No 
Approved by commissioner sub-committee:        ☐  Yes     ☐  No    
N/A:        ☐   
 

 
For Fire Chief Approval: ☐  RAB document complete 

 
☐  Supporting documentation attached 
 
☐  Information sent to Fire Chief, Senior Staff, and Board Support (Mindy Leber) 
 

Fire Chief will approve and distribute by email to the Board of Commissioners – RAB 
executive/senior staff will be cc’d on the email distribution 

 
Fire Chief will coordinate with Senior Staff for RAB introduction 

 
 

RAB Executive: Confirmed email sent to Board by Fire Chief            ☐   Yes        ☐    No      

 
Board of Fire 
Commissioners 

RAB initiatives go through the following process: 
 

1. Senior Staff approval to move forward to a committee/board 
2. Initiatives are introduced to the appropriate committee for review 

88



3. Initiatives are introduced at an initial commissioner meeting as a Discussion Item 
o The Senior Staff member assigned to develop the initiative presents initiative to the 

Board (maximum time for presentation is ten minutes) 
4. At a second commissioner meeting, initiatives may be assigned as an action item for 

approval 
 

 

Execution: It is the responsibility of the RAB Executive to execute implementation, processing, and tracking. 

 
 

89



������������	
��


���
���
��������������������������������������������� �����

!"#$%

&

'(')*+,-./01)'234)5)23467)8+9:;<=>1)?)4@44A)4@4BA)4@4CA)4@2BA)4@D6A)4@B4A)4@BCA)4@E4A)4@EDA)4@EEA)4@63A)4@6EA)4@C6A)4@@6A)2336)F0G)23467)'HH);<=>1I)
;/I/;J/G7)KL>/)'./;<,F0)(0I1<1-1/)+M)';,><1/,1IAN)K'./;<,F0)(0I1<1-1/)+M)';,><1/,1IAN)K'('AN)1>/)'(')O+=+A)F0G)K'(')8+01;F,1)*+,-./01IN)F;/)1;FG/.F;PI)+M)L>/)
'./;<,F0)(0I1<1-1/)+M)';,><1/,1I7)L><I)G+,-./01)QFI)9;+G-,/G)F1)4@R4SRSC)TL)+0)3BU4EU232S)-0G/;)V;G/;)W+7D43S2DC@CC)Q><,>)/X9<;/I)+0)36U2EU232SA)<I)0+1)M+;)
;/IFH/A)<I)H<,/0I/G)M+;)+0/Y1<./)-I/)+0H:A)F0G).F:)+0H:)Z/)-I/G)<0)F,,+;GF0,/)Q<1>)1>/)'(')8+01;F,1)*+,-./01I[)L/;.I)+M)\/;J<,/7)L+);/9+;1),+9:;<=>1)J<+HF1<+0IA)
/Y.F<H)G+,<0M+]F<F,+01;F,1I7,+.7
_̂̀abcd$̀_e) f4SSC6E@DB6g

h

ijj!k!lcmbicjbjnonk!lcmeb

L>/)F-1>+;)+M)1><I)G+,-./01)>FI)

FGG/G)<0M+;.F1<+0)0//G/G)M+;)<1I)

,+.9H/1<+07)L>/)F-1>+;).F:)FHI+)

>FJ/);/J<I/G)1>/)1/X1)+M)1>/)+;<=<0FH)

'(')I1F0GF;G)M+;.7)'0)pqqrsrtuvwxuqw

yz{zsrtuvw|z}t~sw1>F1)0+1/I)FGG/G)

<0M+;.F1<+0)FI)Q/HH)FI);/J<I<+0I)1+)1>/)

I1F0GF;G)M+;.)1/X1)<I)FJF<HFZH/)M;+.)

1>/)F-1>+;)F0G)I>+-HG)Z/);/J</Q/G7)')

J/;1<,FH)H<0/)<0)1>/)H/M1).F;=<0)+M)1><I)

G+,-./01)<0G<,F1/I)Q>/;/)1>/)F-1>+;)

>FI)FGG/G)0/,/IIF;:)<0M+;.F1<+0)

F0G)Q>/;/)1>/)F-1>+;)>FI)FGG/G)1+)+;)

G/H/1/G)M;+.)1>/)+;<=<0FH)'(')1/X17

L><I)G+,-./01)>FI)<.9+;1F01)H/=FH)

,+0I/�-/0,/I7)8+0I-H1F1<+0)Q<1>)F0)

F11+;0/:)<I)/0,+-;F=/G)Q<1>);/I9/,1)

1+)<1I),+.9H/1<+0)+;).+G<M<,F1<+07

�+;)=-<GF0,/)<0).+G<M:<0=)1><I)

G+,-./01)1+)<0,H-G/)I-99H/./01F;:)

,+0G<1<+0IA)I//)'(')*+,-./01)

'B3D�A)�-<G/)M+;)\-99H/./01F;:)

8+0G<1<+0I7

��������������������������
���������������������������  ¡

¢£¤¥¤¦§̈¥©ª«¬§¤£®©̄§°«©±©ª«̈²³«©́©¢µµ§¤£©¶·©
·̧¶©¹§®®¬«©º¤³°µ©©
©»¤£°¤«¼©½¾©¿ÀÁÂÁ

�Ã���ÄÅ���
�����Æ���Ç��� ���È ����������  ¡

¢£¤¥¤¦§̈¥©ª«¬§¤£®©̄§°«©±©ª«̈²³«©©
·̧¶©¹§®®¬«©º¤³°µ
»¤£°¤«¼©½¾©¿ÀÁÂÁ

�Ã��	��ÃÉ�����
�����Æ���Ç��� ���È ����������  ¡

©©ª§²«©̄«°¬³̈©»§®®«°¼©Ê£²Ë©©©
©ÁÂÌ©̄§Íµ¥©¢µ°««µ¼©¢³§µ«©·ÎÎ©
©Ï°«¦«°µ¤£¼©½¾©¿À¶¶Â

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

90



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

G

HIJKLMNOMIPHQRKLS

T ULVLPIKMWPNXQSQNVS

Y NZVLP

[ RNVHPIRHNP

\ IPR]QHLRH

^ S_JRNVHPIRHNPS

` RNVSHP_RHQNVMJaMNZVLPMNPMJaM
SLWIPIHLMRNVHPIRHNPS

b R]IVULSMQVMH]LMZNPc

d HQeL

f WIaeLVHSMIVgMRNeWKLHQNV

Th WPNHLRHQNVMNOMWLPSNVSMIVgMWPNWLPHa

TT QVS_PIVRLMIVgMJNVgS

TY _VRNXLPQVUMIVgMRNPPLRHQNVMNOMZNPc

T[ eQSRLKKIVLN_SMWPNXQSQNVS

T\ HLPeQVIHQNVMNPMS_SWLVSQNVMNOMH]LM
RNVHPIRH

T̂ RKIQeSMIVgMgQSW_HLS

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

91



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

G

HIJKL
MNOPQRSTUVWTVXYZ[\STQVTZO]WTU\[T̂[R_QOVT̀[UWQVaSbc

deefghijefklmknljeljmlopqjrkslot
ubvbvwTububxwTyz{|
}RR[P_UVR[TO~T�O\�
ubvbvwTub�b�wTububxwTub��b�wTub��bxwT��bx
deef��khlkslot
|{y�wTvb�b�wT��b�
}RRQW[V_T�\[�[V_QOV
��
}R_STUVWT�YQSSQOVS
xb�wTxbxb�wTxb��b�wTxb��wT�b�bxwT�bxb�wTub�b�wT��b�b�wT
��b�b�wT�xbxb�wT��b�wT��b�b�wT��b�
}WW[VWU
�b�b�
}WWQ_QOVU]T�OS_SwT�]UQYST~O\
xb�b�wTxb�b�wT��bxb�wT��b�b�
d��qhqlji�k�j�gfehqlj�kij�k�f�hqjr
ub�b�wTub�bxwT��b�b�wTy|{�
d��qhqlji�k�qpf�k��iqp�kmlo
xb�b�wTxb�b�wTxb�b�wTxb��b�wT�bxb�wTy�{y{�
d�pqjq�hoihqljklmkh�fk�ljhoieh
xb�bxwT�{zwTub�wTub�
}W�[\_QS[Y[V_TO\T�V�Q_U_QOVT_OT�QW
�b�b�
}[S_̀[_QRT�~~[R_
�b�b�x
d��l�ijef�
|{�
dgg�qeihqlj�kmlok�i�pfjh
�b�b�wT�bxbuwTub�wT�{|wTub�wTub�b�wTub�b�wTubvbxwTub�wTub��
}PP\O�U]S
�b�b�wT�bxb�wT�b�wTxb�bxwTxb��b�wTxb��b�wTxb��buwT
xb��b��b�wT�b�b�wTubxb�wT�xb�b�
do�qhoihqlj
�bxb�wT��bxb�wTy�{�T
d �¡��¢��
�
doe�qhfehwT£[~QVQ_QOVTO~
�{y{y
}\R̀Q_[R_wT�¤_[V_TO~T}X_̀O\Q_¥
�b�wTxb��b�wT�b�b�wT�b�wT�b�wTvbxwT�b�b�wT�bxb�wT�b�wTub�wT
ubxb�wTub�wTub�wTubvbxwTub�wTub��b�wTub��bxwT��b�wT��b�b�wT
�xb�b�wT�xb�b�wT��b�b�wT��b�b�wT��b�b�wT��b�b�
}\R̀Q_[R_wT¦QYQ_U_QOVSTO~T}X_̀O\Q_¥TUVWT§[SPOVSQZQ]Q_¥
�b�b�wTxb��b�wTxb��b�wTxb��b��wT�b�b�wT�b�b�wT�b�b�wT�b�bxwT
�b�bvwT�b�b�wT�b�b��wT�b�b��wT�b�b�xwT�b�b�wT�b�wTub�b�wT
ub�b�wTubvb�wT��b�b�wT��b�
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST}WWQ_QOVU]T̂[\�QR[STUVWT�¤P[VS[S
�b�wT��b�b�wT�xb�b�wT�xb�bxwT��b�b�
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST}WYQVQS_\U_QOVTO~T_̀[T�OV_\UR_
xb�bxwTxb�b�wT��b�wTub�b�wTub�

}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST}PP\O�U]S
�b�wTxb�bxwTxb�wTxb��b�wT�b�b�
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST}X_̀O\Q_¥T_OT§[©[R_T�O\�
xb�wT�b�bvwT��b�b�wT��b�b�
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST�OP¥\Qà_
�b�b�wT�b�
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST£[RQSQOVS
xb�b�wT�b�bvwT�b�b�wT�b�b��wT�b�b��wT�b�b�xwT�b�b��wTvbxwT
�bxb�wT�bxbuwT�b�bxwT�bxb�wTub�wTub�b�wTub�wTub�b�wTubub�wT
�xb�b�wT��b�
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST�VSP[R_QOVS
xb�b�wT�b�b�wT�b�buwTub�b�wTub�bxwTubub�wTub��b�wT�xb�
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST�VS_\XR_QOVS
xb�b�wTxbxb�wT�b�bvwT�b�b�wT�xb�b�
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST�V_[\P\[_U_QOVS
�b�b��wT�b�b��
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST�\O©[R_T§[P\[S[V_U_Q�[
�b�b��
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST§[]U_QOVS̀QPTªQ_̀T�OV_\UR_O\
�b�b�wT�b�wT�bxbxwTxb�bxwTxb�b�wTxb�bxwTxb�b�wTxbxb�wTxb�b�wT
xb�wTxb�b�wTxb�b�wTxbub�wTxbubxwTxb��wTxb��wTxb��wTxb�vwT
xb��wT�b�b�wT�b�wT�b�wTvb�b�wT�wT�bxb�wTub�wTubxwTub�wTub�wT
ub�wTub�wTubuwT��b�bvwT��bxwT��bxwT��wT�xbxb�wT�xb�wT��b�
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST§[]U_QOVS̀QPTªQ_̀T̂XZROV_\UR_O\S
�b�b�wT�b�bxwT�b�b�wT�b�bvwTubvbxwTubvb�wT��bx
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST§[P\[S[V_U_QOVS
ub�b�wTub�b�wTub��b�
}\R̀Q_[R_̈ST̂Q_[T«QSQ_S
xb�b�wT�b�b�wT�b�buwTub�b�wTub�b�wTubub�wTub��b�wT�xb�
}SZ[S_OS
��bxb�
}__O\V[¥S̈T¬[[S
xb��b�wTubvb�wTub��b�wT��bxbx
}ªU\WTO~T̂[PU\U_[T�OV_\UR_S
vb�b�wTvb�b�
d�io�klmk®�eljhoieh�kij�k̄h�fok�ljhoieh�kmlok
�lohqlj�klmkh�fkslot
�{z
°i�qek±fmqjqhqlj�
y{y
�QWWQVaT§[²XQ\[Y[V_S
�b�b�
�QVWQVaT£QSPX_[T§[SO]X_QOV
�bxb�wTub�wT��b�wT�xb�wT��b�b�wT��b�bxwT��b�b�wT��b�b�wT
��b�bvb�wT��bxb�wT��bxb�wT��bxbxwT��b�b�
�OVWSwT¦Q[V
�bxb�b�wTubvb�wTub��b�wTub��bx
°lj���k�fomlopijef�kij�k�i�pfjh
�bxb�b�wTubvb�wTub��bxwTyy{y{zwT��b�bxwTyy{�
°®q��qjrk�jmlopihqljk³l�f��ḱ�fkij�k f�qijef
y{�
�XQ]WQVaT�[\YQ_
xb�b�
�igqhi�qµihqlj
y{|
�[\_Q~QRU_[TO~T̂XZS_UV_QU]T�OYP][_QOV
ub�bxwTub�b�wTub�b�

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

92



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

G

HIJKLMLNOKIPQMRJQSOTUIVK
WXYXZ[\WXYX][\WXYX̂[\̂X_X_[\̀ab[\̂X][\̂XcXZ[\̂XcXc[\̂Xd[\
X̂ZeXZ[\̂XZeX_[\ZWXZXZX_[\ZWXYXW[\Z]XZXW
fghijkjlmign\ok\pqnrglijoq[\sgnijqt\oh\urrhovmw
Z_XWXW
fghijkjlmign\ok\pqnxhmqlg
X̂ZeXY
HyOVzIQ{J|IJP
ZXZXZ[\_XWXY[\_XdXW[\_X}XYX_[\_XZZ[\_XZYX}[\WXYX}[\]XYX_[\
dXZXY[\dXZX_[\~a�[\dX_XY[\dX_Xd[\dX_X̂[\dX_XZe[\}X_XZ[\
X̂_XZXZ[\̂XZeX_[\ZeX_XY[\ZZXY[\ZZX][\ZYXZXY
HyOVzIQ{J|IJP[\�gkjqjijoq\ok
~a�a�
H������Q��Q���Q�{��
YXYXY[\_XZZ[\WXYX}[\~[\dXYXZ[\dX_XZ[\dXW[\}X_XZ[\̂X_XZXZ[\
ZZX]
H�OLUP[\�gkjqjijoq\ok
��a�a�
fwmj�n[\�oijlg\ok
ZXcXY[\Z]XZX_
H�����Q���Q���S����
_XYXW[\cXZXZ[\cX_[\dX_X̂[\̂X_X_[\̂XZeXW[\ZeX_X_[\��[\Z]XW
fwmj�n\mq�\sj�gw�\unnghijoq\ok\fwmj�n
Z]XWXZ
H�OLUPQMRJQ�||LKLRVO�QHRPK
_XYXW[\_X_XZ[\_XdXW[\dX_X̂[\̂X]XY[\ZeXYX][\ZeX_XY[\��a�a�
H�OLUPQMRJQ�||LKLRVO�Q�LUI
_XYXW[\_X_XZ[\_XdXW[\cXZXZ[\}X_XY[\̂X]XY[\ZeX_XY[\��a�a�
HRVNIO�I|QRJQ�V�VR�VQHRV|LKLRVP�QH�OLUPQMRJ
�a~ab
fwmj�n\koh\�m�mtgn
_XYXW[\_XZ}[\}X_X_[\̂X]XZ[\̂XcXd[\ZeXYX][\ZeX_X_[\ZZX_[\
ZZX_XY[\ZWXYXW[\Z]XZXd
fwmj�n\�x��gli\io\uh�jihmijoq
Z]XWXZ
H�IOVLVzQ��
�a��[\cX_
fo��gqlg�gqi\ok\i g\¡oh¢[\foq�jijoqn\£gwmijqt\io
YXYXZ[\_XYXY[\_XWXZ[\_XdXZ[\_XZeXZ[\_XZYXc[\]XYXZ[\]XYX_[\
cXYXY[\}XZXY[\}XYXY[\}X_XZ[\ZZXZ[\ZZXY[\��a�a�
HRUUIVNIUIVKQRMQKyIQ�RJ�[\�gkjqjijoq\ok
¤a�a�
HRUU¥VLNOKLRVP
_X̂XZ[\ba�ab
fo�rwgijoq[\foq�jijoqn\£gwmijqt\io
_XWXZ[\_XZZ[\_XZ][\WXYXY[\WXYX̂[\}XY[\̂XWXY[\̂X}[\̂X̂XZ[\
X̂Ze[\ZYXY[\ZWXZXY[\Z]XZXY
H{�S����{��QS�¦�����Q���
`
fo�rwgijoq[\�x�nimqijmw
_XZeXZ[\WXYX̂[\}XZXZ[\}XZX_[\}XYX_[\̂XWXY[\̂X}[\̂X̂XZ[\
X̂ZeX_[\ZYXY[\Z]XZXY
fo�rwjmqlg\§ji \̈m§n
YX_XY[\_XYX_[\_Xc[\_Xd[\_XZYXZe[\_XZ_[\̂XcXW[\ZeXYXY[\Z_XZ[\
Z_X_[\Z_XWXZ[\Z_XWXY[\Z_X][\ZWXZXZ[\ZWXYXZX_[\Z]XYX}[\
Z]XWXY[\Z]XWX_

foqlgmwg�\oh\©q¢qo§q\foq�jijoqn
_XdXW[\WXYX}[\}X_XZ[\ZeX_
foq�jijoqn\ok\i g\foqihmli
ZXZXZ[\cXZXZ[\cXZXW
foqngqi[\¡hjiigq
_XWXY[\_XZWXY[\WXZXY[\̂X}X][\̂X̂XZ[\̂XZeXY[\̂XZeX_[\Z_XY[\
Z]XWXWXY
HRVPR�L|OKLRVQRJQªRLV|IJ
��abab
H{�����H��{�Q«¦Q{����Q{�Q«¦Q
��S�����QH{����H�{��
ZXZXW[\�
HRVPKJ¥NKLRVQHyOVzIQ�LJINKL¬I[\�gkjqjijoq\ok
~a�a�
HRVPKJ¥NKLRVQHyOVzIQ�LJINKL¬IP
ZXZXZ[\_XWXY[\_XZZ[\_XZYX}[\WXYX}[\dXZXZ[\dXZXY[\dXZX_[\~a�[\
X̂_XZXZ
foqnihxlijoq\�l g�xwgn[\foqihmliohn
_XZe[\_XZZ[\_XZYXZ[\_XZYXY[\cXZX_[\Z]XZXcXY
HRVKLVzIVKQ�PPLzVUIVKQRMQ�¥®NRVKJONKP
�ab[\ZWXYXYXY
HRVKLV¥LVzQHRVKJONKQSIJMRJUOVNI
��a�ab
HRVKJONK[\�gkjqjijoq\ok
�a�a�
H{����H��Q���������{�Q{�Q
���S����{�Q{̄ Q���
]XWXZXZ[\]XWXY[\ZZX][\�b
foqihmli\u��jqjnihmijoq
_XZX_[\W[\̂XW[\̂X]
foqihmli\u§mh�\mq�\°±glxijoq[\foq�jijoqn\£gwmijqt\
io
_XdXZ[\_XZe[\]XY[\cXZ
foqihmli\�olx�gqin[\forjgn\²xhqjn g�\mq�\©ng\ok
ZX]XY[\YX_Xc[\]X_
HRVKJONKQ�RN¥UIVKP[\�gkjqjijoq\ok
�a�a�
HRVKJONKQ�¥U
YXYXY[\YXYXW[\_XdXW[\_XdX][\_X}[\_XZeXY[\]XYX_[\dX_[\dXW[\
à�[\̂XY[\̂XWXY[\̂X]XZXW[\̂XcXd[\̂Xd[\ZeX_XY[\ZZX][\ZYXZXY[\
ZYX_[\ZWXYXW[\ZWX_XY[\Z]XZXWXY[\��a�a��Q��a�a�
HRVKJONKQ�¥U[\�gkjqjijoq\ok
à�
foqihmli\sj�g
ZXZXW[\YXYXZ[\YXYXY[\_XdXW[\_XdX][\_XZeXY[\]XYX_[\cXZX][\
dXYXZX_[\dX_XZ[\dX_X][\dX_Xc[\d[\d[\dX_XZe[\dXW[\}XZXZ[\
}XYXZ[\}XYX_[\}X_XZ[\̂X]XZ[\̂Xd[\ZeX_XY[\ZYXZXZ[\ZYXZXY[\
ZWX_XY[\Z]XZXWXY[\Z]XZXcXZ[\Z]XYX]
HRVKJONKQ�LUI[\�gkjqjijoq\ok
}XZXZ
H{����H�{�
�
foqihmlioh[\�gkjqjijoq\ok
�a��Q�a�a�
HRVKJONKRJ³PQHRVPKJ¥NKLRVQOV|Q�¥®ULKKO�Q
�NyI|¥�IP
�a�́[\_XZYXZ[\_XZYXY[\WXYX_[\cXZX_[\Z]XZXcXY

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

93



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

G

HIJKLMNKILOPQRSTUIVWWP
XYXYZ[Q\Y\YX[Q\YZY\[Q\Y]Ŷ[Q\Y_[Q\Ŷ]YX[QZYXY\[QZYXỲ[Q̂aYX[Q
âY\[Q̂̂ Y\[Q̂ZŶ[Q̂ZYXŶŶ
bcdefghecfijklmgnmomepkqdjrfgdhs
ttut
HIJKLMNKILOPQvWUMKwIJPxwTQywKxQzWTMLMKWQHIJKLMNKILPQ
MJ{Q|yJWLOPQ}ILNWP
\ŶXY~[Q\ŶZYX[QZYXYZ[Q̀[Q̂̂ Y\[Q̂XYXYZ
HIJKLMNKILOPQvWUMKwIJPxwTQywKxQz��NIJKLMNKILP
ŶXYX[QXYXYZ[Q\Y\YX[Q\Ŷ]Ŷ[Q\Ŷ]YX[QZYXYZ[Q~[Q_ỲYX[Q_ỲY�[Q
_ŶaYX[Q̂̂ YX[Q̂̂ Y\[Q̂̂ YZ
HIJKLMNKILOPQvWUMKwIJPxwTQywKxQKxWQ�LNxwKWNK
Ŷ̂YX[Q̂Y~[QXY\Y\[Q\ŶY\[Q\YXYX[Q\YXY\[Q\YXYZ[Q\Y\Ŷ[Q\YZYX[Q
\Y~Ŷ[Q\Y�YZ[Q\Ŷa[Q\Ŷ̂ [Q\ŶX[Q\Ŷ̀ [Q\Ŷ][QZYX[Q~YX[Q̀YXYX[Q
�[Q]Y\Ŷ[Q_YX[Q_Y\[Q_YZ[Q_Y~[Q_Y�[Q_Y][Q_Y_[Q̂aYXỲ[Q̂aY\[Q
^̂Y\[Q̂X[Q̂\YZ[Q̂~ŶY\[Q̂~YXŶ
HIJKLMNKILOPQvWTLWPWJKMKwIJP
\YXŶ[Q\YXYX[Q\Y~[Q\ŶXỲ[Q̀YXYX[Q]YXŶ[Q_Y\Y\[Q_Y]YX
HIJKLMNKILOPQvWPTIJPw�wUwKVQ�ILQ�xIPWQ�WL�ILSwJ�QKxWQ
�IL�
\Y\YX[Q\Ŷ][Q~Y\[Q̀ŶY\[Q̀YX[Q_Y~Ŷ[Q̂aYXY]
HIJKLMNKILOPQvW�wWyQI�QHIJKLMNKQ�IN�SWJKP
\YX
HIJKLMNKILOPQvw�xKQKIQzKITQKxWQ�IL�
XYXYX[Q_Y�
HIJKLMNKILOPQvw�xKQKIQ�WLSwJMKWQKxWQHIJKLMNK
ẐŶ
HIJKLMNKILOPQz��SwKKMUP
\Ŷa[Q\Ŷ̂ [Q\ŶX[QZYXY�[Q~YXŶ[Q~YXY\[Q_YX[Q_Y\[Q_Y]YX[Q
_Y]Y\[Q_Y_Ŷ[Q_ŶaYX[Q_ŶaY\
HIJKLMNKILOPQz�TWLwJKWJ{WJK
\Y_[Q̂aYXỲ
HIJKLMNKILOPQz�TWL�wPwIJQMJ{QHIJPKL�NKwIJQ
�LINW{�LWP
ŶXYX[Q\Y\[Q\YZ[Q\ŶXŶa[QZYXYX[QZYXY�[Q̀ŶY\[Q̀YXYZ[Q�ŶY\[Q
�Y\YZ[Q�Y\Ỳ[Q]YX[Q̂a[Q̂X[Q̂Z[Q̂~ŶYZ
HIIL{wJMKwIJQMJ{QHILLWUMKwIJ
ŶX[Q\YXŶ[Q\Y\Ŷ[Q\Ŷa[Q\ŶXỲ[Q̀ŶY\[Q̀YXŶ
HITwWPQ}�LJwPxW{QI�Q�LMywJ�PQMJ{QzTWNw�wNMKwIJP
Ŷ~[QXY\Ỳ[Q\Ŷ̂
HITVLw�xKP
Ŷ~[Q�ut�
HILLWNKwIJQI�Q�IL�
XY~[Q\Y�Y\[Q_YZYX[Q_Y]YX[Q_Y]Y\[Q_Y_Ŷ[Q̂XŶYX[Qt�u�[Q̂XY\[Q
~̂ŶY\Ŷ[Q̂~ŶY\YX[Q̂~YXŶ
bcffsogemcdkgd�kqdesdekc�ke�skbcdefghek�chr�sdej
tu�
bcje[Q�W�wJwKwIJQI�
�u�u�
HIPKP
XY~[Q\YXYZ[Q\Y�Y\[Q\Y]YX[Q\Ŷ~YX[Q~YZYX[Q̀ŶŶ[Q̀YXY\[Q
�Y\Y\Y\[Q�Y\YZ[Q�Y\Y][Q�Y\Y_[Q_ŶaYX[Q̂aY\YX[Q̂aY\Ỳ[Q̂̂YX[Q
X̂ŶYX[Q̂XYXŶ[Q̂XYXYZ[Q̂\YZ[Q̂Z
breemd�kgd�k�geh�md�
�ut�[k̀YXY~Q

�MSM�WQKIQHIJPKL�NKwIJQI�Q|yJWLQILQzWTMLMKWQ
HIJKLMNKILP
\ŶZYX[Q̀YXYZ[Q̂aYXŶYX[Q̂aYXY~[Q̂aYZ[Q̂XYXYZ
�MSM�WQKIQKxWQ�IL�
\ŶZYX[Q_Y_Ŷ[Q̂aYXŶYX[Q̂aYXY~[Q̂aYZ[Q̂XYXYZ
�MSM�WP[QHUMwSPQ�IL
\YXYZ[Q\Ŷ][Q̀ŶŶ[Q]Y\Y\[Q_Y~Ŷ[Q_ỲY�[Q̂aY\Y\[Q̂̂ Y\YX[Q
^̂Y\[Q̂ZYXYZ[Q̂~ŶY�
�MSM�WPQ�ILQ�WUMV
ỲXY\[Q]Y\Y\[Q_Y~ŶỲ[Q_Y�[Q̂aY\YX[Q̂ZY\YX
�geskc�kbc��sdhs�sdekc�ke�sk�cf�[Q�W�wJwKwIJQI�
�utu�
�geskc�k�rnjegdemgokbc��osemcd[Q�W�wJwKwIJQI�
�utu�
�gp[Q�W�wJwKwIJQI�
�utu�
�WNwPwIJPQI�QKxWQ�LNxwKWNK
\Y�YZ[QZYXỲ[QZYXY�[QZYXŶ̂ [QZYXŶX[QZYXŶ\[Q̀Y\[Q�Y\YZ[Q
�Y\Y_[Q]ŶY\[Q]Y\Ŷ[Q_YX[Q_YZ[Q_Y~Ŷ[Q_Y]YZ[Q_Y_Ŷ[Q̂\YZYX[Q
ẐYXYX[Q̂ZYXYZ[Q̂~Ŷ[Q̂~YX
�shmjmcdjkeck�me��co�kbsfem�mhgemcd
_YZŶ[Q�u�[Q_Y�[Q̂ZŶŶY\
�W�WNKw�WQILQ�IJNIJ�ILSwJ�Q�IL�[Q�NNWTKMJNW[Q
vW�WNKwIJQMJ{QHILLWNKwIJQI�
XY~[Q\Y~[QZYXỲ[Q̀YXY\[Q_Y~Ŷ[Q_Y~Y\[Q_ỲỲ[Q_Y]YX[Q_Y_Y\[Q
_ŶaYZ[Q̂XYXŶ
�W�wJwKwIJP
Ŷ̂[QXŶŶ[Q\ŶŶ[Q\Y~[Q\ŶXŶ[Q\ŶXYX[Q\ŶXY\[QZŶŶ[Q~Ŷ[Q
Ỳ̂YX[Q�YXŶ[Q�Y\Ŷ[Q]Ŷ[Q_Ŷ[Q_Y]Ŷ[Q̂~ŶŶ
�sogpjkgd�k� esdjmcdjkc�k¡m�s
�u�[Q�u�u�[Q~YXY\[Q�YXŶ[Q�Y\Ŷ[Q�u�[Q�u�[Q_Y~Ŷ[Q�u�[Q
âY\YX[Qt¢u�[Q̂ZY\YX[Qt�utu£[Q̂~YXY~
�m�megok�gegk¤jskgd�k¡fgdj�mjjmcd
tu�
�wPT�KWP
Ỳ\[Q�Y\Y_[Q̂~Ŷ[Q̂~YX
�chr�sdejkgd�k�g��osjkgeke�sk�mes
�utt
�fg¥md�j[Q�W�wJwKwIJQI�
tutu�
�LMywJ�PQMJ{QzTWNw�wNMKwIJP[Q¦PWQMJ{Q|yJWLPxwTQI�
\Ŷ̂
R��WNKw�WQ�MKWQI�Q§JP�LMJNW
]YXYX
��sf�sdhmsj
t¢u�[Q̂ZŶŶYX[Qt�utu�
RSTUIVWWP[QHIJKLMNKILOP
\Y\YX[Q\YZY\[Q\Y]Ŷ[Q\Y_[Q\Ŷ]YX[QZYXY\[QZYXỲ[Q̂aYX[Q
âY\Y\[Q̂̂ Y\[Q̂ZŶ[Q̂ZYXŶŶ
R̈�wTSWJK[Q©M�IL[QILQªMKWLwMUP
Ŷ̂Y\[Q̂ŶỲ[Q\YZ[Q\Y~[Q\Y]YX[Q\Y]Y\[Q\ŶX[Q\Ŷ\[Q\Ŷ~Ŷ[Q
ZYXỲ[QZYXY�[Q~YXŶ[Q̀YXŶ[Q�Y\YZ[Q_Y\YX[Q_Y\Y\[Q_Y~ŶY\[Q
_ŶaYX[Q̂aYXŶ[Q̂aYXYZ[Q̂ZYXŶŶ[Q̂ZYXŶYX
R«WN�KwIJQMJ{Q�LI�LWPPQI�QKxWQ�IL�
Ŷ̂Y\[Q̂YXŶ[Q̂YXYX[QXY\YZ[QXY\Ỳ[Q\Ŷ[Q\Y\Ŷ[Q\YZŶ[Q\Y�Ŷ[Q
\ŶaŶ[Q\ŶX[Q\ŶZ[QZYX[Q̀YXYX[Q�ŶY\[Q�Y\Ỳ[Q]YX[Q_Y~Ŷ[Q
_Y_Ŷ[Q̂aYX[Q̂aY\[Q̂XŶ[Q̂XYX[Q̂ZYX[Q̂ZY\Ŷ[Q̂~ŶYZ

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

94



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

G

HIJKLMNOLMPOQPRNSK
TUVUWXPTUYUWXPZUVUTXPYUVU[XPYUTXPYUWXP\UZU[XP\UYXP[]UTUVXP
[]UWXP[WUTXP[ZU[ÛXP_̀abà
cdefghijkljmdnoipq
\UZU[UTXPrasXP\U[]UVXP[TUZXP[WU[U[UTXP[WUVU[UV
tuvwJxPyOz{
|}KKP~KQK�JN�KPOzP�OL�OLQOzSNL�PyOz{�
cepdfj�ko�fiqekpjdp�jcepdfjmdnoipq
WUVU[XPWUVU\XP\U�UVXPra_�XP[VUTXP[WUVUWXP[WUWUT
tNLuL�NuwP�zzuL�KSKLJMXP��LKz�M
VUVU[XP[TUVUVXP[WU[U[UW
�������jm���������
_
�k�ihpep�j�d�
_�a_
�vuzuLJKKMP|}KKPyuzzuLJx�
�d�dh�kg�j�dqihedf�jdp�j�g �qdp¡i�
[]UVUWXP_�a�
¢£KLJNQN�uJNOLPOQP}v¤�OLJzu�JOzMPuL£P}v¥¥wNKzM
ZUVU[
�p�iopele¡dqekp
TU[YXP�a_¦XP\ÛU�XP\U[]UVXP[]UTUTXP[[UT
�plkhodqekpjdp�j�ih�e¡i�j�i§gehi�jkljq̈ij��pih
VU[UVXPbabXPVUTXPTUVUVXPTU[VU[]U[XP̂U[UTXP̂U[UWXP̂UVUZXP
\ÛU[XP\U\UVXP\U[]UTXP[]UTUTXP[[UVXP[TUWU[XP[TUWUVXP
[WU[U[UWXP[WU[UWXP[ZU[UW
�peqedfj©i¡e�ekp
_̀ab
�peqedfj©i¡e�ekpj�dªih«j©ilepeqekpjkl
[U[U�
¢LNJNuwP~K�NMNOLP¬u{KzXP~K�NMNOLM
[WUVUWXP[ZU[UWUVXP[ZUVU[XP[ZUVUVXP[ZUVUTXP[ZUVUWXP[ZUVUZ
¢LNJNuwP~K�NMNOLP¬u{KzXPHIJKLJPOQP�vJOzNJx
[WUVUWXP[ZU[UWUVXP[ZUVU[XP[ZUVUVXP[ZUVUTXP[ZUVUWXP[ZUVUZ
�p®ghnjkhj©dod�ijqkjmih�kpjkhjmhk�ihqn
_�aba¦XP[]UW
¢LM¥K�JNOLM
TU[UTXPTUTUTXPTUYU[XPWUVUVXPWUVÛXPWUVU\XP\UWUVXP\U�UTXP
\U\UVXP\U[]U[XP[VUVU[XP[TUW
¢LMJzv�JNOLMPJOP̄N££KzM
[U[U[
¢LMJzv�JNOLMPJOPJKP°OLJzu�JOz
TUVUWXPTUTU[XPTU�U[XPZUVU[XPYXP�UVUVXP[VXP[TUWUV
�p�qhgoipq�jklj�ih�e¡iXP~KQNLNJNOLPOQ
_a_as
¢LMvzuL�K
Û[U[XPYUTUWXP�UVUVXP\UTUVXP\U�UWXP\U\U[XP\U[]UVXP[]UVUZXP__
¢LMvzuL�KXP�OJN�KPOQP°uL�KwwuJNOLPOzPHI¥NzuJNOL
[[U[UWXP[[UVUT
�p�ghdp¡i«j�kpqhd¡qkh±�j�ed efeqn
__a_
¢LMvzuL�KXPHQQK�JN�KP~uJKPOQ
�UVUVXP[WUWUV
�p�ghdp¡i«j��pih±�j�ed efeqn
__ab
�p�ghdp¡i«jmhk�ihqn
_�abàXP[[UVXP[[UWXP[[UZ

¢LMvzuL�KXP}JOzK£P¬uJKzNuwM
\UTUV
���²�����j��©j³��©�
__
¢LMvzuL�KP°OS¥uLNKMXP°OLMKLJPJOṔuzJNuwP���v¥uL�x
\U\U[
¢LMvzK£PwOMMXP�£µvMJSKLJPuL£P}KJJwKSKLJPOQ
[[UZ
¢LJKLJPOQPJKP°OLJzu�JP~O�vSKLJM
[UVU[XPWUVUYXPWUVU[VXPWUVU[T
�pqihi�q
_�à
�pqih�hiqdqekp
[U[U�XP[UVUTXP_a¶XPWU[U[XPZU[XP̂U[UVXP[ZU[U[
¢LJKz¥zKJuJNOLMXPyzNJJKL
WUVU[[XPWUVU[V
·v£�SKLJPOLPtNLuwP��uz£
[ZUWUV
�d khjdp�j�dqihedf�«j�§ge�oipq
[U[UTXP[U[ÛXP�a¶XPTUZXPTU�UVXPTU�UTXPTU[VXPTU[TXPTU[ZU[XP
ZUVU[XP̂UVU[XPYUTUWXP\UTUVXP\UTUTXP\UZU[UTXP\U[]UVXP[]UVU[XP
[]UVUWXP[WUVU[U[XP[WUVU[UV
u̧¤OzP~NM¥vJKM
�UTU[
u̧�MPuL£P¹K�vwuJNOLM
[UZXPVUTUVXPTUVUTXPTUVUWXPTÛXPTUYXPTU[VU[]XPTU[TXP\ÛUWXP
\U\U[XP[]UVUVXP[TU[XP[TUTU[XP[TUWUVXP[TUZXP[WXP[ZUVU�XP
[ZUW
ŅKLM
VU[UVXP\UTU[XP\UTUTXP\ÛU�XP\U[]UVXP\U[]UWXP[ZUVU�
ŅSNJuJNOLMXP}JuJvJKMPOQ
[VUVUZXP[ZU[UVXP[ZUWU[U[
ŅSNJuJNOLMPOQP̧Nu¤NwNJx
TUVUVXPTUZXPTU[VU[]XPTU[VU[]U[XPTU[YXPTU[�U[XPWUVÛXP
WUVUYXP̂UVUVXP\UWUVXP\ÛUWXP\ÛUYXP\ÛU�XP[]UVUZXP[]UTUTXP
[[UTXP[VUVUZXP[TUTU[
ŅSNJuJNOLMPOQPRNSK
VU[UVXPVUVXPVUZXPTUVUVXPTU[]XPTU[[XPTU[VUZXPTU[ZU[XPWUVUYXP
ZUVXPZUTXPZUWU[XP̂UVUWXPYUTXPYUWXP�UVXP\UVXP\UTU[XP\UTUTXP
\UWU[XP\UZXP\ÛXP\UYXP\U�XP\U\XP\U[]XP[VUVXP[TUWXP[WXP[ZXP
[ZU[UVXP[ZU[UTXP[ZU[UZ
�dqihedf�«j�d�dh�kg�
[]UVUWXP_�a�
¬uJKzNuwMXP̧u¤OzXPHºvN¥SKLJPuL£
[U[UTXP[U[ÛXPTUWU[XPTUZXPTU�UVXPTU�UTXPTU[VXPTU[TXPTU[ZU[XP
ZUVU[XP̂UVU[XPYUTUWXP\UTUVXP\UTUTXP\UZU[UTXP\U[]UVXP
[]UVU[UVXP[]UVUWXP[WUVU[U[XP[WUVU[UV
¬KuLMXP¬KJO£MXPRK�LNºvKMXP}KºvKL�KMPuL£P
źO�K£vzKMPOQP°OLMJzv�JNOL
TUTU[XPTU[VU[]XPWUVUVXPWUVUYXP\UWUV
¬K�uLN��MP̧NKL
VU[UVXP\UTU[XP\UTUTXP\ÛU�XP\U[]UVXP\U[]UWXP[ZUVU�
�i�edqekp
�UTU[XP[ZU[UTUVXP[ZUVU[XP[ZUVUZXP[ZUVÛXP_̀a�XP[ZUWU[XP
[ZUWU[U[
�epkhj�̈ dp�i�jepjq̈ij»khª
[U[U[XPTUWUVXPTU[VU�XPWUVU�XPYU[XPsa¶

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

95



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

G

HIJKLMMNOLPQJRSTPUIJIPOJ
VW
HXYZ[Z\]̂ZX_̀abcdefgfhfigbie
VjVjV
kilfefmnhfigobhibhpdbqighrnmh
ststsabststuabutvabwtssabxtstuabxtutsabvtutwabyabztwtsab{tyab
s|twtu
H}̂}]~RT�̀�X_̀Z�Z~Ẑ�
�j�
OX_\X_[X��Z_�R�X���RN\\��̂]_\�RX[
{t�t�ab{t{twabV�jW
�igmigeir�fg�b�ir�ab�d�dmhfigbnglbqirrdmhfigbie
utxabutvabwtvabxtut�ab�tutxab{tvtsab{tztuab{t{twab{ts|txab
sutu
OX̂Z\�
Vj�abst�tsabst�tuabutstuabutututabututwabututxabutvabwtutxab
wtwtsabwtytxabwtytvabwt{tuabwtsut{abwtsuts|abvtutsabytxab
ztutub{t�tzab{tyab{ts|tsabs|tutzabs|twtuabsstvabsutututsab
swtxtsabswtxtuabsxtsabsxtutuabsxtxtuabsvtstwabsvtstvab
svtst�absvtxts
�ihfmdbiebqngmd��nhfigbirb���frnhfigbieb�go�rngmd
sststxabsstutw
OX̂Z\�RX[RK~]Z�̀
st�tuabutstuabwtytxab{t�tzabs|tutzabV�jVjWabsvtstvabsvtst�ab
svtutzabsvtwtuabsvtxts
�ihfmdbieb�dohfg�bnglb�go�dmhfigo
swtxtsabswtxtu
��odr�nhfigoabqighrnmhir�o
wtuabwtytx
�mm��ngm�
utwtsab{t�t�ab{tz
�rldroab�rfhhdg
ststsabutxabwt{tuabyabztutuabsstvabsutsabsutututsabswtxtuab
sxtwts
P�OLT
�
P _��abcdefgfhfigbie
�jVjV
P _���RL¡ZY�_\�RX[R¢Z_]_\Z]~RN��]_����_̂`
�j�abswtutuabsxtststx
P _���RI_[X��]̂ZX_R]_YRJ��¡Z\�̀RT�£}Z��YRX[R̂¤�
utstuab�j�abutwabwtutuabwtsuts|ab�tstwab�tstxab�tutvab{twtuab
{t�tsab{t�txab{t{tuab{ts|twabs|twtwabsstuabswtxtsabswtxtuab
sxtststxabsxtstxabsvtstx
�¥gdr�ob¦�hpirfh�
stvabutstsabutwtwutxabutvabwtxtuabwtztsabwtsuts|abwtsxtuab
xtstuabxtutxabxtut{abvtutsabvtutxabvtxtsab�tsab�twabytutsab
ytwtsabztutuabztwtsab{twtuab{tvtsab{t�txab{t{tsab{ts|tuab
s|twtuabsstxabsstvabsututuabsutwabswtutuabsxtwabsxtxab
svtuty
P _��§̀RI_̀}�]_\�
VVj�
�¥gdr�ob�d�nhfigopf�b¥fhpb̈��mighrnmhiro
ststuabvtuabvtwabvtxab{t�txab{ts|tuabsxtutu
P _��§̀RTZ�¤̂R̂XRK]���RP}̂R̂¤�R�X��
�j�absxtutu

P _��§̀RTZ�¤̂R̂XRK~�]_RQ�
�jW
P _��§̀RTZ�¤̂R̂XRS��[X��RKX_̀ �̂}\̂ZX_R]_YR̂XR
N ]�YRJ��]�]̂�RKX_̂�]\̂̀
�jV
P _��§̀RTZ�¤̂R̂XRĴX�R̂¤�R�X��
�j©
�¥gdr�ob�f�phbhib̈�o�dglbhpdb�ir�
sxtw
�¥gdr�ob�f�phbhib�dr�fgnhdbhpdbqighrnmh
sxtuabsxtx
P _��̀¤Z�R]_YRQ̀�RX[Rª�] Z_�̀�RJ��\Z[Z\]̂ZX_̀R
]_YRP̂¤��RI_̀ �̂}��_̂ R̀X[RJ��¡Z\�
ststsabstst�abststyabVj�abutwt�abwtutuabwtssabwtsyabxtutsuab
vtw
S]�̂Z]~RP\\}�]_\�RX�RQ̀�
{t�t�ab«j«
S]̂\¤Z_��RK}̂ Ẑ_�R]_Y
WjV©ab�tutv
¬nhdgho
wtsy
S]���_̂�RN��~Z\]̂ZX_̀R[X�
xtutvabytwt{ab{tuab«jWab{txab{tvab{t�twab{tyab{tztvab{ts|tsab
sxtutwabsxtutxabsxtxtw
S]���_̂�RK��̂Z[Z\]̂�̀R[X�
xtutvabxtut{ab{twtwab«j©ab{tvab{t�tsab{t�t�ab{tyab{ts|tsab
{ts|twabsxtststwabsxtutx
S]���_̂�R¢]Z~}��RX[
{tvtstwab«jab{ts|tuabswtvabsxtststwabsxtutstu
¬n��dghab®fgn�
xtutsabxtut{ab«jV̄absutwabsxtutxabsxtxtw
S]���_̂R°X_Y�RS��[X��]_\�R°X_YR]_Y
ytwtxtxab{t�tyab{ts|twabVVjVj�
S]���_̂ �̀RS�X���̀̀
{twab«j�ab{tztvab{ts|twabsxtutwabsvtstx
SN±HLO²JRNOªRKPHSML²IPO
«
¬n��dghobhib̈��mighrnmhiro
vtxtuab{tvtstwab{t�tuab{t�twab{t�txab{t�tyabsxtutstu
¬q³
s|twts
S��[X��]_\�R°X_YR]_YRS]���_̂R°X_Y
ytwtxtxab{t�tyab{ts|twabVVjVj�
S���Ẑ̀�R¢��̀�ROX̂Z\�̀R]_YRKX��~Z]_\�R Ẑ¤RM] ̀
utwtsabWjabwtswabytwtxtxabs|tutu
SLTJPOJRNOªRSTPSLT²±�RSTP²LK²IPORP¢
V̄
¬i��mp�irfgnhdlb³f�pdg��
s|twts
S�XY}\̂Rª]̂]abcdefgfhfigbie
WjV�j�
S�XY}\̂Rª]̂]R]_YRJ]��~�̀�RJ¤X�Rª�] Z_�̀
wtssabWjV�abxtuty
S�X���̀̀R]_YRKX��~�̂ZX_
xtutuab́j�ab{tzab{t{tsabsxtstxabsvtstx
S�X���̀̀RS]���_̂`
{twab«j�ab{tztvab{ts|twabsxtutwabsvtstx

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

96



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

G

HIJKLMNOPQRSTUTVTWUPWS
XYXYZ
[\W]R̂VP_R̀\RaRUVbVTcRa
defegh
HIJiLINjklmnoIpmML
ghefeqOPXXYr
HIJiJnpsktLuovILwLmNn
gegeg
Htxyz{ylx|kx}kHzt~x|~k�|�kHtxHzty�
X�
_R���bVTWUaPbU�P�b�a
geqOPfe�efOP�efe�OP�e�OP�e�OP�egfeghOP�eg�OP�e�edOP�e�egOP
ghefefOPg�egOPg�e�OPg�edegOPg�edefOPg�eqOPgdOPgqefe�OPgqed
_R]R̂VTWUPWSP�W\�
defe�OPgfefeg
_R�RbaRaPbU�P�bTcR\aPWSP�TRUa
�e�egOP�eghef
_R̀\RaRUVbVTWUa
�efegOP�eqOP�egfe�OP�efegOP�e�e�OP�edefOP�eqegOP�egheg
_R̀\RaRUVbVTcRa
fegegOP�egegOP�e�OPdegegOPdefeghOPg�efeg
_RàWUaT�T�TV�PSW\P��WaRP[R\SW\�TU�PV�RP�W\�
�e�efOP�eg�OPdefefOPdefe�OPqe�OP�ege�OP�efOP�e�OP�eqegOPgh
_RVbTUb�R
�e�egOP�e�efOP�e�eqOP�e�egOP�eghefOP�eghe�
tL�vL�kJ�k{JmNIpMNk�JMowLmNnkpm�k}vLs�k
{Jm�vNvJmnk�jk{JmNIpMNJI
�YrOP�egfe�OP�ege�
_RcTR�PWSP�WUV\b̂VW\�aP����TVVb�aP��P��UR\PbU�P
�\̂�TVR̂V
�eghegOP�eghefOP�eggOP�egfOPdefOPqefOP�ege�OP�efOP�e�ef
_RcTR�PWSP��ẀPQ\b�TU�aOP[\W��̂VPQbVbPbU�P�b�̀ �RaP
��P�WUV\b̂VW\
�egf
tv ¡Nnkpm�ktLwL�vLn
gegefOPfedOPfeqOP�eqOP�e�edOP�egqefOPdefe�OPqe�OPqedOP�egOP
�e�OP�e�egOP�e�OP�eqegOP�e�OPghefeqOPghe�OPgfefegOPgfefefOP
gfefedOPX�Y�OPgdOPgqed
tJjpsNvLn¢kHpNLmNnkpm�k{JijIv ¡Nn
�YX£
_��RaPbU�P¤WVT̂RaPSW\P�\�TV\bVTWU
gqedeg
~p�LNjkJ�kHLInJmnkpm�kHIJiLINj
X�YrOPghed
~p�LNjkHILMpoNvJmnkpm�kHIJ Ipwn
�e�egOPdefefOPdefe�OPqe�OPX�YXOPghefOPghed
~pwisLnOPQRSTUTVTWUPWS
�YXrY�
~pwisLn¢k~¡Jik�Ip�vm n¢kHIJ�oMNk�pNpkpm�
�eggOP�YXrOPdefe�
~pwisLnkpNkN¡Lk~vNL¢k�JMowLmNnkpm�
�YXX
~M¡L�osLkJ�k¥psoLn
¦YrOP�e�eg
�̂�R���RaOP�WUaV\�̂VTWU
�eghOP�egfegOP�egfefOP�ege�OPgqege�ef

�R̀b\bVRP�WUV\b̂VaPbU�P�WUV\b̂VW\a
gegedOP�egfeqOP�egdefOPdefedOPdefe�OP�OP�e�egOPgfegef
~LipIpNLk{JmNIpMNJInOPQRSTUTVTWUPWS
§YXYX
~¡Jik�Ip�vm nOPQRSTUTVTWUPWS
�YXrYX
~¡Jik�Ip�vm n¢kHIJ�oMNk�pNpkpm�k~pwisLn
�eggOP�YXrOPdefe�
~vNL¢k̈nLkJ�
�YX�OP�egegOP�efeg
�TVRP©UàR̂VTWUa
�efefOP�e�e�OP�e�egOP�e�edOPdefOP�e�efOP�edefOP�eghegOPg�ed
�TVRPªTaTVaOP�\̂�TVR̂V�a
�e�edOPdefefOPdefe�OP�edefOP�eqegOP�e�efOP�eghegOPg�ed
�̀R̂Tb�P©UàR̂VTWUaPbU�P�RaVTU�
defe�OPgfefegOPg�ed
~iLMv�vMpNvJmnOPQRSTUTVTWUPWS
XYXY§
~iLMv�vMpNvJmn
gegegOPXYXY§OPgefefOPgeqOP�egfeghOP�eg�OPdefegd
�VbV�VRPWSP�T�TVbVTWUa
gqegefOPgqedegeg
�VẀ T̀U�PV�RP�W\�
fefefOPfedOP�e�OPghe�OPgdeg
�VW\R�P«bVR\Tb�a
�efegOP�e�efOPghefegefOPghefed
~o�MJmNIpMNJIOPQRSTUTVTWUPWS
¬YXYX
~̈ {x|yt�{yxt~
¬
���̂WUV\b̂VW\aOP�W\�P��
gefefOP�e�efOP�egfegOP�eg�OPdefe�OPqefe�OPqe�OPqedOP�e�egefOP
�e�e�
~o�MJmNIpMNopsktLspNvJmn
¬Y�OPqedOP�e�egefOP�e�OP�eghOPghefegOPgdegOPgdefeg
����TVVb�a
�eghOP�eggOP�egfOPdefe�OPqefegOPqefe�OP�e�edOP�efOP�e�OP�e�OP
�e�egOP�eghefOP�eghe�
����TVVb�P�̂�R���R
�eghefOP�egfeqOPdefe�
~o�IJ pNvJm¢k®pv�LInkJ�
�egegOPXXY�
~o�nNpmMLn¢k̄p°pI�Jon
X�Y�
~o�nNpmNvpsk{JwisLNvJm
defe�OP�egegOP�ege�OP�efe�OP�edefOP¦Y±OP�e�egOP�eghe�OPgfefOP
gqegef
~o�nNpmNvpsk{JwisLNvJmOPQRSTUTVTWUPWS
¦Y±YX
���aVTV�VTWUPWSP���̂WUV\b̂VW\a
qefe�OPqefed
���aVTV�VTWUPWSP�\̂�TVR̂V
fe�e�
���aVTV�VTWUaPWSP«bVR\Tb�a
�edefOP�eqOP�e�e�
~o�²no�MJmNIpMNJIOPQRSTUTVTWUPWS
¬YXYr

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

97



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

G

HIJKILMNOPQRSTUVWVSTK
XYZY[
\]̂ _̂̀̀ab̀cdefcg̀ h̀iè
jklm
\]n_bheo_ef_eo
klpqQrsYtYu
\]n_bvh̀haecdefcwaèob]̂ohaecxbâ_f]b_̀
rYtYtqQklkqQXY[qQXYrtYrsqQ[YtYtqQ[YtYZqQuYrYXqQuYtY[qQZYrYXqQ
ZYXY[qQyYtqQyYXYrqQzY[YtqQrsqQrtqQr[qQr{YrY[
HI||}VPLK
rY{qQXYrtYrqQ[YtY[qQ[YtYuqQ{YtYrqQzYXqQzY[YtqQzY{Y[qQzYuqQ
zYrsY{qQr[YtYr
HILPW~
{Y[YrYtqQzYuYyqQzYyY{qQzYrsYtqQzYrsYXqQrrYrYtqQr[YtYtqQ
r{YtYZ
HILPW~qQRSTKPTWQSM
zYyY{qQzYrsYtqQzYrsYX
HIL�P~K
rYrYZqQtYXY[
\]̀n_èhaec��co�_c��e_bc�abcwaev_eh_ê_
j�lk
HIK|PTKVSTQSMQW�PQ�SL�
XYZY{qQ{Y[YtqQr[YX
HIK|PTKVSTQSLQ�PL�VTNWVSTQSMQW�PQRSTWLNOW
{Y[YrYrqQr[
�d�_̀
XYuqQXYyYtYrqQZYXY[Y[
�_b�hedohaec��co�_cwaeobd̂oab
j�ljqQr{YrYZ
�_b�hedohaec��co�_c��e_bc�abcwd]̀_
{Y[YrYrqQj�lm�cr{YrYZ
�_b�hedohaec��co�_c��e_bc�abcwaev_eh_ê_
j�l�
�PL�VTNWVSTQSMQW�PQ�LO�VWPOW
tYXYX
�PL�VTNWVSTQSMQW�PQRSTWLNOWSLQ��|}S~�PTW
r[YtYt

������g����c��c\�\x��\���c��c���c
w����gw�
j�
�_̀òcdefc�èn_̂ohaè
XYrYXqQXYXYXqQXYZYrqQ[YtYtqQ[YtYuqQ[YtYzqQzY[YtqQzYyYXqQ
zYzYtqQzYrsYrqQrsYXYtqQrtYtYrqQjkl�
����
�
�h�_�c�_�d�̀cdefc��o_èhaèca�
XYtY[qQXYZY[qQ{YtYXqQZYtYrqQZYXYrqQZY[qQ�lkqQzY{YrqQzYZqQ
rsYXYtqQrsY[qQr[YXYtqQr{YrYuqQr{YtY{

�V�PQ�V�VWK
tYrYtqQtYtqQtY{qQXYtYtqQXYrsqQXYrrqQXYrtY{qQXYr{YrqQ[YtqQ
{YtqQ{YXqQ{Y[qQuYtY[qQZYXqQZY[qQyYtqQzYtqQzYXYrqQzYXYXqQzY[YrqQ
zY{qQzYuqQzYZqQzYyqQzYzqQzYrsqQrtYtqQrXY[qQr[qQr{YrYtqQ
r{YrYXqQr{Y[
�h�_c�h�hòcaecw�dh�̀
XYZY[qQrsYtYyqQr{YrYtqQr{YrYX
�VW}PQWSQ�SL�
zYXYtqQzYXYX
��w������ cg��cw����w����c��c¡��¢
jm
�êav_bheica�c¡ab£
jmlj
¤TMSLPKPPTQRSTUVWVSTKqQRSTOPN}PUQSLQ¤T�TS¥T
XYZY[qQyYXYrqQrsYX
¤TVWQ¦LVOPK
ZYXYXYtqQzYrYt
¤KPQSMQ§SOI�PTWK
rYrYrqQrY{qQtYXYuqQXYrtYuqQ{YX
�̀_ca�c\ho_
kljkqQuYrYrqQuYtYr
�d�]_̀�c\̂�_f]�_ca�
plmqQzYXYr
�NV�PLQSMQR}NV�KQJ~QW�PQ�LO�VWPOW
rXYXYt
�NV�PLQSMQR}NV�KQJ~QW�PQRSTWLNOWSL
zYrsY{qQrXYXYtqQj̈ljl©
�NV�PLQSMQR}NV�KQJ~QW�PQª¥TPL
zYzYXqQzYrsYXqQzYrsY[qQrtYtYtYrqQrXYXYtqQr[YtY[qQj̈ljl©
�NV�PLQSMQRSTKP«IPTWVN}Q§N�N¬PK
r[YtY[qQr{YrYZ
�NV�PLQSMQ�VPTK
zYXqQzYrsYtqQzYrsY[
¡dhv_b̀ca�c\]�baidohae
uYrYrqQjjlk
¡dbbdeo�
kl̈qQ[YtYzqQzYXYXqQzYyY[qQzYzYrqQzYrsYtqQzYrsY[qQrtYtYtqQ
r{YrYt
�PNW�PLQ§P}N~K
yYXqQr{YrYuYt
¡ab£qQ§PMVTVWVSTQSM
jljlk
�LVWWPTQRSTKPTW
rY{YtqQXY[YtqQXYZY[qQXYrtYyqQXYr[YtqQ[YrYtqQzYXYtqQzYrsYXqQ
rXYtqQrXYXYtqQr{Y[Y[Yt
�LVWWPTQTWPL|LPWNWVSTK
[YtYrrqQ[YtYrt
�LVWWPTQªLUPLK
rYrYrqQtY[qQXYzqQZqQyYtYtqQrtYrqQrtYtqQrXY[YtqQr[YXYr

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

98



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNOPQPPPROSOJINPTJUVLWLUSW
XPQYQPZ[\]̂P_̀a]b]c]db\
XPQYQYQPKèPMdbcf[̂cP_d̂gh̀bc\
ijklmnopqrspltnsuvkopwlrqklkouvkqrpkxlyolpjklz{qkkvkopl|kp}kkolpjkl~}okqlroxlmnopqrspnql�jkqkyor�pkqlpjkl
z{qkkvkop�lroxlsnowywpln�lpjklz{qkkvkop�lmnoxypynowln�lpjklmnopqrspl��kokqr��l�u���kvkoprq�lroxlnpjkqlmnoxypynow��l
tqr}yo{w�l��ksy�ysrpynow�lzxxkoxrlywwukxl�qynqlpnlk�ksupynoln�lpjklmnopqrsp�lnpjkqlxnsuvkopwl�ywpkxlyolpjklz{qkkvkop�l
roxl�nxy�ysrpynowlywwukxlr�pkqlk�ksupynoln�lpjklmnopqrsp�lzl�nxy�ysrpynolywl���lrl}qyppkolrvkoxvkoplpnlpjklmnopqrspl
wy{okxl|�l|npjl�rqpykw�l���lrlmjro{kl~qxkq�l���lrlmnowpquspynolmjro{kltyqkspy�k�lnql���lrl}qyppkolnqxkql�nqlrlvyonql
sjro{klyolpjkl�nq�lywwukxl|�lpjklzqsjypksp�l�o�kwwlw�ksy�ysr���lkouvkqrpkxlyolpjklz{qkkvkop�lpjklmnopqrspl
tnsuvkopwlxnlonplyos�uxklpjklrx�kqpywkvkoplnqlyo�yprpynolpnl|yx�l�owpquspynowlpnl�yxxkqw�lwrv��kl�nqvw�lnpjkql
yo�nqvrpynol�uqoywjkxl|�lpjkl~}okqlyolropysy�rpynoln�lqksky�yo{l|yxwlnql�qn�nwr�w�lpjklmnopqrspnq�wl|yxlnql�qn�nwr��lnql
�nqpynowln�lzxxkoxrlqk�rpyo{lpnl|yxxyo{lnql�qn�nwr�lqk�uyqkvkopw�

XPQYQY�PKèPMdbcf[̂c
ijklmnopqrspltnsuvkopwl�nqvlpjklmnopqrspl�nqlmnowpquspyno�lijklmnopqrsplpn{kpjkql}ypjlpjkl�kq�nqvroskl|noxlroxl
�r�vkopl|nox�lqk�qkwkopwlpjklkopyqklroxlyopk{qrpkxlr{qkkvkopl|kp}kkolpjkl�rqpykwljkqkpnlroxlwu�kqwkxkwl�qynql
ok{npyrpynow�lqk�qkwkoprpynow�lnqlr{qkkvkopw�lkypjkql}qyppkolnqlnqr��lijklmnopqrsplvr�l|klrvkoxkxlnqlvnxy�ykxlno��l|�l
rl�nxy�ysrpyno�lijklmnopqrspltnsuvkopwlwjr��lonpl|klsnowpqukxlpnlsqkrpklrlsnopqrspur�lqk�rpynowjy�ln�lro�l�yoxl���l
|kp}kkolpjklmnopqrspnqlroxlpjklzqsjypksplnqlpjklzqsjypksp�wlsnowu�propw�l���l|kp}kkolpjkl~}okqlroxlrl�u|snopqrspnqlnql
rl�u|�wu|snopqrspnq�l���lk�sk�plrwlvr�l|klk��qkww��l�qn�yxkxlyolpjklr{qkkvkopl|kp}kkolpjkl~}okqlroxlpjklzqsjypksp�l
|kp}kkolpjkl~}okqlroxlpjklzqsjypksplnqlpjklzqsjypksp�wlsnowu�propw�lnql���l|kp}kkolro�l�kqwnowlnqlkopypykwlnpjkqlpjrol
pjkl~}okqlroxlpjklmnopqrspnq�lijklzqsjypksplwjr���ljn}k�kq�l|klkopyp�kxlpnl�kq�nqvrosklroxlko�nqskvkopln�l
n|�y{rpynowluoxkqlpjklmnopqrsplyopkoxkxlpnl�rsy�yprpkl�kq�nqvroskln�lpjklzqsjypksp�wlxupykw�

XPQYQY�PKèP�df�
ijklpkqvl��nq��lvkrowlpjklsnowpquspynolroxlwkq�yskwlqk�uyqkxl|�lpjklmnopqrspltnsuvkopw�l}jkpjkqlsnv��kpkxlnql
�rqpyr���lsnv��kpkx�lroxlyos�uxkwlr��lnpjkql�r|nq�lvrpkqyr�w�lk�uy�vkop�lroxlwkq�yskwl�qn�yxkxlnqlpnl|kl�qn�yxkxl|�lpjkl
mnopqrspnqlpnl�u��y��lpjklmnopqrspnq�wln|�y{rpynow�lijkl�nq�lvr�lsnowpypupklpjkl}jn�klnqlrl�rqpln�lpjkl�qn�ksp�

XPQYQY�PKèPTfd ̀̂c
ijkl�qn�ksplywlpjklpnpr�lsnowpquspynolxkwsqy|kxlyolpjklz{qkkvkopln�l}jysjlpjkl�nq�l�kq�nqvkxluoxkqlpjklmnopqrspl
tnsuvkopwlvr�l|klpjkl}jn�klnqlrl�rqplroxl}jysjlvr�lyos�uxklsnowpquspynol|�lpjkl~}okqlroxl|�l�k�rqrpklmnopqrspnqw�

XPQYQY¡PKèP_f[¢]b£\
ijkltqr}yo{wlrqklpjkl{qr�jyslroxl�yspnqyr�l�nqpynowln�lpjklmnopqrspltnsuvkopwlwjn}yo{lpjklxkwy{o�l�nsrpynolroxl
xyvkowynowln�lpjkl�nq��l{kokqr���lyos�uxyo{l��row�lk�k�rpynow�lwkspynow�lxkpry�w�lwsjkxu�kw�lroxlxyr{qrvw�

XPQYQY¤PKèPW¥̀ ]̂a]̂[c]db\
ijkl��ksy�ysrpynowlrqklpjrpl�nqpynoln�lpjklmnopqrspltnsuvkopwlsnowywpyo{ln�lpjkl}qyppkolqk�uyqkvkopwl�nqlvrpkqyr�w�l
k�uy�vkop�lw�wpkvw�lwproxrqxwlroxl}nq�vrowjy�l�nqlpjkl�nq��lroxl�kq�nqvroskln�lqk�rpkxlwkq�yskw�

XPQYQY¦PLb\cfgh̀bc\PdaPẀf§]̂̀
�owpquvkopwln�l�kq�ysklrqklqk�qkwkoprpynow�lyolro�lvkxyuvln�lk��qkwwynolon}l�on}olnql�rpkqlxk�k�n�kx�ln�lpjklpro{y|�kl
roxlyopro{y|�klsqkrpy�kl}nq�l�kq�nqvkxl|�lpjklzqsjypksplroxlpjklzqsjypksp�wlsnowu�propwluoxkqlpjkyqlqkw�kspy�kl
�qn�kwwynor�lwkq�yskwlr{qkkvkopw�l�owpquvkopwln�l�kq�ysklvr�lyos�uxk�l}ypjnupl�yvyprpyno�lwpuxykw�lwuq�k�w�lvnxk�w�l
w�kpsjkw�lxqr}yo{w�lw�ksy�ysrpynow�lroxlnpjkqlwyvy�rqlvrpkqyr�w�

XPQYQŸPLb]c][©P_̀ ]̂\]dbPª[�̀f
�opkopynor���ltk�kpkx

XPQY�PMdff̀©[c]dbP[b«PLbc̀bcPdaPcèPMdbcf[̂cP_d̂gh̀bc\
XPQY�YQlijklyopkopln�lpjklmnopqrspltnsuvkopwlywlpnlyos�uxklr��lypkvwlokskwwrq�l�nqlpjkl�qn�kqlk�ksupynolroxlsnv��kpynol
n�lpjkl�nq�l|�lpjklmnopqrspnq�lijklmnopqrspltnsuvkopwlrqklsnv��kvkoprq��lroxl}jrplywlqk�uyqkxl|�lnoklwjr��l|klrwl
|yoxyo{lrwly�lqk�uyqkxl|�lr��¬l�kq�nqvroskl|�lpjklmnopqrspnqlwjr��l|klqk�uyqkxlno��lpnlpjklk�pkoplsnowywpkopl}ypjlpjkl
mnopqrspltnsuvkopwlroxlqkrwnor|��lyo�kqr|�kl�qnvlpjkvlrwl|kyo{lokskwwrq�lpnl�qnxusklpjklyoxysrpkxlqkwu�pw�l�olpjkl
k�kopln�lrlsno��ysplnqlyosnowywpkos�lyolnqlrvno{lpjklmnopqrspltnsuvkopw�lnql|kp}kkolpjklmnopqrspltnsuvkopwlroxl
r���ysr|�klsnxkwlyolk��ksplrplpjklpyvklpjklmnopqrspl�uvl|yxlywlok{npyrpkx�lpjklmnopqrspnqlwjr���luo�kwwlxyqkspkxl

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

99



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GG

HIJKLMNOKPNQPMLNINQRPSTPIJKPUMQKLVPWLHXNYKPIJKPRLKZIKOIP[\ZQINITVPJNRJKOIP[\Z]NITVPJNRJKOIPYKRLKKPĤPOẐKITVPZQYP_HOIP
OILNQRKQIP_ZIKLNZ]VPK[\NW_KQIPHLP̀HLab

cdefgfefePhJKPNQXZ]NYNITPĤPZQTPWLHXNONHQPĤPIJKPiHQILZjIPkHj\_KQIOPOJZ]]PQHIPNQXZ]NYZIKPIJKPiHQILZjIPHLPNIOPLK_ZNQNQRP
WLHXNONHQObPl̂PNIPNOPYKIKL_NQKYPIJZIPZQTPWLHXNONHQPĤPIJKPiHQILZjIPkHj\_KQIOPXNH]ZIKOPZQTP]ZMVPHLPNOPHIJKLMNOKPNQXZ]NYPHLP
\QKQ̂HLjKZS]KVPIJKQPIJZIPWLHXNONHQPOJZ]]PSKPLKXNOKYPIHPIJKPKmIKQIPQKjKOOZLTPIHP_ZaKPIJZIPWLHXNONHQP]KRZ]PZQYP
KQ̂HLjKZS]KbPlQPO\jJPjZOKPIJKPiHQILZjIPkHj\_KQIOPOJZ]]PSKPjHQOIL\KYVPIHPIJKP̂\]]KOIPKmIKQIPWKL_NIIKYPSTP]ZMVPIHPRNXKP
K̂̂KjIPIHPIJKPWZLINKOnPNQIKQINHQOPZQYPW\LWHOKOPNQPKmKj\INQRPIJKPiHQILZjIb

cdefgfgPULRZQNoZINHQPĤPIJKPpWKjN̂NjZINHQOPNQIHPYNXNONHQOVPOKjINHQOPZQYPZLINj]KOVPZQYPZLLZQRK_KQIPĤPkLZMNQROPOJZ]]PQHIP
jHQILH]PIJKPiHQILZjIHLPNQPYNXNYNQRPIJKP̀ HLaPZ_HQRPp\SjHQILZjIHLOPHLPNQPKOIZS]NOJNQRPIJKPKmIKQIPĤP̀ HLaPIHPSKP
WKL̂HL_KYPSTPZQTPILZYKb

cdefgfqPrQ]KOOPHIJKLMNOKPOIZIKYPNQPIJKPiHQILZjIPkHj\_KQIOVPMHLYOPIJZIPJZXKPMK]]saQHMQPIKjJQNjZ]PHLPjHQOIL\jINHQP
NQY\OILTP_KZQNQROPZLKP\OKYPNQPIJKPiHQILZjIPkHj\_KQIOPNQPZjjHLYZQjKPMNIJPO\jJPLKjHRQNoKYP_KZQNQROb

cdefqdtuvwxuywzuxw{|
hKL_OPjZWNIZ]NoKYPNQPIJKOKP}KQKLZ]PiHQYNINHQOPNQj]\YKPIJHOKPIJZIPZLKP~��POWKjN̂NjZ]]TPYK̂NQKYVP~��PIJKPINI]KOPĤPQ\_SKLKYP
ZLINj]KOVPHLP~��PIJKPINI]KOPĤPHIJKLPYHj\_KQIOPW\S]NOJKYPSTPIJKP�_KLNjZQPlQOINI\IKPĤP�LjJNIKjIOb

cdef�d�|x��v��xuxw{|
lQPIJKPNQIKLKOIPĤPSLKXNITPIJKPiHQILZjIPkHj\_KQIOP̂LK[\KQI]TPH_NIP_HYN̂TNQRPMHLYOPO\jJPZOP�Z]]�PZQYP�ZQT�PZQYPZLINj]KOP
O\jJPZOP�IJK�PZQYP�ZQV�PS\IPIJKP̂ZjIPIJZIPZP_HYN̂NKLPHLPZQPZLINj]KPNOPZSOKQIP̂LH_PHQKPOIZIK_KQIPZQYPZWWKZLOPNQPZQHIJKLPNOP
QHIPNQIKQYKYPIHPẐ̂KjIPIJKPNQIKLWLKIZINHQPĤPKNIJKLPOIZIK_KQIb

cdef�d��|����wvdu|�d���d{�d��u�w|���d�v��w�w�uxw{|��du|�d�x���d�|�x����|x�d{�d����w��
cdef�fePhJKP�LjJNIKjIPZQYPIJKP�LjJNIKjInOPjHQO\]IZQIOPOJZ]]PSKPYKK_KYPIJKPZ\IJHLOPZQYPHMQKLOPĤPIJKNLPLKOWKjINXKP
lQOIL\_KQIOPĤPpKLXNjKVPNQj]\YNQRPIJKPkLZMNQROPZQYPpWKjN̂NjZINHQOVPZQYPLKIZNQPZ]]PjH__HQP]ZMVPOIZI\IHLTVPZQYPHIJKLP
LKOKLXKYPLNRJIOPNQPIJKNLPlQOIL\_KQIOPĤPpKLXNjKVPNQj]\YNQRPjHWTLNRJIObPhJKPiHQILZjIHLVPp\SjHQILZjIHLOVP
p\SsO\SjHQILZjIHLOVPZQYPO\WW]NKLOPOJZ]]PQHIPHMQPHLPj]ZN_PZPjHWTLNRJIPNQPIJKPlQOIL\_KQIOPĤPpKLXNjKbPp\S_NIIZ]PHLP
YNOILNS\INHQPIHP_KKIPĤ̂NjNZ]PLKR\]ZIHLTPLK[\NLK_KQIOPHLP̂HLPHIJKLPW\LWHOKOPNQPjHQQKjINHQPMNIJPIJKP�LH�KjIPNOPQHIPIHPSKP
jHQOIL\KYPZOPW\S]NjZINHQPNQPYKLHRZINHQPĤPIJKP�LjJNIKjInOPHLP�LjJNIKjInOPjHQO\]IZQIOnPLKOKLXKYPLNRJIOb

cdef�fgPhJKPiHQILZjIHLVPp\SjHQILZjIHLOVPp\SsO\SjHQILZjIHLOVPZQYPO\WW]NKLOPZLKPZ\IJHLNoKYPIHP\OKPZQYPLKWLHY\jKPIJKP
lQOIL\_KQIOPĤPpKLXNjKPWLHXNYKYPIHPIJK_VPO\S�KjIPIHPZQTPWLHIHjH]OPKOIZS]NOJKYPW\LO\ZQIPIHPpKjINHQOP�b�PZQYP�b�VPOH]K]TP
ZQYPKmj]\ONXK]TP̂HLPKmKj\INHQPĤPIJKP̀HLabP�]]PjHWNKOP_ZYKP\QYKLPIJNOPZ\IJHLNoZINHQPOJZ]]PSKZLPIJKPjHWTLNRJIPQHINjKVPN̂P
ZQTVPOJHMQPHQPIJKPlQOIL\_KQIOPĤPpKLXNjKbPhJKPiHQILZjIHLVPp\SjHQILZjIHLOVPp\SsO\SjHQILZjIHLOVPZQYPO\WW]NKLOP_ZTPQHIP
\OKPIJKPlQOIL\_KQIOPĤPpKLXNjKPHQPHIJKLPWLH�KjIOPHLP̂HLPZYYNINHQOPIHPIJKP�LH�KjIPH\IONYKPIJKPOjHWKPĤPIJKP̀HLaPMNIJH\IP
IJKPOWKjN̂NjPMLNIIKQPjHQOKQIPĤPIJKPUMQKLVP�LjJNIKjIVPZQYPIJKP�LjJNIKjInOPjHQO\]IZQIOb

cdef�d�{xw��
cdef�feP�mjKWIPZOPHIJKLMNOKPWLHXNYKYPNQPpKjINHQP�b b�VPMJKLKPIJKPiHQILZjIPkHj\_KQIOPLK[\NLKPHQKPWZLITPIHPQHIN̂TPHLP
RNXKPQHINjKPIHPIJKPHIJKLPWZLITVPO\jJPQHINjKPOJZ]]PSKPWLHXNYKYPNQPMLNINQRPIHPIJKPYKONRQZIKYPLKWLKOKQIZINXKPĤPIJKPWZLITPIHP
MJH_PIJKPQHINjKPNOPZYYLKOOKYPZQYPOJZ]]PSKPYKK_KYPIHPJZXKPSKKQPY\]TPOKLXKYPN̂PYK]NXKLKYPNQPWKLOHQVPSTP_ZN]VPSTPjH\LNKLVP
HLPSTPK]KjILHQNjPILZQO_NOONHQPN̂PZP_KIJHYP̂HLPK]KjILHQNjPILZQO_NOONHQPNOPOKIP̂HLIJPNQPIJKP�RLKK_KQIb

cdef�fgP¡HINjKPĤPi]ZN_OPZOPWLHXNYKYPNQPpKjINHQP�¢b�b�POJZ]]PSKPWLHXNYKYPNQPMLNINQRPZQYPOJZ]]PSKPYKK_KYPIHPJZXKPSKKQP
Y\]TPOKLXKYPHQ]TPN̂PYK]NXKLKYPIHPIJKPYKONRQZIKYPLKWLKOKQIZINXKPĤPIJKPWZLITPIHPMJH_PIJKPQHINjKPNOPZYYLKOOKYPSTPjKLIN̂NKYP
HLPLKRNOIKLKYP_ZN]VPHLPSTPjH\LNKLPWLHXNYNQRPWLHĤPĤPYK]NXKLTb

cdef£d�w�wxuyd�uxud���du|�d¤�u|��w��w{|
hJKPWZLINKOPOJZ]]PZRLKKP\WHQPWLHIHjH]OPRHXKLQNQRPIJKPILZQO_NOONHQPZQYP\OKPĤPlQOIL\_KQIOPĤPpKLXNjKPHLPZQTPHIJKLP
NQ̂HL_ZINHQPHLPYHj\_KQIZINHQPNQPYNRNIZ]P̂HL_bPhJKPWZLINKOPMN]]P\OKP�l�PkHj\_KQIP��¥�¦§�¥��VP̈\N]YNQRP
lQ̂HL_ZINHQP©HYK]NQRPZQYPkNRNIZ]PkZIZP�mJNSNIVPIHPKOIZS]NOJPIJKPWLHIHjH]OP̂HLPIJKPYKXK]HW_KQIVP\OKVPILZQO_NOONHQVPZQYP
KmjJZQRKPĤPYNRNIZ]PYZIZb

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

100



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMJNOPQRPSTJUSVWXYZ[PWSJ\WR]Q̂J_̂]JZSRJ̀]QPZSa]
bcdefgheijkeilelhmnocpheickeommeileoeqilrniceijeoesfnmtncuencjilvornicevithmewnrxifreoulhhvhcrerieqliripimgeuiyhlcncue
rxhefgheijkeoctelhmnocpheickerxhencjilvornicepicronchtencerxhevithmeoctewnrxifrexoyncuerxigheqliripimgeghrejilrxencebzbe
{ipfvhcre|}~���}~��ke�fnmtncuezcjilvornice�ithmncueocte{nunrome{oroe|�xnsnrkeocterxhelh�fngnrhebzbe{ipfvhcre
�}~}��}~��ke�li�hpre�fnmtncuezcjilvornice�ithmncue�liripime�ilvkegxommesheorerxhefgncueilelhmdncueqolrd�gegimhelng�e
octewnrxifremnosnmnrderierxheirxhleqolrdeoctenrgepicrloprilgeilepicgfmrocrgkerxheofrxilgeijkeilepicrlnsfrilgerikerxhesfnmtncue
ncjilvornicevithmkeoctehopxeijerxhnleouhcrgeoctehvqmidhhg�

�̀�U���J�JJJ����̀
IJ�LKJ�]S]XZQ
IJ�LKLKe�xhe�wchlengerxheqhlgiceilehcrnrdenthcrnjnhteogegfpxencerxhebulhhvhcreoctengelhjhllhterierxlifuxifrerxhe�icrlopre
{ipfvhcrgeogenjegncufmolencecfvshl�e�xhe�wchlegxommethgnucorhencewlnrncueoelhqlhghcrornyhewxiegxommexoyheofrxilnrderie
lhqlhghcrerxhee�wchlewnrxelhgqhprerieommevorrhlgelh�fnlncuerxhe�wchl�geoqqliyomeileofrxiln�ornic�e|�phqreogeirxhlwnghe
qliynthtence�hprnice��}��kerxheblpxnrhpretihgecirexoyhegfpxeofrxilnrd�e�xherhlve��wchl�evhocge�cixivngxe�hunicome
�nlheocte�hgpfheilerxhe�wchl�geofrxiln�htelhqlhghcrornyh�

IJ�LKL�e�xhe�wchlegxommejflcngxerierxhe�icrloprilkewnrxncejnjrhhcetodgeojrhlelhphnqreijeoewlnrrhcelh�fhgrkencjilvornice
chphggoldeoctelhmhyocrejilerxhe�icrloprileriehyomforhkeunyhecirnpheijkeilehcjilphevhpxocnp�gemnhcelnuxrg�e�fpxe
ncjilvornicegxommencpmftheoepillhpregrorhvhcreijerxhelhpiltemhuomernrmherierxheqliqhlrdeicewxnpxerxhe�li�hprengemiporhtke
fgfommdelhjhllhterieogerxhegnrhkeocterxhe�wchl�gencrhlhgrerxhlhnc�

 ¡¢£¤£¥¡�wchlewnmmethgnucorheoceofrxiln�htelhqlhghcrornyhe¦��wchl�ge�hqlhghcrornyh�§�e�xhe�wchl�ge�hqlhghcrornyhe
gxommesherxhe�wchl�geqlncpnqomepicroprewnrxerxhe�icrloprilkeocteommepivvfcnpornicgejliverxhe�icrloprilerierxhe�wchle
gxommeshevotherierxhe�wchl�ge�hqlhghcrornyh�e�xhe�icrloprileop�ciwmhtuhgerxorecieirxhlehvqmidhhkeijjnphlkeileouhcre
ijerxhe�wchlexogeocdeofrxilnrderielhphnyhepivvfcnpornicgeilecirnphgejliverxhe�icrloprileilerievo�heocde
lhqlhghcrornicgkegrorhvhcrgkeileoulhhvhcrgeiceshxomjeijerxhe�wchl�e�xhe�wchlevodelhqmophe�wchl�ge�hqlhghcrornyheore
nrgegimhetngplhrniceileoqqincreocencrhlnvelhqlhghcrornyhencerxhehyhcre�wchl�ge�hqlhghcrornyhengefcoyonmosmh�e�xhe�wchle
gxommeqlivqrmdecirnjderxhe�icrloprilencewlnrncueijeocdegfpxelhqmophvhcreilencrhlnveoqqincrvhcr�

IJ�L�J�̈PR]Sa]JWVJ[©]J�ªS]X«̂J¬PSZSaPZQJ�XXZST]Y]S[̂
IJ�L�LKe�lnileriepivvhcphvhcreijerxheil�eoctefqicewlnrrhcelh�fhgresderxhe�icrloprilkerxhe�wchlegxommejflcngxerierxhe
�icrloprilelhogicosmhehynthcpherxorerxhe�wchlexogevothejncocpnomeollocuhvhcrgeriejfmjnmmerxhe�wchl�geqodvhcre
ismnuornicgefcthlerxhe�icrlopr�e�xhe�icrloprilegxommexoyhecieismnuorniceriepivvhcpherxheil�efcrnmerxhe�wchle
qliynthgegfpxehynthcph�ezjepivvhcphvhcreijerxheil�engethmodhtefcthlerxnge�hprnice}�}��kerxhe�icrlopre�nvhegxommeshe
h�rhcthteoqqliqlnorhmd�

IJ�L�L�e�immiwncuepivvhcphvhcreijerxheil�eoctefqicewlnrrhcelh�fhgresderxhe�icrloprilkerxhe�wchlegxommejflcngxerie
rxhe�icrloprilelhogicosmhehynthcpherxorerxhe�wchlexogevothejncocpnomeollocuhvhcrgeriejfmjnmmerxhe�wchl�geismnuornicge
fcthlerxhe�icrlopreicmdenje¦�§erxhe�wchlejonmgerievo�heqodvhcrgerierxhe�icrloprileogerxhe�icrlopre{ipfvhcrgelh�fnlh®e
¦}§erxhe�icrloprilenthcrnjnhgencewlnrncueoelhogicosmhepicphlcelhuoltncuerxhe�wchl�geosnmnrderievo�heqodvhcrewxhcetfh®e
ile¦�§eoepxocuhencerxheil�evorhlnommdepxocuhgerxhe�icrlopre�fv�ezjerxhe�wchlejonmgerieqliynthegfpxehynthcphkeoge
lh�fnlhtkewnrxncejiflrhhcetodgeijerxhe�icrlopril�gelh�fhgrkerxhe�icrloprilevodenvvhtnorhmdegriqerxheil�eoctkencerxore
hyhcrkegxommecirnjderxhe�wchlerxorerxheil�exogegriqqht�ēiwhyhlkenjerxhelh�fhgrengevotheshpofgheoepxocuhencerxheil�e
vorhlnommdepxocuhgerxhe�icrlopre�fvefcthle¦�§eosiyhkerxhe�icrloprilevodenvvhtnorhmdegriqeicmderxoreqilrniceijerxhe
il�eojjhprhtesderxhepxocuhefcrnmelhogicosmhehynthcphengeqliyntht�ezjerxheil�engegriqqhtefcthlerxnge�hprnice}�}�}kerxhe
�icrlopre�nvhegxommesheh�rhcthteoqqliqlnorhmdeocterxhe�icrlopre�fvegxommeshencplhoghtesderxheovifcreijerxhe
�icrlopril�gelhogicosmhepigrgeijegxfrtiwckethmodeoctegrolr°fqkeqmfgencrhlhgreogeqliynthtencerxhe�icrlopre{ipfvhcrg�

IJ�L�L±Jbjrhlerxhe�wchlejflcngxhgehynthcpheijejncocpnomeollocuhvhcrgefcthlerxnge�hprnice}�}kerxhe�wchlegxommecire
vorhlnommdeyoldegfpxejncocpnomeollocuhvhcrgewnrxifreqlnilecirnpherierxhe�icrlopril�

IJ�L�L²Jxhlherxhe�wchlexogethgnucorhtencjilvornicejflcngxhtefcthlerxnge�hprnice}�}eoge�picjnthcrnomk�erxhe�icrloprile
gxomme�hhqerxhencjilvornicepicjnthcrnomeoctegxommeciretngpmighenrerieocdeirxhleqhlgic�ēiwhyhlkerxhe�icrloprilevode
tngpmighe�picjnthcrnom�encjilvornickeojrhleghyhce¦³§etodg�ecirnpherierxhe�wchlkewxhlhetngpmigflhengelh�fnlhtesdemowke
ncpmftncueoegfsqihcoeileirxhlejilveijepivqfmgildemhuomeqliphggenggfhtesdeoepiflreileuiyhlcvhcromehcrnrdkeilesdepiflre
ileolsnrloril¦g§eilthl�e�xhe�icrloprilevodeomgietngpmighe�picjnthcrnom�encjilvornicerienrgehvqmidhhgkepicgfmrocrgke

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

101



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNLIOPQJRSTUMKVSMTKIPVUWPMXLNKPLYZ[T\LLIOPQJR]IJRSTUMKVSMTKIOPVUWPTMXLKIP̂XTPULLWPMTP_UT̂PMXLPSTUMLUMPT̀PIJSXP
NÙTKYVMNTUPIT[L[\PVUWPLaS[JINbL[\P̀TKPMXLPcKTdLSMPVUWP̂XTPVeKLLPMTPYVNUMVNUPMXLPSTÙNWLUMNV[NM\PT̀PIJSXPNÙTKYVMNTUf

ghijkhlmnopqrstomhrmuhvwpxtywzh{w|}tpwuhonhs~wh��mwp
ghijkj�P�aSLZMP̀TKPZLKYNMIPVUWP̀LLIPMXVMPVKLPMXLPKLIZTUINRN[NM\PT̀PMXLP�TUMKVSMTKPJUWLKPMXLP�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIOP
NUS[JWNUePMXTILPKL�JNKLWPJUWLKPQLSMNTUP�f�f�OPMXLP�̂ ULKPIXV[[PILSJKLPVUWPZV\P̀TKPULSLIIVK\PVZZKTbV[IOPLVILYLUMIOP
VIILIIYLUMIPVUWPSXVKeLIPKL�JNKLWP̀TKPSTUIMKJSMNTUOPJILPTKPTSSJZVUS\PT̀PZLKYVULUMPIMKJSMJKLIPTKP̀TKPZLKYVULUMP
SXVUeLIPNUPLaNIMNUeP̀VSN[NMNLIf

ghijkjiP�XLP�̂ ULKPIXV[[PKLMVNUPVUPVKSXNMLSMP[V̂ J̀[[\P[NSLUILWPMTPZKVSMNSLPVKSXNMLSMJKLOPTKPVUPLUMNM\P[V̂ J̀[[\PZKVSMNSNUeP
VKSXNMLSMJKLOPNUPMXLPdJKNIWNSMNTUP̂XLKLPMXLPcKTdLSMPNIP[TSVMLWfP�XVMPZLKITUPTKPLUMNM\PNIPNWLUMǸNLWPVIPMXLP�KSXNMLSMPNUPMXLP
�eKLLYLUMPVUWPNIPKL̀LKKLWPMTPMXKTJeXTJMPMXLP�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIPVIPǸPINUeJ[VKPNUPUJYRLKf

ghijkjkP�̀PMXLPLYZ[T\YLUMPT̀PMXLP�KSXNMLSMPMLKYNUVMLIOPMXLP�̂ ULKPIXV[[PLYZ[T\PVPIJSSLIITKPMTP̂XTYPMXLP�TUMKVSMTKPXVIP
UTPKLVITUVR[LPTRdLSMNTUPVUWP̂XTILPIMVMJIPJUWLKPMXLP�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIPIXV[[PRLPMXVMPT̀PMXLP�KSXNMLSMf

ghijkj�P�XLP�̂ ULKPIXV[[P̀JKUNIXPIJKbL\IPWLISKNRNUePZX\INSV[PSXVKVSMLKNIMNSIOP[LeV[P[NYNMVMNTUIPVUWPJMN[NM\P[TSVMNTUIP̀TKP
MXLPINMLPT̀PMXLPcKTdLSMOPVUWPVP[LeV[PWLISKNZMNTUPT̀PMXLPINMLfP�XLP�TUMKVSMTKPIXTJ[WPVIIJYLPMXVMPMXLPLaVSMP[TSVMNTUIPT̀PVU\P
JUWLKeKTJUWPTKPXNWWLUPJMN[NMNLIOPZ[JYRNUePVUWPL[LSMKNSV[PKJUIPYV\PRLPITYL̂XVMPWǸ̀LKLUMP̀KTYPMXLP[TSVMNTUPNUWNSVMLWPNUP
MXLPIJKbL\IPTKP�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIPVUWPIXV[[PLaLKSNILPZKTZLKPZKLSVJMNTUIPKL[VMNUePMTPMXLPIV̀LPZLK̀TKYVUSLPT̀PMXLP�TK_fP
�XLP�TUMKVSMTKPIXV[[PSV[[P̀TKPJMN[NM\P[TSVMLIP����PTKPIJSXPUJYRLKPVIPYV\PRLPVZZKTZKNVMLP̀TKPMXLPINMLP[TSVMNTU�PZKNTKPMTP
VU\PWNeeNUePVUWPIXV[[PUTMǸ\PMXLP�̂ ULKPT̀PVU\PSTÙ[NSMIP��PXTJKIPZKNTKPMTPLaSVbVMNTUf

ghijkj�P�XLP�̂ ULKPIXV[[P̀JKUNIXPNÙTKYVMNTUPTKPILKbNSLIPKL�JNKLWPT̀PMXLP�̂ ULKPR\PMXLP�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIP̂NMXP
KLVITUVR[LPZKTYZMULIIfP�XLP�̂ ULKPIXV[[PV[ITP̀JKUNIXPVU\PTMXLKPNÙTKYVMNTUPTKPILKbNSLIPJUWLKPMXLP�̂ ULK�IPSTUMKT[PVUWP
ULSLIIVK\PMTPMXLP�TUMKVSMTK�IPZLK̀TKYVUSLPT̀PMXLP�TK_P̂NMXPKLVITUVR[LPZKTYZMULIIPV̀MLKPKLSLNbNUePMXLP�TUMKVSMTK�IP
K̂NMMLUPKL�JLIMP̀TKPIJSXPNÙTKYVMNTUPTKPILKbNSLIf

ghijkj�P�U[LIIPTMXLK̂NILPZKTbNWLWPNUPMXLP�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIOPMXLP�̂ ULKPIXV[[P̀JKUNIXPMTPMXLP�TUMKVSMTKPTULPSTZ\PT̀P
MXLP�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIP̀TKPZJKZTILIPT̀PYV_NUePKLZKTWJSMNTUIPZJKIJVUMPMTPQLSMNTUP�f�f�f

ghij�h��mwp�zh{t�~shsohvso�hs~wh�op�
�̀PMXLP�TUMKVSMTKP̀VN[IPMTPSTKKLSMP�TK_PMXVMPNIPUTMPNUPVSSTKWVUSLP̂NMXPMXLPKL�JNKLYLUMIPT̀PMXLP�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIPVIP
KL�JNKLWPR\PQLSMNTUP��f�PTKPKLZLVMLW[\P̀VN[IPMTPSVKK\PTJMP�TK_PNUPVSSTKWVUSLP̂NMXPMXLP�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIOPMXLP�̂ ULKP
YV\PNIIJLPVP̂KNMMLUPTKWLKPMTPMXLP�TUMKVSMTKPMTPIMTZPMXLP�TK_OPTKPVU\PZTKMNTUPMXLKLT̀OPJUMN[PMXLPSVJILP̀TKPIJSXPTKWLKPXVIP
RLLUPL[NYNUVMLW�PXT̂LbLKOPMXLPKNeXMPT̀PMXLP�̂ ULKPMTPIMTZPMXLP�TK_PIXV[[PUTMPeNbLPKNILPMTPVPWJM\PTUPMXLPZVKMPT̀PMXLP�̂ ULKP
MTPLaLKSNILPMXNIPKNeXMP̀TKPMXLPRLUL̀NMPT̀PMXLP�TUMKVSMTKPTKPVU\PTMXLKPZLKITUPTKPLUMNM\OPLaSLZMPMTPMXLPLaMLUMPKL�JNKLWPR\P
QLSMNTUP�f�f�f

ghij�h��mwp�zh{t�~shsoh rpp¡h�}shs~wh�op�
�̀PMXLP�TUMKVSMTKPWL̀VJ[MIPTKPULe[LSMIPMTPSVKK\PTJMPMXLP�TK_PNUPVSSTKWVUSLP̂NMXPMXLP�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIPVUWP̀VN[IP
N̂MXNUPVPMLU]WV\PZLKNTWPV̀MLKPKLSLNZMPT̀P̂KNMMLUPUTMNSLP̀KTYPMXLP�̂ ULKPMTPSTYYLUSLPVUWPSTUMNUJLPSTKKLSMNTUPT̀PIJSXP
WL̀NSNLUSNLIP̂NMXPWN[NeLUSLPVUWPZKTYZMULIIOPMXLP�̂ ULKPYV\OP̂NMXTJMPZKLdJWNSLPMTPTMXLKPKLYLWNLIPMXLP�̂ ULKPYV\PXVbLOP
STKKLSMPIJSXPWL̀VJ[MPTKPULe[LSMfPQJSXPVSMNTUPR\PMXLP�̂ ULKPVUWPVYTJUMIPSXVKeLWPMTPMXLP�TUMKVSMTKPVKLPRTMXPIJRdLSMPMTP
ZKNTKPVZZKTbV[PT̀PMXLP�KSXNMLSMPVUWPMXLP�KSXNMLSMPYV\OPZJKIJVUMPMTPQLSMNTUP¢f�f�OP̂NMXXT[WPTKPUJ[[Ǹ\PVP�LKMǸNSVMLP̀TKP
cV\YLUMPNUP̂XT[LPTKPNUPZVKMOPMTPMXLPLaMLUMPKLVITUVR[\PULSLIIVK\PMTPKLNYRJKILPMXLP�̂ ULKP̀TKPMXLPKLVITUVR[LPSTIMPT̀P
STKKLSMNUePIJSXPWL̀NSNLUSNLIOPNUS[JWNUeP�̂ ULK�IPLaZLUILIPVUWPSTYZLUIVMNTUP̀TKPMXLP�KSXNMLSM�IPVWWNMNTUV[PILKbNSLIP
VUWPLaZLUILIPYVWLPULSLIIVK\PR\PIJSXPWL̀VJ[MOPULe[LSMOPTKP̀VN[JKLfP�̀PSJKKLUMPVUWP̀JMJKLPZV\YLUMIPVKLPUTMPIJ̀̀NSNLUMPMTP
STbLKPIJSXPVYTJUMIOPMXLP�TUMKVSMTKPIXV[[PZV\PMXLPWǸ̀LKLUSLPMTPMXLP�̂ ULKfP�̀PMXLP�TUMKVSMTKPWNIVeKLLIP̂NMXPMXLPVSMNTUIP
T̀PMXLP�̂ ULKPTKPMXLP�KSXNMLSMOPTKPMXLPVYTJUMIPS[VNYLWPVIPSTIMIPMTPMXLP�̂ ULKOPMXLP�TUMKVSMTKPYV\P̀N[LPVP�[VNYPZJKIJVUMP
MTP�KMNS[LP��f

£{¤l ¥¦hkhhh �§¤{£ ¤�{
ghkj�ḧwmwpr©
ghkj�j�P�XLP�TUMKVSMTKPNIPMXLPZLKITUPTKPLUMNM\PNWLUMǸNLWPVIPIJSXPNUPMXLP�eKLLYLUMPVUWPNIPKL̀LKKLWPMTPMXKTJeXTJMPMXLP
�TUMKVSMP�TSJYLUMIPVIPǸPINUeJ[VKPNUPUJYRLKfP�XLP�TUMKVSMTKPIXV[[PRLP[V̂ J̀[[\P[NSLUILWOPǸPKL�JNKLWPNUPMXLPdJKNIWNSMNTUP
X̂LKLPMXLPcKTdLSMPNIP[TSVMLWfP�XLP�TUMKVSMTKPIXV[[PWLINeUVMLPNUP̂KNMNUePVPKLZKLILUMVMNbLP̂XTPIXV[[PXVbLPLaZKLIIP

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

102



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNOKPQKMQROSTQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQXOKLQNUYZUWKQKMQI[[Q\IKKUNYQJSTUNQKLOYQVMSKNIWK]Q̂LUQKUN\Q_VMSKNIWKMN_Q\UISYQKLUQ
VMSKNIWKMNQMNQKLUQVMSKNIWKMǸYQIJKLMNOaUTQNUZNUYUSKIKObU]

cdefgfhQ̂LUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QZUNiMN\QKLUQjMNkQOSQIWWMNTISWUQXOKLQKLUQVMSKNIWKQlMWJ\USKY]

cdefgfeQ̂LUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QSMKQRUQNU[OUbUTQMiQOKYQMR[OmIKOMSYQKMQZUNiMN\QKLUQjMNkQOSQIWWMNTISWUQXOKLQKLUQVMSKNIWKQ
lMWJ\USKYQUOKLUNQRPQIWKObOKOUYQMNQTJKOUYQMiQKLUQnNWLOKUWKQOSQKLUQnNWLOKUWK̀YQIT\OSOYKNIKOMSQMiQKLUQVMSKNIWKoQMNQRPQKUYKYoQ
OSYZUWKOMSYQMNQIZZNMbI[YQNUpJONUTQMNQZUNiMN\UTQRPQZUNYMSYQMNQUSKOKOUYQMKLUNQKLISQKLUQVMSKNIWKMN]Q̂LUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[Q
RUQISTQMZUNIKUQIYQISQOSTUZUSTUSKQVMSKNIWKMNQOSQKLUQZUNiMN\ISWUQMiQKLUQjMNkQISTQYLI[[QLIbUQWM\Z[UKUQWMSKNM[QMbUNQISTQ
NUYZMSYORO[OKPQiMNQI[[QZUNYMSSU[QZUNiMN\OSmQKLUQjMNkQOSTU\SOiPOSmQKLUQqXSUNQiNM\QU\Z[MPUUQNU[IKUTQWMYKYQISTQ
UrZUSYUY]Q̂LUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QSMKQRUQIJKLMNOaUTQKMQUSKUNQOSKMQISPQImNUU\USKYQMiQJSTUNKIkOSmYQiMNQMNQMSQRULI[iQMiQKLUQ
qXSUNQMNQKMQIWKQMNQRUQISQImUSKQMNQU\Z[MPUUQMiQKLUQqXSUN]

cdefhdstuvtwdxydzx{|}~�|d�x���t{|�d~{�d�vt��dzx{�v|vx{�d��dzx{|}~�|x}
cdefhfgQ�rUWJKOMSQMiQKLUQVMSKNIWKQRPQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQOYQIQNUZNUYUSKIKOMSQKLIKQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQLIYQbOYOKUTQKLUQYOKUoQRUWM\UQ
iI\O[OINQXOKLQ[MWI[QWMSTOKOMSYQJSTUNQXLOWLQKLUQjMNkQOYQKMQRUQZUNiMN\UToQISTQWMNNU[IKUTQZUNYMSI[QMRYUNbIKOMSYQXOKLQ
NUpJONU\USKYQMiQKLUQVMSKNIWKQlMWJ\USKY]

cdefhfhQ�UWIJYUQKLUQVMSKNIWKQlMWJ\USKYQINUQWM\Z[U\USKINPoQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[oQRUiMNUQYKINKOSmQUIWLQZMNKOMSQMiQKLUQ
jMNkoQWINUiJ[[PQYKJTPQISTQWM\ZINUQKLUQbINOMJYQVMSKNIWKQlMWJ\USKYQNU[IKObUQKMQKLIKQZMNKOMSQMiQKLUQjMNkoQIYQXU[[QIYQKLUQ
OSiMN\IKOMSQiJNSOYLUTQRPQKLUQqXSUNQZJNYJISKQKMQ�UWKOMSQ�]�]�oQYLI[[QKIkUQiOU[TQ\UIYJNU\USKYQMiQISPQUrOYKOSmQ
WMSTOKOMSYQNU[IKUTQKMQKLIKQZMNKOMSQMiQKLUQjMNkoQISTQYLI[[QMRYUNbUQISPQWMSTOKOMSYQIKQKLUQYOKUQIiiUWKOSmQOK]QnSPQUNNMNYoQ
OSWMSYOYKUSWOUYQMNQM\OYYOMSYQTOYWMbUNUTQRPQMNQ\ITUQkSMXSQKMQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QRUQNUZMNKUTQZNM\ZK[PQKMQKLUQ
nNWLOKUWKQISTQKLUQqXSUNQIYQIQNUpJUYKQiMNQOSiMN\IKOMSQOSQYJWLQiMN\QIYQKLUQnNWLOKUWKQ\IPQNUpJONU]Q�KQOYQNUWMmSOaUTQKLIKQ
KLUQVMSKNIWKMǸYQNUbOUXQOYQ\ITUQOSQKLUQVMSKNIWKMǸYQWIZIWOKPQIYQIQWMSKNIWKMNQISTQSMKQIYQIQ[OWUSYUTQTUYOmSQZNMiUYYOMSI[oQ
JS[UYYQMKLUNXOYUQYZUWOiOWI[[PQZNMbOTUTQOSQKLUQVMSKNIWKQlMWJ\USKY]

cdefhfeQ̂LUQVMSKNIWKMNQOYQSMKQNUpJONUTQKMQIYWUNKIOSQKLIKQKLUQVMSKNIWKQlMWJ\USKYQINUQOSQIWWMNTISWUQXOKLQIZZ[OWIR[UQ[IXYoQ
YKIKJKUYoQMNTOSISWUYoQWMTUYoQNJ[UYQISTQNUmJ[IKOMSYoQMNQ[IXiJ[QMNTUNYQMiQZJR[OWQIJKLMNOKOUYoQRJKQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[Q
ZNM\ZK[PQNUZMNKQKMQKLUQnNWLOKUWKQISPQSMSWMSiMN\OKPQTOYWMbUNUTQRPQMNQ\ITUQkSMXSQKMQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQIYQIQNUpJUYKQiMNQ
OSiMN\IKOMSQOSQYJWLQiMN\QIYQKLUQnNWLOKUWKQ\IPQNUpJONU]

cdefhf�Q�iQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQRU[OUbUYQKLIKQITTOKOMSI[QWMYKQMNQKO\UQOYQOSbM[bUTQRUWIJYUQMiQW[INOiOWIKOMSYQMNQOSYKNJWKOMSYQKLUQ
nNWLOKUWKQOYYJUYQOSQNUYZMSYUQKMQKLUQVMSKNIWKMǸYQSMKOWUYQMNQNUpJUYKYQiMNQOSiMN\IKOMSQZJNYJISKQKMQ�UWKOMSYQ�]�]�QMNQ�]�]�oQ
KLUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QYJR\OKQV[IO\YQIYQZNMbOTUTQOSQnNKOW[UQ��]Q�iQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQiIO[YQKMQZUNiMN\QKLUQMR[OmIKOMSYQMiQ
�UWKOMSYQ�]�]�QMNQ�]�]�oQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QZIPQYJWLQWMYKYQISTQTI\ImUYQKMQKLUQqXSUNoQYJR�UWKQKMQ�UWKOMSQ��]�]�oQIYQ
XMJ[TQLIbUQRUUSQIbMOTUTQOiQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQLITQZUNiMN\UTQYJWLQMR[OmIKOMSY]Q�iQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQZUNiMN\YQKLMYUQ
MR[OmIKOMSYoQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QSMKQRUQ[OIR[UQKMQKLUQqXSUNQMNQnNWLOKUWKQiMNQTI\ImUYQNUYJ[KOSmQiNM\QUNNMNYoQ
OSWMSYOYKUSWOUYQMNQM\OYYOMSYQOSQKLUQVMSKNIWKQlMWJ\USKYoQiMNQTOiiUNUSWUYQRUKXUUSQiOU[TQ\UIYJNU\USKYQMNQWMSTOKOMSYQ
ISTQKLUQVMSKNIWKQlMWJ\USKYoQMNQiMNQSMSWMSiMN\OKOUYQMiQKLUQVMSKNIWKQlMWJ\USKYQKMQIZZ[OWIR[UQ[IXYoQYKIKJKUYoQ
MNTOSISWUYoQWMTUYoQNJ[UYQISTQNUmJ[IKOMSYoQISTQ[IXiJ[QMNTUNYQMiQZJR[OWQIJKLMNOKOUY]

cdefed���t}uv�vx{d~{�dzx{�|}��|vx{d�}x�t��}t�
cdefefgQ̂LUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QYJZUNbOYUQISTQTONUWKQKLUQjMNkoQJYOSmQKLUQVMSKNIWKMǸYQRUYKQYkO[[QISTQIKKUSKOMS]Q̂LUQ
VMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QRUQYM[U[PQNUYZMSYOR[UQiMNoQISTQLIbUQWMSKNM[QMbUNoQWMSYKNJWKOMSQ\UISYoQ\UKLMTYoQKUWLSOpJUYoQYUpJUSWUYoQ
ISTQZNMWUTJNUYoQISTQiMNQWMMNTOSIKOSmQI[[QZMNKOMSYQMiQKLUQjMNkQJSTUNQKLUQVMSKNIWK]Q�iQKLUQVMSKNIWKQlMWJ\USKYQmObUQ
YZUWOiOWQOSYKNJWKOMSYQWMSWUNSOSmQWMSYKNJWKOMSQ\UISYoQ\UKLMTYoQKUWLSOpJUYoQYUpJUSWUYoQMNQZNMWUTJNUYoQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQ
YLI[[QUbI[JIKUQKLUQ�MRYOKUQYIiUKPQKLUNUMiQISTQYLI[[QRUQYM[U[PQNUYZMSYOR[UQiMNQKLUQ�MRYOKUQYIiUKPQMiQYJWLQ\UISYoQ\UKLMTYoQ
KUWLSOpJUYoQYUpJUSWUYoQMNQZNMWUTJNUY]Q�iQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQTUKUN\OSUYQKLIKQYJWLQ\UISYoQ\UKLMTYoQKUWLSOpJUYoQYUpJUSWUYQ
MNQZNMWUTJNUYQ\IPQSMKQRUQYIiUoQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QmObUQKO\U[PQSMKOWUQKMQKLUQqXSUNQISTQnNWLOKUWKoQISTQYLI[[QZNMZMYUQ
I[KUNSIKObUQ\UISYoQ\UKLMTYoQKUWLSOpJUYoQYUpJUSWUYoQMNQZNMWUTJNUY]Q̂LUQnNWLOKUWKQYLI[[QUbI[JIKUQKLUQZNMZMYUTQ
I[KUNSIKObUQYM[U[PQiMNQWMSiMN\ISWUQXOKLQKLUQTUYOmSQOSKUSKQiMNQKLUQWM\Z[UKUTQWMSYKNJWKOMS]Q�S[UYYQKLUQnNWLOKUWKQMR�UWKYQ
KMQKLUQVMSKNIWKMǸYQZNMZMYUTQI[KUNSIKObUoQKLUQVMSKNIWKMNQYLI[[QZUNiMN\QKLUQjMNkQJYOSmQOKYQI[KUNSIKObUQ\UISYoQ\UKLMTYoQ
KUWLSOpJUYoQYUpJUSWUYoQMNQZNMWUTJNUY]Q

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

103



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLKLMNOPQNRSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZN[QNVQY\STY][ZQNUSNUPQN̂_TQVǸSVNWXUYNWTaNSb]YY]STYNS̀NUPQNRSTUVWXUSVcYNQb\ZSdQQYeN
fg[XSTUVWXUSVYNWTaNUPQ]VNWhQTUYNWTaNQb\ZSdQQYeNWTaNSUPQVN\QVYSTYNSVNQTU]U]QYN\QV̀SVb]ThN\SVU]STYNS̀NUPQNiSVjǸSVeNSVN
STN[QPWZ̀NS̀eNUPQNRSTUVWXUSVNSVNWTdNS̀N]UYNfg[XSTUVWXUSVYk

IJKLKLKNOPQNRSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZN[QNVQY\STY][ZQǸSVN]TY\QXU]STNS̀N\SVU]STYNS̀NiSVjNWZVQWadN\QV̀SVbQaNUSNaQUQVb]TQNUPWUN
YgXPN\SVU]STYNWVQN]TN\VS\QVNXSTa]U]STNUSNVQXQ]lQNYg[YQmgQTUNiSVjk

IJKLnJopqrsJptuJvpwxsypz{
IJKLnL|N}TZQYYNSUPQV_]YQN\VSl]aQaN]TNUPQNRSTUVWXUN~SXgbQTUYeNUPQNRSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZN\VSl]aQNWTaN\WdǸSVNZW[SVeN
bWUQV]WZYeNQmg]\bQTUeNUSSZYeNXSTYUVgXU]STNQmg]\bQTUNWTaNbWXP]TQVdeN_WUQVeNPQWUeNgU]Z]U]QYeNUVWTY\SVUWU]STeNWTaNSUPQVN
ẀX]Z]U]QYNWTaNYQVl]XQYNTQXQYYWVdǸSVN\VS\QVNQ�QXgU]STNWTaNXSb\ZQU]STNS̀NUPQNiSVjeN_PQUPQVNUQb\SVWVdNSVN\QVbWTQTUN
WTaN_PQUPQVNSVNTSUN]TXSV\SVWUQaNSVNUSN[QN]TXSV\SVWUQaN]TNUPQNiSVjk

IJKLnLMN��XQ\UN]TNUPQNXWYQNS̀Nb]TSVNXPWThQYN]TNUPQNiSVjNW\\VSlQaN[dNUPQN�VXP]UQXUN]TNWXXSVaWTXQN_]UPNfQXU]STN�k��k�N
SVNSVaQVQaN[dNUPQN�VXP]UQXUN]TNWXXSVaWTXQN_]UPNfQXU]STN�k�eNUPQNRSTUVWXUSVNbWdNbWjQNYg[YU]UgU]STYNSTZdN_]UPNUPQN
XSTYQTUNS̀NUPQN̂_TQVeNẀUQVNQlWZgWU]STN[dNUPQN�VXP]UQXUNWTaN]TNWXXSVaWTXQN_]UPNWNRPWThQN̂VaQVNSVNRSTYUVgXU]STN
RPWThQN~]VQXU]lQk

IJKLnLKNOPQNRSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZNQT̀SVXQNYUV]XUNa]YX]\Z]TQNWTaNhSSaNSVaQVNWbSThNUPQNRSTUVWXUSVcYNQb\ZSdQQYNWTaNSUPQVN
\QVYSTYNXWVVd]ThNSgUNUPQNiSVjkNOPQNRSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZNTSUN\QVb]UNQb\ZSdbQTUNS̀NgT̀]UN\QVYSTYNSVN\QVYSTYNTSUN\VS\QVZdN
Yj]ZZQaN]TNUWYjYNWYY]hTQaNUSNUPQbkN�UNTSNXPWVhQNUSNUPQNRSTUVWXUNfgbNSVNRSTUVWXUNO]bQeNUPQN̂_TQVNbWdN\VSl]aQN_V]UUQTN
TSU]XQNVQmg]V]ThNUPQNRSTUVWXUSVNUSNVQbSlQǸVSbNUPQNiSVjNWTaNQb\ZSdQQNSVNSUPQVN\QVYSTNXWVVd]ThNSgUNUPQNRSTUVWXUNUPQN
_̂TQVNXSTY]aQVYNS[�QXU]STW[ZQk

���������gVYgWTUNUSNRPW\UQVN��k��eN�RiN��VQlW]Z]ThNiWhQYNSTN�g[Z]XNiSVjY�NTSN_SVjQVeNZW[SVQVeNSVNbQXPWT]XN
Qb\ZSdQaN]TNUPQN\QV̀SVbWTXQNS̀NWTdN\WVUNS̀NUPQNiSVjNYPWZZN[QN\W]aNZQYYNUPWTNUPQN�\VQlW]Z]ThNVWUQNS̀N_WhQ�N�]TNQ̀̀QXUNWYN
S̀NUPQNaWUQNUPWUN[]aYNWVQNagQ�NWYNaQUQVb]TQaN[dNUPQN�TagYUV]WZNfUWU]YU]X]WTNS̀NUPQN~Q\WVUbQTUNS̀N�W[SVNWTaN�TagYUV]QYkN
OPQNYXPQagZQNS̀NUPQN\VQlW]Z]ThN_WhQNVWUQYǸSVNUPQNZSXWZ]UdNSVNZSXWZ]U]QYN_PQVQNUP]YNXSTUVWXUN_]ZZN[QN\QV̀SVbQaN]YNWUUWXPQaN
USNUPQNQ�QXgUQaNXSTUVWXUNWTaNbWaQN\WVUNS̀NUPQNRSTUVWXUN~SXgbQTUYN[dNUPQNVQ̀QVQTXQNWYNUPSghPǸgZZQYUǸSVUPNPQVQ]TkNOPQN
RSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZN\VSl]aQNUPQNVQY\QXU]lQNfg[XSTUVWXUSVYN_]UPNWNYXPQagZQNS̀NUPQNW\\Z]XW[ZQN\VQlW]Z]ThN_WhQNVWUQYkN
�gQYU]STYNVQZWU]ThNUSN\VQlW]Z]ThN_WhQNaWUWNYPSgZaN[QNWaaVQYYQaNUSNUPQN�TagYUV]WZNfUWU]YU]X]WTNg\STNVQmgQYUk

�W]Z]ThN�aaVQYY�N ~Q\WVUbQTUNS̀N�W[SVN�N�TagYUV]QY
�f�RN~]l]Y]ST
�̂ N�S�N�����
Ẑdb\]WeNi�N�����

OQZQ\PSTQ ������������

������������gVYgWTUNUSN�RiN��k��k���eN]TNWTdNXWYQNWTdNa]Y\gUQNWV]YQYNWYNUSN_PWUNWVQNUPQN\VQlW]Z]ThNVWUQYNSVN_WhQYǸSVN
_SVjNS̀NWNY]b]ZWVNTWUgVQeNWTaNYgXPNa]Y\gUQNXWTTSUN[QNWa�gYUQaN[dNUPQN\WVU]QYN]TN]TUQVQYUeN]TXZga]ThNZW[SVNWTaN
bWTWhQbQTUNVQ\VQYQTUWU]lQYeNUPQNbWUUQVNYPWZZN[QNVQ̀QVVQaǸSVNWV[]UVWU]STNUSNUPQNa]VQXUSVNS̀NUPQN~Q\WVUbQTUNS̀N�W[SVNWTaN
�TagYUV]QYNS̀NUPQNYUWUQeNWTaNP]YNSVNPQVNaQX]Y]STNUPQVQ]TNYPWZZN[QǸ]TWZNWTaNXSTXZgY]lQNWTaN[]Ta]ThNSTNWZZN\WVU]QYN]TlSZlQaN
]TNUPQNa]Y\gUQk

�������� ��OPQNRSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZN]TaQbT]̀dNWTaNPSZaN̂_TQVNPWVbZQYYeN]TXZga]ThNWUUSVTQdcYǸQQYeǸVSbNWTdNl]SZWU]STNSVN
WZZQhQaNl]SZWU]STNS̀NRPW\UQVN��k��eN�RieN[dNUPQNRSTUVWXUSVNSVNfg[XSTUVWXUSVNS̀NWTdNU]QVk

���������NOPQNRSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZNXSb\ZdN_]UPNWZZNW\\Z]XW[ZQN\VSl]Y]STYNS̀NRPW\UQVN��k��eN�RieN�¡SgVYNS̀N�W[SV�

���������N�gVYgWTUNUSNRPW\UQVN��k��eN�RieN�iSVjQVNWTaNRSbbgT]UdN�]hPUNUSN¢TS_N�XUe�NWTaNi�RN���N���NQUNYQmkN
UPQNRSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZN\VSl]aQNUPQN̂_TQVNXS\]QYNS̀NWTaNPWlQNWlW]ZW[ZQNWUNUPQN�VS�QXUNf]UQNWN_SVj\ZWXQNYgVlQdNSVNbWUQV]WZN
YẀQUdNaWUWNYPQQUYǸSVNWZZN�PW£WVaSgY�NXPQb]XWZYNgTaQVNUPQNXSTUVSZNSVNgYQNS̀NUPQNRSTUVWXUSVNSVNWTdNfg[XSTUVWXUSVNS̀NWTdN
U]QVNWUNUPQN�VS�QXUNf]UQkNRSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZNTSUN[QNQTU]UZQaNUSNWTdNWaa]U]STWZNRSTUVWXUNO]bQNSVNXSb\QTYWU]STNWV]Y]ThǸVSbN
]UYǸW]ZgVQNSVNWZZQhQaǸW]ZgVQNUSNXSb\ZdN_]UPNUP]YNYUWUgUQNSVNVQhgZWU]STk

������¤NOPQNRSTUVWXUSVNYPWZZN\QV̀SVbNYgXPNaQUW]ZQaNQ�Wb]TWU]STN]TY\QXU]STNWTaNmgWZ]UdNYgVlQ]ZZWTXQNS̀NUPQNiSVjNWYN_]ZZN
QTYgVQNUPWUNUPQNiSVjN]YN\VShVQYY]ThNWTaN]YN[Q]ThNXSb\ZQUQaN]TNYUV]XUNWXXSVaWTXQN_]UPNUPQNRSTUVWXUN~SXgbQTUeN]TXZga]ThN

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

104



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNIKOILPOOQKOLRSLIJKLTUNVPWXOLNWYLZ[K\PSP\NIPRWO]L̂JKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMML̀KLUKO[RWOP̀MKLSRULKaNbPWNIPRWcLPWO[K\IPRWOL
NWYLdQNMPIeLOQUfKPMMNW\KLRSLNMMLgRUhL[KUSRUbKYL̀eLNWeLZQ̀\RWIUN\IRULRULNWeLIPKU]L̂JKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMMLYKIKUbPWKLVJKWL
PILPOLWK\KOONUeLIRL[KUSRUbcLNWYLOJNMML[KUSRUbLIKOIOLiPWLNYYPIPRWLIRLIJROKLUKdQKOIKYL̀eLIJKLjVWKULRULUKdQPUKYL̀eLIJKL
Z[K\PSP\NIPRWLRULNWeLRIJKUL[URfPOPRWLRSLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIOkLIRLfKUPSeLPIOLPWO[K\IPRWOLRULIRLKWOQUKLIJNILIJKLgRUhLPOL
K̀PWXL\Rb[MKIKYLPWLOIUP\ILN\\RUYNW\KLVPIJLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIO]

lmnopoqm̂JKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMML[MNWLNWYLMNeLRQILNMMLgRUhLPWLNYfNW\KLRSLR[KUNIPRWOLORLNOLIRL\RRUYPWNIKLNMMLgRUhLVPIJRQIL
YKMNeLRULUKfPOPRW]L̂JKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMMLKOIǸMPOJLNWYLbNPWINPWLKaPOIPWXLMRILMPWKOcLUKOIUP\IPRWLNWYL̀KW\JbNUhO]L̂JKL
_RWIUN\IRULOJNMMLKOIǸMPOJLNWYLbNPWINPWLNMMLRIJKULMPWKOcLMKfKMOLNWYL̀KW\JbNUhOLWK\KOONUeLSRULIJKLKaK\QIPRWLRSLgRUhLNWYL
INhKLWK\KOONUeLOIK[OLIRL[UKfKWILIJKPULYPOMR\NIPRWLRSLYKOIUQ\IPRW]

rstuvswxyyxz{|
rstuvu}L̂JKL_RWIUN\IRULVNUUNWIOLIRLIJKLjVWKULNWYL~U\JPIK\ILIJNILbNIKUPNMOLNWYLKdQP[bKWILSQUWPOJKYLQWYKULIJKL_RWIUN\IL
VPMML̀KLRSLXRRYLdQNMPIeLNWYLWKVLQWMKOOLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIOLUKdQPUKLRUL[KUbPILRIJKUVPOK]L̂JKL_RWIUN\IRULSQUIJKUL
VNUUNWIOLIJNILIJKLgRUhLVPMML\RWSRUbLIRLIJKLUKdQPUKbKWIOLRSLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIOLNWYLVPMML̀KLSUKKLSURbLYKSK\IOcL
Ka\K[ILSRULIJROKLPWJKUKWILPWLIJKLdQNMPIeLRSLIJKLgRUhLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIOLUKdQPUKLRUL[KUbPI]LgRUhcLbNIKUPNMOcLRUL
KdQP[bKWILWRIL\RWSRUbPWXLIRLIJKOKLUKdQPUKbKWIOLVPMML̀KL\RWOPYKUKYLYKSK\IPfK]L̂JKL_RWIUN\IRU�OLVNUUNWIeLKa\MQYKOL
UKbKYeLSRULYNbNXKLRULYKSK\IL\NQOKYL̀eLǸQOKcLNMIKUNIPRWOLIRLIJKLgRUhLWRILKaK\QIKYL̀eLIJKL_RWIUN\IRUcLPb[UR[KULRUL
PWOQSSP\PKWILbNPWIKWNW\KcLPb[UR[KULR[KUNIPRWcLRULWRUbNMLVKNULNWYLIKNULNWYLWRUbNMLQONXK]L�SLUKdQPUKYL̀eLIJKL~U\JPIK\IL
RULIJKLjVWKUcLIJKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMMLSQUWPOJLONIPOSN\IRUeLKfPYKW\KLNOLIRLIJKLhPWYLNWYLdQNMPIeLRSLbNIKUPNMOLNWYLKdQP[bKWI]L
ĴKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMMLWRIL̀KLUKMPKfKYLRSLPIOLXKWKUNMLVNUUNWIeLR̀MPXNIPRWOL̀eLIJKLO[K\PSP\NIPRWLRSLNL[NUIP\QMNUL[URYQ\ILPWL
IJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIO]LgNUUNWIPKOLPWLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWILOJNMMLOQUfPfKL\Rb[MKIPRWLN\\K[INW\KLNWYLSPWNML
[NebKWI]

rstuvu�L~MMLbNIKUPNMcLKdQP[bKWIcLRULRIJKULO[K\PNMLVNUUNWIPKOLUKdQPUKYL̀eLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIOLOJNMML̀KLPOOQKYLPWLIJKL
WNbKLRSLIJKLjVWKUcLRULOJNMML̀KLIUNWOSKUǸMKLIRLIJKLjVWKUcLNWYLOJNMML\RbbKW\KLPWLN\\RUYNW\KLVPIJLZK\IPRWL�]�]�]

rstu�s�x���
ĴKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMML[NeLONMKOcL\RWOQbKUcLQOKLNWYLOPbPMNULINaKOLSRULIJKLgRUhL[URfPYKYL̀eLIJKL_RWIUN\IRULIJNILNUKL
MKXNMMeLKWN\IKYLVJKWL̀PYOLNUKLUK\KPfKYLRULWKXRIPNIPRWOL\RW\MQYKYcLVJKIJKULRULWRILeKILKSSK\IPfKLRULbKUKMeLO\JKYQMKYLIRL
XRLPWIRLKSSK\I]

rstu�s��y��{��s�����s��{����sxz�s������xz��s��{�s�x��
rstu�u}L�WMKOOLRIJKUVPOKL[URfPYKYLPWLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIOcLIJKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMMLOK\QUKLNWYL[NeLSRULIJKL̀QPMYPWXL
[KUbPILNOLVKMMLNOLSRULRIJKUL[KUbPIOcLSKKOcLMP\KWOKOcLNWYLPWO[K\IPRWOL̀eLXRfKUWbKWILNXKW\PKOLWK\KOONUeLSRUL[UR[KUL
KaK\QIPRWLNWYL\Rb[MKIPRWLRSLIJKLgRUhLIJNILNUKL\QOIRbNUPMeLOK\QUKYLNSIKULKaK\QIPRWLRSLIJKL_RWIUN\ILNWYLMKXNMMeLUKdQPUKYL
NILIJKLIPbKL̀PYOLNUKLUK\KPfKYLRULWKXRIPNIPRWOL\RW\MQYKY]

rstu�u�L̂JKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMML\Rb[MeLVPIJLNWYLXPfKLWRIP\KOLUKdQPUKYL̀eLN[[MP\ǸMKLMNVOcLOINIQIKOcLRUYPWNW\KOcL\RYKOcL
UQMKOLNWYLUKXQMNIPRWOcLNWYLMNVSQMLRUYKUOLRSL[Q̀MP\LNQIJRUPIPKOLN[[MP\ǸMKLIRL[KUSRUbNW\KLRSLIJKLgRUh]

rstu�utL�SLIJKL_RWIUN\IRUL[KUSRUbOLgRUhLhWRVPWXLPILIRL̀KL\RWIUNUeLIRLN[[MP\ǸMKLMNVOcLOINIQIKOcLRUYPWNW\KOcL\RYKOcLUQMKOL
NWYLUKXQMNIPRWOcLRULMNVSQMLRUYKUOLRSL[Q̀MP\LNQIJRUPIPKOcLIJKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMMLNOOQbKLUKO[RWOP̀PMPIeLSRUL\RUUK\IPRWLRSLOQ\JL
gRUhLNWYLOJNMML̀KNULIJKL\ROIOLMROOKOLNWYLKa[KWOKOLNIIUP̀QIǸMKLIRL\RUUK\IPRW]

rstu�u�s��z��x���s�ys�z�z��zs��z��{��z�
�SLIJKL_RWIUN\IRULKW\RQWIKUOL\RWYPIPRWOLNILIJKLOPIKLIJNILNUKLi�kLOQ̀OQUSN\KLRULRIJKUVPOKL\RW\KNMKYL[JeOP\NML\RWYPIPRWOL
IJNILYPSSKULbNIKUPNMMeLSURbLIJROKLPWYP\NIKYLPWLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIOLRULi�kLQWhWRVWL[JeOP\NML\RWYPIPRWOLRSLNWL
QWQOQNMLWNIQUKLIJNILYPSSKULbNIKUPNMMeLSURbLIJROKLRUYPWNUPMeLSRQWYLIRLKaPOILNWYLXKWKUNMMeLUK\RXWP KYLNOLPWJKUKWILPWL
\RWOIUQ\IPRWLN\IPfPIPKOLRSLIJKL\JNUN\IKUL[URfPYKYLSRULPWLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIOcLIJKL_RWIUN\IRULOJNMML[URb[IMeL[URfPYKL
WRIP\KLIRLIJKLjVWKULNWYLIJKL~U\JPIK\IL̀KSRUKL\RWYPIPRWOLNUKLYPOIQÙKYLNWYLPWLWRLKfKWILMNIKULIJNWL��LYNeOLNSIKULSPUOIL
R̀OKUfNW\KLRSLIJKL\RWYPIPRWO]L̂JKL~U\JPIK\ILVPMML[URb[IMeLPWfKOIPXNIKLOQ\JL\RWYPIPRWOLNWYcLPSLIJKL~U\JPIK\ILYKIKUbPWKOL
IJNILIJKeLYPSSKULbNIKUPNMMeLNWYL\NQOKLNWLPW\UKNOKLRULYK\UKNOKLPWLIJKL_RWIUN\IRU�OL\ROILRScLRULIPbKLUKdQPUKYLSRUcL
[KUSRUbNW\KLRSLNWeL[NUILRSLIJKLgRUhcLVPMMLUK\RbbKWYLIJNILNWLKdQPIǸMKLNY¡QOIbKWIL̀KLbNYKLPWLIJKL_RWIUN\ILZQbLRUL
_RWIUN\IL̂PbKcLRUL̀RIJ]L�SLIJKL~U\JPIK\ILYKIKUbPWKOLIJNILIJKL\RWYPIPRWOLNILIJKLOPIKLNUKLWRILbNIKUPNMMeLYPSSKUKWILSURbLIJROKL
PWYP\NIKYLPWLIJKL_RWIUN\ILTR\QbKWIOLNWYLIJNILWRL\JNWXKLPWLIJKLIKUbOLRSLIJKL_RWIUN\ILPOL¡QOIPSPKYcLIJKL~U\JPIK\ILOJNMML

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

105



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLIMNOPQKMRSOPMTUPVWQUJPXQYPZKQMJX[MKJ\P]MXMRQ̂PMTUPJUX]KQ]_P̀SPURMTUJPIXJMOPYR]IaMU]PMTUPbJ[TRMU[Mc]PYUMUJLRQXMRKQPKJP
JU[KLLUQYXMRKQ\PMTXMPIXJMOPLXOP]adLRMPXPZNXRLPX]PIJKeRYUYPRQPbJMR[NUPfg_

hijklkmP̀S\PRQPMTUP[KaJ]UPKSPMTUPnKJo\PMTUPZKQMJX[MKJPUQ[KaQMUJ]PTaLXQPJULXRQ]PKJPJU[K̂QRpU]PMTUPUqR]MUQ[UPKSPdaJRXNP
LXJoUJ]\PXJ[TXUKNK̂R[XNP]RMU]PKJPWUMNXQY]PQKMPRQYR[XMUYPRQPMTUPZKQMJX[MPrK[aLUQM]\PMTUPZKQMJX[MKJP]TXNNPRLLUYRXMUNOP
]a]IUQYPXQOPKIUJXMRKQ]PMTXMPWKaNYPXSSU[MPMTULPXQYP]TXNNPQKMRSOPMTUPVWQUJPXQYPbJ[TRMU[MPRQPWJRMRQ̂_PsIKQPJU[URIMPKSP
]a[TPQKMR[U\PMTUPVWQUJP]TXNNPIJKLIMNOPMXoUPXQOPX[MRKQPQU[U]]XJOPMKPKdMXRQP̂KeUJQLUQMXNPXaMTKJRpXMRKQPJUtaRJUYPMKP
JU]aLUPMTUPKIUJXMRKQ]_PuTUPZKQMJX[MKJP]TXNNP[KQMRQaUPMKP]a]IUQYP]a[TPKIUJXMRKQ]PaQMRNPKMTUJWR]UPRQ]MJa[MUYPdOPMTUP
VWQUJPdaMP]TXNNP[KQMRQaUPWRMTPXNNPKMTUJPKIUJXMRKQ]PMTXMPYKPQKMPXSSU[MPMTK]UPJULXRQ]PKJPSUXMaJU]_PvUtaU]M]PSKJP
XYwa]MLUQM]PRQPMTUPZKQMJX[MPxaLPXQYPZKQMJX[MPuRLUPXJR]RQ̂PSJKLPMTUPUqR]MUQ[UPKSP]a[TPJULXRQ]PKJPSUXMaJU]PLXOPdUP
LXYUPX]PIJKeRYUYPRQPbJMR[NUPfg_

hijkyiz{{|}~����
hijkyk�PuTUPZKQMJX[MKJP]TXNNPRQ[NaYUPRQPMTUPZKQMJX[MPxaLPXNNPXNNKWXQ[U]P]MXMUYPRQPMTUPZKQMJX[MPrK[aLUQM]_P̀MUL]P
[KeUJUYPdOPXNNKWXQ[U]P]TXNNPdUP]aIINRUYPSKJP]a[TPXLKaQM]PXQYPdOP]a[TPIUJ]KQ]PKJPUQMRMRU]PX]PMTUPVWQUJPLXOPYRJU[M\PdaMP
MTUPZKQMJX[MKJP]TXNNPQKMPdUPJUtaRJUYPMKPULINKOPIUJ]KQ]PKJPUQMRMRU]PMKPWTKLPMTUPZKQMJX[MKJPTX]PJUX]KQXdNUPKdwU[MRKQ_

hijkyk�PsQNU]]PKMTUJWR]UPIJKeRYUYPRQPMTUPZKQMJX[MPrK[aLUQM]\
k� XNNKWXQ[U]P]TXNNP[KeUJPMTUP[K]MPMKPMTUPZKQMJX[MKJPKSPLXMUJRXN]PXQYPUtaRILUQMPYUNReUJUYPXMPMTUP]RMUPXQYPXNNP

JUtaRJUYPMXqU]\PNU]]PXIINR[XdNUPMJXYUPYR][KaQM]�
k� ZKQMJX[MKJc]P[K]M]PSKJPaQNKXYRQ̂PXQYPTXQYNRQ̂PXMPMTUP]RMU\PNXdKJ\PRQ]MXNNXMRKQP[K]M]\PKeUJTUXY\PIJKSRM\PXQYP

KMTUJPUqIUQ]U]P[KQMULINXMUYPSKJP]MXMUYPXNNKWXQ[UPXLKaQM]P]TXNNPdUPRQ[NaYUYPRQPMTUPZKQMJX[MPxaLPdaMP
QKMPRQPMTUPXNNKWXQ[U]�PXQY

kj WTUQUeUJP[K]M]PXJUPLKJUPMTXQPKJPNU]]PMTXQPXNNKWXQ[U]\PMTUPZKQMJX[MPxaLP]TXNNPdUPXYwa]MUYPX[[KJYRQ̂NOP
dOPZTXQ̂UPVJYUJ_PuTUPXLKaQMPKSPMTUPZTXQ̂UPVJYUJP]TXNNPJUSNU[MP�f�PMTUPYRSSUJUQ[UPdUMWUUQPX[MaXNP[K]M]P
XQYPMTUPXNNKWXQ[U]PaQYUJPxU[MRKQP�_�_�_fPXQYP���P[TXQ̂U]PRQPZKQMJX[MKJc]P[K]M]PaQYUJPxU[MRKQP�_�_�_�_

hijkykjP�XMUJRXN]PXQYPUtaRILUQMPaQYUJPXQPXNNKWXQ[UP]TXNNPdUP]UNU[MUYPdOPMTUPVWQUJPWRMTPJUX]KQXdNUPIJKLIMQU]]_

hijk�i��������������
hijk�k�PuTUPZKQMJX[MKJP]TXNNPULINKOPXP[KLIUMUQMP]aIUJRQMUQYUQMPXQYPQU[U]]XJOPX]]R]MXQM]PWTKP]TXNNPdUPRQPXMMUQYXQ[UPXMP
MTUP�JKwU[MP]RMUPYaJRQ̂PIUJSKJLXQ[UPKSPMTUPnKJo_PuTUP]aIUJRQMUQYUQMP]TXNNPJUIJU]UQMPMTUPZKQMJX[MKJ\PXQYP
[KLLaQR[XMRKQ]P̂ReUQPMKPMTUP]aIUJRQMUQYUQMP]TXNNPdUPX]PdRQYRQ̂PX]PRSP̂ReUQPMKPMTUPZKQMJX[MKJ_

hijk�k�iuTUPZKQMJX[MKJ\PX]P]KKQPX]PIJX[MR[XdNUPXSMUJPXWXJYPKSPMTUPZKQMJX[M\P]TXNNPQKMRSOPMTUPVWQUJPXQYPbJ[TRMU[MPKSPMTUP
QXLUPXQYPtaXNRSR[XMRKQ]PKSPXPIJKIK]UYP]aIUJRQMUQYUQM_PnRMTRQPf�PYXO]PKSPJU[URIMPKSPMTUPRQSKJLXMRKQ\PMTUPVWQUJPKJP
bJ[TRMU[MPLXOPQKMRSOPMTUPZKQMJX[MKJ\P]MXMRQ̂PWTUMTUJPMTUPVWQUJPKJPMTUPbJ[TRMU[MP�f�PTX]PJUX]KQXdNUPKdwU[MRKQPMKPMTUP
IJKIK]UYP]aIUJRQMUQYUQMPKJP���PJUtaRJU]PXYYRMRKQXNPMRLUPSKJPJUeRUW_P�XRNaJUPKSPMTUPVWQUJPKJPbJ[TRMU[MPMKPIJKeRYUPQKMR[UP
WRMTRQPMTUPf��YXOPIUJRKYP]TXNNP[KQ]MRMaMUPQKMR[UPKSPQKPJUX]KQXdNUPKdwU[MRKQ_

hijk�kjPuTUPZKQMJX[MKJP]TXNNPQKMPULINKOPXPIJKIK]UYP]aIUJRQMUQYUQMPMKPWTKLPMTUPVWQUJPKJPbJ[TRMU[MPTX]PLXYUP
JUX]KQXdNUPXQYPMRLUNOPKdwU[MRKQ_PuTUPZKQMJX[MKJP]TXNNPQKMP[TXQ̂UPMTUP]aIUJRQMUQYUQMPWRMTKaMPMTUPVWQUJc]P[KQ]UQM\P
WTR[TP]TXNNPQKMPaQJUX]KQXdNOPdUPWRMTTUNYPKJPYUNXOUY_

��������sQNU]]PKMTUJWR]UPX̂JUUYPRQPWJRMRQ̂\PMTUPZKQMJX[MKJP]TXNNPa]UPXQPUqIUJRUQ[UYPxaIUJRQMUQYUQM\PWTKP]TXNNPdUP
IJU]UQMPQKMPNU]]PMTXQPUR̂TMPTKaJ]PIUJPYXO\PSReUPYXO]PXPWUUoPaQNU]]PMTUPwKdPR]P[NK]UYPYKWQPYaUPMKPNÛXNPTKNRYXO\PXP̂UQUJXNP
]MJRoU\P[KQYRMRKQ]PdUOKQYP[KQMJKNPKSPMTUPZKQMJX[MKJ\PKJPMUJLRQXMRKQPKSPMTUPZKQMJX[MPRQPX[[KJYXQ[UPWRMTPMTUPZKQMJX[MP
rK[aLUQM]\PKJP�RQXNPZKLINUMRKQPR]PXMMXRQUY_PuTUPxaIUJRQMUQYUQMP]TXNNPQKMPdUP[TXQ̂UYPWRMTKaMPMTUPXIIJKeXNPKSPMTUP
VWQUJ\PQKJP]TXNNPMTUPxaIUJRQMUQYUQMPdUPULINKOUYPKQPXQOPKMTUJPIJKwU[MPQKMPRQeKNeRQ̂PMTUPVWQUJPYaJRQ̂PMTUP[KaJ]UPKSP
MTUPnKJo_

hijk��i�|���~��|� �i�|��������|�i~��i��¡¢���~{i��£���{��
hijk��k�PuTUPZKQMJX[MKJ\PIJKLIMNOPXSMUJPdURQ̂PXWXJYUYPMTUPZKQMJX[M\P]TXNNP]adLRMPSKJPMTUPVWQUJc]PXQYPbJ[TRMU[Mc]P
RQSKJLXMRKQPXPZKQMJX[MKJc]P[KQ]MJa[MRKQP][TUYaNUPSKJPMTUPnKJo_PuTUP][TUYaNUP]TXNNP[KQMXRQPYUMXRNPXIIJKIJRXMUPSKJPMTUP
�JKwU[M\PRQ[NaYRQ̂P�f�PMTUPYXMUPKSP[KLLUQ[ULUQMPKSPMTUPnKJo\PRQMUJRLP][TUYaNUPLRNU]MKQUPYXMU]\PXQYPMTUPYXMUPKSP
xad]MXQMRXNPZKLINUMRKQ�P���PXQPXIIKJMRKQLUQMPKSPMTUPnKJoPdOP[KQ]MJa[MRKQPX[MReRMO�PXQYP���PMTUPMRLUPJUtaRJUYPSKJP
[KLINUMRKQPKSPUX[TPIKJMRKQPKSPMTUPnKJo_PuTUP][TUYaNUP]TXNNPIJKeRYUPSKJPMTUPKJYUJNOPIJK̂JU]]RKQPKSPMTUPnKJoPMKP

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

106



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNOPJQRSQTRUVSMMRQJORNWINNTROPKNRMPKPOURIXYYNQORXQTNYROVNRZJQOYSIOR[JIXKNQOU\R]VNRUIVNTXMNRUVSMMR̂NRYN_PUNTRSOR
SLLYJLYPSONRPQONY_SMURSURYǸXPYNTR̂aROVNRIJQTPOPJQURJbROVNRcJYdRSQTReYJfNIO\

ghijkljmR]VNRZJQOYSIOJYnRLYJKLOMaRSbONYR̂NPQoRSpSYTNTROVNRZJQOYSIORSQTROVNYNSbONYRSURQNINUUSYaROJRKSPQOSPQRSRIXYYNQOR
UX̂KPOOSMRUIVNTXMNnRUVSMMRUX̂KPORSRUX̂KPOOSMRUIVNTXMNRbJYROVNRqYIVPONIOrURSLLYJ_SM\R]VNRqYIVPONIOrURSLLYJ_SMRUVSMMRQJOR
N̂RXQYNSUJQŜMaRTNMSaNTRJYRpPOVVNMT\R]VNRUX̂KPOOSMRUIVNTXMNRUVSMMRstuR̂NRIJJYTPQSONTRpPOVROVNRZJQOYSIOJYrUR
IJQUOYXIOPJQRUIVNTXMNnRSQTRsvuRSMMJpROVNRqYIVPONIORYNSUJQŜMNROPKNROJRYN_PNpRUX̂KPOOSMU\RwbROVNRZJQOYSIOJYRbSPMUROJR
UX̂KPORSRUX̂KPOOSMRUIVNTXMNnRJYRbSPMUROJRLYJ_PTNRUX̂KPOOSMURPQRSIIJYTSQINRpPOVROVNRSLLYJ_NTRUX̂KPOOSMRUIVNTXMNnROVNR
ZJQOYSIOJYRUVSMMRQJOR̂NRNQOPOMNTROJRSQaRPQIYNSUNRPQRZJQOYSIORxXKRJYRNWONQUPJQRJbRZJQOYSIOR]PKNR̂SUNTRJQROVNROPKNR
YǸXPYNTRbJYRYN_PNpRJbRUX̂KPOOSMU\

ghijkljiR]VNRZJQOYSIOJYRUVSMMRLNYbJYKROVNRcJYdRPQRoNQNYSMRSIIJYTSQINRpPOVROVNRKJUORYNINQORUIVNTXMNURUX̂KPOONTROJROVNR
ypQNYRSQTRqYIVPONIO\

ghijkkhz{|}~����h���h��~����h��h���h����
]VNRZJQOYSIOJYRUVSMMRKSdNRS_SPMŜMNnRSOROVNReYJfNIORUPONnROVNRZJQOYSIOR[JIXKNQOUnRPQIMXTPQoRZVSQoNRyYTNYUnR
ZJQUOYXIOPJQRZVSQoNR[PYNIOP_NUnRSQTRJOVNYR�JTPbPISOPJQUnRPQRoJJTRJYTNYRSQTRKSYdNTRIXYYNQOMaROJRPQTPISONRbPNMTR
IVSQoNURSQTRUNMNIOPJQURKSTNRTXYPQoRIJQUOYXIOPJQnRSQTROVNRSLLYJ_NTRxVJLR[YSpPQoUnReYJTXIOR[SOSnRxSKLMNUnRSQTR
UPKPMSYRYǸXPYNTRUX̂KPOOSMU\R]VNUNRUVSMMR̂NRPQRNMNIOYJQPIRbJYKRJYRLSLNYRIJLanRS_SPMŜMNROJROVNRqYIVPONIORSQTRypQNYnRSQTR
TNMP_NYNTROJROVNRqYIVPONIORbJYRUX̂KPOOSMROJROVNRypQNYRXLJQRIJKLMNOPJQRJbROVNRcJYdRSURSRYNIJYTRJbROVNRcJYdRSUR
IJQUOYXIONT\

ghijkmh��{�hz��������h��{�}|�hz���h���h��~����
ghijkmjkRxVJLR[YSpPQoURSYNRTYSpPQoUnRTPSoYSKUnRUIVNTXMNUnRSQTRJOVNYRTSOSRULNIPSMMaRLYNLSYNTRbJYROVNRcJYdR̂aROVNR
ZJQOYSIOJYRJYRSRxX̂IJQOYSIOJYnRxX̂�UX̂IJQOYSIOJYnRKSQXbSIOXYNYnRUXLLMPNYnRJYRTPUOYP̂XOJYROJRPMMXUOYSONRUJKNRLJYOPJQRJbR
OVNRcJYd\

ghijkmjmReYJTXIOR[SOSRSYNRPMMXUOYSOPJQUnRUOSQTSYTRUIVNTXMNUnRLNYbJYKSQINRIVSYOUnRPQUOYXIOPJQUnR̂YJIVXYNUnRTPSoYSKUnRSQTR
JOVNYRPQbJYKSOPJQRbXYQPUVNTR̂aROVNRZJQOYSIOJYROJRPMMXUOYSONRKSONYPSMURJYRǸXPLKNQORbJYRUJKNRLJYOPJQRJbROVNRcJYd\

ghijkmjiRxSKLMNURSYNRLVaUPISMRNWSKLMNUROVSORPMMXUOYSONRKSONYPSMUnRǸXPLKNQOnRJYRpJYdKSQUVPLnRSQTRNUOŜMPUVRUOSQTSYTUR
âRpVPIVROVNRcJYdRpPMMR̂NRfXToNT\

ghijkmj�RxVJLR[YSpPQoUnReYJTXIOR[SOSnRxSKLMNUnRSQTRUPKPMSYRUX̂KPOOSMURSYNRQJORZJQOYSIOR[JIXKNQOU\R]VNPYRLXYLJUNRPUR
OJRTNKJQUOYSONRVJpROVNRZJQOYSIOJYRLYJLJUNUROJRIJQbJYKROJROVNRPQbJYKSOPJQRoP_NQRSQTROVNRTNUPoQRIJQINLORNWLYNUUNTRPQR
OVNRZJQOYSIOR[JIXKNQOURbJYROVJUNRLJYOPJQURJbROVNRcJYdRbJYRpVPIVROVNRZJQOYSIOR[JIXKNQOURYǸXPYNRUX̂KPOOSMU\R�N_PNpR
âROVNRqYIVPONIORPURUX̂fNIOROJROVNRMPKPOSOPJQURJbRxNIOPJQR�\v\�\RwQbJYKSOPJQSMRUX̂KPOOSMURXLJQRpVPIVROVNRqYIVPONIORPURQJOR
NWLNIONTROJROSdNRYNULJQUP_NRSIOPJQRKSaR̂NRUJRPTNQOPbPNTRPQROVNRZJQOYSIOR[JIXKNQOU\RxX̂KPOOSMUROVSORSYNRQJORYǸXPYNTR̂aR
OVNRZJQOYSIOR[JIXKNQOURKSaR̂NRYNOXYQNTR̂aROVNRqYIVPONIORpPOVJXORSIOPJQ\

ghijkmj�R]VNRZJQOYSIOJYRUVSMMRYN_PNpRbJYRIJKLMPSQINRpPOVROVNRZJQOYSIOR[JIXKNQOUnRSLLYJ_NnRSQTRUX̂KPOROJROVNR
qYIVPONIOnRxVJLR[YSpPQoUnReYJTXIOR[SOSnRxSKLMNUnRSQTRUPKPMSYRUX̂KPOOSMURYǸXPYNTR̂aROVNRZJQOYSIOR[JIXKNQOUnRPQR
SIIJYTSQINRpPOVROVNRUX̂KPOOSMRUIVNTXMNRSLLYJ_NTR̂aROVNRqYIVPONIORJYnRPQROVNRŜUNQINRJbRSQRSLLYJ_NTRUX̂KPOOSMR
UIVNTXMNnRpPOVRYNSUJQŜMNRLYJKLOQNUURSQTRPQRUXIVRUǸXNQINRSUROJRISXUNRQJRTNMSaRPQROVNRcJYdRJYRPQROVNRSIOP_POPNURJbROVNR
ypQNYRJYRJbRxNLSYSONRZJQOYSIOJYU\

ghijkmj�R�aRUX̂KPOOPQoRxVJLR[YSpPQoUnReYJTXIOR[SOSnRxSKLMNUnRSQTRUPKPMSYRUX̂KPOOSMUnROVNRZJQOYSIOJYRYNLYNUNQOUROJR
OVNRypQNYRSQTRqYIVPONIOROVSOROVNRZJQOYSIOJYRVSURstuRYN_PNpNTRSQTRSLLYJ_NTROVNKnRsvuRTNONYKPQNTRSQTR_NYPbPNTR
KSONYPSMUnRbPNMTRKNSUXYNKNQOURSQTRbPNMTRIJQUOYXIOPJQRIYPONYPSRYNMSONTROVNYNOJnRJYRpPMMRTJRUJnRSQTRs�uRIVNIdNTRSQTR
IJJYTPQSONTROVNRPQbJYKSOPJQRIJQOSPQNTRpPOVPQRUXIVRUX̂KPOOSMURpPOVROVNRYǸXPYNKNQOURJbROVNRcJYdRSQTRJbROVNRZJQOYSIOR
[JIXKNQOU\

ghijkmj�R]VNRZJQOYSIOJYRUVSMMRLNYbJYKRQJRLJYOPJQRJbROVNRcJYdRbJYRpVPIVROVNRZJQOYSIOR[JIXKNQOURYǸXPYNRUX̂KPOOSMRSQTR
YN_PNpRJbRxVJLR[YSpPQoUnReYJTXIOR[SOSnRxSKLMNUnRJYRUPKPMSYRUX̂KPOOSMUnRXQOPMROVNRYNULNIOP_NRUX̂KPOOSMRVSUR̂NNQR
SLLYJ_NTR̂aROVNRqYIVPONIO\

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

107



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNLOPQRSPTUVWPXRYZZP[SP\]PŶ ÛV_Y]̂SP̀\aRPYbbVUcS_PXd[e\aaYZXPSf̂SbaPaRYaPaRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP]UaP[SPVSZ\ScS_PUhP
VSXbU]X\[\Z\aiPhUVP_Sc\Ya\U]XPhVUePaRSPVSjd\VSeS]aXPUhPaRSPgU]aVŶaPkÛdeS]aXP[iPaRSPlV̂R\aŜamXPYbbVUcYZPUhPnRUbP
kVỲ\]oXpPqVU_d̂aPkYaYpPnYebZSXpPUVPX\e\ZYVPXd[e\aaYZXpPd]ZSXXPaRSPgU]aVŶaUVPRYXPXbŜ\h\̂YZZiP]Ua\h\S_PaRSPlV̂R\aŜaP
UhPXd̂RP_Sc\Ya\U]PYaPaRSPa\eSPUhPXd[e\aaYZPY]_PrstPaRSPlV̂R\aŜaPRYXpP̀\aRPbV\UVP̀V\aaS]PYbbVUcYZP[iPaRSPù ]SVpPo\cS]P
V̀\aaS]PYbbVUcYZPaUPaRSPXbŜ\h\̂P_Sc\Ya\U]PYXPYPe\]UVP̂RY]oSP\]PaRSPTUVWpPUVPrvtPYPgRY]oSPuV_SVPUVPgU]XaVd̂a\U]P
gRY]oSPk\VŜa\cSPRYXP[SS]P\XXdS_PYdaRUV\w\]oPaRSP_Sc\Ya\U]xPQRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP]UaP[SPVSZ\ScS_PUhPVSXbU]X\[\Z\aiPhUVP
SVVUVXPUVPUe\XX\U]XP\]PnRUbPkVỲ\]oXpPqVU_d̂aPkYaYpPnYebZSXpPUVPX\e\ZYVPXd[e\aaYZXpP[iPaRSPlV̂R\aŜamXPYbbVUcYZP
aRSVSUhx

IJKLMNLyPQRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP_\VŜaPXbŜ\h\̂PYaaS]a\U]pP\]P̀V\a\]oPUVPU]PVSXd[e\aaS_PnRUbPkVỲ\]oXpPqVU_d̂aPkYaYpP
nYebZSXpPUVPX\e\ZYVPXd[e\aaYZXpPaUPVSc\X\U]XPUaRSVPaRY]PaRUXSPVSjdSXaS_P[iPaRSPlV̂R\aŜaPU]PbVSc\UdXPXd[e\aaYZXxPz]PaRSP
Y[XS]̂SPUhPXd̂RP]Ua\̂SpPaRSPlV̂R\aŜamXPYbbVUcYZPUhPYPVSXd[e\XX\U]PXRYZZP]UaPYbbZiPaUPXd̂RPVSc\X\U]Xx

IJKLMNLM{PQRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP]UaP[SPVSjd\VS_PaUPbVUc\_SPbVUhSXX\U]YZPXSVc\̂SXPaRYaP̂U]Xa\adaSPaRSPbVŶa\̂SPUhP
YV̂R\aŜadVSPUVPS]o\]SSV\]oPd]ZSXXPXd̂RPXSVc\̂SXPYVSPXbŜ\h\̂YZZiPVSjd\VS_P[iPaRSPgU]aVŶaPkÛdeS]aXPhUVPYPbUVa\U]PUhP
aRSPTUVWPUVPd]ZSXXPaRSPgU]aVŶaUVP]SS_XPaUPbVUc\_SPXd̂RPXSVc\̂SXP\]PUV_SVPaUP̂YVViPUdaPaRSPgU]aVŶaUVmXPVSXbU]X\[\Z\a\SXP
hUVP̂U]XaVd̂a\U]PeSY]XpPeSaRU_XpPaŜR]\jdSXpPXSjdS]̂SXpPY]_PbVÛS_dVSXxPQRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP]UaP[SPVSjd\VS_PaUP
bVUc\_SPbVUhSXX\U]YZPXSVc\̂SXP\]Pc\UZYa\U]PUhPYbbZ\̂Y[ZSPZỲx

IJKLMNLM{LMPzhPbVUhSXX\U]YZP_SX\o]PXSVc\̂SXPUVP̂SVa\h\̂Ya\U]XP[iPYP_SX\o]PbVUhSXX\U]YZPVSZYaS_PaUPXiXaSeXpPeYaSV\YZXpPUVP
Sjd\beS]aPYVSPXbŜ\h\̂YZZiPVSjd\VS_PUhPaRSPgU]aVŶaUVP[iPaRSPgU]aVŶaPkÛdeS]aXpPaRSPù ]SVPY]_PaRSPlV̂R\aŜaP̀\ZZP
XbŜ\hiPYZZPbSVhUVeY]̂SPY]_P_SX\o]P̂V\aSV\YPaRYaPXd̂RPXSVc\̂SXPedXaPXYa\XhixPQRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP[SPS]a\aZS_PaUPVSZiPdbU]P
aRSPY_SjdŶiPY]_PŶ d̂VŶiPUhPaRSPbSVhUVeY]̂SPY]_P_SX\o]P̂V\aSV\YPbVUc\_S_P\]PaRSPgU]aVŶaPkÛdeS]aXxPQRSP
gU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP̂YdXSPXd̂RPXSVc\̂SXPUVP̂SVa\h\̂Ya\U]XPaUP[SPbVUc\_S_P[iPY]PYbbVUbV\YaSZiPZ\̂S]XS_P_SX\o]PbVUhSXX\U]YZpP
R̀UXSPX\o]YadVSPY]_PXSYZPXRYZZPYbbSYVPU]PYZZP_VỲ\]oXpP̂YẐdZYa\U]XpPXbŜ\h\̂Ya\U]XpP̂SVa\h\̂Ya\U]XpPnRUbPkVỲ\]oXpPY]_P
UaRSVPXd[e\aaYZXPbVSbYVS_P[iPXd̂RPbVUhSXX\U]YZxPnRUbPkVỲ\]oXpPY]_PUaRSVPXd[e\aaYZXPVSZYaS_PaUPaRSPTUVWpP_SX\o]S_PUVP
ŜVa\h\S_P[iPXd̂RPbVUhSXX\U]YZpP\hPbVSbYVS_P[iPUaRSVXpPXRYZZP[SYVPXd̂RPbVUhSXX\U]YZmXP̀V\aaS]PYbbVUcYZP̀RS]PXd[e\aaS_PaUP
aRSPlV̂R\aŜaxPQRSPù ]SVPY]_PaRSPlV̂R\aŜaPXRYZZP[SPS]a\aZS_PaUPVSZiPdbU]PaRSPY_SjdŶiPY]_PŶ d̂VŶiPUhPaRSPXSVc\̂SXpP
ŜVa\h\̂Ya\U]XpPY]_PYbbVUcYZXPbSVhUVeS_PUVPbVUc\_S_P[iPXd̂RP_SX\o]PbVUhSXX\U]YZXpPbVUc\_S_PaRSPù ]SVPY]_PlV̂R\aŜaP
RYcSPXbŜ\h\S_PaUPaRSPgU]aVŶaUVPaRSPbSVhUVeY]̂SPY]_P_SX\o]P̂V\aSV\YPaRYaPXd̂RPXSVc\̂SXPedXaPXYa\XhixPqdVXdY]aPaUPaR\XP
nŜa\U]P|xsvxs}pPaRSPlV̂R\aŜaP̀\ZZPVSc\S̀PY]_PYbbVUcSPUVPaYWSPUaRSVPYbbVUbV\YaSPŶa\U]PU]PXd[e\aaYZXPU]ZiPhUVPaRSP
Z\e\aS_PbdVbUXSPUhP̂RŜW\]oPhUVP̂U]hUVeY]̂SP̀\aRP\]hUVeYa\U]Po\cS]PY]_PaRSP_SX\o]P̂U]̂SbaPSfbVSXXS_P\]PaRSPgU]aVŶaP
kÛdeS]aXx

IJKLMNLM{LNPzhPaRSPgU]aVŶaPkÛdeS]aXPVSjd\VSPaRSPgU]aVŶaUVmXP_SX\o]PbVUhSXX\U]YZPaUP̂SVa\hiPaRYaPaRSPTUVWPRYXP[SS]P
bSVhUVeS_P\]PŶ ÛV_Y]̂SP̀\aRPaRSP_SX\o]P̂V\aSV\YpPaRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZPhdV]\XRPXd̂RP̂SVa\h\̂Ya\U]XPaUPaRSPlV̂R\aŜaPYaPaRSP
a\eSPY]_P\]PaRSPhUVePXbŜ\h\S_P[iPaRSPlV̂R\aŜax

IJKLMKJ~��J��J����
QRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP̂U]h\]SPUbSVYa\U]XPYaPaRSPX\aSPaUPYVSYXPbSVe\aaS_P[iPYbbZ\̂Y[ZSPZỲXpPXaYadaSXpPUV_\]Y]̂SXpP̂U_SXpP
VdZSXPY]_PVSodZYa\U]XpPZỲhdZPUV_SVXPUhPbd[Z\̂PYdaRUV\a\SXpPY]_PaRSPgU]aVŶaPkÛdeS]aXPY]_PXRYZZP]UaPd]VSYXU]Y[ZiP
S]̂de[SVPaRSPX\aSP̀\aRPeYaSV\YZXPUVPSjd\beS]ax

��������PQRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZPbVUc\_SPY]_PbYiPhUVPaSebUVYViPRSYa\]opP̂UcSV\]opPY]_PS]̂ZUXdVSXP]ŜSXXYViPaUPbVUbSVZiP
bVUaŜaPYZZPTUVWPY]_PeYaSV\YZXPYoY\]XaP_YeYoSP[iP_Yeb]SXXPY]_P̂UZ_pPaUP_ViPUdaPaRSPTUVWpPY]_PaUPhŶ\Z\aYaSPaRSP
ÛebZSa\U]PUhPaRSPTUVWx

IJKLM�J�������J���J��������
IJKLM�LMPQRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP[SPVSXbU]X\[ZSPhUVP̂daa\]opPh\aa\]opPUVPbYâR\]oPVSjd\VS_PaUP̂UebZSaSPaRSPTUVWPUVPaUPeYWSP
\aXPbYVaXPh\aPaUoSaRSVPbVUbSVZixPlZZPYVSYXPVSjd\V\]oP̂daa\]opPh\aa\]opPUVPbYâR\]oPXRYZZP[SPVSXaUVS_PaUPaRSP̂U]_\a\U]PSf\Xa\]oP
bV\UVPaUPaRSP̂daa\]opPh\aa\]opPUVPbYâR\]opPd]ZSXXPUaRSV̀\XSPVSjd\VS_P[iPaRSPgU]aVŶaPkÛdeS]aXx

IJKLM�LNPQRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP]UaP_YeYoSPUVPS]_Y]oSVPYPbUVa\U]PUhPaRSPTUVWPUVPhdZZiPUVPbYVa\YZZiP̂UebZSaS_P
Û]XaVd̂a\U]PUhPaRSPù ]SVPUVPnSbYVYaSPgU]aVŶaUVXP[iP̂daa\]opPbYâR\]opPUVPUaRSV̀\XSPYZaSV\]oPXd̂RP̂U]XaVd̂a\U]pPUVP[iP
Sf̂YcYa\U]xPQRSPgU]aVŶaUVPXRYZZP]UaP̂daPUVPUaRSV̀\XSPYZaSVP̂U]XaVd̂a\U]P[iPaRSPù ]SVPUVPYPnSbYVYaSPgU]aVŶaUVPSf̂SbaP
\̀aRP̀V\aaS]P̂U]XS]aPUhPaRSPù ]SVPY]_PUhPaRSPnSbYVYaSPgU]aVŶaUVxPgU]XS]aPXRYZZP]UaP[SPd]VSYXU]Y[ZiP̀\aRRSZ_xPQRSP

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

108



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNOLJMPQRNSSPKJLPTKMUNQJKNVSWPXYLRRJSZ[P\MJ]PLRUP̂XKUMPJMPNP_ÙNMNLUPIJKLMNOLJM[PYLQPOJKQUKLPLJPOTLLYKaPJMP
JLRUMXYQUPNSLUMYKaPLRUPbJMcd

efghijhgPklYQLYKaPQLMTOLTMUQPNKZP\NOYSYLYUQ[PYKOSTZYKaPVTLPKJLPSY]YLUZPLJPVTYSZYKaQ[PTLYSYLYUQ[PLJ̀JaMǸRW[PQLMUULQ[POTMVQ[P
NKZPXNScQ[PLRNLPNMUPZN]NaUZPJMPMU]JmUZPZTUPLJPUlONmNLYJKQPJMPJLRUMPOJKQLMTOLYJKPXJMc[PQRNSSPVUP̀NLORUZ[PMÙNYMUZPJMP
MÙSNOUZPVWPLRUPIJKLMNOLJMPLJPLRUPQNLYQ\NOLYJKPJ\PLRUPnMORYLUOL[PLRUP̂XKUMPJ\PQTORPQLMTOLTMUQPNKZP\NOYSYLYUQ[PNKZP
aJmUMK]UKLNSPNTLRJMYLYUQPRNmYKaPoTMYQZYOLYJKdPpKPLRUPUmUKLPLRUPaJmUMK]UKLNSPNTLRJMYLYUQPMUqTYMUPLRNLPLRUPMÙNYMYKaPNKZP
ǸLORYKaPVUPZJKUPXYLRPLRUYMPJXKPSNVJMPNKZrJMP]NLUMYNSQ[PLRUPIJKLMNOLJMPQRNSSPNVYZUPVWPQTORPMUaTSNLYJKQPNKZPQRNSSP̀NWP\JMP
QTORPbJMcd

stuvwxtyz{|}~}�t��
stuvwxvwP�RUPIJKLMNOLJMPQRNSSPcUÙPLRUP̀MU]YQUQPNKZPQTMMJTKZYKaPNMUNP\MUUP\MJ]PNOOT]TSNLYJKPJ\PXNQLUP]NLUMYNSQPNKZP
MTVVYQRPONTQUZPVWPJ̀UMNLYJKQPTKZUMPLRUPIJKLMNOLdPnLPOJ]̀ SULYJKPJ\PLRUPbJMc[PLRUPIJKLMNOLJMPQRNSSPMU]JmUPXNQLUP
]NLUMYNSQ[PMTVVYQR[PLRUPIJKLMNOLJM�QPLJJSQ[POJKQLMTOLYJKPUqTỲ]UKL[P]NORYKUMW[PNKZPQTM̀STQP]NLUMYNSQP\MJ]PNKZPNVJTLP
LRUP�MJoUOLd

stuvwxv�Pp\PLRUPIJKLMNOLJMP\NYSQPLJPOSUNKPT̀PNQP̀MJmYZUZPYKPLRUPIJKLMNOLP�JOT]UKLQ[PLRUP̂XKUMP]NWPZJPQJPNKZPLRUP̂XKUMP
QRNSSPVUPUKLYLSUZPLJPMUY]VTMQU]UKLP\MJ]PLRUPIJKLMNOLJMd

stuvw�t���{��t��t����
�RUPIJKLMNOLJMPQRNSSP̀MJmYZUPLRUP̂XKUMPNKZPnMORYLUOLPXYLRPNOOUQQPLJPLRUPbJMcPYKP̀MÙNMNLYJKPNKZP̀MJaMUQQPXRUMUmUMP
SJONLUZd

stuvw�t���|z�~{��t�|�{}��t|}�ty����~����
�RUPIJKLMNOLJMPQRNSSP̀NWPNSSPMJWNSLYUQPNKZPSYOUKQUP\UUQdP�RUPIJKLMNOLJMPQRNSSPZU\UKZPQTYLQPJMPOSNY]QP\JMPYK\MYKaU]UKLPJ\P
OJ̀WMYaRLQPNKZP̀NLUKLPMYaRLQPNKZPQRNSSPRJSZPLRUP̂XKUMPNKZPnMORYLUOLPRNM]SUQQP\MJ]PSJQQPJKPNOOJTKLPLRUMUJ\[PVTLPQRNSSP
KJLPVUPMUQ̀JKQYVSUP\JMPQTORPZU\UKQUPJMPSJQQPXRUKPNP̀NMLYOTSNMPZUQYaK[P̀MJOUQQ[PJMP̀MJZTOLPJ\PNP̀NMLYOTSNMP]NKT\NOLTMUMPJMP
]NKT\NOLTMUMQPYQPMUqTYMUZPVWPLRUPIJKLMNOLP�JOT]UKLQ[PJMPXRUMUPLRUPOJ̀WMYaRLPmYJSNLYJKQPNMUPOJKLNYKUZPYKP�MNXYKaQ[P
_̀UOY\YONLYJKQ[PJMPJLRUMPZJOT]UKLQP̀MÙNMUZPVWPLRUP̂XKUMPJMPnMORYLUOLdP�JXUmUM[PY\PLRUPIJKLMNOLJMPRNQPMUNQJKPLJP
VUSYUmUPLRNLPLRUPMUqTYMUZPZUQYaK[P̀MJOUQQPJMP̀MJZTOLPYQPNKPYK\MYKaU]UKLPJ\PNPOJ̀WMYaRLPJMPNP̀NLUKL[PLRUPIJKLMNOLJMPQRNSSP
VUPMUQ̀JKQYVSUP\JMPLRUPSJQQPTKSUQQPLRUPYK\JM]NLYJKPJMPVUSYU\PYQP̀MJ]̀ LSWP\TMKYQRUZPLJPLRUPnMORYLUOLd

stuvw�t�}�{�}~�~�|�~�}
stuvw�vwP�JPLRUP\TSSUQLPUlLUKLP̀UM]YLLUZPVWPSNX[PLRUPIJKLMNOLJMPQRNSSPYKZU]KY\WPNKZPRJSZPRNM]SUQQPLRUP̂XKUM[P
nMORYLUOL[PnMORYLUOL�QPOJKQTSLNKLQ[PNKZPNaUKLQPNKZPU]̀ SJWUUQPJ\PNKWPJ\PLRU]P\MJ]PNKZPNaNYKQLPOSNY]Q[PZN]NaUQ[PSJQQUQ[P
NKZPUl̀UKQUQ[PZYMUOLPJMPYKZYMUOL[PJMPOJKQUqTUKLYNSPYKOSTZYKaPVTLPKJLPSY]YLUZPLJPZUQYaKP̀MJ\UQQYJKP\UUQ[PNLLJMKUWQ�P\UUQ[P
NMYQYKaPJTLPJ\PJMPMUQTSLYKaP\MJ]P̀UM\JM]NKOUPJ\PLRUPbJMc[P̀MJmYZUZPLRNLPQTORPOSNY][PZN]NaU[PSJQQ[PJMPUl̀UKQUPYQP
NLLMYVTLNVSUPLJPVJZYSWPYKoTMW[PQYOcKUQQ[PZYQUNQUPJMPZUNLR[PJMPLJPYKoTMWPLJPJMPZUQLMTOLYJKPJ\PLNKaYVSUP̀MJ̀UMLWP�JLRUMPLRNKP
LRUPbJMcPYLQUS\�[PVTLPJKSWPLJPLRUPUlLUKLPONTQUZPVWPLRUPKUaSYaUKLPNOLQPJMPJ]YQQYJKQPJ\PLRUPIJKLMNOLJM[PNP_TVOJKLMNOLJM[P
NKWJKUPZYMUOLSWPJMPYKZYMUOLSWPU]̀ SJWUZPVWPLRU][PJMPNKWJKUP\JMPXRJQUPNOLQPLRUWP]NWPVUPSYNVSU[PMUaNMZSUQQPJ\PXRULRUMPJMP
KJLPQTORPOSNY][PZN]NaU[PSJQQ[PJMPUl̀UKQUPYQPONTQUZPYKP̀NMLPVWPNP̀NMLWPYKZU]KY\YUZPRUMUTKZUMdP_TORPJVSYaNLYJKPQRNSSPKJLP
VUPOJKQLMTUZPLJPKUaNLU[PNVMYZaU[PJMPMUZTOUPJLRUMPMYaRLQPJMPJVSYaNLYJKQPJ\PYKZU]KYLWPLRNLPXJTSZPJLRUMXYQUPUlYQLPNQPLJPNP
ǸMLWPJMP̀UMQJKPZUQOMYVUZPYKPLRYQP_UOLYJKP�d� d

stuvw�v�PpKPOSNY]QPNaNYKQLPNKWP̀UMQJKPJMPUKLYLWPYKZU]KY\YUZPTKZUMPLRYQP_UOLYJKP�d� PVWPNKPU]̀ SJWUUPJ\PLRUPIJKLMNOLJM[P
NP_TVOJKLMNOLJM[PNKWJKUPZYMUOLSWPJMPYKZYMUOLSWPU]̀ SJWUZPVWPLRU][PJMPNKWJKUP\JMPXRJQUPNOLQPLRUWP]NWPVUPSYNVSU[PLRUP
YKZU]KY\YONLYJKPJVSYaNLYJKPTKZUMP_UOLYJKP�d� d�PQRNSSPKJLPVUPSY]YLUZPVWPNPSY]YLNLYJKPJKPN]JTKLPJMPLẀUPJ\PZN]NaUQ[P
OJ]̀ UKQNLYJK[PJMPVUKU\YLQP̀NWNVSUPVWPJMP\JMPLRUPIJKLMNOLJMPJMPNP_TVOJKLMNOLJMPTKZUMPXJMcUMQ�POJ]̀ UKQNLYJKPNOLQ[P
ZYQNVYSYLWPVUKU\YLPNOLQ[PJMPJLRUMPU]̀ SJWUUPVUKU\YLPNOLQdPn\LUMP]TLTNSPKUaJLYNLYJKPJ\PLRUP̀NMLYUQ[PLRUPIJKLMNOLJMPXNYmUQP
Y]]TKYLWPNQPLJPLRUPpKZU]KYLUUPNKZPLRUYMPOJKQTSLNKLQPTKZUMP�YLSUP¡�P¢IbP£pKZTQLMYNSPpKQTMNKOU£PLJ[PVTLPJKSWPLJ[PLRUP
UlLUKLPKUOUQQNMWPLJPpKZU]KY\WPpKZU]KYLUUdPp¤P��kPÎ ¥�¢nI�̂ ¢P�̂ k_P¥̂ �Pn¦¢kkPbp��P��kPbnp§k¢[Pp�P
¨©_�P�¢̂ §p�kPnPb¢p��k¥P¥̂ �pIkP�̂ P��kP̂b¥k¢P�¢p̂¢P�̂ P��kP�n�kP¤̂ ¢P��kP¢kIkp��P̂¤Pªp�_[P
¢̂P��kPÎ ¥�¢nI�̂ ¢Pbp««PªkP�kk̈ k�P�̂ P�n§kP¥k¦̂ �pn�k�Pn¥�Pbnp§k�P��p_Pp̈¨©¥p�¬d

efghihgf�JPLRUPUlLUKLPJ\PLRUPpKZU]KYLJM�QPKUaSYaUKOU[PLRUPIJKLMNOLJMPXYSSPYKZU]KY\WPpKZU]KYLUUP\JMPLRUPOJKOTMMUKLP
KUaSYaUKOUPJ\PLRUPpKZU]KYLJMdP�RUPIJKLMNOLJMPNaMUUQPLJPVUYKaPNZZUZPVWPLRUPpKZU]KYLUUPNQPNP̀NMLWPLJPNKWPNMVYLMNLYJKPJMP
SYLYaNLYJKPXYLRPLRYMZP̀NMLYUQPYKPXRYORPLRUPpKZU]KYLUUPNSSUaUQPYKZU]KY\YONLYJKPJMPOJKLMYVTLYJKP\MJ]PLRUPpKZU]KYLJM[P

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

109



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLJMNOPQMRSTKNLQNPJOPQMRSTKNMUVTLKMONWKNIJKNLXNSYMUZNLQNIJKNLJMNXLQN[YL\MNIRS\NIJKNLXNSYMUNUIKNWMNTPIWTM]N̂YMN
_LJSQIRSLQNÌQMM\NSLNPJRTaOMNPJNITTN\aWRLJSQIRS\NSYISNPS\N\aWRLJSQIRSLQ\NLXNIJKNSPMQN\SPVaTISMNIJONÌQMMNSLNPJOMUJPXKN
bJOMUJPSMMZNIJON_LJSQIRSLQN\YITTNPJOMUJPXKNIJONYLTONYIQUTM\\NbJOMUJPSMMNXQLUNIJKNTPIWPTPSKNISSQPWaSIWTMNSLNIN
caWRLJSQIRSLQd\NXIPTaQMNSLN\LN\SPVaTISMNIJONÌQMM]N̂LNSYMNMeSMJSNIJKNVLQSPLJNLXNSYP\NPJOMUJPXPRISPLJNVQLfP\PLJNP\N\SQPRgMJN
WKNINRLaQSNLQNIQWPSQISLQNXLQNIJKNQMI\LJZNITTNQMUIPJPJ̀NVQLfP\PLJ\NIN\YITTNQMSIPJNSYMPQNfPSITPSKNIJONMXXMRS]

hijklmnopooohilqkjnlj
ropstouvwvxyz
ropststN̂YMN{QRYPSMRSNP\NSYMNVMQ\LJNLQNMJSPSKNQMSIPJMONWKNSYMN|[JMQNVaQ\aIJSNSLNcMRSPLJN}]~]}NIJONPOMJSPXPMONI\N\aRYNPJN
SYMN{̀QMMUMJS]

ropsts�N�aSPM\ZNQM\VLJ\PWPTPSPM\ZNIJONTPUPSISPLJ\NLXNIaSYLQPSKNLXNSYMN{QRYPSMRSNI\N\MSNXLQSYNPJNSYMN_LJSQIRSN�LRaUMJS\N
\YITTNJLSNWMNQM\SQPRSMOZNULOPXPMOZNLQNMeSMJOMON[PSYLaSN[QPSSMJNRLJ\MJSNLXNSYMN|[JMQZN_LJSQIRSLQZNIJON{QRYPSMRS]N_LJ\MJSN
\YITTNJLSNWMNaJQMI\LJIWTKN[PSYYMTO]

rops�oh���w���xy���wo��o��vol�w�xy��
rops�stN̂YMN{QRYPSMRSN[PTTNVQLfPOMNIOUPJP\SQISPLJNLXNSYMN_LJSQIRSNI\NOM\RQPWMONPJNSYMN_LJSQIRSN�LRaUMJS\NIJON[PTTNWMN
IJN|[JMQd\NQMVQM\MJSISPfMNOaQPJ̀NRLJ\SQaRSPLJNaJSPTNSYMNOISMNSYMN{QRYPSMRSNP\\aM\NSYMNXPJITN_MQSPXPRISMNXLQN�IKUMJSNIJOZN
[PSYNSYMN|[JMQd\NRLJRaQQMJRMZNXQLUNSPUMNSLNSPUMNOaQPJ̀NSYMNLJMNKMIQNVMQPLONXLQNRLQQMRSPLJNLXN�LQgNOM\RQPWMONPJNSYMN
_LJSQIRSN�LRaUMJS\NIJOZN[PSYN|[JMQd\NRLJRaQQMJRMZNOaQPJ̀NSYMNLJMNKMIQNVMQPLONXLQNRLQQMRSPLJNLXN�LQgNOM\RQPWMONPJN
cMRSPLJN�}]}]NN̂YMN{QRYPSMRSN[PTTNYIfMNIaSYLQPSKNSLNIRSNLJNWMYITXNLXNSYMN|[JMQNLJTKNSLNSYMNMeSMJSNVQLfPOMONPJNSYMN
_LJSQIRSN�LRaUMJS\NaJTM\\NLSYMQ[P\MNULOPXPMONPJN[QPSPJ̀NPJNIRRLQOIJRMN[PSYNLSYMQNVQLfP\PLJ\NPJNSYMN_LJSQIRS]

rops�s�N̂YMN{QRYPSMRSN[PTTNfP\PSNSYMN\PSMNISNPJSMQfIT\NIVVQLVQPISMNSLNSYMN\SÌMNLXNRLJ\SQaRSPLJZNLQNI\NLSYMQ[P\MNÌQMMONWKN
SYMN|[JMQNIJONSYMN{QRYPSMRSN���NSLNWMRLUMNXIUPTPIQN[PSYNIJONSLNgMMVNSYMN|[JMQNPJXLQUMONIWLaSNSYMNVQL̀QM\\NIJON
�aITPSKNLXNSYMNVLQSPLJNLXNSYMN�LQgNRLUVTMSMOZN�}�NSLNMJOMIfLQNSLǸaIQONSYMN|[JMQNÌIPJ\SNOMXMRS\NIJONOMXPRPMJRPM\NPJN
SYMN�LQgZNIJON�~�NSLNOMSMQUPJMNPXNSYMN�LQgNP\NWMPJ̀NVMQXLQUMONPJNIRRLQOIJRMN[PSYNSYMN_LJSQIRSN�LRaUMJS\]N�L[MfMQZN
SYMN{QRYPSMRSN[PTTNJLSNWMNQM�aPQMONSLNUIgMNMeYIa\SPfMNLQNRLJSPJaLa\NLJ�\PSMNPJ\VMRSPLJ\NSLNRYMRgNSYMN�aITPSKNLQN�aIJSPSKN
LXNSYMN�LQg]N̂YMN{QRYPSMRSN[PTTNJLSNYIfMNRLJSQLTNLfMQZNRYIQ̀MNLXZNLQNQM\VLJ\PWPTPSKNXLQZNSYMNRLJ\SQaRSPLJNUMIJ\ZN
UMSYLO\ZNSMRYJP�aM\ZN\M�aMJRM\NLQNVQLRMOaQM\ZNLQNXLQNSYMN\IXMSKNVQMRIaSPLJ\NIJONVQL̀QIU\NPJNRLJJMRSPLJN[PSYNSYMN
�LQgZN\PJRMNSYM\MNIQMN\LTMTKNSYMN_LJSQIRSLQd\NQP̀YS\NIJONQM\VLJ\PWPTPSPM\NaJOMQNSYMN_LJSQIRSN�LRaUMJS\]

rops�s�N|JNSYMNWI\P\NLXNSYMN\PSMNfP\PS\ZNSYMN{QRYPSMRSN[PTTNgMMVNSYMN|[JMQNQMI\LJIWTKNPJXLQUMONIWLaSNSYMNVQL̀QM\\NIJON
�aITPSKNLXNSYMNVLQSPLJNLXNSYMN�LQgNRLUVTMSMOZNIJONVQLUVSTKNQMVLQSNSLNSYMN|[JMQN���NgJL[JNOMfPISPLJ\NXQLUNSYMN
_LJSQIRSN�LRaUMJS\ZN�}�NgJL[JNOMfPISPLJ\NXQLUNSYMNUL\SNQMRMJSNRLJ\SQaRSPLJN\RYMOaTMN\aWUPSSMONWKNSYMN_LJSQIRSLQZN
IJON�~�NOMXMRS\NIJONOMXPRPMJRPM\NLW\MQfMONPJNSYMN�LQg]N̂YMN{QRYPSMRSN[PTTNJLSNWMNQM\VLJ\PWTMNXLQNSYMN_LJSQIRSLQd\N
XIPTaQMNSLNVMQXLQUNSYMN�LQgNPJNIRRLQOIJRMN[PSYNSYMNQM�aPQMUMJS\NLXNSYMN_LJSQIRSN�LRaUMJS\]N̂YMN{QRYPSMRSN[PTTNJLSN
YIfMNRLJSQLTNLfMQNLQNRYIQ̀MNLXZNIJON[PTTNJLSNWMNQM\VLJ\PWTMNXLQNIRS\NLQNLUP\\PLJ\NLXZNSYMN_LJSQIRSLQZNcaWRLJSQIRSLQ\ZNLQN
SYMPQNÌMJS\NLQNMUVTLKMM\ZNLQNIJKNLSYMQNVMQ\LJ\NLQNMJSPSPM\NVMQXLQUPJ̀NVLQSPLJ\NLXNSYMN�LQg]

rops�spol����w��y���w�o
ŶMN|[JMQNIJON_LJSQIRSLQN\YITTNPJRTaOMNSYMN{QRYPSMRSNPJNITTNRLUUaJPRISPLJ\NSYISNQMTISMNSLNLQNIXXMRSNSYMN{QRYPSMRSd\N
\MQfPRM\NLQNVQLXM\\PLJITNQM\VLJ\PWPTPSPM\]N̂YMN|[JMQN\YITTNVQLUVSTKNJLSPXKNSYMN{QRYPSMRSNLXNSYMN\aW\SIJRMNLXNIJKNOPQMRSN
RLUUaJPRISPLJ\NWMS[MMJNSYMN|[JMQNIJONSYMN_LJSQIRSLQNLSYMQ[P\MNQMTISPJ̀NSLNSYMN�QL�MRS]N_LUUaJPRISPLJ\NWKNIJON
[PSYNSYMN{QRYPSMRSd\NRLJ\aTSIJS\N\YITTNWMNSYQLàYNSYMN{QRYPSMRS]N_LUUaJPRISPLJ\NWKNIJON[PSYNcaWRLJSQIRSLQ\NIJON
\aVVTPMQ\N\YITTNWMNSYQLàYNSYMN_LJSQIRSLQ]N_LUUaJPRISPLJ\NWKNIJON[PSYNcMVIQISMN_LJSQIRSLQ\N\YITTNWMNSYQLàYNSYMN
|[JMQ]N̂YMN_LJSQIRSN�LRaUMJS\NUIKN\VMRPXKNLSYMQNRLUUaJPRISPLJNVQLSLRLT\]

rops�s�N�I\MONLJNSYMN{QRYPSMRSd\NMfITaISPLJ\NLXNSYMN�LQgNI\NVQLfPOMONPJNcMRSPLJN�]}]}NIJONLJNSYMNOISINRLUVQLUP\PJ̀N
SYMN_LJSQIRSLQd\N{VVTPRISPLJ\NXLQN�IKUMJSZNSYMN{QRYPSMRSN[PTTNQMfPM[NIJONRMQSPXKNSYMNIULaJS\NOaMNSYMN_LJSQIRSLQNIJON
[PTTNP\\aMN_MQSPXPRISM\NXLQN�IKUMJSNPJN\aRYNIULaJS\]

rops�s�N̂YMN{QRYPSMRSNYI\NIaSYLQPSKNSLNQM�MRSN�LQgNSYISNOLM\NJLSNRLJXLQUNSLNSYMN_LJSQIRSN�LRaUMJS\NIJON[PTTNQM�MRSN
\aRYN�LQgN[YMJNPSNP\NLW\MQfMO]N�YMJMfMQNSYMN{QRYPSMRSNRLJ\POMQ\NPSNJMRM\\IQKNLQNIOfP\IWTMZNSYMN{QRYPSMRSN[PTTNYIfMN
IaSYLQPSKNSLNQM�aPQMNPJ\VMRSPLJNLQNSM\SPJ̀NLXNSYMN�LQgNPJNIRRLQOIJRMN[PSYNcMRSPLJ\N�~]�]}NIJON�~]�]~ZN[YMSYMQNLQNJLSNSYMN
�LQgNP\NXIWQPRISMOZNPJ\SITTMONLQNRLUVTMSMO]N�L[MfMQZNJMPSYMQNSYP\NIaSYLQPSKNLXNSYMN{QRYPSMRSNJLQNINOMRP\PLJNUIOMNPJN
L̀LONXIPSYNMPSYMQNSLNMeMQRP\MNLQNJLSNSLNMeMQRP\MN\aRYNIaSYLQPSKN\YITTǸPfMNQP\MNSLNINOaSKNLQNQM\VLJ\PWPTPSKNLXNSYMN{QRYPSMRSN

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

110



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GG

HIJHKLJMINHOPQHIORJSTUQINHOPQHIOVRJVTWWXYLOVRJHKLYOJPZLNHVJIOJL[WXI\LLVRJIOJIHKLOJWLOVINVJIOJLNHYHYLVJWLO]IO[YNZJ
WIOHYINVJI]JHKLĴIO_̀

abcdedfJgKLJhOQKYHLQHJiYXXJOLjYLiJPNkJPWWOIjLRJIOJHP_LJIHKLOJPWWOIWOYPHLJPQHYINJTWINRJHKLJMINHOPQHIOlVJVTU[YHHPXVJVTQKJ
PVJSKIWJmOPiYNZVRJnOIkTQHJmPHPRJPNkJSP[WXLVRJUTHJINX\J]IOJHKLJXY[YHLkJWTOWIVLJI]JQKLQ_YNZJ]IOJQIN]IO[PNQLJiYHKJ
YN]IO[PHYINJZYjLNJPNkJHKLJkLVYZNJQINQLWHJLoWOLVVLkJYNJHKLJMINHOPQHJmIQT[LNHV̀JgKLJhOQKYHLQHlVJPQHYINJiYXXJULJHP_LNJ
YNJPQQIOkPNQLJiYHKJHKLJVTU[YHHPXJVQKLkTXLJPWWOIjLkJU\JHKLJhOQKYHLQHJIORJYNJHKLJPUVLNQLJI]JPNJPWWOIjLkJVTU[YHHPXJ
VQKLkTXLRJiYHKJOLPVINPUXLJWOI[WHNLVVJiKYXLJPXXIiYNZJVT]]YQYLNHJHY[LJYNJHKLJhOQKYHLQHlVJWOI]LVVYINPXJpTkZ[LNHJHIJ
WLO[YHJPkLqTPHLJOLjYLìJrLjYLiJI]JVTQKJVTU[YHHPXVJYVJNIHJQINkTQHLkJ]IOJHKLJWTOWIVLJI]JkLHLO[YNYNZJHKLJPQQTOPQ\JPNkJ
QI[WXLHLNLVVJI]JIHKLOJkLHPYXVJVTQKJPVJkY[LNVYINVJPNkJqTPNHYHYLVRJIOJ]IOJVTUVHPNHYPHYNZJYNVHOTQHYINVJ]IOJYNVHPXXPHYINJIOJ
WLO]IO[PNQLJI]JLqTYW[LNHJIOJV\VHL[VRJPXXJI]JiKYQKJOL[PYNJHKLJOLVWINVYUYXYH\JI]JHKLJMINHOPQHIOJPVJOLqTYOLkJU\JHKLJ
MINHOPQHJmIQT[LNHV̀JgKLJhOQKYHLQHlVJOLjYLiJI]JHKLJMINHOPQHIOlVJVTU[YHHPXVJVKPXXJNIHJOLXYLjLJHKLJMINHOPQHIOJI]JHKLJ
IUXYZPHYINVJTNkLOJSLQHYINVJs̀sRJs̀tRJPNkJs̀uv̀JgKLJhOQKYHLQHlVJOLjYLiJVKPXXJNIHJQINVHYHTHLJPWWOIjPXJI]JVP]LH\J
WOLQPTHYINVJIOJI]JPN\JQINVHOTQHYINJ[LPNVRJ[LHKIkVRJHLQKNYqTLVRJVLqTLNQLVRJIOJWOIQLkTOLV̀JgKLJhOQKYHLQHlVJPWWOIjPXJI]J
PJVWLQY]YQJYHL[JVKPXXJNIHJYNkYQPHLJPWWOIjPXJI]JPNJPVVL[UX\JI]JiKYQKJHKLJYHL[JYVJPJQI[WINLNH̀

abcdedwJgKLJhOQKYHLQHJiYXXJWOLWPOLJMKPNZLJxOkLOVJPNkJMINVHOTQHYINJMKPNZLJmYOLQHYjLVRJPNkJRJiYHKJWOYIOJPWWOIjPXJI]JHKLJ
xiNLORJIOkLOJ[YNIOJQKPNZLVJYNJHKLĴ IO_JPVJWOIjYkLkJYNJSLQHYINJỳz̀JgKLJhOQKYHLQHJiYXXJYNjLVHYZPHLJPNkJ[P_LJ
kLHLO[YNPHYINVJPNkJOLQI[[LNkPHYINVJOLZPOkYNZJQINQLPXLkJPNkJTN_NIiNJQINkYHYINVJPVJWOIjYkLkJYNJSLQHYINJs̀ỳz̀

abcded{JgKLJhOQKYHLQHJiYXXJQINkTQHJYNVWLQHYINVJHIJkLHLO[YNLJHKLJkPHLJIOJkPHLVJI]JSTUVHPNHYPXJMI[WXLHYINJPNkJHKLJkPHLJI]J
]YNPXJQI[WXLHYIN|JYVVTLJMLOHY]YQPHLVJI]JSTUVHPNHYPXJMI[WXLHYINJWTOVTPNHJHIJSLQHYINJ}̀~|JOLQLYjLJPNkJ]IOiPOkJHIJHKLJ
xiNLORJ]IOJHKLJxiNLOlVJOLjYLiJPNkJOLQIOkVRJiOYHHLNJiPOOPNHYLVJPNkJOLXPHLkJkIQT[LNHVJOLqTYOLkJU\JHKLJMINHOPQHJPNkJ
PVVL[UXLkJU\JHKLJMINHOPQHIOJWTOVTPNHJHIJSLQHYINJ}̀u�|JPNkJYVVTLJPJ]YNPXJMLOHY]YQPHLJ]IOJnP\[LNHJWTOVTPNHJHIJ
SLQHYINJ}̀u�̀

abcded��J�]JHKLJxiNLOJPNkJhOQKYHLQHJPZOLLRJHKLJhOQKYHLQHJiYXXJWOIjYkLJINLJIOJ[IOLJnOIpLQHJOLWOLVLNHPHYjLVJHIJPVVYVHJYNJ
QPOO\YNZJITHJHKLJhOQKYHLQHlVJOLVWINVYUYXYHYLVJPHJHKLJVYHL̀JgKLJxiNLOJVKPXXJNIHY]\JHKLJMINHOPQHIOJI]JPN\JQKPNZLJYNJHKLJ
kTHYLVRJOLVWINVYUYXYHYLVJPNkJXY[YHPHYINVJI]JPTHKIOYH\JI]JHKLJnOIpLQHJOLWOLVLNHPHYjLV̀

abcded��JgKLJhOQKYHLQHJiYXXJYNYHYPXX\JYNHLOWOLHJPNkJ[P_LJOLQI[[LNkPHYINVJINJ[PHHLOVJQINQLONYNZJWLO]IO[PNQLJTNkLORJ
PNkJOLqTYOL[LNHVJI]RJHKLJMINHOPQHJmIQT[LNHVJINJiOYHHLNJOLqTLVHJI]JLYHKLOJHKLJxiNLOJIOJMINHOPQHIÒJgKLJhOQKYHLQHlVJ
OLVWINVLJHIJVTQKJOLqTLVHVJiYXXJULJ[PkLJYNJiOYHYNZJiYHKYNJPN\JHY[LJXY[YHVJPZOLLkJTWINJIOJIHKLOiYVLJiYHKJOLPVINPUXLJ
WOI[WHNLVV̀J�]JNIJPZOLL[LNHJYVJ[PkLJQINQLONYNZJHKLJHY[LJiYHKYNJiKYQKJYNHLOWOLHPHYINVJOLqTYOLkJI]JHKLJhOQKYHLQHJVKPXXJ
ULJ]TONYVKLkJYNJQI[WXYPNQLJiYHKJHKYVJSLQHYINJz̀vRJHKLNJkLXP\JVKPXXJNIHJULJOLQIZNY�LkJINJPQQITNHJI]J]PYXTOLJU\JHKLJ
hOQKYHLQHJHIJ]TONYVKJVTQKJYNHLOWOLHPHYINVJTNHYXJutJkP\VJP]HLOJiOYHHLNJOLqTLVHJYVJ[PkLJ]IOJHKL[̀

abcded�eJ�NYHYPXJYNHLOWOLHPHYINVJPNkJOLQI[[LNkPHYINVJI]JHKLJhOQKYHLQHJiYXXJULJQINVYVHLNHJiYHKJHKLJYNHLNHJI]RJPNkJ
OLPVINPUX\JYN]LOPUXLJ]OI[RJHKLJMINHOPQHJmIQT[LNHVJPNkJiYXXJULJYNJiOYHYNZJIOJYNJHKLJ]IO[JI]JkOPiYNZV̀J

abcded��JgKLJhOQKYHLQHlVJkLQYVYINVJINJ[PHHLOVJOLXPHYNZJHIJPLVHKLHYQJL]]LQHJiYXXJULJ]YNPXJY]JQINVYVHLNHJiYHKJHKLJYNHLNHJ
LoWOLVVLkJYNJHKLJMINHOPQHJmIQT[LNHV̀

abcded�cJgKLJhOQKYHLQHJiYXXJOLjYLiJPNkJOLVWINkJHIJOLqTLVHVJ]IOJYN]IO[PHYINJPUITHJHKLJMINHOPQHJmIQT[LNHV̀JgKLJ
hOQKYHLQHlVJOLVWINVLJHIJVTQKJOLqTLVHVJiYXXJULJ[PkLJYNJiOYHYNZJiYHKYNJPN\JHY[LJXY[YHVJPZOLLkJTWINJIOJIHKLOiYVLJiYHKJ
OLPVINPUXLJWOI[WHNLVV̀J�]JPWWOIWOYPHLRJHKLJhOQKYHLQHJiYXXJWOLWPOLJPNkJYVVTLJVTWWXL[LNHPXJmOPiYNZVJPNkJSWLQY]YQPHYINVJ
YNJOLVWINVLJHIJHKLJOLqTLVHVJ]IOJYN]IO[PHYIǸ

�������b�bbb��������������
ab�d�b�����������
ab�d�d�JhJSTUQINHOPQHIOJYVJPJWLOVINJIOJLNHYH\JiKIJKPVJPJkYOLQHJQINHOPQHJiYHKJHKLJMINHOPQHIOJHIJWLO]IO[JPJWIOHYINJI]JHKLJ
^IO_JPHJHKLJVYHL̀JgKLJHLO[J�STUQINHOPQHIO�JYVJOL]LOOLkJHIJHKOITZKITHJHKLJMINHOPQHJmIQT[LNHVJPVJY]JVYNZTXPOJYNJNT[ULOJ
PNkJ[LPNVJPJSTUQINHOPQHIOJIOJPNJPTHKIOY�LkJOLWOLVLNHPHYjLJI]JHKLJSTUQINHOPQHIÒJgKLJHLO[J�STUQINHOPQHIO�JkILVJNIHJ
YNQXTkLJPJSLWPOPHLJMINHOPQHIOJIOJHKLJVTUQINHOPQHIOVJI]JPJSLWPOPHLJMINHOPQHIÒ

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

111



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMLNOPOQRSTURSVWXYZ[VYWZO\UO[O]̂ZUWXOWZÔXY\Y_ÒaWOa[UO[Ob\ẐVYOWZO\Xb\ẐVYOVWXYZ[VYÒ\YaO[OQRSVWXYZ[VYWZOYWO]̂ZcWZdO
[O]WZY\WXOWcOYâOeWZfO[YOYâOU\ŶgOhâOŶZdOiQRSTURSVWXYZ[VYWZiO\UOẐĉZẐbOYWOYaZWRjaWRYOYâOkWXYZ[VYOlWVRd̂XYUO[UO\cO
U\XjRm[ZO\XOXRdŜZO[XbOd̂[XUO[OQRSTURSVWXYZ[VYWZOWZO[XO[RYaWZ\n̂bOẐ]ẐÛXY[Y\ôOWcOYâOQRSTURSVWXYZ[VYWZg

IJKLNJpqrstJuvJwxyzu{|srz|}Jr{tJ~|��sJ�u{|srz|}JvusJ�us|�u{}JuvJ|��J�us�
IJKLNLMOe\Ya\XOŶXO����Ob[ŶUO[cŶZO\UUR[XV̂OWcOYâO�WY\V̂OYWO�ZWV̂ b̂�OYâOkWXYZ[VYWZ�OcRZX\UaO\XÒZ\Y\XjOYWOYâO�̀ X̂ZO
YaZWRjaOYâOPZVa\ŶVYOYâOX[d̂UOWcOYâO]̂ZUWXUOWZÔXY\Y\̂UO]ZW]WÛbOcWZÔ[VaO]Z\XV\][mO]WZY\WXOWcOYâOeWZf�O\XVmRb\XjO
YaWÛÒaWO[ẐOYWOcRZX\UaOd[ŶZ\[mUOWZÔ�R\]d̂XYOc[SZ\V[ŶbOYWO[OU]̂V\[mOb̂U\jXOVWXU\UŶXYÒ\YaOYâOm\UY\XjOẐ�R\ẐbÒ\YaO
YâO�\bgO�cOYâOPjẐ̂ d̂XYO\UÔ�̂VRŶb�OXWO]ZWjẐUUO][_d̂XYÒ\mmOŜVWd̂ObR̂ORXY\mOYa\UO\XcWZd[Y\WXO\UOUWOcRZX\UâbgO�WO
[VY\WXOWZO\X[VY\WXOWcOYâO�̀ X̂ZOWZOPZVa\ŶVYO\XOẐU]WXÛOYWOẐV̂\]YOWcOYâOX[d̂UOWcOYâO]ZW]WÛbOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZUOWcO[X_O
Y\̂ZOUa[mmOVWXUY\YRŶO[]]ZWo[mOWcO[X_OQRSVWXYZ[VYWZOWcO[X_OY\̂ZOWZO\YUO]̂ZcWZd[XV̂gOe\Ya\XO��Ob[_UOWcOẐV̂\]YOWcOYâO
\XcWZd[Y\WX�OYâOPZVa\ŶVYOd[_OXWY\c_OYâOkWXYZ[VYWZÒâYâZOYâO�̀ X̂ZOWZOYâOPZVa\ŶVYO���Oa[UOẐ[UWX[Sm̂OWS�̂VY\WXO
YWO[X_OURVaO]ZW]WÛbO]̂ZUWXOWZÔXY\Y_OWZO���OẐ�R\ẐUO[bb\Y\WX[mOY\d̂OcWZOẐo\̂̀ gO�[\mRẐOWcOYâOPZVa\ŶVYOYWO]ZWo\b̂O
XWY\V̂Ò\Ya\XOYâO��Tb[_O]̂Z\WbOUa[mmOVWXUY\YRŶOXWY\V̂OWcOXWOẐ[UWX[Sm̂OWS�̂VY\WXgO�cOYâO�̀ X̂ZOẐ[UWX[Sm_OVWXVmRb̂bO
Ya[YO[O]ZW]WÛbOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZOa[UOd[ŶZ\[mm_Oc[\m̂bOYWO]̂ZcWZdO\XO[OU[Y\Uc[VYWZ_Od[XWZO�URVaO[UOV[RU\XjO[Od[ŶZ\[mO
b̂m[_�OWXOWX̂OWZOdWẐO]ZW�̂VYUÒ\Ya\XOYaẐ̂O_̂[ZUOWcOYâOS\bb\XjOb[ŶOYa[YO[O]ZW]WÛbOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZO\UOWYâZ̀\ÛOXWYO
ẐU]WXU\Sm̂O[UOb̂c\X̂bO\XOYâOkWXYZ[VYOlWVRd̂XYU�OYâOkWXYZ[VYWZOUa[mmOẐ]m[V̂OYâOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZO[YOXWOVWUYOYWOYâO
�̀ X̂ZgOQRVaO[OẐ]m[V̂d̂XYOUa[mmOXWYOẐm\̂ôOYâOkWXYZ[VYWZOWcO\YUOẐU]WXU\S\m\Y_OcWZOYâO]̂ZcWZd[XV̂OWcOYâOeWZfOWZO
VWd]m\[XV̂Ò\YaO[mmOWcOYâOẐ�R\Ẑd̂XYUOWcOYâOkWXYZ[VYOlWVRd̂XYUÒ\Ya\XOYâOkWXYZ[VYOQRdO[XbOh\d̂g

IJKLNLNOhâOkWXYZ[VYWZOUa[mmOXWYOVWXYZ[VYÒ\YaO[O]ZW]WÛbO]̂ZUWXOWZÔXY\Y_OYWÒaWdOYâO�̀ X̂ZOWZOPZVa\ŶVYOa[UOd[b̂O
Ẑ[UWX[Sm̂O[XbOY\d̂m_OWS�̂VY\WXgOhâOkWXYZ[VYWZOUa[mmOXWYOŜOẐ�R\ẐbOYWOVWXYZ[VYÒ\YaO[X_WX̂OYWÒaWdOYâOkWXYZ[VYWZO
a[UOd[b̂OẐ[UWX[Sm̂OWS�̂VY\WXg

IJKLNL�O�cOYâO�̀ X̂ZOWZOPZVa\ŶVYOa[UOẐ[UWX[Sm̂OWS�̂VY\WXOYWO[O]̂ZUWXOWZÔXY\Y_O]ZW]WÛbOS_OYâOkWXYZ[VYWZ�OYâO
kWXYZ[VYWZOUa[mmO]ZW]WÛO[XWYâZOYWÒaWdOYâO�̀ X̂ZOWZOPZVa\ŶVYOa[UOXWOẐ[UWX[Sm̂OWS�̂VY\WXgO�cOYâO]ZW]WÛbOSRYO
Ẑ�̂VŶbOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZÒ[UOẐ[UWX[Sm_OV[][Sm̂OWcO]̂ZcWZd\XjOYâOeWZf�OYâOkWXYZ[VYOQRdO[XbOkWXYZ[VYOh\d̂OUa[mmOŜO
\XVẐ[ÛbOWZOb̂VẐ[ÛbOS_OYâOb\cĉẐXV̂�O\cO[X_�OWVV[U\WX̂bOS_OURVaOVa[Xĵ�O[XbO[XO[]]ZW]Z\[ŶOka[XĵO�Zb̂ZOUa[mmOŜO
\UUR̂bOŜcWẐOVWdd̂XV̂d̂XYOWcOYâOURSUY\YRŶOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZ�UOeWZfgO�Ẁ ô̂Z�OXWO\XVẐ[ÛO\XOYâOkWXYZ[VYOQRdOWZO
kWXYZ[VYOh\d̂OUa[mmOŜO[mmẀ b̂OcWZOURVaOVa[XĵORXm̂UUOYâOkWXYZ[VYWZOa[UO[VŶbO]ZWd]Ym_O[XbOẐU]WXU\ôm_O\XO
URSd\YY\XjOX[d̂UO[UOẐ�R\Ẑbg

IJKLNL�OhâOkWXYZ[VYWZOUa[mmOXWYOURSUY\YRŶO[OQRSVWXYZ[VYWZ�O]̂ZUWX�OWZÔXY\Y_OcWZOWX̂O]Ẑo\WRUm_OÛm̂VŶbO\cOYâO�̀ X̂ZO
WZOPZVa\ŶVYOd[f̂UOẐ[UWX[Sm̂OWS�̂VY\WXOYWOURVaOURSUY\YRY\WXgOPXOWS�̂VY\WXOYa[YO[O]ZW]WÛbOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZOWcO[X_OY\̂ZO\UO
b\cĉẐXYOcZWdO[X_ÔXY\Y_Om\UŶbÒ\YaOYâOS\bOUa[mmOŜOb̂ d̂̂bO[OẐ[UWX[Sm̂OWS�̂VY\WXgO�cOYâO�̀ X̂ZOẐ[UWX[Sm_OVWXVmRb̂UO
Ya[YO[X_O]WZY\WXOWcOYâOeWZfOURSVWXYZ[VŶbOS_OYâOkWXYZ[VYWZO\UOXWYOŜ\XjO]ZWÛVRŶbO\XO[VVWZb[XV̂Ò\YaOYâOkWXYZ[VYO
lWVRd̂XYU�OYâOkWXYZ[VYWZOUa[mm�OR]WXOẐ�R̂UYOWcOYâO�̀ X̂Z�OẐdWôOYâOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZOWcO[X_OY\̂ZO]̂ZcWZd\XjOURVaO
eWZfgOQRVaO[OẐdWo[mOUa[mmOXWYOẐm\̂ôOYâOkWXYZ[VYWZOWcO\YUOẐU]WXU\S\m\Y_OcWZOYâO]̂ZcWZd[XV̂OWcOYâOeWZfOWZO
VWd]m_\XjÒ\YaO[mmOWcOYâOẐ�R\Ẑd̂XYUOWcOYâOkWXYZ[VYÒ\Ya\XOYâOkWXYZ[VYOQRdO[XbOh\d̂g

IJKL�Jwxyzu{|srz|xr�J���r|�u{}
�_O[]]ZW]Z\[ŶÒZ\YŶXO[jẐ̂ d̂XY�OYâOkWXYZ[VYWZOUa[mmOẐ�R\ẐÔ[VaOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZ�OYWOYâÔ�ŶXYOWcOYâOeWZfOYWOŜO
]̂ZcWZd̂bOS_OYâOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZ�OYWOŜOSWRXbOYWOYâOkWXYZ[VYWZOS_OŶZdUOWcOYâOkWXYZ[VYOlWVRd̂XYU�O[XbOYWO[UURd̂O
YẀ[ZbOYâOkWXYZ[VYWZO[mmOYâOWSm\j[Y\WXUO[XbOẐU]WXU\S\m\Y\̂U�O\XVmRb\XjOYâOẐU]WXU\S\m\Y_OcWZOU[ĉY_OWcOYâO
QRSVWXYZ[VYWZ�UOeWZfOYa[YOYâOkWXYZ[VYWZ�OS_OYâÛOkWXYZ[VYOlWVRd̂XYU�O[UURd̂UOYẀ[ZbOYâO�̀ X̂ZO[XbOPZVa\ŶVYgO
�[VaOURSVWXYZ[VYO[jẐ̂ d̂XYOUa[mmO]ẐÛZôO[XbO]ZWŶVYOYâOZ\jaYUOWcOYâO�̀ X̂ZO[XbOPZVa\ŶVYORXb̂ZOYâOkWXYZ[VYO
lWVRd̂XYUÒ\YaOẐU]̂VYOYWOYâOeWZfOYWOŜO]̂ZcWZd̂bOS_OYâOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZOUWOYa[YOURSVWXYZ[VY\XjOYâẐWcÒ\mmOXWYO
]Ẑ�Rb\V̂OURVaOZ\jaYU�O[XbOUa[mmO[mmẀOYWOYâOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZ�ORXm̂UUOU]̂V\c\V[mm_O]ZWo\b̂bOWYâZ̀\ÛO\XOYâOURSVWXYZ[VYO
[jẐ̂ d̂XY�OYâOŜX̂c\YOWcO[mmOZ\jaYU�OẐd̂b\̂U�O[XbOẐbẐUUO[j[\XUYOYâOkWXYZ[VYWZOYa[YOYâOkWXYZ[VYWZ�OS_OYâOkWXYZ[VYO
lWVRd̂XYU�Oa[UO[j[\XUYOYâO�̀ X̂ZgOeâẐO[]]ZW]Z\[Ŷ�OYâOkWXYZ[VYWZOUa[mmOẐ�R\ẐÔ[VaOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZOYWÔXŶZO\XYWO
U\d\m[ZO[jẐ̂ d̂XYUÒ\YaOQRSTURSVWXYZ[VYWZUgOhâOkWXYZ[VYWZOUa[mmOd[f̂O[o[\m[Sm̂OYWÔ[VaO]ZW]WÛbOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZ�O
]Z\WZOYWOYâÔ�̂VRY\WXOWcOYâOURSVWXYZ[VYO[jẐ̂ d̂XY�OVW]\̂UOWcOYâOkWXYZ[VYOlWVRd̂XYUOYWÒa\VaOYâOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZÒ\mmO
ŜOSWRXb�O[Xb�OR]WXÒZ\YŶXOẐ�R̂UYOWcOYâOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZ�O\b̂XY\c_OYWOYâOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZOŶZdUO[XbOVWXb\Y\WXUOWcOYâO
]ZW]WÛbOURSVWXYZ[VYO[jẐ̂ d̂XYOYa[YOd[_OŜO[YOo[Z\[XV̂Ò\YaOYâOkWXYZ[VYOlWVRd̂XYUgOQRSVWXYZ[VYWZUÒ\mmOU\d\m[Zm_O
d[f̂OVW]\̂UOWcO[]]m\V[Sm̂O]WZY\WXUOWcOURVaObWVRd̂XYUO[o[\m[Sm̂OYWOYâ\ZOẐU]̂VY\ôO]ZW]WÛbOQRSTURSVWXYZ[VYWZUg

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

112



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMLNOPQROSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[OZYQR\][R̂OZ]_RẀaZROXU\OYTTW\aUXVROVQROT_RWXVaTUZOTbOX[[Oc]dYTUVWXYVTWZOTbOXUeOVaRŴO
aUY[]\aUfOXUeOZ]__[aRWZOTbORXW[eO_WTY]WRgRUVOaVRgZOXU\OXUeOhZZafUR\Oc]dYTUVWXYVTWZiOjTOZ]dYTUVWXYVaUfOTbOXUeOTbOVQRO
kTWlOaUOXYYTW\XUYROmaVQOVQROSTUVWXYVOnTY]gRUVZOWR[aR̀RZOSTUVWXYVTWObWTgOaVZOWRZ_TUZada[aVeObTWOVQRO_RWbTWgXUYROTbO
VQROkTWlOaUOXYYTW\XUYROmaVQOVQROSTUVWXYVOnTY]gRUVZOTWObWTgOaVZOWRZ_TUZada[aVeObTWOVQRO_RWbTWgXUYROTbOXUeOTVQRWOTbOaVZO
Td[afXVaTUZO]U\RWOVQROSTUVWXYVOnTY]gRUVZi

IJKLMLoOPQROSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[OdROXZOb][[eOWRZ_TUZad[RObTWOVQROXYVZOTWOTgaZZaTUZOTbOaVZOZ]dYTUVWXYVTWẐOXU\OTbO_RWZTUZORaVQRWO
\aWRYV[eOTWOaU\aWRYV[eORg_[TeR\OdeOVQRĝOXZObTWOVQROXYVZOTWOTgaZZaTUZOTbO_RWZTUZO\aWRYV[eORg_[TeR\OdeOVQROSTUVWXYVTWi

pqrstquvwxywz{wxq|}}yzw~{wxqv�q����vwx���x}
pqrsts�O�XYQOZ]dYTUVWXYVOXfWRRgRUVObTWOXO_TWVaTUOTbOVQROkTWlOaZOXZZafUR\OdeOVQROSTUVWXYVTWOVTOVQRO�mURŴO_WT̀a\R\OVQXV

s� XZZafUgRUVOaZORbbRYVàROTU[eOXbVRWOVRWgaUXVaTUOTbOVQROSTUVWXYVOdeOVQRO�mURWObTWOYX]ZRO_]WZ]XUVOVTO
cRYVaTUO��i�OXU\OTU[eObTWOVQTZROZ]dYTUVWXYVOXfWRRgRUVZOVQXVOVQRO�mURWOXYYR_VZOdeOUTVabeaUfOVQRO
c]dYTUVWXYVTWOXU\OSTUVWXYVTWOaUOmWaVaUf�OXU\

s� XZZafUgRUVOaZOZ]d�RYVOVTOVQRO_WaTWOWafQVZOTbOVQROZ]WRVêOabOXUêOTd[afXVR\O]U\RWOXOdTU\OTWOdTU\ZOWR[XVaUfOVTO
VQROSTUVWXYVi

kQRUOVQRO�mURWOXYYR_VZOVQROXZZafUgRUVOTbOXOZ]dYTUVWXYVOXfWRRgRUV̂OVQRO�mURWOXZZ]gRZO���OX[[OTbOVQROSTUVWXYVTW�ZO
WafQVẐOXU\O���OVQROSTUVWXYVTW�ZOTd[afXVaTUZObTWO_XegRUVObTWOb]V]WRO_RWbTWgXUYR̂O]U\RWOVQROZ]dYTUVWXYV�O_WT̀a\R\O
QTmR̀RŴOVQXVOVQRO�mURWO\TRZOUTVOXZZ]gROXUeOTd[afXVaTUO]U\RWOVQROZ]dYTUVWXYVObTWOXUeOXgT]UVZOTmR\OdeOVQRO
STUVWXYVTWO]U\RWOVQROZ]dYTUVWXYVOXVOVQROVagROTbOVRWgaUXVaTUZOTbOVQROSTUVWXYVOdeOVQRO�mURWOXZO_WT̀a\R\OaUOcRYVaTUO
�i�i�i�i

pqrsts�O�_TUOZ]YQOXZZafUgRUV̂OabOVQROkTWlOQXZOdRRUOZ]Z_RU\R\ObTWOgTWROVQXUO��O\XeẐOVQROc]dYTUVWXYVTW�ZO
YTg_RUZXVaTUOZQX[[OdROR�]aVXd[eOX\�]ZVR\ObTWOaUYWRXZRZOaUOYTZV̂OabOXUêOWRZ][VaUfObWTgOVQROZ]Z_RUZaTUi

pqrsts�O�_TUOXZZafUgRUVOVTOVQRO�mURWO]U\RWOVQaZOcRYVaTUO�i�̂OVQRO�mURWOgXeOb]WVQRWOXZZafUOVQROZ]dYTUVWXYVOVTOXO
Z]YYRZZTWOYTUVWXYVTWOTWOTVQRWORUVaVeiO�bOVQRO�mURWOXZZafUZOVQROZ]dYTUVWXYVOVTOXOZ]YYRZZTWOYTUVWXYVTWOTWOTVQRWORUVaVêOVQRO
�mURWOZQX[[OUR̀RWVQR[RZZOWRgXaUO[RfX[[eOWRZ_TUZad[RObTWOX[[OTbOVQROZ]YYRZZTWOYTUVWXYVTW�ZOTd[afXVaTUZO]U\RWOVQRO
Z]dYTUVWXYViOXẐOXU\OmQRÛOXZZafUR\̂Od]VOVTOUTOfWRXVRWOR�VRUVi

IJKLKJ�����
IJKLKLNOPQROSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[O_WTg_V[eO_XeO�XU\OZRY]WROVQRO\aZYQXWfROTbOXUeO[aRUZOXZZRWVR\Ode�OX[[O_RWZTUZO_WT_RW[eO
b]WUaZQaUfO[XdTŴOR�]a_gRUV̂OgXVRWaX[OTWOTVQRWOaVRgZOaUOYTUURYVaTUOmaVQOVQRO_RWbTWgXUYROTbOVQROkTWlO�aUY[]\aUf̂Od]VO
UTVO[agaVR\OVT̂OXUeOc]dYTUVWXYVTWZOTbOXUeOVaRW�OVQROSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[Ob]WUaZQOVTOVQRO�mURWOZ]YQOWR[RXZRZOTbOY[XagZOXU\O
TVQRWO\TY]gRUVZOXZOgXeOdROWR�]RZVR\OdeOVQRO�mURWObWTgOVagROVTOVagROVTOR̀a\RUYROZ]YQO_XegRUVO�XU\O\aZYQXWfR�i

IJKLKLoOPQROSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[O\RbRU\̂OaU\RgUabêOXU\OQT[\OQXWg[RZZOVQRO�mURWObWTgOXUeO[aRUẐOTWOVQROYTZVZOXZZTYaXVR\O
maVQOVQROWRgT̀X[OVQRWRTbOaUY[]\aUfOX[[OR�_RUZRZOXU\OhWYQaVRYV�ZOXU\OhVVTWURe�ZObRRZi

|� ¡u¢£q¤qqqu¥¦� �§u ¡¥¦q̈©q¥ª¦£�q¥�q̈©q�£«|�| £qu¥¦ �|u ¥��
pq¤s�q¥¬w{�}q�yz®xqxvq«{��v�~quvw}x���xyvwq�w̄qxvq|¬��̄q�{°���x{quvwx���x}
pq¤s�s�OPQROVRWgO±cR_XWXVROSTUVWXYVTW�Z�±OZQX[[OgRXUOTVQRWOYTUVWXYVTWZOWRVXaUR\OdeOVQRO�mURWO]U\RWOZR_XWXVRO
XfWRRgRUVZiOPQRO�mURWOWRZRẀRZOVQROWafQVOVTO_RWbTWgOYTUZVW]YVaTUOTWOT_RWXVaTUZOWR[XVR\OVTOVQRO²WT�RYVOmaVQOVQRO
�mURW�ZOTmUObTWYRẐOXU\OmaVQOcR_XWXVROSTUVWXYVTWZOWRVXaUR\O]U\RWOSTU\aVaTUZOTbOVQROSTUVWXYVOZ]dZVXUVaX[[eOZaga[XWOVTO
VQTZROTbOVQaZOSTUVWXYV̂OaUY[]\aUfOVQTZRO_WT̀aZaTUZOTbOVQROSTU\aVaTUZOTbOVQROSTUVWXYVOWR[XVR\OVTOaUZ]WXUYROXU\OmXàRWOTbO
Z]dWTfXVaTUi

pq¤s�s�OkQRUOZR_XWXVROYTUVWXYVZOXWROXmXW\R\ObTWO\abbRWRUVO_TWVaTUZOTbOVQRO²WT�RYVOTWOTVQRWOYTUZVW]YVaTUOTWOT_RWXVaTUZOTUO
VQROZaVR̂OVQROVRWgO±STUVWXYVTW±OaUOVQROSTUVWXYVOnTY]gRUVZOaUORXYQOYXZROZQX[[OgRXUOVQROSTUVWXYVTWOmQTOR�RY]VRZORXYQO
ZR_XWXVRO�mURW³STUVWXYVTWOhfWRRgRUVi

pq¤s�s�OPQRO�mURWOZQX[[O_WT̀a\RObTWOYTTW\aUXVaTUOTbOVQROXYVàaVaRZOTbOVQRO�mURW�ZOTmUObTWYRZOXU\OTbORXYQOcR_XWXVRO
STUVWXYVTWOmaVQOVQROkTWlOTbOVQROSTUVWXYVTŴOmQTOZQX[[OYTT_RWXVROmaVQOVQRgiOPQROSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[O_XWVaYa_XVROmaVQOXUeO
cR_XWXVROSTUVWXYVTWZOXU\OVQRO�mURWOaUOWR̀aRmaUfOVQRaWOYTUZVW]YVaTUOZYQR\][RZiOPQROSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[OgXlROXUeO
WR̀aZaTUZOVTOaVZOYTUZVW]YVaTUOZYQR\][RO\RRgR\OURYRZZXWeOXbVRWOXO�TaUVOWR̀aRmOXU\Og]V]X[OXfWRRgRUViOPQROYTUZVW]YVaTUO

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

113



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNOLIPIKQOOPRKLSPJTSIRURNRLPRKLPIJKLMNOLIPRTPVLPNILMPVWPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYZP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYIZPQSMPRKLP]̂ SLYPNSRUOP
INVIL_NLSROWPYL̀UILMa

bcdefegPhSOLIIPTRKLŶUILP\YT̀UMLMPUSPRKLPXTSRYQJRPiTJNjLSRIZP̂KLSPRKLP]̂ SLYP\LYkTYjIPJTSIRYNJRUTSPTYPT\LYQRUTSIP
YLOQRLMPRTPRKLPlYTmLJRP̂URKPRKLP]̂ SLYnIPT̂SPkTYJLIPTYP̂URKP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYIZPRKLP]̂ SLYPTYPURIP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYIP
IKQOOPKQ̀LPRKLPIQjLPTVOUoQRUTSIPQSMPYUoKRIPRKQRPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYPKQIPNSMLYPRKLPXTSMURUTSIPTkPRKLPXTSRYQJRZPUSJONMUSoZP
ÛRKTNRPLpJONMUSoPTRKLYIZPRKTILPIRQRLMPUSPqYRUJOLPrZPRKUIPqYRUJOLPsZPQSMPqYRUJOLIPtuZPttZPQSMPtva

bcdewcxyzy{|c}~��������|�z�
bcdewefP�KLPXTSRYQJRTYPIKQOOPQkkTYMPRKLP]̂ SLYPQSMP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYIPYLQITSQVOLPT\\TYRNSURWPkTYPUSRYTMNJRUTSPQSMP
IRTYQoLPTkPRKLUYPjQRLYUQOIPQSMPL_NU\jLSRPQSMP\LYkTYjQSJLPTkPRKLUYPQJRÙURULIZPQSMPIKQOOPJTSSLJRPQSMPJTTYMUSQRLPRKLP
XTSRYQJRTYnIPJTSIRYNJRUTSPQSMPT\LYQRUTSIP̂URKPRKLUYIPQIPYL_NUYLMPVWPRKLPXTSRYQJRPiTJNjLSRIa

bcdewewP�kP\QYRPTkPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYnIP�TY�PML\LSMIPkTYP\YT\LYPLpLJNRUTSPTYPYLINORIPN\TSPJTSIRYNJRUTSPTYPT\LYQRUTSIPVWPRKLP
]̂ SLYPTYPQP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYZPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYPIKQOOZP\YUTYPRTP\YTJLLMUSoP̂URKPRKQRP\TYRUTSPTkPRKLP�TY�ZP\YTj\ROWP
STRUkWPRKLPqYJKURLJRPTkPQ\\QYLSRPMUIJYL\QSJULIPTYPMLkLJRIPUSPRKLPJTSIRYNJRUTSPTYPT\LYQRUTSIPVWPRKLP]̂ SLYPTYP[L\QYQRLP
XTSRYQJRTYPRKQRP̂TNOMPYLSMLYPURPNSINURQVOLPkTYP\YT\LYPLpLJNRUTSPQSMPYLINORIPTkPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYnIP�TY�aP�QUONYLPTkPRKLP
XTSRYQJRTYPRTPSTRUkWPRKLPqYJKURLJRPTkPQ\\QYLSRPMUIJYL\QSJULIPTYPMLkLJRIP\YUTYPRTP\YTJLLMUSoP̂URKPRKLP�TY�PIKQOOP
JTSIRURNRLPQSPQJ�ST̂OLMojLSRPRKQRPRKLP]̂ SLYnIPTYP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYnIPJTj\OLRLMPTYP\QYRUQOOWPJTj\OLRLMP
JTSIRYNJRUTSPUIPkURPQSMP\YT\LYPRTPYLJLÙLPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYnIP�TY�aP�KLPXTSRYQJRTYPIKQOOPSTRPVLPYLI\TSIUVOLPkTYP
MUIJYL\QSJULIPTYPMLkLJRIPUSPRKLPJTSIRYNJRUTSPTYPT\LYQRUTSIPVWPRKLP]̂ SLYPTYP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYPRKQRPQYLPSTRPQ\\QYLSRa

bcdewe�P�KLPXTSRYQJRTYPIKQOOPYLUjVNYILPRKLP]̂ SLYPkTYPJTIRIPRKLP]̂ SLYPUSJNYIPRKQRPQYLP\QWQVOLPRTPQP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYP
VLJQNILPTkPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYnIPMLOQWIZPUj\YT\LYOWPRUjLMPQJRÙURULIPTYPMLkLJRÙLPJTSIRYNJRUTSaP�KLP]̂ SLYPIKQOOPVLP
YLI\TSIUVOLPRTPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYPkTYPJTIRIPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYPUSJNYIPVLJQNILPTkPQP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYnIPMLOQWIZPUj\YT\LYOWP
RUjLMPQJRÙURULIZPMQjQoLPRTPRKLP�TY�PTYPMLkLJRÙLPJTSIRYNJRUTSa

bcdewegP�KLPXTSRYQJRTYPIKQOOP\YTj\ROWPYLjLMWPMQjQoLPRKQRPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYP̂YTSokNOOWPJQNILIPRTPJTj\OLRLMPTYP\QYRUQOOWP
JTj\OLRLMPJTSIRYNJRUTSPTYPRTP\YT\LYRWPTkPRKLP]̂ SLYPTYP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYPQIP\YT̀UMLMPUSP[LJRUTSPtuava�a

bcdewe�P�KLP]̂ SLYPQSMPLQJKP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYPIKQOOPKQ̀LPRKLPIQjLPYLI\TSIUVUOURULIPkTYPJNRRUSoPQSMP\QRJKUSoPQIPQYLP
MLIJYUVLMPkTYPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYPUSP[LJRUTSPrat�a

bcde�c���~���c}���zcz�c�|~{�c��
�kPQPMUI\NRLPQYUILIPQjTSoPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYZP[L\QYQRLPXTSRYQJRTYIZPQSMPRKLP]̂ SLYPQIPRTPRKLPYLI\TSIUVUOURWPNSMLYPRKLUYP
YLI\LJRÙLPJTSRYQJRIPkTYPjQUSRQUSUSoPRKLP\YLjUILIPQSMPINYYTNSMUSoPQYLQPkYLLPkYTjP̂QIRLPjQRLYUQOIPQSMPYNVVUIKZPRKLP
]̂ SLYPjQWPJOLQSPN\PQSMPYLQITSQVOWPQOOTJQRLPRKLPJTIRPQjTSoPRKTILPYLI\TSIUVOLa

�}�����c�ccc������ c��c���c¡�}¢
bc�efc�~�~�{|
bc�efefPXKQSoLIPUSPRKLP�TY�PjQWPVLPQJJTj\OUIKLMPQkRLYPLpLJNRUTSPTkPRKLPXTSRYQJRZPQSMP̂URKTNRPUS̀QOUMQRUSoPRKLP
XTSRYQJRZPVWPXKQSoLP]YMLYZPXTSIRYNJRUTSPXKQSoLPiUYLJRÙLPTYPTYMLYPkTYPQPjUSTYPJKQSoLPUSPRKLP�TY�ZPINVmLJRPRTPRKLP
OUjURQRUTSIPIRQRLMPUSPRKUIPqYRUJOLP£PQSMPLOIL̂KLYLPUSPRKLPXTSRYQJRPiTJNjLSRIa

bc�efewPqPXKQSoLP]YMLYPIKQOOPVLPVQILMPN\TSPQoYLLjLSRPQjTSoPRKLP]̂ SLYZPXTSRYQJRTYZPQSMPqYJKURLJRaPqPXTSIRYNJRUTSP
XKQSoLPiUYLJRÙLPYL_NUYLIPQoYLLjLSRPVWPRKLP]̂ SLYPQSMPqYJKURLJRPQSMPjQWPTYPjQWPSTRPVLPQoYLLMPRTPVWPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYaP
qSPTYMLYPkTYPQPjUSTYPJKQSoLPUSPRKLP�TY�PjQWZPINVmLJRPRTPRKLP]̂ SLYnIP\YUTYPQ\\YT̀QOZPVLPUIINLMPVWPRKLPqYJKURLJRPQOTSLa

bc�efe�PXKQSoLIPUSPRKLP�TY�PIKQOOPVLP\LYkTYjLMPNSMLYPQ\\OUJQVOLP\YT̀UIUTSIPTkPRKLPXTSRYQJRPiTJNjLSRIaP�KLP
XTSRYQJRTYPIKQOOP\YTJLLMP\YTj\ROWP̂URKPJKQSoLIPUSPRKLP�TY�ZPNSOLIIPTRKLŶUILP\YT̀UMLMPUSPRKLPXKQSoLP]YMLYZP
XTSIRYNJRUTSPXKQSoLPiUYLJRÙLZPTYPTYMLYPkTYPQPjUSTYPJKQSoLPUSPRKLP�TY�a

¤¥¦§̈§©PqPªjUSTYPJKQSoLPUSP�TY�ªPYLkLYLSJLMPQVT̀LPUIPQPJKQSoLP̂KUJKPKQIPSTPMUYLJRPTYPUSMUYLJRPLkkLJRPN\TSPRKLP
XTSRYQJRP[NjPTYPXTSRYQJRP�UjLPQSMPUSJONMLIZPVNRPUIPSTRPOUjURLMPRTZPQPIN\\OLjLSRQOPUSIRYNJRUTSa

¤¥¦§̈§«P¬LkTYLPLkkLJRNQRUSoPQPJKQSoLPUSPRKLP�TY�ZPRKLP]̂ SLYPjQWPYL_NLIRPRKLPXTSRYQJRTYPRTP\YT\TILPRKLPQjTNSRPTkP
JKQSoLPUSPRKLPXTSRYQJRP[NjZPUkPQSWZPQSMPRKLPQjTNSRPTkPJKQSoLPUSPRKLPXTSRYQJRP�UjLZPUkPQSWZPQYUIUSoPkYTjPQP\YT\TILMP

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

114



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNOPLOQJNORSTUVOWJNOXSLQTKIQSTOYJKZZOY[\]PQOPQYOTNŶSLYP_NÔTŜSYKZÒPQJPLOLSO]STNOQJKLOabOcKdYOKLcOYJKZZOPLOMSScO
eKPQJOŶNIPedOQJNOIS]̂ SLNLQYOKLcOK]S[LQYO\dÒJPIJOQJNOXSLQTKIQOf[]OKLcgSTOWP]NÒS[ZcOIJKLMNVOheOQJNOXSLQTKIQSTO
eKPZYOQSOTNŶSLcÒPQJPLOQJPYOQP]NiOQJNOj̀ LNTO]KdÒPQJJSZcOYS]NOSTOKZZOSeOKOkTSMTNYYP_NÔKd]NLQOSQJNT̀PYNOc[NO[LQPZOQJNO
QKTcdÔTŜSYKZOPYOTNINP_NcVOWJNOj̀ LNTO]KdOKIIN̂QOQJNÔTŜSYKZOPLÒTPQPLMiOPLÒJPIJOIKYNOPQÒPZZO\NOPLIZ[cNcOPLOKOe[Q[TNO
IJKLMNOSTcNTiOKLcOIJKLMNOPLOQJNORSTUO]KdOIS]]NLINOP]]NcPKQNZdVOWJNOj̀ LNTO]KdOTNlNIQOQJNÔTŜSYKZiOPLÒJPIJOIKYNO
QJNOj̀ LNTO]KdONPQJNTOLSQONeeNIQ[KQNOQJNOIJKLMNOSTO]KdOSTcNTOQJNOIJKLMNOQJTS[MJOKOXSLYQT[IQPSLOXJKLMNOmPTNIQP_NOSTO
f[̂ ẐN]NLQKZOhLYQT[IQPSLOSTOKLOSTcNTOeSTOKO]PLSTOIJKLMNOPLORSTUV

nopqrqsOWJNOXSLQTKIQSTOYJKZZiOQJTS[MJS[QOQJNOIS[TYNOSeOQJNÒSTUiO]KPLQKPLOKOYNQOSeOKYt\[PZQOISLYQT[IQPSLÔZKLYÒJPIJOKTNO
[̂cKQNcOKQOZNKYQO]SLQJZdOQSOPcNLQPedOKZZOIJKLMNYOPLOQJNOISLYQT[IQPSLÒSTUVOWJNÔZKLYOYJKZZOPLIST̂STKQNOKZZOIJKLMNYiO
PLIZ[cPLMO\[QOLSQOZP]PQNcOQSOIJKLMNYOSTOY[\YQPQ[QPSLYOc[NOQSOXJKLMNOjTcNTYiOXSLYQT[IQPSLOXJKLMNOmPTNIQP_NYiOSTcNTYOeSTO
]PLSTOIJKLMNYOPLÒSTUiOKLcOcNQKPZYOIZKTPePNcO\dOTNu[NYQYOeSTOPLeST]KQPSLiOY[̂ ẐN]NLQKZOPLYQT[IQPSLYOSTO\KYNcO[̂SLO
K̂ T̂S_NcOYJŜOcTK̀PLMYVOWJNÔZKLYOYJKZZO\NO]KPLQKPLNcOKQOQJNOYPQNOKLcOYJKZZO\NOK_KPZK\ZNOc[TPLMOLST]KZÒSTUPLMOJS[TYO
eSTOTN_PǸO\dOQJNOvTIJPQNIQOKLcOj̀ LNTVOvOIŜdOSeOQJNOePLKZOKYt\[PZQÔZKLYOYJKZZO\NO_NTPePNcO\dOQJNOvTIJPQNIQOKYOIS]̂ ZNQNO
KLcOKII[TKQNOKLcOQ̀SOTN̂TSc[IP\ZNOIŜPNYOYJKZZO\NÔTS_PcNcOQSOQJNOj̀ LNTOeSZZS̀PLMOIS]̂ ZNQPSLOSeOQJNORSTUOKLcÔTPSTO
QSOQJNOTNZNKYNOSeOwPLKZOkKd]NLQV

xyz{|y}~����y������
xyz{|{�OvOXJKLMNOjTcNTOPYOKÒTPQQNLOPLYQT[]NLQÔTN̂KTNcO\dOQJNOvTIJPQNIQOKLcOYPMLNcO\dOQJNOj̀ LNTiOXSLQTKIQSTiOKLcO
vTIJPQNIQOYQKQPLMOQJNPTOKMTNN]NLQO[̂SLOKZZOSeOQJNOeSZZS̀PLM�

{� WJNOIJKLMNOPLOQJNORSTU�
{| WJNOK]S[LQOSeOQJNOKcl[YQ]NLQiOPeOKLdiOPLOQJNOXSLQTKIQOf[]�OKLc
{� WJNON�QNLQOSeOQJNOKcl[YQ]NLQiOPeOKLdiOPLOQJNOXSLQTKIQOWP]NV

xyz{�y}�����������y}~����y����������
xyz{�{�OvOXSLYQT[IQPSLOXJKLMNOmPTNIQP_NOPYOKÒTPQQNLOSTcNTÔTN̂KTNcO\dOQJNOvTIJPQNIQOKLcOYPMLNcO\dOQJNOj̀ LNTOKLcO
vTIJPQNIQiOcPTNIQPLMOKOIJKLMNOPLOQJNORSTUÔTPSTOQSOKMTNN]NLQOSLOKcl[YQ]NLQiOPeOKLdiOPLOQJNOXSLQTKIQOf[]OSTOXSLQTKIQO
WP]NiOSTO\SQJVOWJNOj̀ LNTO]KdO\dOXSLYQT[IQPSLOXJKLMNOmPTNIQP_NiÒPQJS[QOPL_KZPcKQPLMOQJNOXSLQTKIQiOSTcNTOIJKLMNYOPLO
QJNORSTUÒPQJPLOQJNOMNLNTKZOYIŜNOSeOQJNOXSLQTKIQOISLYPYQPLMOSeOKccPQPSLYiOcNZNQPSLYiOSTOSQJNTOTN_PYPSLYiOQJNOXSLQTKIQO
f[]OKLcOXSLQTKIQOWP]NO\NPLMOKcl[YQNcOKIISTcPLMZdV

xyz{�{|OvOXSLYQT[IQPSLOXJKLMNOmPTNIQP_NOYJKZZO\NO[YNcOPLOQJNOK\YNLINOSeOQSQKZOKMTNN]NLQOSLOQJNOQNT]YOSeOKOXJKLMNO
jTcNTV

xyz{�{�OheOQJNOXSLYQT[IQPSLOXJKLMNOmPTNIQP_NÔTS_PcNYOeSTOKLOKcl[YQ]NLQOQSOQJNOXSLQTKIQOf[]iOQJNOKcl[YQ]NLQOYJKZZO\NO
\KYNcOSLOSLNOSeOQJNOeSZZS̀PLMO]NQJScY�

{� �[Q[KZOKIIN̂QKLINOSeOKOZ[]̂ OY[]ÔTŜNTZdOPQN]P�NcOKLcOY[̂ ŜTQNcO\dOY[eePIPNLQOY[\YQKLQPKQPLMOcKQKOQSO
N̂T]PQON_KZ[KQPSL�

{| �LPQÔTPINYOYQKQNcOPLOQJNOXSLQTKIQOmSI[]NLQYOSTOY[\YNu[NLQZdOKMTNNcO[̂SL�
{� XSYQOQSO\NOcNQNT]PLNcOPLOKO]KLLNTOKMTNNcO[̂SLO\dOQJNÔKTQPNYOKLcOKO][Q[KZZdOKIIN̂QK\ZNOeP�NcOSTO

N̂TINLQKMNOeNN�OST
{� vYÔTS_PcNcOPLOfNIQPSLO�V�VbV

xyz{�{�OheOQJNOXSLQTKIQSTOcSNYOLSQOTNŶSLcÔTS]̂ QZdOSTOcPYKMTNNYÒPQJOQJNO]NQJScOeSTOKcl[YQ]NLQOPLOQJNOXSLQTKIQOf[]iO
QJNOvTIJPQNIQOYJKZZOcNQNT]PLNOQJNOKcl[YQ]NLQOSLOQJNO\KYPYOSeOTNKYSLK\ZNON�̂NLcPQ[TNYOKLcOYK_PLMYOSeOQJSYNÔNTeST]PLMO
QJNORSTUOKQQTP\[QK\ZNOQSOQJNOIJKLMNiOPLIZ[cPLMiOPLOIKYNOSeOKLOPLITNKYNOPLOQJNOXSLQTKIQOf[]iOKLOK]S[LQOeSTOS_NTJNKcOKLcO
T̂SePQOKYOYNQOeSTQJOPLOQJNOvMTNN]NLQiOSTOPeOLSOY[IJOK]S[LQOPYOYNQOeSTQJOPLOQJNOvMTNN]NLQiOKOTNKYSLK\ZNOK]S[LQVOhLOY[IJO
IKYNiOKLcOKZYSO[LcNTOfNIQPSLO�V�V�V�iOQJNOXSLQTKIQSTOYJKZZOUNN̂OKLcÔTNYNLQiOPLOY[IJOeST]OKYOQJNOvTIJPQNIQO]KdO
T̂NYITP\NiOKLOPQN]P�NcOKIIS[LQPLMOQSMNQJNTÒPQJOK̂ T̂ŜTPKQNOY[̂ ŜTQPLMOcKQKVO�LZNYYOSQJNT̀PYNÔTS_PcNcOPLOQJNO
XSLQTKIQOmSI[]NLQYiOISYQYOeSTOQJNÔ[T̂SYNYOSeOQJPYOfNIQPSLO�V�VbOYJKZZO\NOZP]PQNcOQSOQJNOeSZZS̀PLM�

{� XSYQYOSeOZK\STiOPLIZ[cPLMOK̂ ẐPIK\ZNÔKdTSZZOQK�NYiOeTPLMNO\NLNePQYOTNu[PTNcO\dOKMTNN]NLQOSTOI[YQS]iO
S̀TUNTY�OIS]̂ NLYKQPSLOPLY[TKLINiOKLcOSQJNTON]̂ ZSdNNOISYQYOK̂ T̂S_NcO\dOQJNOvTIJPQNIQ�

{| XSYQYOSeO]KQNTPKZYiOY[̂ ẐPNYiOKLcONu[P̂]NLQiOPLIZ[cPLMOISYQOSeOQTKLŶSTQKQPSLiÒJNQJNTOPLIST̂STKQNcOSTO
ISLY[]Nc�

{� �NLQKZOISYQYOSeO]KIJPLNTdOKLcONu[P̂]NLQiON�IZ[YP_NOSeOJKLcOQSSZYiÒJNQJNTOTNLQNcOeTS]OQJNOXSLQTKIQSTO
STOSQJNTY�

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

115



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJ KLMNMOLPOQRSTUVTMOPLROWXXOYLZ[MOWZ[OUZMVRWZ\S]OQSRTUNOPSSM]OWZ[OMWXSM]OVMS]OLROMUTUXWRONŴSM]O[URS\NX_O
RSXWNS[ONLOǸSO\̀WZaSbOWZ[

Ic KLMNMOLPOMVQSRdUMULZOWZ[OPUSX[OLPPU\SOQSRMLZZSXO[URS\NX_OWNNRUYVNWYXSONLOǸSO\̀WZaSe

fghIiIcOjPOǸSOKLZNRW\NLRO[UMWaRSSMOkUǸOǸSOW[lVMNTSZNOUZOǸSOKLZNRW\NOmUTS]OǸSOKLZNRW\NLROTW_OTWnSOWOKXWUTOUZO
W\\LR[WZ\SOkUǸOWQQXU\WYXSOQRLdUMULZMOLPOoRNU\XSOpqe

fghIiIrOsQLZORS\SUQNOLPOWOKLZMNRV\NULZOK̀WZaSOtURS\NUdS]OǸSOKLZNRW\NLROM̀WXXOQRLTQNX_OQRL\SS[OkUǸOǸSO\̀WZaSOUZOǸSO
uLRnOUZdLXdS[OWMOMLLZOWMOQLMMUYXS]OWZ[OZLOXWNSROǸWZOkUǸUZOMSdSZOvwxO[W_MOLPORS\SUQN]OǸSOKLZNRW\NLROM̀WXXOW[dUMSOǸSO
oR\̀UNS\NOUZOkRUNUZaOLPOǸSOKLZNRW\NLRyMOWaRSSTSZNOLRO[UMWaRSSTSZNOkUǸOǸSOTSǸL[]OUPOWZ_]OQRLdU[S[OUZOǸSO
KLZMNRV\NULZOK̀WZaSOtURS\NUdSOPLRO[SNSRTUZUZaOǸSOQRLQLMS[OW[lVMNTSZNOUZOǸSOKLZNRW\NOzVTOLROKLZNRW\NOmUTSeOm̀SO
KLZNRW\NLRyMOZLNU\SOM̀WXXORSWMLZWYX_OMQS\UP_OǸSORSWMLZMOPLROUNMO[UMWaRSSTSZNMOWZ[OǸSOWTLVZNOLROLǸSRONSRTMOǸWNOUNO
QRLQLMSMeOuUǸLVNOMV\̀ONUTSX_OkRUNNSZOZLNU\S]OǸSOKLZNRW\NLROM̀WXXO\LZ\XVMUdSX_OYSO[SSTS[ONLÒWdSOW\\SQNS[OǸSO
{kZSRyMOW[lVMNTSZNMeOm̀SOKLZNRW\NLRMO[UMWaRSSTSZNMOM̀WXXOUZOZLOkW_ORSXUSdSOǸSOKLZNRW\NLROLPOUNMOLYXUaWNULZONLO\LTQX_O
QRLTQNX_OkUǸOWZ_OkRUNNSZOZLNU\SOUMMVS[OY_OǸSO{kZSROLROoR\̀UNS\NeOm̀SOW[lVMNTSZNOM̀WXXOǸSZOYSO[SNSRTUZS[OY_OǸSO
oR\̀UNS\NOLZOǸSOYWMUMOLPORSWMLZWYXSOŜQSZ[UNVRSMOWZ[OMWdUZaMOLPOǸLMSOQSRPLRTUZaOǸSOuLRnOWNNRUYVNWYXSONLOǸSO\̀WZaS]O
UZOMNRU\NOW\\LR[WZ\SOkUǸOǸUMO|WRWaRWQ̀OWZ[OLǸSROWQQXU\WYXSOQRLdUMULZMOLPOǸSOKLZNRW\NOtL\VTSZNMe

fghIiIhOoOKLZMNRV\NULZOK̀WZaSOtURS\NUdSOMUaZS[OY_OǸSOKLZNRW\NLROUZ[U\WNSMOǸSOKLZNRW\NLRyMOWaRSSTSZNOǸSRSkUǸ]O
UZ\XV[UZaOW[lVMNTSZNOUZOKLZNRW\NOzVTOWZ[OKLZNRW\NOmUTSOLROǸSOTSǸL[OPLRO[SNSRTUZUZaOǸSTeOzV\̀OWaRSSTSZNOM̀WXXO
YSOSPPS\NUdSOUTTS[UWNSX_OWZ[OM̀WXXOYSORS\LR[S[OWMOWOK̀WZaSO{R[SRe

fghIiI}Om̀SOWTLVZNOLPO\RS[UNONLOYSOWXXLkS[OY_OǸSOKLZNRW\NLRONLOǸSO{kZSROPLROWO[SXSNULZOLRO\̀WZaSOǸWNORSMVXNMOUZOWOZSNO
[S\RSWMSOUZOǸSOKLZNRW\NOzVTOM̀WXXOYSOW\NVWXOZSNO\LMNOWMO\LZPURTS[OY_OǸSOoR\̀UNS\NeOu S̀ZOYLǸOW[[UNULZMOWZ[O\RS[UNMO
\LdSRUZaORSXWNS[OuLRnOLROMVYMNUNVNULZMOWRSOUZdLXdS[OUZOWO\̀WZaS]OǸSOWXXLkWZ\SOPLROLdSR̀SW[OWZ[OQRLPUNOM̀WXXOYSOPUaVRS[O
LZOǸSOYWMUMOLPOZSNOUZ\RSWMS]OUPOWZ_]OkUǸORSMQS\NONLOǸWNO\̀WZaSe

fghIiI~O|SZ[UZaOPUZWXO[SNSRTUZWNULZOLPOǸSONLNWXO\LMNOLPOWOKLZMNRV\NULZOK̀WZaSOtURS\NUdSONLOǸSO{kZSR]OǸSOKLZNRW\NLRO
TW_ORS�VSMNOQW_TSZNOPLROuLRnO\LTQXSNS[OVZ[SROǸSOKLZMNRV\NULZOK̀WZaSOtURS\NUdSOUZOoQQXU\WNULZMOPLRO|W_TSZNeOm̀SO
oR\̀UNS\NOkUXXOTWnSOWZOUZNSRUTO[SNSRTUZWNULZOPLROQVRQLMSMOLPOTLZǸX_O\SRNUPU\WNULZOPLROQW_TSZNOPLROǸLMSO\LMNMOWZ[O
\SRNUP_OPLROQW_TSZNOǸSOWTLVZNOǸWNOǸSOoR\̀UNS\NO[SNSRTUZSM]OUZOǸSOoR\̀UNS\NyMOQRLPSMMULZWXOlV[aTSZN]ONLOYSO
RSWMLZWYX_OlVMNUPUS[eOm̀SOoR\̀UNS\NyMOUZNSRUTO[SNSRTUZWNULZOLPO\LMNOM̀WXXOW[lVMNOǸSOKLZNRW\NOzVTOLZOǸSOMWTSOYWMUMOWMO
WOK̀WZaSO{R[SR]OMVYlS\NONLOǸSORUàNOLPOSUǸSROQWRN_ONLO[UMWaRSSOWZ[OWMMSRNOWOKXWUTOUZOW\\LR[WZ\SOkUǸOoRNU\XSOpqe

fghIiI��Ou S̀ZOǸSO{kZSROWZ[OKLZNRW\NLROWaRSSO\LZ\SRZUZaOǸSOW[lVMNTSZNMOUZOǸSOKLZNRW\NOzVTOWZ[OKLZNRW\NOmUTS]OLRO
LǸSRkUMSORSW\̀OWaRSSTSZNOVQLZOǸSOW[lVMNTSZNM]OMV\̀OWaRSSTSZNOM̀WXXOYSOSPPS\NUdSOUTTS[UWNSX_OWZ[OǸSOoR\̀UNS\NOkUXXO
QRSQWRSOWOK̀WZaSO{R[SReOK̀WZaSO{R[SRMOTW_OYSOUMMVS[OPLROWXXOLROWZ_OQWRNOLPOWOKLZMNRV\NULZOK̀WZaSOtURS\NUdSe

fghIJg�����g�������g��g���g����
m̀SOoR\̀UNS\NOTW_OLR[SROTUZLRO\̀WZaSMOUZOǸSOuLRnOǸWNOWRSO\LZMUMNSZNOkUǸOǸSOUZNSZNOLPOǸSOKLZNRW\NOtL\VTSZNMOWZ[O
[LOZLNOUZdLXdSOWZOW[lVMNTSZNOUZOǸSOKLZNRW\NOzVTOLROWZOŜNSZMULZOLPOǸSOKLZNRW\NOmUTSeOm̀SOoR\̀UNS\NyMOLR[SROPLRO
TUZLRO\̀WZaSMOM̀WXXOYSOUZOkRUNUZaeOjPOǸSOKLZNRW\NLROYSXUSdSMOǸWNOǸSOQRLQLMS[OTUZLRO\̀WZaSOUZOǸSOuLRnOkUXXOWPPS\NOǸSO
KLZNRW\NOzVTOLROKLZNRW\NOmUTS]OǸSOKLZNRW\NLROM̀WXXOZLNUP_OǸSOoR\̀UNS\NOWZ[OM̀WXXOZLNOQRL\SS[ONLOUTQXSTSZNOǸSO
\̀WZaSOUZOǸSOuLRneOjPOǸSOKLZNRW\NLROQSRPLRTMOǸSOuLRnOMSNOPLRǸOUZOǸSOoR\̀UNS\NyMOLR[SROPLROWOTUZLRO\̀WZaSOkUǸLVNO
QRULROZLNU\SONLOǸSOoR\̀UNS\NOǸWNOMV\̀O\̀WZaSOkUXXOWPPS\NOǸSOKLZNRW\NOzVTOLROKLZNRW\NOmUTS]OǸSOKLZNRW\NLROkWUdSMOWZ_O
W[lVMNTSZNONLOǸSOKLZNRW\NOzVTOLROŜNSZMULZOLPOǸSOKLZNRW\NOmUTSe

������������������������
������ Om̀SONLNWXO\LMNMOLPOWZ_O\̀WZaS[OkLRnOLROLPOWZ_OKXWUTOPLROWZOUZ\RSWMSOLRO[S\RSWMSOUZOǸSOKLZNRW\NOzVTOM̀WXXOYSO
XUTUNS[ONLOǸSOPLXXLkUZaO\LTQLZSZNM¡O

������ � �¢������£¤¥��������¦Om̀SMSOWRSOǸSOXWYLRO\LMNMO[SNSRTUZS[OY_OSUǸSROǸSOSMNUTWNS[OLROW\NVWXOZVTYSRO
LPOW[[UNULZWXO\RWPNÒLVRMOWZ[OǸSÒLVRX_O\LMNOZS\SMMWR_OPLROXWYLR]OWQQRSZNU\SM]OlLVRZS_TSZ]OWZ[OPLRSTSZONLOQSRPLRTO
[URS\NX_OǸSO\̀WZaSOUZOǸSOuLRnOLZOzUNSe

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

116



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLJMNOPQLRMSTLSJUPPLVKLVUSKWLMXLTJKLYMPPMZ[X\]L̂_̀LaUS[RLbU\KS]LTJKLJMNOPQLZU\KLYMOLPUVMOcLUddOKXT[RKScLeMNOXKQfKXL
UXWLYMOKfKXLdKOYMOf[X\LUXWgMOLW[OKRTPQLSNdKOh[S[X\LTJKLRJUX\KWLbMOiLMXLTJKLS[TKLSdKR[Y[KWL[XLTJKLUddP[RUVPKLjkXTKXTLTML
lUQLlOKhU[P[X\LbU\KSmj

nopqrqsqtouvwxyzo{|zxwv|}oy~�z��LIJ[SL[SLUXL[TKf[�UT[MXcL[XRPNW[X\LfUTKO[UPL[XhM[RKScLMYLTJKL�NUXT[TQLUXWLRMSTL
MYLUWW[T[MXUPLfUTKO[UPSLXKRKSSUOQLTMLdKOYMOfLTJKLRJUX\KL[XLTJKLbMOimLIJKSKLRMSTSLSJUPPLVKLVQLTJKLNX[TLRMSTLMYLUWW[T[MXUPL
fUTKO[UPSLXKRKSSUOQLTMLdKOYMOfLTJKLRJUX\KL[XLTJKLbMOimLIJKLNX[TLRMSTLSJUPPLVKLVUSKWLNdMXLTJKLXKTLRMSTLUYTKOLUPPL
W[SRMNXTSLMOLOKVUTKScLYOK[\JTLRMSTScLK�dOKSSLRJUO\KScLMOLSdKR[UPLWKP[hKOQLRMSTScLZJKXLUddP[RUVPKmL�MLPNfdLSNfLRMSTSLZ[PPL
VKLUPPMZKWLK�RKdTLZJKXLUddOMhKWL[XLUWhUXRKLVQLTJKL�ORJ[TKRTm

nopqrqsq�oy~��zw�yzv~�ox��v�{x�zo��|�xoy~�z��LIJ[SL[SLUXL[TKf[�UT[MXLMYLTJKLURTNUPLPKX\TJLMYLT[fKL
RMXSTONRT[MXLK�N[dfKXTLUddOMdO[UTKLYMOLTJKLbMOiLZ[PPLVKLNSKWLSMPKPQLMXLTJKLRJUX\KL[XLTJKLbMOiLUTLTJKLS[TKLT[fKSLTJKL
UddP[RUVPKLOKXTUPLRMSTSLUSLKSTUVP[SJKWLVQLTJKLPMZKOLMYLTJKLdOKhU[P[X\LOUTKLdNVP[SJKWL[XLIJKL�KXTUPL�UTKLaPNKLaMMiLVQL
�UTUL�NKSTcL�UXL�MSKL�UP[YMOX[UcLMOLTJKLURTNUPLOUTKLdU[WLUSLKh[WKXRKWLVQLTJKLOKXTUPLOKRK[dTSmL�RTNUPcLOKUSMXUVPKL
fMV[P[�UT[MXLRMSTSLUOKLdKOf[TTKWL[YLTJKLK�N[dfKXTL[SLVOMN\JTLTMLTJKL�[TKLSMPKPQLYMOLTJKLRJUX\KL[XLTJKLbMOimLkYLfMOKLTJUXL
MXKLOUTKL[XLIJKL�KXTUPLaPNKLaMMiL[SLUddP[RUVPKcLTJKLPMZKSTLOUTKLZ[PPLVKLNT[P[�KWmLIJKLOUTKSL[XLKYYKRTLUTLTJKLT[fKLMYLTJKL
dKOYMOfUXRKLMYLTJKL�JUX\KL[XLbMOiLUOKLTJKLfU�[fNfLOUTKSLUPPMZUVPKLYMOLTJKLK�N[dfKXTLMYLfMWKOXLWKS[\XLUXWL[XL\MMWL
ZMOi[X\LRMXW[T[MXLUXWL[XRPNWKLYNPPLRMfdKXSUT[MXLYMOLYNOX[SJ[X\LUPPLYNKPcLM[PcLPNVO[RUT[MXcLOKdU[OScLfU[XTKXUXRKcLUXWL
[XSNOUXRKmL��N[dfKXTLXMTLMYLfMWKOXLWKS[\XLUXWgMOLXMTL[XL\MMWLZMOi[X\LRMXW[T[MXLZ[PPLJUhKLPMZKOLOUTKSmL�MNOPQcL
ZKKiPQcLUXWgMOLfMXTJPQLOUTKScLUSLUddOMdO[UTKcLZ[PPLVKLUddP[KWLTMLQ[KPWLTJKLPMZKSTLTMTUPLRMSTmLIJKLOUTKLYMOLK�N[dfKXTL
XKRKSSUO[PQLSTUXW[X\LVQLYMOLYNTNOKLNSKLMXLTJKLbMOiLSJUPPLVKL���LMYLTJKLOUTKLKSTUVP[SJKWm

kYLK�N[dfKXTL[SLOK�N[OKWLYMOLZJ[RJLULOKXTUPLOUTKL[SLXMTLKSTUVP[SJKWLVQLTJKL�KXTUPL�UTKLaPNKLaMMicLUXLU\OKKWLOKXTUPLOUTKL
SJUPPLVKLKSTUVP[SJKWLYMOLTJKLK�N[dfKXTcLZJ[RJLOUTKLUXWLNSKLfNSTLVKLUddOMhKWLVQLTJKL�ORJ[TKRTLdO[MOLTMLdKOYMOf[X\LTJKL
bMOim

nopqrqsq�oy~�zo~�oy�|��xov�ov���w|�yxo~wo�~�uo�wx{v�{�LIJ[SL[SLWKY[XKWLUS]
qs �MXTOURTMOS�LP[UV[P[TQL[XSNOUXRK]LIJKLRMSTL̂K�dOKSSKWLUSLULdKORKXTU\K̀LMYLUXQLRJUX\KSL[XLTJKL

RMXTOURTMO�SLP[UV[P[TQL[XSNOUXRKLUO[S[X\LW[OKRTPQLYOMfLTJKLRJUX\KWLbMOi�LUXW
qt lNVP[RLbMOiLVMXW]LIJKLRMSTL̂K�dOKSSKWLUSLULdKORKXTU\K̀LMYLTJKLRJUX\KL[XLTJKL�MXTOURT�SLdOKf[NfLYMOL

TJKL�MXTOURTMO�SLdKOYMOfUXRKLUXWLdUQfKXTLVMXWLUO[S[X\LW[OKRTPQLYOMfLTJKLRJUX\KWLbMOim

�dMXLOK�NKSTcLTJKL�MXTOURTMOLSJUPPLdOMh[WKLTJKL�ZXKOLZ[TJLSNddMOT[X\LWMRNfKXTUT[MXLYOMfL[TSL[XSNOKOLMOLSNOKTQLMYL
UXQLUSSMR[UTKWLRMSTL[XRNOOKWmL

nopqrqsqro���y~�zw|yz~woy~�z��LIJKSKLUOKLdUQfKXTSLTJKL�MXTOURTMOLfUiKSLTML�NVRMXTOURTMOSLYMOLRJUX\KWL
bMOiLdKOYMOfKWLVQL�NVRMXTOURTMOSmL�MSTLMYLbMOiLSJUPPLVKLWKTKOf[XKWL[XLTJKLSUfKLfUXXKOLUSLdOKSRO[VKWL[XLTJKL
�NVdUOU\OUdJL�m�m

nopqrqsq o�xx�LIJ[SL[SLUXLUPPMZUXRKLYMOLUPPLRMfV[XKWLMhKOJKUWcLdOMY[TLUXWLMTJKOLRMSTScL[XRPNW[X\LUPPLMYY[RKcLJMfKL
MYY[RKcLUXWLS[TKLMhKOJKUWL̂[XRPNW[X\LdOMeKRTLfUXU\KOcLdOMeKRTLKX\[XKKOcLUXWLSNdKO[XTKXWKXT�SLT[fK̀LTU�KSL̂K�RKdTLSUPKSL
TU�̀cLSUYKTQLRMSTSLUXWLSfUPPLMOLJUXWLTMMPScLUXWL[XRPNWKSLURRKPKOUT[MXLUXWL[fdURTLRMSTLMYLUXQLi[XWcLUWWKWLTMLTJKLTMTUPLRMSTL
TMLTJKL�ZXKOLMYLUXQL�JUX\KL�OWKOcL�MXSTONRT[MXL�JUX\KL�[OKRT[hKcL�PU[fLMOLUXQLMTJKOLRPU[fLMYLUXQLi[XWLMXLTJ[SL
lOMeKRTm

kTLSJUPPLVKLP[f[TKWL[XLUPPLRUSKSLTMLTJKLYMPPMZ[X\LSRJKWNPK]
qs IJKL�MXTOURTMOLSJUPPLOKRK[hKL_��LMYLTJKLRMSTLMYLUXQLfUTKO[UPLSNddP[KWLMOLZMOiLdKOYMOfKWLVQLTJKL

�MXTOURTMO�SLMZXLYMORKSm
qt IJKL�MXTOURTMOLSJUPPLOKRK[hKL¡�LMYLTJKLUfMNXTLMZKWLW[OKRTPQLTMLUL�NVRMXTOURTMOLYMOLfUTKO[UPSL

SNddP[KWLMOLZMOiLdKOYMOfKWLVQLTJUTL�NVRMXTOURTMOm
q� �URJL�NVRMXTOURTMOL̂[XRPNW[X\LPMZKOLT[KOLSNVRMXTOURTMOSL[XhMPhKẀLSJUPPLOKRK[hKL_��LMYLTJKLRMSTLMYL

UXQLfUTKO[UPLSNddP[KWLMYLbMOiLdKOYMOfKWLVQL[TSLMZXLYMORKSm
q� �URJL�NVRMXTOURTMOLMYLUXQLT[KOLSJUPPLOKRK[hKL¡�LMYLTJKLUfMNXTL[TLMZKSLMYLfUTKO[UPSLSNddP[KWLMOLbMOiL

dKOYMOfKWLVQL[TSLSNddP[KOSLMOLSNVRMXTOURTMOSLMOLUXQLPMZKOLT[KOm
qr IJKLRMSTLYMOLZJ[RJLTJ[SL¢KKL[SLTMLVKLUddP[KWLSJUPPLVKLWKTKOf[XKWL[XLURRMOWUXRKLZ[TJLSNVdUOU\OUdJSL

�m�m_LTJOMN\JL�m�m�

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

117



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLKMNLOPQKROKSNQKTUVWKROXUYXQZK[USNKL\\RSRXQKLO\K\Q\]MSRXQKRSQ̂Z_KSNQKL̀ V̀ÙVRLSQKaQQKLYYUbQ\KbRYYK[QKL\\Q\KSUKSNQK
OQSK\RJJQVQOMQKUJKSNQKRSQ̂ZcKIJKSNQKOQSK\RJJQVQOMQKRZKOQPLSRXQ_KOUKJQQKbRYYK[QKL\\Q\KSUKSNQKOQPLSRXQKJRP]VQKLZKLKJ]VSNQVK
\Q\]MSRUOc

defghijklkkkfgmj
nklopkqrstutvtwux
nklopopKyOYQZZKUSNQVbRZQK̀VUXR\Q\_KzUOSVLMSK{R̂QKRZKSNQK̀QVRU\KUJKSR̂Q_KROMY]\ROPKL]SNUVR|Q\KL\}]ZŜQOSZ_KLYYUSSQ\KROK
SNQKzUOSVLMSK~UM]̂ QOSZKJUVK�][ZSLOSRLYKzÛ ỲQSRUOKUJKSNQKTUVWc

nklopo�K{NQK\LSQKUJKMÛ Q̂OMQ̂QOSKUJKSNQKTUVWKRZKSNQK\LSQKQZSL[YRZNQ\KROKSNQK�PVQQ̂QOSc

nklopo�K{NQK\LSQKUJK�][ZSLOSRLYKzÛ ỲQSRUOKRZKSNQK\LSQKMQVSRJRQ\K[�KSNQK�VMNRSQMSKROKLMMUV\LOMQKbRSNK�QMSRUOK�c�c

nklopo�K{NQKSQV̂K�\L��KLZK]ZQ\KROKSNQKzUOSVLMSK~UM]̂ QOSZKZNLYYK̂QLOKMLYQO\LVK\L�K]OYQZZKUSNQVbRZQKZ̀QMRJRMLYY�K
\QJROQ\c

nklo�k��w��rxxk�u�khw���rvtwu
nklo�opK{R̂QKYR̂RSZKZSLSQ\KROKSNQKzUOSVLMSK~UM]̂ QOSZKLVQKUJKSNQKQZZQOMQKUJKSNQKzUOSVLMScK��KQ�QM]SROPKSNQK�PVQQ̂QOS_K
SNQKzUOSVLMSUVKMUOJRV̂ZKSNLSKSNQKzUOSVLMSK{R̂QKRZKLKVQLZUOL[YQK̀QVRU\KJUVK̀QVJUV̂ROPKSNQKTUVWc

nklo�o�K{NQKzUOSVLMSUVKZNLYYKOUSKWOUbROPY�_KQ�MQ̀SK[�KLPVQQ̂QOSKUVKROZSV]MSRUOKUJKSNQK�bOQVKROKbVRSROP_KMÛ Q̂OMQK
SNQKTUVWK̀VRUVKSUKSNQKQJJQMSRXQK\LSQKUJKROZ]VLOMQKVQ�]RVQ\KSUK[QKJ]VORZNQ\K[�KSNQKzUOSVLMSUVKLO\K�bOQVc

nklo�o�K{NQKzUOSVLMSUVKZNLYYK̀VUMQQ\KQ�̀Q\RSRU]ZY�KbRSNKL\Q�]LSQKJUVMQZKLO\KZNLYYKLMNRQXQK�][ZSLOSRLYKzÛ ỲQSRUOK
bRSNROKSNQKzUOSVLMSK{R̂Qc

����������������� �¡¢�£����¢¤�¢¥����¦�£§¢̈ �¡���¦��¦¦�¤��©���¢�����¢ª¤�§�K{NQK�bOQVK
bRYYKROM]VKZQVRU]ZKLO\KZ][ZSLOSRLYKZ̀QMRLY_KROMR\QOSLYKLO\KMUOZQ�]QOSRLYK\L̂LPQZKRJKzÛ ỲQSRUOKUJKSNQKTUVWK\UQZKOUSK
UMM]VKbRSNROKSNQKzUOSVLMSK{R̂Q«KNUbQXQV_KRSKbU]Y\K[QK\RJJRM]YSKRJKOUSKR̂ ÙZZR[YQKSUK\QSQV̂ROQKSNQKL̂U]OSKUJKZ]MNK
\L̂LPQZ_KbNRMNKMU]Y\KROMY]\Q_KJUVKQ�L̂ ỲQ_K̀QVZUOOQYKLO\KUXQVSR̂QKMUZSZ_KSVLOZ̀UVSLSRUOKMUZSZ_K\QZRPOKJQQZ_K
PUXQVÔ QOSLYKJQQZ_KZSUVLPQKMUZSZ_KVQOLYKLO\KYUZSKÙ ÙVS]ORSRQZcKzUOZQ�]QOSY�_K̀VUXRZRUOZKJUVKYR�]R\LSQ\K\L̂LPQZKLZKLK
VQLZUOL[YQKQZSR̂LSQKUJKYUZZKLVQKROMY]\Q\KROKSNQKzUOSVLMSK~UM]̂ QOSZcK{NQK�bOQV¬ZKVRPNSKSUKYR�]R\LSQ\K\L̂LPQZKRZKOUSK
LJJQMSQ\K[�K̀LVSRLYKMÛ ỲQSRUO_KUMM]̀LOM�_KUVK[QOQJRMRLYKUMM]̀LOM�c

©�¤®̄�¦®°±²³́µ�������¶�{NQK̀VUXRZRUOZKROKSNQKzUOSVLMSKJUVKYR�]R\LSQ\K\L̂LPQZKLVQKROSQO\Q\KSUK[QKROKYRQ]KUJKSNQK
YRL[RYRS�KUJKSNQKzUOSVLMSUVKJUVKZ̀QMRLY_KROMR\QOSLYKLO\KMUOZQ�]QOSRLYK\L̂LPQZK·Z]MNKLZKMUZSKUJKML̀RSLYKLO\KYUZZK̀VUJRSZ_K
]ZQ_KLO\KVQXQO]Q̧KZ]ZSLROQ\K[�KSNQK�bOQVK[]SKZNLYYKOUSKVQYRQXQKUVKVQYQLZQKSNQKzUOSVLMSUVKJVÛ KYRL[RYRS�KJUVKLO�KLO\KLYYK
\L̂LPQKUVK\L̂LPQZKZ]JJQVQ\K[�KSNQK�bOQVK\]QKSUKUSNQVK[VQLMNQZKUJKSNQKzUOSVLMSKUVKZ]JJQVQ\K[�KZQ̀LVLSQKMUOSVLMSUVZc

nklo�kqr��¹xk�u�kjºvruxtwuxkwskft�r
nklo�opKIJKSNQKzUOSVLMSUVKRZK̂LSQVRLYY�K\QYL�Q\KLSKLO�KSR̂QKROKSNQKMÛ Q̂OMQ̂QOSKUVK̀VUPVQZZKUJKSNQKTUVWK[�K·»̧KLOKLMSK
UVKOQPYQMSKUJKSNQK�bOQVKUVK�VMNRSQMS_KUJKLOKQ̂ ỲU�QQKUJKQRSNQV_KUVKUJKLK�Q̀LVLSQKzUOSVLMSUVKQ̂ ỲU�Q\K[�KSNQK�bOQV«K·¼̧K
[�KMNLOPQZKUV\QVQ\KROKSNQKTUVW«K·½̧K[�KYL[UVK\RZ̀]SQZ_KJRVQ_K]O]Z]LYK\QYL�KROK\QYRXQVRQZ_K]OLXUR\L[YQKMLZ]LYSRQZ_K
L\XQVZQKbQLSNQVKMUO\RSRUOZK\UM]̂ QOSQ\KROKLMMUV\LOMQKbRSNK�QMSRUOK»¾c»c¿c¼_KUVKUSNQVKML]ZQZK[Q�UO\KSNQKzUOSVLMSUV¬ZK
MUOSVUY«KUVK·À̧K[�K\QYL�KL]SNUVR|Q\K[�KSNQK�bOQVK̀QO\ROPK̂Q\RLSRUOKLO\K[RO\ROPK\RZ̀]SQKVQZUY]SRUO«K}]ZSRJ�K\QYL�_KSNQOK
SNQKzUOSVLMSK{R̂QKZNLYYK[QKQ�SQO\Q\KJUVKZ]MNKVQLZUOL[YQKSR̂Qc

nklo�o�KzYLR̂ZKVQYLSROPKSUKSR̂QKZNLYYK[QK̂L\QKROKLMMUV\LOMQKbRSNKL̀ ỲRML[YQK̀VUXRZRUOZKUJK�VSRMYQK»¾c

nklo�o�K{NRZK�QMSRUOK�c½K\UQZKOUSK̀VQMY]\QKVQMUXQV�KUJK\L̂LPQZKJUVK\QYL�K[�KQRSNQVK̀LVS�K]O\QVKUSNQVK̀VUXRZRUOZKUJKSNQK
zUOSVLMSK~UM]̂ QOSZcK{NQKzUOSVLMSUVKZNLYYKOUSKVQMUXQVK\L̂LPQZKUVKLOKROMVQLZQKROKSNQKzUOSVLMSK�]̂ KUVKzUOSVLMSK{R̂QK
JVÛ KSNQK�bOQVK]OYQZZK·»̧KSNQK\QYL�KROK̀QVJUV̂LOMQKbLZK]OVQLZUOL[YQ_KLO\K·¼̧KSNQK�bOQV¬ZKUbOKLMSRUOZKUVKROLMSRUOZK
bQVQKSNQKLMS]LY_KZ][ZSLOSRLYKML]ZQKUJKSNQK\QYL�_KLO\K·½̧KSNQKzUOSVLMSUVKMU]Y\KOUSKNLXQKVQLZUOL[Y�KLXUR\Q\KSNQK\QYL�K[�K
SNQKQ�QVMRZQKUJK\]QK\RYRPQOMQc

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

118



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNOPQPPPRISTOUKVPIUWPMXTRNOKLXU
YPQZ[PM\]̂_̀âPVbc
YPQZ[Z[defgdhijklmnkdopqdrsdskmkgtdrjdkfgduvlggqgjkdmjtwdrjnxptrjvdmpkfilrygtdmtzpskqgjkswdrsdkfgdkikmxdmqipjkd
{m|m}xgd}|dkfgd~�jgldkidkfgdhijklmnkild�ild{gl�ilqmjngdi�dkfgd�il�dpjtgldkfgdhijklmnkd�inpqgjks�

YPQZ[Z�d��dpjrkd{lrngsdmlgdskmkgtdrjdkfgdhijklmnkd�inpqgjksdildsp}sg�pgjkx|dmvlggtdp{ijwdmjtdr�d�pmjkrkrgsdilrvrjmxx|d
nijkgq{xmkgtdmlgdqmkglrmxx|dnfmjvgtdsidkfmkdm{{xrnmkrijdi�dspnfdpjrkd{lrngsdkidkfgdmnkpmxd�pmjkrkrgsdnmpsgsdsp}skmjkrmxd
rjg�prk|dkidkfgd~�jgldildhijklmnkilwdkfgdm{{xrnm}xgdpjrkd{lrngsdsfmxxd}gdg�prkm}x|dmtzpskgt�

YPQZ�PVa���b��P\�P�̀�b��
�fglgdkfgdhijklmnkdrsd}msgtdijdmdskr{pxmkgtdspqdild�pmlmjkggtd�m�rqpqd�lrngwdkfgdhijklmnkildsfmxxdsp}qrkdmd
snfgtpxgdi�d�mxpgsdkidkfgdulnfrkgnkdmjtdkfgd~�jgld}g�ilgdkfgd�rlskdu{{xrnmkrijd�ild�m|qgjkwdmxxinmkrjvdkfgdgjkrlgd
hijklmnkdopqdkidkfgd�mlripsd{ilkrijsdi�dkfgd�il��defgdsnfgtpxgdi�d�mxpgsdsfmxxd}gd{lg{mlgtdrjdkfgd�ilqwdmjtdsp{{ilkgtd
}|dkfgdtmkmdkidsp}skmjkrmkgdrksdmnnplmn|wdlg�prlgtd}|dkfgdulnfrkgnk�defrsdsnfgtpxgwd�fgjwdmjtdijx|d�fgjdwdm{{li�gtd}|d
kfgd~�jgldmjtdkfgdulnfrkgnkwdsfmxxd}gdpsgtdmsdmd}msrsd�ildlg�rg�rjvdkfgdhijklmnkil�sdu{{xrnmkrijsd�ild�m|qgjk�duj|d
nfmjvgsdkidkfgdsnfgtpxgdi�d�mxpgsdsfmxxd}gdsp}qrkkgtdkidkfgdulnfrkgnkdmjtdsp{{ilkgtd}|dspnfdtmkmdkidsp}skmjkrmkgdrksd
mnnplmn|dmsdkfgdulnfrkgnkdild~�jgldqm|dlg�prlgwdmjtdpjxgssdi}zgnkgtdkid}|dkfgdulnfrkgnkdild~�jglwdsfmxxd}gdpsgtdmsdmd
}msrsd�ildlg�rg�rjvdkfgdhijklmnkil�sdsp}sg�pgjkdu{{xrnmkrijsd�ild�m|qgjk�

YPQZ�PI����à�̂\]�P�\_PR̀�c�]̂
YPQZ�Z[dukdxgmskdkgjdtm|sd}g�ilgdkfgdtmkgdgskm}xrsfgtd�ildgmnfd{livlgssd{m|qgjkwdkfgdhijklmnkildsfmxxdsp}qrkdkidkfgd
ulnfrkgnkdmjdrkgqrygtdu{{xrnmkrijd�ild�m|qgjkd{lg{mlgtdrjdmnniltmjngd�rkfdkfgdsnfgtpxgdi�d�mxpgswdr�dlg�prlgtdpjtgld
ognkrijd���wd�ildniq{xgkgtd{ilkrijsdi�dkfgd�il��defgdm{{xrnmkrijdsfmxxd}gdjikmlrygtwdr�dlg�prlgtwdmjtdsp{{ilkgtd}|dmxxd
tmkmdsp}skmjkrmkrjvdkfgdhijklmnkil�sdlrvfkdkid{m|qgjkdkfmkdkfgd~�jgldildulnfrkgnkdlg�prlgwdspnfdmsdni{rgsdi�d
lg�prsrkrijswdmjtdlgxgmsgsdmjtd�mr�glsdi�dxrgjsd�liqdop}nijklmnkilsdmjtdsp{{xrglswdmjtdsfmxxdlg�xgnkdlgkmrjmvgdr�d
{li�rtgtd�ildrjdkfgdhijklmnkd�inpqgjks�

YPQZ�Z[Z[dusd{li�rtgtdrjdognkrijd�����wdspnfdm{{xrnmkrijsdqm|drjnxptgdlg�pgsksd�ild{m|qgjkdijdmnnipjkdi�dnfmjvgsdrjd
kfgd�il�dkfmkdfm�gd}ggjd{li{glx|dmpkfilrygtd}|dhijsklpnkrijdhfmjvgd�rlgnkr�gswdild}|drjkglrqdtgkglqrjmkrijsdi�dkfgd
ulnfrkgnkwd}pkdjikd|gkdrjnxptgtdrjdhfmjvgd~ltgls�

YPQZ�Z[Z�du{{xrnmkrijsd�ild�m|qgjkdsfmxxdjikdrjnxptgdlg�pgsksd�ild{m|qgjkd�ild{ilkrijsdi�dkfgd�il�d�ild�frnfdkfgd
hijklmnkildtigsdjikdrjkgjtdkid{m|dmdop}nijklmnkildildsp{{xrglwdpjxgssdspnfd�il�dfmsd}ggjd{gl�ilqgtd}|dikfglsd�fiqd
kfgdhijklmnkildrjkgjtsdkid{m|�

YPQZ�Z�d�jxgssdikfgl�rsgd{li�rtgtdrjdkfgdhijklmnkd�inpqgjkswd{m|qgjksdsfmxxd}gdqmtgdijdmnnipjkdi�dqmkglrmxsdmjtd
g�pr{qgjkdtgxr�glgtdmjtdsprkm}x|dskilgtdmkdkfgdsrkgd�ildsp}sg�pgjkdrjnil{ilmkrijdrjdkfgd�il��d��dm{{li�gtdrjdmt�mjngd
}|dkfgd~�jglwd{m|qgjkdqm|dsrqrxmlx|d}gdqmtgd�ildqmkglrmxsdmjtdg�pr{qgjkdsprkm}x|dskilgtdi��dkfgdsrkgdmkdmdxinmkrijd
mvlggtdp{ijdrjd�lrkrjv�d�m|qgjkd�ildqmkglrmxsdmjtdg�pr{qgjkdskilgtdijdildi��dkfgdsrkgdsfmxxd}gdnijtrkrijgtdp{ijd
niq{xrmjngd}|dkfgdhijklmnkild�rkfd{lingtplgsdsmkrs�mnkil|dkidkfgd~�jgldkidgskm}xrsfdkfgd~�jgl�sdkrkxgdkidspnfdqmkglrmxsd
mjtdg�pr{qgjkdildikfgl�rsgd{likgnkdkfgd~�jgl�sdrjkglgskwdmjtdsfmxxdrjnxptgdkfgdnisksdi�dm{{xrnm}xgdrjsplmjngwdskilmvgwd
mjtdklmjs{ilkmkrijdkidkfgdsrkgwd�ildspnfdqmkglrmxsdmjtdg�pr{qgjkdskilgtdi��dkfgdsrkg�

YPQZ�Z�defgdhijklmnkild�mllmjksdkfmkdkrkxgdkidmxxd�il�dni�glgtd}|dmjdu{{xrnmkrijd�ild�m|qgjkd�rxxd{mssdkidkfgd~�jgldjid
xmkgldkfmjdkfgdkrqgdi�d{m|qgjk�defgdhijklmnkild�plkfgld�mllmjksdkfmkdp{ijdsp}qrkkmxdi�dmjdu{{xrnmkrijd�ild�m|qgjkdmxxd
�il�d�ild�frnfdhglkr�rnmkgsd�ild�m|qgjkdfm�gd}ggjd{lg�ripsx|drsspgtdmjtd{m|qgjksdlgngr�gtd�liqdkfgd~�jgldsfmxxwdkid
kfgd}gskdi�dkfgdhijklmnkil�sd�ji�xgtvgwdrj�ilqmkrijwdmjtd}gxrg�wd}gd�lggdmjtdnxgmldi�dxrgjswdnxmrqswdsgnplrk|drjkglgskswdild
gjnpq}lmjngswdrjd�m�ildi�dkfgdhijklmnkilwdop}nijklmnkilswdsp{{xrglswdildikfgld{glsijsdildgjkrkrgsdkfmkd{li�rtgtdxm}ilwd
qmkglrmxswdmjtdg�pr{qgjkdlgxmkrjvdkidkfgd�il��

�� ¡¢¡£�¤¥¦§̈©§ª¥
�plspmjkdkidhfm{kgld«¬��wd®h�wd̄°rgjd�ild°m}ilwdqmkglrmxswdem�gtdijd�p}xrnd�il�w̄defgd~�jgld�rxxdlgsgl�gd±²d
lgkmrjmvgd�liqdkfgdqijrgsdkfgdhijklmnkildgmljsdijdgskrqmkgsdtplrjvdkfgd{livlgssdi�dkfgd�il�wdkid}gdlgkmrjgtdmsdmdklpskd
�pjtd�ildkfgd{likgnkrijdmjtd{m|qgjkdi�dkfgdnxmrqsdi�dmj|d{glsijdmlrsrjvdpjtgldkfgdhijklmnkdmjtdkfgdokmkgd�rkfdlgs{gnkdkid
km�gsdrq{isgtd{plspmjkdkiderkxgd�d®h�wd̄³�nrsgdem�gsw̄d�frnfdqm|d}gdtpgd�liqdkfgdhijklmnkil�

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

119



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMJNOPQRSRTUQOVJSWPJXUYZO[Q
IJKLML\]̂_̀]abc_dèce]fdggh]fde_di]j̀k̀i]lmnj]moèb]b̀c̀dpe]qo]e_̀]rqiebmceqbsj]appgdcmedqi]oqb]tmnùieh]̀de_̀b]vwx]djjỳ]
eq]e_̀]zfìb]m]r̀bedodcmè]oqb]tmnùie]di]e_̀]oygg]muqyie]qo]e_̀]appgdcmedqi]oqb]tmnùieh]fde_]m]cqpn]eq]e_̀]
rqiebmceqb{]qb]v|x]djjỳ]eq]e_̀]zfìb]m]r̀bedodcmè]oqb]tmnùie]oqb]jyc_]muqyie]mj]e_̀]abc_dèce]l̀èbudìj]dj]pbqp̀bgn]
lỳh]mil]iqedon]e_̀]rqiebmceqb]mil]zfìb]qo]e_̀]abc_dècesj]b̀mjqij]oqb]fde__qgldi}]c̀bedodcmedqi]di]pmbe]mj]pbqkdl̀l]di]
~̀cedqi]����w{]qb]v�x]fde__qgl]c̀bedodcmedqi]qo]e_̀]̀iedb̀]appgdcmedqi]oqb]tmnùieh]mil]iqedon]e_̀]rqiebmceqb]mil]zfìb]
qo]e_̀]abc_dècesj]b̀mjqi]oqb]fde__qgldi}]c̀bedodcmedqi]di]f_qg̀]mj]pbqkdl̀l]di]~̀cedqi]����w�

IJKLML�]̂_̀]djjymic̀]qo]m]r̀bedodcmè]oqb]tmnùie]fdgg]cqijedeyè]m]b̀pb̀j̀iemedqi]�n]e_̀]abc_dèce]eq]e_̀]zfìbh]�mj̀l]
qi]e_̀]abc_dècesj]̀kmgymedqi]qo]e_̀]�qb�]mil]e_̀]lmem]di]e_̀]appgdcmedqi]oqb]tmnùieh]e_meh]eq]e_̀]�̀je]qo]e_̀]
abc_dècesj]�iqfg̀l}̀h]dioqbumedqih]mil]�̀gd̀oh]e_̀]�qb�]_mj]pbq}b̀jj̀l]eq]e_̀]pqdie]dildcmèlh]e_̀]�ymgden]qo]e_̀]
�qb�]dj]di]mccqblmic̀]fde_]e_̀]rqiebmce]�qcyùiejh]mil]e_me]e_̀]rqiebmceqb]dj]̀iedeg̀l]eq]pmnùie]di]e_̀]muqyie]
c̀bedod̀l�]̂_̀]oqb̀}qdi}]b̀pb̀j̀iemedqij]mb̀]jy��̀ce]eq]mi]̀kmgymedqi]qo]e_̀]�qb�]oqb]cqioqbumic̀]fde_]e_̀]rqiebmce]
�qcyùiej]ypqi]~y�jemiedmg]rqupg̀edqih]eq]b̀jygej]qo]jy�j̀�ỳie]èjej]mil]dijp̀cedqijh]eq]cqbb̀cedqi]qo]udiqb]
l̀kdmedqij]obqu]e_̀]rqiebmce]�qcyùiej]pbdqb]eq]cqupg̀edqih]mil]eq]jp̀cdodc]�ymgdodcmedqij]̀�pb̀jj̀l]�n]e_̀]abc_dèce�]
�qf̀k̀bh]e_̀]djjymic̀]qo]m]r̀bedodcmè]oqb]tmnùie]fdgg]iqe]�̀]m]b̀pb̀j̀iemedqi]e_me]e_̀]abc_dèce]_mj]vwx]uml̀]
�̀_myjedk̀]qb]cqiediyqyj]qi�jdè]dijp̀cedqij]eq]c_̀c�]e_̀]�ymgden]qb]�ymieden]qo]e_̀]�qb�{]v|x]b̀kd̀f̀l]cqijebycedqi]
ùmijh]ùe_qljh]èc_id�ỳjh]j̀�ỳic̀jh]qb]pbqc̀lyb̀j{]v�x]b̀kd̀f̀l]cqpd̀j]qo]b̀�ydjdedqij]b̀c̀dk̀l]obqu]
~y�cqiebmceqbj]mil]jyppgd̀bj]mil]qe_̀b]lmem]b̀�ỳjèl]�n]e_̀]zfìb]eq]jy�jemiedmè]e_̀]rqiebmceqbsj]bd}_e]eq]pmnùie{]
qb]v�x]uml̀]̀�mudimedqi]eq]mjc̀bemdi]_qf]qb]oqb]f_me]pybpqj̀]e_̀]rqiebmceqb]_mj]yj̀l]uqìn]pb̀kdqyjgn]pmdl]qi]
mccqyie]qo]e_̀]rqiebmce]~yu�

IJKL�J�OTRVRW[VJQWJ�RQ��W��JNOPQRSRTUQRW[
IJKL�L\]̂_̀]abc_dèce]fdgg]fde__qgl]m]r̀bedodcmè]oqb]tmnùie]di]f_qg̀]qb]di]pmbeh]eq]e_̀]̀�èie]b̀mjqim�gn]ìc̀jjmbn]eq]
pbqèce]e_̀]zfìbh]do]di]e_̀]abc_dècesj]qpdidqi]e_̀]b̀pb̀j̀iemedqij]eq]e_̀]zfìb]b̀�ydb̀l]�n]~̀cedqi]����|]cmiiqe]�̀]
uml̀�]�o]e_̀]abc_dèce]dj]yim�g̀]eq]c̀bedon]pmnùie]di]e_̀]muqyie]qo]e_̀]appgdcmedqih]e_̀]abc_dèce]fdgg]iqedon]e_̀]
rqiebmceqb]mil]zfìb]mj]pbqkdl̀l]di]~̀cedqi]����w�]�o]e_̀]rqiebmceqb]mil]abc_dèce]cmiiqe]m}b̀̀]qi]m]b̀kdj̀l]muqyieh]
e_̀]abc_dèce]fdgg]pbqupegn]djjỳ]m]r̀bedodcmè]oqb]tmnùie]oqb]e_̀]muqyieh]do]minh]]oqb]f_dc_]e_̀]abc_dèce]dj]m�g̀]eq]
um�̀]jyc_]b̀pb̀j̀iemedqij]eq]e_̀]zfìb�]̂_̀]abc_dèce]umn]mgjq]fde__qgl]m]r̀bedodcmè]oqb]tmnùie]qbh]�̀cmyj̀]qo]
jy�j̀�ỳiegn]ldjcqk̀b̀l]̀kdl̀ic̀h]umn]iyggdon]e_̀]f_qg̀]qb]m]pmbe]qo]m]r̀bedodcmè]oqb]tmnùie]pb̀kdqyjgn]djjỳlh]eq]
jyc_]̀�èie]mj]umn]�̀]ìc̀jjmbn]di]e_̀]abc_dècesj]qpdidqi]eq]pbqèce]e_̀]zfìb]obqu]gqjj]oqb]f_dc_]e_̀]rqiebmceqb]dj]
b̀jpqijd�g̀h]dicgyldi}]gqjj]b̀jygedi}]obqu]mcej]mil]qudjjdqij]l̀jcbd�̀l]di]~̀cedqi]����|h]�̀cmyj̀]qo

L\ l̀òcedk̀]�qb�]iqe]b̀ùld̀l{
L� e_dbl]pmben]cgmduj]odg̀l]qb]b̀mjqim�g̀]̀kdl̀ic̀]dildcmedi}]pbq�m�g̀]odgdi}]qo]jyc_]cgmdujh]yig̀jj]j̀cybden]

mcc̀pem�g̀]eq]e_̀]zfìb]dj]pbqkdl̀l]�n]e_̀]rqiebmceqb{
L� omdgyb̀]qo]e_̀]rqiebmceqb]eq]um�̀]pmnùiej]pbqp̀bgn]eq]~y�cqiebmceqbj]qb]jyppgd̀bj]oqb]gm�qbh]umèbdmgj]

qb]̀�ydpùie{
LM b̀mjqim�g̀]̀kdl̀ic̀]e_me]e_̀]�qb�]cmiiqe]�̀]cqupg̀èl]oqb]e_̀]yipmdl]�mgmic̀]qo]e_̀]rqiebmce]~yu{
L� lmum}̀]eq]e_̀]zfìb]qb]m]~̀pmbmè]rqiebmceqb{
L� b̀mjqim�g̀]̀kdl̀ic̀]e_me]e_̀]�qb�]fdgg]iqe]�̀]cqupg̀èl]fde_di]e_̀]rqiebmce]̂dùh]mil]e_me]e_̀]yipmdl]

�mgmic̀]fqygl]iqe]�̀]ml̀�ymè]eq]cqk̀b]mceymg]qb]gd�ydlmèl]lmum}̀j]oqb]e_̀]miedcdpmèl]l̀gmn{]qb
L� omdgyb̀]eq]cmbbn]qye]e_̀]�qb�]di]mccqblmic̀]fde_]e_̀]rqiebmce]�qcyùiej�]
�� l̀gmn]�n]e_̀]rqiebmceqb]mil�qb]dej]~y�cqiebmceqbvjx]qo]min]ed̀bh]qb]omdgyb̀]eq]cqupgn]fde_]e_̀]
rqiebmceqbsj]rqijebycedqi]~c_̀lyg̀]lqcyùiej�
�� omdgyb̀]eq]jy�ude]moodlmkdej]p̀bemdidi}]eq]fm}̀j]pmdl]mj]b̀�ydb̀l]�n]jemeyè�
��� omdgyb̀]eq]cqupgn]fde_]m]b̀�ydb̀ùie]qo]e_̀]rqiebmce]�qcyùiej]di]f_dc_]e_̀]zfìb]_mj]b̀j̀bk̀l]
e_̀]bd}_e]eq]fde__qgl]pmnùie{]qb
��� gd�ydlmèl]lmum}̀j�

IJKL�L�]�_̀i]̀de_̀b]pmben]ldjpyèj]e_̀]abc_dècesj]l̀cdjdqi]b̀}mbldi}]m]r̀bedodcmè]oqb]tmnùie]yil̀b]~̀cedqi]����wh]di]
f_qg̀]qb]di]pmbeh]e_me]pmben]umn]jy�ude]m]rgmdu]di]mccqblmic̀]fde_]abedcg̀]w��

IJKL�L�]�_̀i]e_̀]b̀mjqij]oqb]fde__qgldi}]c̀bedodcmedqi]mb̀]b̀uqk̀lh]c̀bedodcmedqi]fdgg]�̀]uml̀]oqb]muqyiej]pb̀kdqyjgn]
fde__̀gl�

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

120



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMLNJOPQRSTQUVWSXRTWRQYXRSSZ[\]QWTVRXPXŴRXZ_QPZVQ̀̂abT_RQc_\TVQdTWRXZ_QefgfhfijQRSTQkY_TVQb̂ajQ̂RQXR]Q]Z[TQZ̀RXZ_jQ
X]]cTQlZX_RQWSTWm]QRZQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ̂_\QRZQ̂_aQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZVQZVQ]c̀ [̀XTVQRZQYSZbQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQP̂X[T\QRZQb̂mTQ
`̂abT_RQPZVQpZVmQ̀VZ̀TV[aQ̀TVPZVbT\QZVQb̂RTVX̂[QZVQTqcX̀bT_RQ]cXR̂o[aQ\T[XrTVT\fQOPQRSTQkY_TVQb̂mT]Q̀̂abT_R]QoaQ
lZX_RQWSTWmjQRSTQkY_TVQ]Ŝ[[Q_ZRXPaQRSTQUVWSXRTWRQ̂_\QRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ]Ŝ[[QVTP[TWRQ]cWSQ̀̂abT_RQZ_QXR]Q_TsRQÙ [̀XŴRXZ_Q
PZVQt̂abT_Rf

uvwxyxyvtcV]ĉ_RQRZQnŜ R̀TVQiefhzjQ{npjQ|tVTr̂X[X_}Qp }̂T]QZ_Qtco[XWQpZVm]j|QRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQYX[[Q_ZRQVTWTXrTQ̂_aQ
`̂abT_RQc_RX[QRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ̂_\Q̂[[QdcoWZ_RV̂WRZV]QZPQ̂_aQRXTVQŜrTQ]cobXRRT\Q̂Q|dR̂RTbT_RQZPQO_RT_RQRZQt̂aQtVTr̂X[X_}Q
p }̂T|QRZQRSTQkY_TVfQ~STQdR̂RTbT_RQbc]RQŜrTQRSTQ̂̀ V̀Zr̂[QZPQRSTQO_\c]RVX̂[QdR̂RX]RXWX̂_QZPQRSTQ�T̀ V̂RbT_RQZPQ�̂oZVQ
_̂\QO_\c]RVXT]QoTPZVTQXRQX]Q]cobXRRT\QRZQRSTQkY_TVfQ~STQ]R̂RTbT_R]Qbc]RQX_W[c\TQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZV�]QVT}X]RV̂RXZ_Q_cboTVjQ
RSTQ_cboTVQZVQYZVmTV]QX_QT̂WSQRV̂\TQW[̂]]XPXŴRXZ_jQ̂_\QRSTQ̂̀ [̀XŴo[TQ̀VTr̂X[X_}QŶ}TQV̂RT]fQ~STQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ̂}VTT]QRZQ
V̀ZrX\TQT̂WSQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZVQZPQ̂_aQRXTVQYXRSQ̂Q]WST\c[TQZPQ̂̀ [̀XŴo[TQ̀VTr̂X[X_}QŶ}TQV̂RT]fQ~STQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ̂_\QRSTQ
VT]̀TWRXrTQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZV]QZPQ̂_aQRXTVQ]Ŝ[[Q̀̂aQ̂[[QPTT]QVTqcXVT\QoaQRSTQ�T̀ V̂RbT_RQZPQ�̂oZVQ̂_\QO_\c]RVXT]jQX_W[c\X_}Q
PTT]QPZVQRSTQ̂̀ V̀Zr̂[QZPQ|dR̂RTbT_RQZPQO_RT_RQRZQt̂aQtVTr̂X[X_}Qp }̂T]f|QÙ V̀ZrT\QWZ̀XT]QZPQRSTQ|dR̂RTbT_RQZPQO_RT_RQRZQ
t̂aQtVTr̂X[X_}Qp }̂T]|Qbc]RQoTQ̀Z]RT\QYSTVTQYZVmTV]QŴ_QT̂]X[aQVT̂\QRSTbf

IJKL�J��������J��������
IJKL�L�QUPRTVQRSTQUVWSXRTWRQŜ]QX]]cT\Q̂QnTVRXPXŴRTQPZVQt̂abT_RjQRSTQkY_TVQ]Ŝ[[Qb̂mTQ̀̂ abT_RQX_QRSTQb̂__TVQ̂_\Q
YXRSX_QRSTQRXbTQ̀VZrX\T\QX_QRSTQnZ_RV̂WRQ�ZWcbT_R]jQ̂_\Q]Ŝ[[Q]ZQ_ZRXPaQRSTQUVWSXRTWRf

IJKL�L�Q~STQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ]Ŝ[[Q̀̂aQT̂WSQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZVjQ_ZQ[̂RTVQRŜ_Q]TrT_Q\̂a]Q̂PRTVQVTWTX̀RQZPQ̀̂abT_RQPVZbQRSTQkY_TVjQ
RSTQ̂bZc_RQRZQYSXWSQRSTQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZVQX]QT_RXR[T\jQVTP[TWRX_}Q̀TVWT_R̂}T]Q̂WRĉ[[aQVTR̂X_T\QPVZbQ̀ âbT_R]QRZQRSTQ
nZ_RV̂WRZVQZ_Q̂WWZc_RQZPQRSTQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZV�]Q̀ZVRXZ_QZPQRSTQpZVmfQ~STQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ]Ŝ[[jQoaQ̂̀ V̀Z̀VX̂RTQ̂}VTTbT_RQ
YXRSQT̂WSQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZVjQVTqcXVTQT̂WSQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZVQRZQb̂mTQ̀̂abT_R]QRZQdco�]coWZ_RV̂WRZV]QX_Q̂Q]XbX[̂VQb̂__TVf

IJKL�L�Q~STQUVWSXRTWRQYX[[jQZ_QVTqcT]RjQPcV_X]SQRZQ̂QdcoWZ_RV̂WRZVjQXPQ̀V̂WRXŴo[TjQX_PZVb̂RXZ_QVT}̂V\X_}Q̀TVWT_R̂}T]QZPQ
WZb̀ [TRXZ_QZVQ̂bZc_R]Q̂̀ [̀XT\QPZVQoaQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ̂_\Q̂WRXZ_QR̂mT_QRSTVTZ_QoaQRSTQUVWSXRTWRQ̂_\QkY_TVQZ_Q̂WWZc_RQ
ZPQ̀ZVRXZ_]QZPQRSTQpZVmQ\Z_TQoaQ]cWSQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZVf

IJKL�LNQ~STQkY_TVQŜ]QRSTQVX}SRQRZQVTqcT]RQYVXRRT_QTrX\T_WTQPVZbQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQRŜRQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQŜ]Q̀VZ̀TV[aQ̀̂X\Q
dcoWZ_RV̂WRZV]Q̂_\Q]c̀ [̀XTV]Q̂bZc_R]Q̀̂X\QoaQRSTQkY_TVQRZQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQPZVQ]coWZ_RV̂WRT\QpZVmfQOPQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ
P̂X[]QRZQPcV_X]SQ]cWSQTrX\T_WTQYXRSX_Q]TrT_Q\̂a]jQRSTQkY_TVQ]Ŝ[[QŜrTQRSTQVX}SRQRZQWZ_R̂WRQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZV]Q̂_\Q]c̀ [̀XTV]Q
RZQ̂]WTVR̂X_QYSTRSTVQRSTaQŜrTQoTT_Q̀VZ̀TV[aQ̀̂X\fQ�TXRSTVQRSTQkY_TVQ_ZVQUVWSXRTWRQ]Ŝ[[QŜrTQ̂_QZo[X}̂RXZ_QRZQ̀̂ajQZVQ
RZQ]TTQRZQRSTQ̀̂abT_RQZPQbZ_TaQRZjQ̂QdcoWZ_RV̂WRZVQZVQ]c̀ [̀XTVjQTsWT̀RQ̂]Qb̂aQZRSTVYX]TQoTQVTqcXVT\QoaQ[̂Yf

IJKL�LMQ~STQnZ_RV̂WRZV�]Q̀̂abT_R]QRZQ]c̀ [̀XTV]Q]Ŝ[[QoTQRVT̂RT\QX_Q̂Qb̂__TVQ]XbX[̂VQRZQRŜRQ̀VZrX\T\QX_QdTWRXZ_]Qef�fzjQ
ef�fiQ̂_\Qef�f�f

IJKL�L�QUQnTVRXPXŴRTQPZVQt̂abT_RjQ̂Q̀VZ}VT]]Q̀̂ abT_RjQZVQ̀̂ VRX̂[QZVQT_RXVTQc]TQZVQZWWc̀ _̂WaQZPQRSTQtVZlTWRQoaQRSTQ
kY_TVQ]Ŝ[[Q_ZRQWZ_]RXRcRTQ̂WWT̀R̂_WTQZPQpZVmQ_ZRQX_Q̂WWZV\̂_WTQYXRSQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRQ�ZWcbT_R]f

IJKL�L�Q�_[T]]QRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ̀VZrX\T]QRSTQkY_TVQYXRSQ̂Q̀̂ abT_RQoZ_\QX_QRSTQPc[[Q̀T_̂[Q]cbQZPQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRQdcbjQ
`̂abT_R]QVTWTXrT\QoaQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQPZVQpZVmQ̀VZ̀TV[aQ̀TVPZVbT\QoaQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZV]QZVQ̀VZrX\T\QoaQ]c̀ [̀XTV]Q]Ŝ[[QoTQ
ST[\QoaQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQPZVQRSZ]TQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZV]QZVQ]c̀ [̀XTV]QYSZQ̀TVPZVbT\QpZVmQZVQPcV_X]ST\Qb̂RTVX̂[]jQZVQoZRSjQ
c_\TVQWZ_RV̂WRQYXRSQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQPZVQYSXWSQ̀̂abT_RQŶ]Qb̂\TQoaQRSTQkY_TVfQ�ZRSX_}QWZ_R̂X_T\QSTVTX_Q]Ŝ[[QVTqcXVTQ
bZ_TaQRZQoTQ̀[̂WT\QX_Q̂Q]T̀ V̂̂RTQ̂WWZc_RQ̂_\Q_ZRQWZbbX_}[T\QYXRSQbZ_TaQZPQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVjQWVT̂RTQ̂_aQPX\cWX̂VaQ
[X̂oX[XRaQZVQRZVRQ[X̂oX[XRaQZ_QRSTQ̀̂VRQZPQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQPZVQoVT̂WSQZPQRVc]RjQZVQT_RXR[TQ̂_aQ̀TV]Z_QZVQT_RXRaQRZQ̂_Q̂ŶV\QZPQ
c̀_XRXrTQ\̂b̂}T]Q̂}̂X_]RQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQPZVQoVT̂WSQZPQRSTQVTqcXVTbT_R]QZPQRSX]Q̀VZrX]XZ_f

IJKL�L�JtVZrX\T\QRSTQkY_TVQŜ]QPc[PX[[T\QXR]Q̀̂abT_RQZo[X}̂RXZ_]Qc_\TVQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRQ�ZWcbT_R]jQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQ]Ŝ[[Q
\TPT_\Q̂_\QX_\Tb_XPaQRSTQkY_TVQPVZbQ̂[[Q[Z]]jQ[X̂oX[XRajQ\̂b̂}TQZVQTs̀T_]TjQX_W[c\X_}QVT̂]Z_̂o[TQ̂RRZV_Ta�]QPTT]Q̂_\Q
[XRX}̂RXZ_QTs̀T_]T]jQ̂VX]X_}QZcRQZPQ̂_aQ[XT_QW[̂XbQZVQZRSTVQW[̂XbQPZVQ̀̂abT_RQoaQ̂_aQdcoWZ_RV̂WRZVQZVQ]c̀ [̀XTVQZPQ̂_aQ
RXTVfQ�̀Z_QVTWTX̀RQZPQ_ZRXWTQZPQ̂Q[XT_QW[̂XbQZVQZRSTVQW[̂XbQPZVQ̀ âbT_RjQRSTQkY_TVQ]Ŝ[[Q_ZRXPaQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVfQOPQ
^̀ V̀ZrT\QoaQRSTQ̂̀ [̀XŴo[TQWZcVRjQYST_QVTqcXVT\jQRSTQnZ_RV̂WRZVQb̂aQ]co]RXRcRTQ̂Q]cVTRaQoZ_\QPZVQRSTQ̀VZ̀TVRaQ̂}̂X_]RQ
YSXWSQRSTQ[XT_QZVQZRSTVQW[̂XbQPZVQ̀̂abT_RQŜ]QoTT_Q̂]]TVRT\f

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

121



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GG

HIJKLIMNOPQRSITUIVNWXSYZ
[\]̂_̀]abc_d̂̀ĉ]ef̀g]hf̂]dggì]j]k̀b̂d\dcĵ̀]\fb]ljmǹ ĥo]̂_bfip_]hf]\jiq̂]f\]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfbo]rd̂_dh]g̀s̀h]ejmg]j\̂̀b]
b̀c̀dt̂]f\]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfbug]attqdcĵdfh]\fb]ljmǹ ĥo]fb]d\]̂_̀]vrh̀b]ef̀g]hf̂]tjm]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]rd̂_dh]g̀s̀h]ejmg]
j\̂̀b]̂_̀]eĵ̀]̀ĝjwqdg_̀e]dh]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉ]xfciǹ ĥgo]̂_̀]jnfiĥ]c̀b̂d\d̀e]wm]̂_̀]abc_d̂̀ĉ]fb]jrjbèe]wm]wdhedhp]
edgtî̀]b̀gfqîdfho]̂_̀h]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]njmo]itfh]g̀s̀h]jeed̂dfhjq]ejmgu]rbd̂̀̂ h]hf̂dc̀]̂f]̂_̀]vrh̀b]jhe]abc_d̂̀ĉo]
ĝft]̂_̀]yfbz]iĥdq]tjmǹ ĥ]f\]̂_̀]jnfiĥ]frdhp]_jg]ẁ h̀]b̀c̀ds̀e{]|_̀]kfĥbjĉ]|dǹ]g_jqq]ẁ]̀}̂̀hèe]
jttbftbdĵ̀qm]jhe]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉ]~in]g_jqq]ẁ]dhcb̀jg̀e]wm]̂_̀]jnfiĥ]f\]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfbug]b̀jgfhjwq̀]cfĝg]dhcibb̀e]\fb]
g_îefrho]èqjm]jhe]ĝjb̂�ito]tqig]dĥ̀ b̀ĝ]jg]tbfsdèe]\fb]dh]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉ]xfciǹ ĥg{

HIJK�I�Q��ZNYZONPI�TX�PSZOTY
HIJK�K�]~iwĝjĥdjq]kfntq̀̂dfh]dg]̂_̀]ĝjp̀]dh]̂_̀]tbfpb̀gg]f\]̂_̀]yfbz]r_̀h]̂_̀]yfbz]fb]ègdphĵ̀e]tfb̂dfh]̂_̀b̀f\]dg]
gi\\dcd̀ĥqm]cfntq̀̂ ]̀dh]jccfbejhc̀]rd̂_]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉ]xfciǹ ĥg]gf]̂_ĵ]̂_̀]vrh̀b]cjh]fccitm]fb]îdqd�̀]̂_̀]yfbz]\fb]
d̂g]dĥ̀hèe]ig̀{

HIJK�K�]y_̀h]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]cfhgdèbg]̂_ĵ]̂_̀]yfbzo]fb]j]tfb̂dfh]̂_̀b̀f\]r_dc_]̂_̀]vrh̀b]jpb̀̀g]̂f]jcc̀t̂]
g̀tjbĵ̀qmo]dg]giwĝjĥdjqqm]cfntq̀̂ ò]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]g_jqq]tb̀tjb̀]jhe]giwnd̂]̂f]̂_̀]abc_d̂̀ĉ]j]cfntb̀_̀hgds̀]qdĝ]f\]
d̂̀ng]̂f]ẁ]cfntq̀̂ è]fb]cfbb̀ĉ̀e]tbdfb]̂f]\dhjq]tjmǹ ĥ{]�jdqib̀]̂f]dhcqiè]jh]d̂̀n]fh]gic_]qdĝ]ef̀g]hf̂]jq̂̀b]̂_̀]
b̀gtfhgdwdqd̂m]f\]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]̂f]cfntq̀̂ ]̀jqq]yfbz]dh]jccfbejhc̀]rd̂_]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉ]xfciǹ ĥg{

HIJK�K�]�tfh]b̀c̀dt̂]f\]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfbug]qdĝo]̂_̀]abc_d̂̀ĉ]rdqq]njz̀]jh]dhgt̀ĉdfh]̂f]è^̀bndh̀]r_̀ _̂̀b]̂_̀]yfbz]fb]
ègdphĵ̀e]tfb̂dfh]̂_̀b̀f\]dg]giwĝjĥdjqqm]cfntq̀̂ {̀][\]̂_̀]abc_d̂̀ĉug]dhgt̀ĉdfh]edgcqfg̀g]jhm]d̂̀no]r_̀ _̂̀b]fb]hf̂]
dhcqièe]fh]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfbug]qdĝo]r_dc_]dg]hf̂]gi\\dcd̀ĥqm]cfntq̀̂ ]̀dh]jccfbejhc̀]rd̂_]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉ]xfciǹ ĥg]gf]
_̂ĵ]̂_̀]vrh̀b]cjh]fccitm]fb]îdqd�̀]̂_̀]yfbz]fb]ègdphĵ̀e]tfb̂dfh]̂_̀b̀f\]\fb]d̂g]dĥ̀hèe]ig̀o]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]g_jqqo]
ẁ\fb̀]dggijhc̀]f\]̂_̀]k̀b̂d\dcĵ̀]f\]~iwĝjĥdjq]kfntq̀̂dfho]cfntq̀̂ ]̀fb]cfbb̀ĉ]gic_]d̂̀n]itfh]hf̂d\dcĵdfh]wm]̂_̀]
abc_d̂̀ĉ{][h]gic_]cjg̀o]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]g_jqq]̂_̀h]giwnd̂]j]b̀�ìĝ]\fb]jhf̂_̀b]dhgt̀ĉdfh]wm]̂_̀]abc_d̂̀ĉ]̂f]è^̀bndh̀]
~iwĝjĥdjq]kfntq̀̂dfh{

HIJK�K�]y_̀h]̂_̀]yfbz]fb]ègdphĵ̀e]tfb̂dfh]̂_̀b̀f\]dg]giwĝjĥdjqqm]cfntq̀̂ ò]̂_̀]abc_d̂̀ĉ]rdqq]tb̀tjb̀]j]k̀b̂d\dcĵ̀]
f\]~iwĝjĥdjq]kfntq̀̂dfh]̂_ĵ]g_jqq]̀ĝjwqdg_]̂_̀]eĵ̀]f\]~iwĝjĥdjq]kfntq̀̂dfh�]̀ĝjwqdg_]b̀gtfhgdwdqd̂d̀g]f\]̂_̀]
vrh̀b]jhe]kfĥbjĉfb]\fb]g̀cibd̂mo]njdĥ̀hjhc̀o]_̀ĵo]îdqd̂d̀go]ejnjp̀]̂f]̂_̀]yfbz]jhe]dhgibjhc̀�]jhe]\d}]̂_̀]̂dǹ]
rd̂_dh]r_dc_]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]g_jqq]\dhdg_]jqq]d̂̀ng]fh]̂_̀]qdĝ]jccfntjhmdhp]̂_̀]k̀b̂d\dcĵ̀{]yjbbjĥd̀g]b̀�idb̀e]wm]̂_̀]
kfĥbjĉ]xfciǹ ĥg]g_jqq]cfnǹhc̀]fh]̂_̀]eĵ̀]f\]~iwĝjĥdjq]kfntq̀̂dfh]f\]̂_̀]yfbz]fb]ègdphĵ̀e]tfb̂dfh]̂_̀b̀f\]
ihq̀gg]f̂_̀brdg̀]tbfsdèe]dh]̂_̀]k̀b̂d\dcĵ̀]f\]~iwĝjĥdjq]kfntq̀̂dfh{

HIJK�K�]|_̀]k̀b̂d\dcĵ̀]f\]~iwĝjĥdjq]kfntq̀̂dfh]g_jqq]ẁ]giwnd̂̀̂ e]̂f]̂_̀]vrh̀b]jhe]kfĥbjĉfb]\fb]̂_̀db]rbd̂̀̂ h]
jcc̀t̂jhc̀]f\]b̀gtfhgdwdqd̂d̀g]jggdph̀e]̂f]̂_̀n]dh]̂_̀]k̀b̂d\dcĵ̀{]�tfh]gic_]jcc̀t̂jhc̀]jhe]cfhg̀ĥ]f\]gib̀̂mo]d\]jhmo]
_̂̀]vrh̀b]g_jqq]]b̀eic̀]̂_̀]b]rd̂__̀qeo]d\]jhe]jg]tbfsdèe]̀qg̀r_̀b̀]dh]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉ]xfciǹ ĥg{]ahm]cqjdng]hf̂]gf]
ĵ̂jc_̀e]jhe]dèĥd\d̀eo]f̂_̀b]̂_jh]b̀̂jdhjp̀]jhe]̂_̀]ihedgtî̀e]wjqjhc̀]f\]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉ]~ino]g_jqq]ẁ]è ǹ̀e]rjds̀e]
jhe]jwjhefh̀e{][\]̂_̀]vrh̀b]fb]abc_d̂̀ĉ]è^̀bndh̀g]̂_̀]yfbz]fb]ègdphĵ̀e]tfb̂dfh]dg]hf̂]giwĝjĥdjqqm]cfntq̀̂ ò]̂_̀]
kfĥbjĉfb]g_jqq]̀}t̀ed̂dfigqm]cfntq̀̂ ]̀̂_̀]yfbz]fb]ègdphĵ̀e]tfb̂dfho]jpjdh]b̀�ìĝ]jh]dhgt̀ĉdfho]jhe]tjm]̂_̀]cfĝg]
jggfcdĵ̀e]rd̂_]̂_̀]b̀dhgt̀ĉdfhgo]dhcqiedhp]\̀̀g]f\]̂_̀]abc_d̂̀ĉ]jhe]cfhgiq̂jĥg]f\]̂_̀]abc_d̂̀ĉ]jhe]vrh̀b{

���������tfh]gic_]jcc̀t̂jhc̀]jhe]cfhg̀ĥ]f\]gib̀̂mo]d\]jhmo]̂_̀]vrh̀b]g_jqq]njz̀]tjmǹ ĥ]f\]b̀̂jdhjp̀]jttqmdhp]̂f]
gic_]yfbz]fb]ègdphĵ̀e]tfb̂dfh]̂_̀b̀f\{]~ic_]tjmǹ ĥ]g_jqq]ẁ]je�iĝ̀e]\fb]yfbz]̂_ĵ]dg]dhcfntq̀̂ ]̀fb]hf̂]dh]
jccfbejhc̀]rd̂_]̂_̀]b̀�idb̀ǹ ĥg]f\]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉ]xfciǹ ĥg{

HIJKJIVNRZONPI���Q�NY�WITRI��S
HIJKJK�]|_̀]vrh̀b]njm]fccitm]fb]ig̀]jhm]cfntq̀̂ è]fb]tjb̂djqqm]cfntq̀̂ è]tfb̂dfh]f\]̂_̀]yfbz]ĵ]jhm]ĝjp̀]r_̀h]
gic_]tfb̂dfh]dg]ègdphĵ̀e]wm]g̀tjbĵ̀]jpb̀̀ ǹ ĥ]rd̂_]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfbo]tbfsdèe]gic_]fccitjhcm]fb]ig̀]dg]cfhg̀ĥ̀e]̂f]
wm]̂_̀]dhgib̀b]jhe]jî_fbd�̀e]wm]tiwqdc]jî_fbd̂d̀g]_jsdhp]�ibdgedĉdfh]fs̀b]̂_̀]lbf�̀ĉ{]~ic_]tjb̂djq]fccitjhcm]fb]ig̀]
njm]cfnǹhc̀]r_̀ _̂̀b]fb]hf̂]̂_̀]tfb̂dfh]dg]giwĝjĥdjqqm]cfntq̀̂ ò]tbfsdèe]̂_̀]vrh̀b]jhe]kfĥbjĉfb]_js̀]
jcc̀t̂̀e]dh]rbd̂dhp]̂_̀]b̀gtfhgdwdqd̂d̀g]jggdph̀e]̂f]̀jc_]f\]̂_̀n]\fb]tjmǹ ĥgo]b̀̂jdhjp̀o]d\]jhmo]g̀cibd̂mo]njdĥ̀hjhc̀o]
_̀ĵo]îdqd̂d̀go]ejnjp̀]̂f]̂_̀]yfbz]jhe]dhgibjhc̀o]jhe]_js̀]jpb̀̀e]dh]rbd̂dhp]cfhc̀bhdhp]̂_̀]t̀bdfe]\fb]cfbb̀ĉdfh]f\]
_̂̀]yfbz]jhe]cfnǹhc̀ǹ ĥ]f\]rjbbjĥd̀g]b̀�idb̀e]wm]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉ]xfciǹ ĥg{]y_̀h]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]cfhgdèbg]j]
tfb̂dfh]giwĝjĥdjqqm]cfntq̀̂ ò]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]g_jqq]tb̀tjb̀]jhe]giwnd̂]j]qdĝ]̂f]̂_̀]abc_d̂̀ĉ]jg]tbfsdèe]ihèb]
~̀ĉdfh]�{�{�{]kfhg̀ĥ]f\]̂_̀]kfĥbjĉfb]̂f]tjb̂djq]fccitjhcm]fb]ig̀]g_jqq]hf̂]ẁ]ihb̀jgfhjwqm]rd̂__̀qe{]|_̀]ĝjp̀]f\]

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

122



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNOPNKQQLORLIJKLSONTLQJUVVLWKLXKIKNYZ[KXLW\L]NZIIK[LUPNKKYK[ILWKI]KK[LIJKL̂][KNLU[XL_O[INÙIONLONaLZRL[OL
UPNKKYK[ILZQLNKÙJKXaLW\LXK̀ZQZO[LORLIJKLbǸJZIK̀Ic

defgfghLiYYKXZUIKV\LMNZONLIOLQj̀JLMUNIZUVLÒ j̀MU[̀\LONLjQKaLIJKL̂][KNaL_O[INÙIONaLU[XLbǸJZIK̀ILQJUVVLkOZ[IV\LZ[QMK̀IL
IJKLUNKULIOLWKLÒ j̀MZKXLONLMONIZO[LORLIJKLSONTLIOLWKLjQKXLZ[LONXKNLIOLXKIKNYZ[KLU[XLNK̀ONXLIJKL̀O[XZIZO[LORLIJKLSONTc

defgfglLm[VKQQLOIJKN]ZQKLUPNKKXLjMO[aLMUNIZUVLÒ j̀MU[̀\LONLjQKLORLULMONIZO[LONLMONIZO[QLORLIJKLSONTLQJUVVL[OIL̀O[QIZIjIKL
Ù K̀MIU[̀KLORLSONTL[OIL̀OYMV\Z[PL]ZIJLIJKLNKnjZNKYK[IQLORLIJKL_O[INÙILoÒjYK[IQc

defgpqerstuvewxyzv{|sxteut}erstuve~u�y{t|
defgpqgpLmMO[LNK̀KZMILORLIJKL_O[INÙION�QL[OIZ̀KLIJUILIJKLSONTLZQLNKUX\LRONLRZ[UVLZ[QMK̀IZO[LU[XLÙ K̀MIU[̀KLU[XLjMO[L
NK̀KZMILORLULRZ[UVLbMMVZ̀UIZO[LRONL�U\YK[IaLIJKLbǸJZIK̀IL]ZVVLMNOYMIV\LYUTKLQj̀JLZ[QMK̀IZO[cLSJK[LIJKLbǸJZIK̀ILRZ[XQL
IJKLSONTLÙ K̀MIUWVKLj[XKNLIJKL_O[INÙILoÒjYK[IQLU[XLIJKL_O[INÙILRjVV\LMKNRONYKXaLIJKLbǸJZIK̀IL]ZVVLMNOYMIV\L
ZQQjKLULRZ[UVL_KNIZRZ̀UIKLRONL�U\YK[ILQIUIZ[PLIJUILIOLIJKLWKQILORLIJKLbǸJZIK̀I�QLT[O]VKXPKaLZ[RONYUIZO[LU[XLWKVZKRaLU[XL
O[LIJKLWUQZQLORLIJKLbǸJZIK̀I�QLO[�QZIKL�ZQZIQLU[XLZ[QMK̀IZO[QaLIJKLSONTLJUQLWKK[L̀OYMVKIKXLZ[LÙ ÒNXU[̀KL]ZIJLIJKL
_O[INÙILoÒjYK[IQLU[XLIJUILIJKLK[IZNKLWUVU[̀KLROj[XLIOLWKLXjKLIJKL_O[INÙIONLU[XL[OIKXLZ[LIJKLRZ[UVL_KNIZRZ̀UIKLZQLXjKL
U[XLMU\UWVKcL�JKLbǸJZIK̀I�QLRZ[UVL_KNIZRZ̀UIKLRONL�U\YK[IL]ZVVL̀O[QIZIjIKLULRjNIJKNLNKMNKQK[IUIZO[LIJUIL̀O[XZIZO[QLVZQIKXL
Z[L�K̀IZO[L�c��c�LUQLMNK̀KXK[ILIOLIJKL_O[INÙION�QLWKZ[PLK[IZIVKXLIOLRZ[UVLMU\YK[ILJU�KLWKK[LRjVRZVVKXcLiRLUIL��LXU\QLURIKNL
IJKLoUIKLORL�jWQIU[IZUVL_OYMVKIZO[aLIJKL̂][KNL̀O[QZXKNQLIJUILIJKLMj[̀JVZQILORLZIKYQLUNKLj[VZTKV\LIOLWKL̀OYMVKIKXL
]ZIJZ[L��LXU\QLORL�jWQIU[IZUVL_OYMVKIZO[aLIJKL̂][KNLYU\aLjMO[LQK�K[L���LXU\QL]NZIIK[L[OIZ̀KLIOLIJKL_O[INÙIONaL
IKNYZ[UIKLIJKL_O[INÙION�QL]ONTLO[LQOYKLONLUVVLORLIJKLMj[̀JVZQILZIKYQLU[XLIUTKLO�KNLU[XLMKNRONYLIJOQKLMj[̀JVZQILZIKYQcL
�JKL̂][KNLQJUVVLXKXj̀ILIJKLÙIjUVL̀OQILORLMKNRONYZ[PLIJZQLMj[̀JVZQIL]ONTaLZ[̀VjXZ[PLU[\LXKQZP[L̀OQIQaLMVjQL���LIOL
Ù Òj[ILRONLIJKL̂][KN�QLINU[QÙIZO[L̀OQIQLRNOYLIJKL_O[INÙIL�jYc

iRLIJKLbǸJZIK̀ILXKIKNYZ[KQLIJUILQOYKLONLUVVLORLIJKLMj[̀JVZQILZIKYQLUNKL[OIL̀OYMVKIKXaLIJKL_O[INÙIONLQJUVVLWKL
NKQMO[QZWVKLIOLIJKL̂][KNLRONLUVVL̀OQIQaLZ[̀VjXZ[PLNKZ[QMK̀IZO[QLRKKQaLRONLU[\LQjWQKnjK[ILbǸJZIK̀ILZ[QMK̀IZO[LIOL
XKIKNYZ[KL̀OYMVZU[̀KL]ZIJLIJKLMj[̀JVZQIcLSJK[LIJKLbǸJZIK̀ILRZ[XQLUVVLMj[̀JVZQILZIKYQL̀OYMVKIKL�ONLIJKL̂][KNLJUQL
UPNKKXLIOLÙ K̀MILULXKMOQZILRNOYLIJKL_O[INÙIONLIOLQK̀jNKLRjIjNKL̀OYMVKIZO[LORLXKQZP[UIKXLMj[̀JVZQILZIKYQ�aLIJKLSONTL
Ù K̀MIUWVKLj[XKNLIJKL_O[INÙILoÒjYK[IQLU[XLIJKL_O[INÙILRjVV\LMKNRONYKXaLIJKLbǸJZIK̀IL]ZVVLMNOYMIV\L[OIZR\LIJKL
]̂[KNLU[XLIJKL_O[INÙIONLZ[L]NZIZ[PLIOLIJKLWKQILORLIJKLbǸJZIK̀I�QLT[O]VKXPKaLZ[RONYUIZO[LU[XLWKVZKRaLU[XLO[LIJKLWUQZQL
ORLIJKLbǸJZIK̀I�QLO[�QZIKL�ZQZIQLU[XLZ[QMK̀IZO[QaLIJKLSONTLJUQLWKK[L̀OYMVKIKXLZ[LÙ ÒNXU[̀KL]ZIJLIKNYQLU[XL̀O[XZIZO[QL
ORLIJKL_O[INÙILoÒjYK[IQc

defgpqghL�KZIJKNLRZ[UVLMU\YK[IL[ONLU[\LNKYUZ[Z[PLNKIUZ[KXLMKǸK[IUPKLQJUVVLWK̀OYKLXjKLj[IZVLIJKL_O[INÙIONLQjWYZIQLIOL
IJKLbǸJZIK̀IL���LU[LURRZXU�ZILIJUILMU\NOVVQaLWZVVQLRONLYUIKNZUVQLU[XLKnjZMYK[IaLU[XLOIJKNLZ[XKWIKX[KQQL̀O[[K̀IKXL]ZIJL
IJKLSONTLRONL]JZ̀JLIJKL̂][KNLONLIJKL̂][KN�QLMNOMKNI\LYZPJILWKLNKQMO[QZWVKLONLK[̀jYWKNKXL�VKQQLUYOj[IQL]ZIJJKVXL
W\L̂][KN�LJU�KLWKK[LMUZXLONLOIJKN]ZQKLQUIZQRZKXaL���LUL̀KNIZRZ̀UIKLK�ZXK[̀Z[PLIJUILZ[QjNU[̀KLNKnjZNKXLW\LIJKL_O[INÙIL
oÒjYK[IQLIOLNKYUZ[LZ[LROǸKLURIKNLRZ[UVLMU\YK[ILZQL̀jNNK[IV\LZ[LKRRK̀IaL���LUL]NZIIK[LQIUIKYK[ILIJUILIJKL_O[INÙIONL
T[O]QLORL[OLNKUQO[LIJUILIJKLZ[QjNU[̀KL]ZVVL[OILWKLNK[K]UWVKLIOL̀O�KNLIJKLMKNZOXLNKnjZNKXLW\LIJKL_O[INÙILoÒjYK[IQaL
���L̀O[QK[ILORLQjNKI\aLZRLU[\aLIOLRZ[UVLMU\YK[IaL���LXÒjYK[IUIZO[LORLU[\LQMK̀ZUVL]UNNU[IZKQaLQj̀JLUQLYU[jRÙIjNKNQ�L
]UNNU[IZKQLONLQMK̀ZRZ̀L�jẀO[INÙIONL]UNNU[IZKQaL���LZRLNKnjZNKXLW\LIJKL̂][KNaLOIJKNLXUIULKQIUWVZQJZ[PLMU\YK[ILONL
QUIZQRÙIZO[LORLOWVZPUIZO[QaLQj̀JLUQLNK̀KZMIQLU[XLNKVKUQKQLU[XL]UZ�KNQLORLVZK[QaL̀VUZYQaLQK̀jNZI\LZ[IKNKQIQaLONL
K[̀jYWNU[̀KQLUNZQZ[PLOjILORLIJKL_O[INÙIaLIOLIJKLK�IK[ILU[XLZ[LQj̀JLRONYLUQLYU\LWKLXKQZP[UIKXLW\LIJKL̂][KNcLiRLUL
�jẀO[INÙIONLNKRjQKQLIOLRjN[ZQJLULNKVKUQKLONL]UZ�KNLNKnjZNKXLW\LIJKL̂][KNaLIJKL_O[INÙIONLYU\LRjN[ZQJLULWO[XL
QUIZQRÙION\LIOLIJKL̂][KNLIOLZ[XKY[ZR\LIJKL̂][KNLUPUZ[QILQj̀JLVZK[aL̀VUZYaLQK̀jNZI\LZ[IKNKQIaLONLK[̀jYWNU[̀KcLiRLULVZK[aL
V̀UZYaLQK̀jNZI\LZ[IKNKQIaLONLK[̀jYWNU[̀KLNKYUZ[QLj[QUIZQRZKXLURIKNLMU\YK[IQLUNKLYUXKaLIJKL_O[INÙIONLQJUVVLNKRj[XLIOL
IJKL̂][KNLUVVLYO[K\LIJUILIJKL̂][KNLYU\LWKL̀OYMKVVKXLIOLMU\LZ[LXZQ̀JUNPZ[PLIJKLVZK[aL̀VUZYaLQK̀jNZI\LZ[IKNKQIaLONL
K[̀jYWNU[̀KaLZ[̀VjXZ[PLUVVL̀OQIQLU[XLNKUQO[UWVKLUIION[K\Q�LRKKQ�L���LMjNQjU[ILIOL��c��c���aL�_SaLU[XL�bRRZXU�ZILORL
SUPKQL�UZX�LRNOYLIJKL_O[INÙIONLU[XLRNOYLKÙJL�jẀO[INÙIONLORLU[\LIZKNL̀KNIZRZKXLW\LIJKLi[XjQINZUVL�IUIZQIZ̀ZU[LORLIJKL
oKMUNIYK[ILORL�UWONLU[XLi[XjQINZKQaL]ZIJLIJKLRKKQLMUZXLW\LIJKL_O[INÙIONLONL�jẀO[INÙIONLORLU[\LIZKNL���LMjNQjU[ILIOL
�_SL��c��c���aLUL̀KNIZRZ̀UIKLRNOYLIJKLoKMUNIYK[ILORL�K�K[jKaLMjNQjU[ILIOL_JUMIKNL��c��aL�_SLUL̀KNIZRZ̀UIKLRNOYLIJKL
oKMUNIYK[ILORL�YMVO\YK[IL�K̀jNZI\aLU[XLUL̀KNIZRZ̀UIKLRNOYLIJKLoKMUNIYK[ILORL�UWONLU[XLi[XjQINZKQL���L_KNIZRZ̀UIZO[L
IJUILIJKLYUIKNZUVQLZ[LIJKLSONTLUNKL�VKUX�RNKK�LU[XL�UQWKQIOQ�RNKKa�LU[XL����LUVVL]UNNU[IZKQaLPjUNU[IKKQaLYU[jUVQaL
OMKNUIZO[LZ[QINj̀IZO[QaL̀KNIZRZ̀UIKQaLQMUNKLMUNIQaLYUZ[IK[U[̀KLQIÒTaLQMK̀ZRZKXLK�̀KQQaLYUIKNZUVaLUQ�WjZVILXNU]Z[PQLU[XL
OIJKNLXÒjYK[IQLONLZIKYQLNKnjZNKXLW\LIJKL_O[INÙILoÒjYK[IQc

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

123



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNLOLMJPQRSQTUVWVXWYZT[V\RW]̂_̀abWcYdbWYXe[f\VgXUWXhWVZ\WYXUVRTiVWdXRjWSZTffWXiiQRWQ[XUWkgUTfWlii\[VTUi\_

IJKLMNLOLOJmhWTWnQoiXUVRTiVXRWXhWTUpWVg\RWR\hQS\SWVXWhQRUgSZWTWR\f\TS\WXhWqTgr\RWR\sQgR\tWopWVZ\WuqU\RbWVZ\WuqU\RWeTpW
vTwWR\VTgUWVZ\WhQUtbWTiiXQUVbWXRW\SiRXqWhQUtSWSQiZWTeXQUVWTSWVXWt\hRTpWVZ\WiXSVWXhWhXR\ifXSgUxWVZ\Wfg\USWXhWSQiZWifTgeSW
TUtWVXW[TpWTVVXRU\pySWh\\SbWVZ\WVXVTfWXhWqZgiZWSZTffWo\WUXWf\SSWVZTUWz{̂|WXhWVZ\WifTge\tWTeXQUVWXRWvowWTii\[VWTWoXUtW
hRXeWVZ\WYXUVRTiVXRbWSTVgShTiVXRpWVXWVZ\WuqU\RbWVXWgUt\eUghpWVZ\WuqU\RWTxTgUSVWTUpWSQiZWTWfg\U_WmhWTUpWSQiZWfg\UW
R\eTgUSWQUSTVgShg\tWThV\RWTffW[Tpe\UVSWhRXeWVZ\WR\VTgUTx\WTR\WeTt\bWVZ\WYXUVRTiVXRWSZTffWR\hQUtWVXWVZ\WuqU\RWTffWeXU\pW
VZTVWVZ\WuqU\RWeTpWo\WiXe[\ff\tWVXW[TpWgUWtgSiZTRxgUxWSQiZWfg\UbWgUifQtgUxWTffWiXSVSWTUtWR\TSXUTof\WTVVXRU\pySWh\\S_

IJKLMNLOL}J~g\UW�XVgi\SWSZTffWo\Wt\fgr\R\tWVXWuqU\RWTUtWTWiX[pWSZTffWo\WSQoegVV\tWVXWVZ\WlRiZgV\iV_

��������WmhbWThV\RWnQoSVTUVgTfWYXe[f\VgXUWXhWVZ\WdXRjbWhgUTfWiXe[f\VgXUWVZ\R\XhWgSWeTV\RgTffpWt\fTp\tWVZRXQxZWUXWhTQfVW
XhWVZ\WYXUVRTiVXRWXRWopWgSSQTUi\WXhWYZTUx\WuRt\RSWThh\iVgUxWhgUTfWiXe[f\VgXUbWTUtWVZ\WlRiZgV\iVWSXWiXUhgReSbWVZ\W
uqU\RWSZTffbWQ[XUWT[[fgiTVgXUWopWVZ\WYXUVRTiVXRWTUtWi\RVghgiTVgXUWopWVZ\WlRiZgV\iVbWTUtWqgVZXQVWV\RegUTVgUxWVZ\W
YXUVRTiVbWeTj\W[Tpe\UVWXhWVZ\WoTfTUi\WtQ\WhXRWVZTVW[XRVgXUWXhWVZ\WdXRjWhQffpWiXe[f\V\tbWiXRR\iV\tbWTUtWTii\[V\t_WmhW
VZ\WR\eTgUgUxWoTfTUi\WhXRWdXRjWUXVWhQffpWiXe[f\V\tWXRWiXRR\iV\tWgSWf\SSWVZTUWR\VTgUTx\WSVg[QfTV\tWgUWVZ\WYXUVRTiVW
�XiQe\UVSbWTUtWghWoXUtSWZTr\Wo\\UWhQRUgSZ\tbWVZ\WqRgVV\UWiXUS\UVWXhWVZ\WSQR\VpWVXW[Tpe\UVWXhWVZ\WoTfTUi\WtQ\WhXRWVZTVW
[XRVgXUWXhWVZ\WdXRjWhQffpWiXe[f\V\tWTUtWTii\[V\tWSZTffWo\WSQoegVV\tWopWVZ\WYXUVRTiVXRWVXWVZ\WlRiZgV\iVW[RgXRWVXW
i\RVghgiTVgXUWXhWSQiZW[Tpe\UV_WnQiZW[Tpe\UVWSZTffWo\WeTt\WQUt\RWV\ReSWTUtWiXUtgVgXUSWxXr\RUgUxWhgUTfW[Tpe\UVbW
\�i\[VWVZTVWgVWSZTffWUXVWiXUSVgVQV\WTWqTgr\RWXhWYfTgeS_

��������W�Z\WeTjgUxWXhWhgUTfW[Tpe\UVWSZTffWiXUSVgVQV\WTWqTgr\RWXhWYfTgeSWopWVZ\WuqU\RW\�i\[VWVZXS\WTRgSgUxWhRXe
�� fg\USbWYfTgeSbWS\iQRgVpWgUV\R\SVSbWXRW\UiQeoRTUi\SWTRgSgUxWXQVWXhWVZ\WYXUVRTiVWTUtWQUS\VVf\t�
�� hTgfQR\WXhWVZ\WdXRjWVXWiXe[fpWqgVZWVZ\WR\sQgR\e\UVSWXhWVZ\WYXUVRTiVW�XiQe\UVS�W
�� V\ReSWXhWS[\igTfWqTRRTUVg\SWR\sQgR\tWopWVZ\WYXUVRTiVW�XiQe\UVS�WXR
�� TQtgVSW[\RhXRe\tWopWVZ\WuqU\RbWghW[\RegVV\tWopWVZ\WYXUVRTiVW�XiQe\UVSbWThV\RWhgUTfW[Tpe\UV_

��������Wlii\[VTUi\WXhWhgUTfW[Tpe\UVWopWVZ\WYXUVRTiVXRbWTWnQoiXUVRTiVXRbWXRWTWSQ[[fg\RbWSZTffWiXUSVgVQV\WTWqTgr\RWXhW
ifTgeSWopWVZTVW[Tp\\W\�i\[VWVZXS\W[R\rgXQSfpWeTt\WgUWqRgVgUxWTUtWgt\UVghg\tWopWVZTVW[Tp\\WTSWQUS\VVf\tWTVWVZ\WVge\WXhW
hgUTfWl[[fgiTVgXUWhXRWPTpe\UV_

�����������������������������������������������
������������ ��¡�¢�£�¤¥¦§��¦̈��¡¥©¡�ª§
�Z\WYXUVRTiVXRWSZTffWo\WR\S[XUSgof\WhXRWgUgVgTVgUxbWeTgUVTgUgUxbWTUtWSQ[\RrgSgUxWTffWSTh\VpW[R\iTQVgXUSWTUtW[RXxRTeSWgUW
iXUU\iVgXUWqgVZWVZ\W[\RhXReTUi\WXhWVZ\WYXUVRTiV_

������������ �¥����¡§¥¦§��¦̈��¡¥«�¡� 
��������W�Z\WYXUVRTiVXRWSZTffWVTj\WR\TSXUTof\W[R\iTQVgXUSWhXRWSTh\VpWXhbWTUtWSZTffW[RXrgt\WR\TSXUTof\W[RXV\iVgXUWVXW
[R\r\UVWtTeTx\bWgU¬QRpbWXRWfXSSWVX

�� \e[fXp\\SWXUWVZ\WdXRjWTUtWXVZ\RW[\RSXUSWqZXWeTpWo\WThh\iV\tWVZ\R\op�
�� VZ\WdXRjWTUtWeTV\RgTfSWTUtW\sQg[e\UVWVXWo\WgUiXR[XRTV\tWVZ\R\gUbWqZ\VZ\RWgUWSVXRTx\WXUWXRWXhhWVZ\WSgV\bW

QUt\RWiTR\bWiQSVXtpbWXRWiXUVRXfWXhWVZ\WYXUVRTiVXRbWTWnQoiXUVRTiVXRbWXRWTWnQoSQoiXUVRTiVXR�WTUt
�� XVZ\RW[RX[\RVpWTVWVZ\WSgV\WXRWTt¬Ti\UVWVZ\R\VXbWSQiZWTSWVR\\SbWSZRQoSbWfTqUSbWqTfjSbW[Tr\e\UVSbWRXTtqTpSbW

SVRQiVQR\SbWTUtWQVgfgVg\SWUXVWt\SgxUTV\tWhXRWR\eXrTfbWR\fXiTVgXUbWXRWR\[fTi\e\UVWgUWVZ\WiXQRS\WXhW
iXUSVRQiVgXU_

��������W�Z\WYXUVRTiVXRWSZTffWiXe[fpWqgVZbWTUtWxgr\WUXVgi\SWR\sQgR\tWopWT[[fgiTof\WfTqSbWSVTVQV\SbWXRtgUTUi\SbWiXt\SbW
RQf\SWTUtWR\xQfTVgXUSbWTUtWfTqhQfWXRt\RSWXhW[QofgiWTQVZXRgVg\SbWo\TRgUxWXUWSTh\VpWXhW[\RSXUSWXRW[RX[\RVpWXRWVZ\gRW
[RXV\iVgXUWhRXeWtTeTx\bWgU¬QRpbWXRWfXSS_

��������W�Z\WYXUVRTiVXRWSZTffWge[f\e\UVbW\R\iVbWTUtWeTgUVTgUbWTSWR\sQgR\tWopW\�gSVgUxWiXUtgVgXUSWTUtW[\RhXReTUi\WXhW
VZ\WYXUVRTiVbWR\TSXUTof\WSTh\xQTRtSWhXRWSTh\VpWTUtW[RXV\iVgXUbWgUifQtgUxW[XSVgUxWtTUx\RWSgxUSWTUtWXVZ\RWqTRUgUxSW
TxTgUSVWZT®TRtS�W[RXeQfxTVgUxWSTh\VpWR\xQfTVgXUS�WTUtWUXVghpgUxWVZ\WXqU\RSWTUtWQS\RSWXhWTt¬Ti\UVWSgV\SWTUtWQVgfgVg\SWXhW
VZ\WSTh\xQTRtS_

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

124



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNMOPQRSTPUVSPWXPVYWXZ[SPW\PS]̂_WV̀aSVPWXPWYRSXPRZbZXcWUVPdZYSX̀Z_VPWXPSeÙ̂ dSTYfPWXPUTUVUZ_PdSYRWcVPZXSP
TSgSVVZXhP\WXPS]SgUỲWTPW\PYRSPQWXifPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXPVRZ__PS]SXg̀VSPUYdWVYPgZXSPZTcPgZXXhPWTPVUgRPZgỲàỲSVPUTcSXP
VÛSXàV̀WTPW\P̂XŴSX_hPeUZ_̀\̀ScP̂SXVWTTS_k

IJKLMNMlPmRSPjWTYXZgYWXPVRZ__P̂XWd̂ Y_hPXSdSchPcZdZ[SPZTcP_WVVPnWYRSXPYRZTPcZdZ[SPWXP_WVVP̀TVUXScPUTcSXP̂XŴSXYhP
T̀VUXZTgSPXSeÙXScPohPYRSPjWTYXZgYPpWgUdSTYVqPYWP̂XŴSXYhPXS\SXXScPYWP̀TPrSgỲWTVPstkukskuPZTcPstkukskvPgZUVScP̀TP
wRW_SPWXP̀TP̂ZXYPohPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXfPZPrUogWTYXZgYWXfPZPrUoxVUogWTYXZgYWXfPWXPZThWTSPc̀XSgY_hPWXP̀Tc̀XSgY_hPSd̂ _WhScPohP
ZThPW\PYRSdfPWXPohPZThWTSP\WXPwRWVSPZgYVPYRShPdZhPoSP_̀Zo_SPZTcP\WXPwR̀gRPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXP̀VPXSV̂WTV̀o_SPUTcSXP
rSgỲWTVPstkukskuPZTcPstkukskvkPmRSPjWTYXZgYWXPdZhPdZiSPZPj_Z̀dP\WXPYRSPgWVYPYWPXSdSchPYRSPcZdZ[SPWXP_WVVPYWPYRSP
S]YSTYPVUgRPcZdZ[SPWXP_WVVP̀VPZYYX̀oUYZo_SPYWPZgYVPWXPWd̀VV̀WTVPW\PYRSPywTSXPWXPzXgR̀YSgYPWXPZThWTSPc̀XSgY_hPWXP
T̀c̀XSgY_hPSd̂ _WhScPohPS̀YRSXPW\PYRSdfPWXPohPZThWTSP\WXPwRWVSPZgYVPS̀YRSXPW\PYRSdPdZhPoSP_̀Zo_SfPZTcPTWYPZYYX̀oUYZo_SPYWP
YRSP\ZU_YPWXPTS[_̀[STgSPW\PYRSPjWTYXZgYWXkPmRSP\WXS[ẀT[PWo_̀[ZỲWTVPW\PYRSPjWTYXZgYWXPZXSP̀TPZcc̀ỲWTPYWPYRSP
jWTYXZgYWX{VPWo_̀[ZỲWTVPUTcSXPrSgỲWTPvks|k

IJKLMNM}PmRSPjWTYXZgYWXPVRZ__PcSV̀[TZYSPZPXSV̂WTV̀o_SPdSdoSXPW\PYRSPjWTYXZgYWX{VPWX[ZT̀bZỲWTPZYPYRSPV̀YSPwRWVSPcUYhP
VRZ__PoSPYRSP̂XSaSTỲWTPW\PZgg̀cSTYVkPmR̀VP̂SXVWTPVRZ__PoSPYRSPjWTYXZgYWX{VPVÛSX̀TYSTcSTYPUT_SVVPWYRSXẁVSPcSV̀[TZYScP
ohPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXP̀TPwX̀ỲT[PYWPYRSPywTSXPZTcPzXgR̀YSgYk

IJKLMNM~PmRSPjWTYXZgYWXPVRZ__PTWYP̂SXd̀YPZThP̂ZXYPW\PYRSPgWTVYXUgỲWTPWXPV̀YSPYWPoSP_WZcScPVWPZVPYWPgZUVSPcZdZ[SPWXP
gXSZYSPZTPUTVZ\SPgWTc̀ỲWTk

IJKLMNM�J������J��J������J��J������J��J��������
�\PS̀YRSXP̂ZXYhPVU\\SXVP̀T�UXhPWXPcZdZ[SPYWP̂SXVWTPWXP̂XŴSXYhPoSgZUVSPW\PZTPZgYPWXPWd̀VV̀WTPW\PYRSPWYRSXP̂ZXYhfPWXPW\P
WYRSXVP\WXPwRWVSPZgYVPVUgRP̂ZXYhP̀VP_S[Z__hPXSV̂WTV̀o_SfPTWỲgSPW\PYRSP̀T�UXhPWXPcZdZ[SfPwRSYRSXPWXPTWYP̀TVUXScfPVRZ__PoSP
[̀aSTPYWPYRSPWYRSXP̂ZXYhPẁYR̀TPZPXSZVWTZo_SPỲdSPTWYPS]gSSc̀T[PusPcZhVPZ\YSXPc̀VgWaSXhkPmRSPTWỲgSPVRZ__P̂XWàcSP
VU\\̀g̀STYPcSYZ̀_PYWPSTZo_SPYRSPWYRSXP̂ZXYhPYWP̀TaSVỲ[ZYSPYRSPdZYYSXk

IJKLM�J���������J���������J���J����������
IJKLM�MKPmRSPjWTYXZgYWXP̀VPXSV̂WTV̀o_SP\WXPgWd̂ _̀ZTgSPẁYRPZThPXSeÙXSdSTYVP̀Tg_UcScP̀TPYRSPjWTYXZgYPpWgUdSTYVP
XS[ZXc̀T[PRZbZXcWUVPdZYSX̀Z_VPWXPVUoVYZTgSVkP�\PYRSPjWTYXZgYWXPSTgWUTYSXVPZPRZbZXcWUVPdZYSX̀Z_PWXPVUoVYZTgSPTWYP
ZccXSVVScP̀TPYRSPjWTYXZgYPpWgUdSTYVPZTcP̀\PXSZVWTZo_SP̂XSgZUỲWTVPẁ__PoSP̀TZcSeUZYSPYWP̂XSaSTYP\WXSVSSZo_SPoWc̀_hP
T̀�UXhPWXPcSZYRPYWP̂SXVWTVPXSVU_ỲT[P\XWdPZPdZYSX̀Z_PWXPVUoVYZTgSfP̀Tg_Uc̀T[PoUYPTWYP_̀d̀YScPYWPZVoSVYWVPWXP
Ŵ_hgR_WX̀TZYScPò̂ RSTh_Pn�j�qfPSTgWUTYSXScPWTPYRSPV̀YSPohPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXfPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXPVRZ__fPÛWTPXSgW[T̀b̀T[PYRSP
gWTc̀ỲWTfP̀ddSc̀ZYS_hPVYŴPQWXiP̀TPYRSPZ\\SgYScPZXSZPZTcPTWỲ\hPYRSPywTSXPZTcPzXgR̀YSgYPW\PYRSPgWTc̀ỲWTk

IJKLM�MNP�̂WTPXSgS̀̂YPW\PYRSPjWTYXZgYWX{VPwX̀YYSTPTWỲgSfPYRSPywTSXPVRZ__PWoYZ̀TPYRSPVSXàgSVPW\PZP_̀gSTVScP_ZoWXZYWXhPYWP
aSX̀\hPYRSP̂XSVSTgSPWXPZoVSTgSPW\PYRSPdZYSX̀Z_PWXPVUoVYZTgSPXŜWXYScPohPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXPZTcfP̀TPYRSPSaSTYPVUgRPdZYSX̀Z_P
WXPVUoVYZTgSP̀VP\WUTcPYWPoSP̂XSVSTYfPYWPgZUVSP̀YPYWPoSPXSTcSXScPRZXd_SVVkP�T_SVVPWYRSXẁVSPXSeÙXScPohPYRSPjWTYXZgYP
pWgUdSTYVfPYRSPywTSXPVRZ__P\UXT̀VRP̀TPwX̀ỲT[PYWPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXPZTcPzXgR̀YSgYPYRSPTZdSVPZTcPeUZ_̀\̀gZỲWTVPW\P̂SXVWTVP
WXPSTỲỲSVPwRWPZXSPYWP̂SX\WXdPYSVYVPaSX̀\h̀T[PYRSP̂XSVSTgSPWXPZoVSTgSPW\PYRSPdZYSX̀Z_PWXPVUoVYZTgSPWXPwRWPZXSPYWP
ŜX\WXdPYRSPYZViPW\PXSdWaZ_PWXPVZ\SPgWTYZ̀TdSTYPW\PYRSPdZYSX̀Z_PWXPVUoVYZTgSkPmRSPjWTYXZgYWXPZTcPYRSPzXgR̀YSgYPẁ__P
X̂Wd̂ Y_hPXŜ_hPYWPYRSPywTSXP̀TPwX̀ỲT[PVYZỲT[PwRSYRSXPWXPTWYPS̀YRSXPRZVPXSZVWTZo_SPWo�SgỲWTPYWPYRSP̂SXVWTVPWXPSTỲỲSVP
X̂ŴWVScPohPYRSPywTSXPZTcP̀TPYRSPSaSTYPW\PZTPWo�SgỲWTfPYRSPV̂Sg̀\̀gPXSZVWTVPYRSXS\WXSkP�\PS̀YRSXPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXPWXP
zXgR̀YSgYPRZVPZPXSZVWTZo_SPWo�SgỲWTPYWPZP̂SXVWTPWXPSTỲYhP̂XŴWVScPohPYRSPywTSXfPZTcP\U__hPgWd̂ _̀SVPẁYRPYRSP
X̂SgSc̀T[PVSTYSTgSfPYRSPywTSXPVRZ__P̂XŴWVSPZTWYRSXPYWPwRWdPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXPZTcPYRSPzXgR̀YSgYPRZaSPTWPXSZVWTZo_SP
Wo�SgỲWTkP�\PYRSPZoVSTgSPW\PYRSPdZYSX̀Z_PWXPVUoVYZTgSP̀VPaSX̀\̀ScfPQWXiPVRZ__PXSVUdSPẁYRWUYPZc�UVYdSTYPYWPYRSPjWTYXZgYP
m̀dSPWXPYRSPjWTYXZgYPrUdkP�\PYRSP̂XSVSTgSPW\PYRSPdZYSX̀Z_PWXPVUoVYZTgSP̀VPaSX̀\̀ScPYRSTfPwRSTPYRSPdZYSX̀Z_PWXPVUoVYZTgSP
RZVPoSSTPXSTcSXScPRZXd_SVVfPQWXiP̀TPYRSPZ\\SgYScPZXSZPVRZ__PXSVUdSPÛWTPwX̀YYSTPZ[XSSdSTYPW\PYRSPywTSXPZTcP
jWTYXZgYWXkP�hPjRZT[SPyXcSXfPYRSPjWTYXZgYPm̀dSPVRZ__PoSPS]YSTcScPẐ X̂ŴX̀ZYS_hPZTcPYRSPjWTYXZgYPrUdfP̀\PẐ X̂ŴX̀ZYSfP
VRZ__PoSP̀TgXSZVScPohPYRSPZdWUTYPW\PYRSPjWTYXZgYWX{VPXSZVWTZo_SPZcc̀ỲWTZ_PgWVYVPW\PVRUYcWwTfPcS_ZhfPZTcPVYZXYxÛk

IJKLM�M�PmWPYRSP\U__SVYPS]YSTYP̂SXd̀YYScPohP_ZwfPYRSPywTSXPVRZ__P̀TcSdT̀\hPZTcPRW_cPRZXd_SVVPYRSPjWTYXZgYWXfP
rUogWTYXZgYWXVfPzXgR̀YSgYfPzXgR̀YSgY{VPgWTVU_YZTYVfPZTcPZ[STYVPZTcPSd̂ _WhSSVPW\PZThPW\PYRSdP\XWdPZTcPZ[Z̀TVYPg_Z̀dVfP
cZdZ[SVfP_WVVSVfPZTcPS]̂STVSVfP̀Tg_Uc̀T[PoUYPTWYP_̀d̀YScPYWPZYYWXTShV{P\SSVfPZX̀V̀T[PWUYPW\PWXPXSVU_ỲT[P\XWdP
ŜX\WXdZTgSPW\PYRSPQWXiP̀TPYRSPZ\\SgYScPZXSZP̀\P̀TP\ZgYPYRSPdZYSX̀Z_PWXPVUoVYZTgSP̂XSVSTYVPYRSPX̀ViPW\PoWc̀_hP̀T�UXhPWXP
cSZYRPZVPcSVgX̀oScP̀TPrSgỲWTPstkvksPZTcPRZVPTWYPoSSTPXSTcSXScPRZXd_SVVfP̂XWàcScPYRZYPVUgRPg_Z̀dfPcZdZ[SfP_WVVfPWXP
S]̂STVSP̀VPZYYX̀oUYZo_SPYWPoWc̀_hP̀T�UXhfPV̀giTSVVfPc̀VSZVSPWXPcSZYRfPWXPYWP̀T�UXhPYWPWXPcSVYXUgỲWTPW\PYZT[̀o_SP̂XŴSXYhP

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

125



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNOKLPQOKLMORJNSOTKUMVWXYOMZ[M\KOKJOKLMOMZKMQKOKLPKOU][LÔP_P̀MYOVJUUYOJNOMZ\MQUMOTUÔ]MOKJOKLMOWP]VKOJNOQM̀VT̀MQ[MOJWO
KLMO\PNKaOUMMSTQ̀OTQ̂M_QTKab

cdefghgiOjLMOklQMNOULPVVOQJKOmMONMU\JQUTmVMO]Q̂MNOKLTUOnM[KTJQOopbqOWJNOLPrPN̂J]UO_PKMNTPVUOJNOU]mUKPQ[MUOKLMO
sJQKNP[KJNOmNTQ̀UOKJOKLMOUTKMO]QVMUUOU][LO_PKMNTPVUOJNOU]mUKPQ[MUOPNMONMt]TNM̂OmaOKLMOsJQKNP[KOuJ[]_MQKUbOjLMOklQMNO
ULPVVOmMONMU\JQUTmVMOWJNOLPrPN̂J]UO_PKMNTPVUOJNOU]mUKPQ[MUONMt]TNM̂OmaOKLMOsJQKNP[KOuJ[]_MQKUYOMZ[M\KOKJOKLMOMZKMQKOJWO
KLMOsJQKNP[KJNvUOWP]VKOJNOQM̀VT̀MQ[MOTQOKLMO]UMOPQ̂OLPQ̂VTQ̀OJWOU][LO_PKMNTPVUOJNOU]mUKPQ[MUb

cdefghgwOjLMOsJQKNP[KJNOULPVVONMT_m]NUMOKLMOklQMNOWJNOKLMO[JUKOPQ̂OMZ\MQUMOKLMOklQMNOTQ[]NUOIoXOWJNONM_M̂TPKTJQOJWO
LPrPN̂J]UO_PKMNTPVUOJNOU]mUKPQ[MUOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNOmNTQ̀UOKJOKLMOUTKMOPQ̂OQM̀VT̀MQKVaOLPQ̂VMUYOJNOIxXOlLMNMOKLMO
sJQKNP[KJNOWPTVUOKJO\MNWJN_OTKUOJmVT̀PKTJQUO]Q̂MNOnM[KTJQOopbqboYOMZ[M\KOKJOKLMOMZKMQKOKLPKOKLMO[JUKOPQ̂OMZ\MQUMOPNMÔ]MO
KJOKLMOklQMNvUOWP]VKOJNOQM̀VT̀MQ[Mb

cdefghgyOzWYOlTKLJ]KOQM̀VT̀MQ[MOJQOKLMO\PNKOJWOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNYOJNOmNMP[LOJWONMVM{PQKO\NJ{TUTJQUOJWOKLMOsJQKNP[KO
uJ[]_MQKUYOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNOTUOLMV̂OVTPmVMOmaOPÒJ{MNQ_MQKOP̀MQ[aOWJNOKLMO[JUKOJWONM_M̂TPKTJQOJWOPOLPrPN̂J]UO_PKMNTPVO
JNOU]mUKPQ[MOUJVMVaOmaONMPUJQOJWO\MNWJN_TQ̀ORJNSOPUONMt]TNM̂OmaOKLMOsJQKNP[KOuJ[]_MQKUYOKLMOklQMNOULPVVONMT_m]NUMO
KLMOsJQKNP[KJNOWJNOPVVO[JUKOPQ̂OMZ\MQUMOKLMNMmaOTQ[]NNM̂b

cdefgid|}~��~���~�
zQOPQOM_MǸMQ[aOPWWM[KTQ̀OUPWMKaOJWO\MNUJQUOJNO\NJ\MNKaYOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNOULPVVOP[KYOPKOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNvUÔTU[NMKTJQYOKJO
\NM{MQKOKLNMPKMQM̂ÔP_P̀MYOTQ�]NaYOJNOVJUUbO�̂ T̂KTJQPVO[J_\MQUPKTJQOJNOMZKMQUTJQOJWOKT_MO[VPT_M̂OmaOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNOJQO
P[[J]QKOJWOPQOM_MǸMQ[aOULPVVOmMÔMKMN_TQM̂OPUO\NJ{T̂M̂OTQO�NKT[VMOo�OPQ̂O�NKT[VMO�b

������|deeddd��������|d���d�����
cdeeged������������d��������~d���d�����
cdeegegeOjLMOsJQKNP[KJNOULPVVO\]N[LPUMOPQ̂O_PTQKPTQOTQU]NPQ[MOJWOKLMOKa\MUOPQ̂OVT_TKUOJWOVTPmTVTKaYO[JQKPTQTQ̀OKLMO
MQ̂JNUM_MQKUYOPQ̂OU]m�M[KOKJOKLMOKMN_UOPQ̂O[JQ̂TKTJQUYOPUÔMU[NTmM̂OTQOKLMO�̀NMM_MQKOJNOMVUMlLMNMOTQOKLMOsJQKNP[KO
uJ[]_MQKUbOjLMOsJQKNP[KJNOULPVVO\]N[LPUMOPQ̂O_PTQKPTQOKLMONMt]TNM̂OTQU]NPQ[MOWNJ_OPQOTQU]NPQ[MO[J_\PQaOJNO
TQU]NPQ[MO[J_\PQTMUOVPlW]VVaOP]KLJNTrM̂OKJOTUU]MOTQU]NPQ[MOTQOKLMO�]NTÛT[KTJQOlLMNMOKLMO�NJ�M[KOTUOVJ[PKM̂bOjLMO
klQMNYO�N[LTKM[KYOPQ̂O�N[LTKM[KvUO[JQU]VKPQKUOULPVVOmMOQP_M̂OPUOP̂ T̂KTJQPVOTQU]NM̂UO]Q̂MNOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNvUO
[J__MN[TPVÒMQMNPVOVTPmTVTKaO\JVT[aOJNOPUOJKLMNlTUMÔMU[NTmM̂OTQOKLMOsJQKNP[KOuJ[]_MQKUb

cdeegeg�OjLMOsJQKNP[KJNOULPVVO\NJ{T̂MOU]NMKaOmJQ̂UOJWOKLMOKa\MUYOWJNOU][LO\MQPVOU]_UYOPQ̂OU]m�M[KOKJOU][LOKMN_UOPQ̂O
[JQ̂TKTJQUOPUONMt]TNM̂OmaOKLMOsJQKNP[KOuJ[]_MQKUbOjLMOsJQKNP[KJNOULPVVO\]N[LPUMOPQ̂O_PTQKPTQOKLMONMt]TNM̂OmJQ̂UO
WNJ_OPO[J_\PQaOJNO[J_\PQTMUOVPlW]VVaOP]KLJNTrM̂OKJOTUU]MOU]NMKaOmJQ̂UOTQOKLMO�]NTÛT[KTJQOlLMNMOKLMO�NJ�M[KOTUOVJ[PKM̂b

cdeegeghd�\JQOKLMONMt]MUKOJWOPQaO\MNUJQOJNOMQKTKaOP\\MPNTQ̀OKJOmMOPO\JKMQKTPVOmMQMWT[TPNaOJWOmJQ̂UO[J{MNTQ̀O\Pa_MQKOJWO
JmVT̀PKTJQUOPNTUTQ̀O]Q̂MNOKLMOsJQKNP[KYOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNOULPVVO\NJ_\KVaOW]NQTULOPO[J\aOJWOKLMOmJQ̂UOJNOULPVVOP]KLJNTrMOPO
[J\aOKJOmMOW]NQTULM̂b

cdeegegid�����~d��d����~�������d��d| ¡�������d��d������������d�~¢���~�d��������~gORTKLTQOKLNMMOIqXOm]UTQMUUÔPaUOJWOKLMO
P̂KMOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNOmM[J_MUOPlPNMOJWOPQOT_\MQ̂TQ̀OJNOP[K]PVO[PQ[MVVPKTJQOJNOMZ\TNPKTJQOJWOPQaOTQU]NPQ[MONMt]TNM̂OmaO
KLMOsJQKNP[KOuJ[]_MQKUYOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNOULPVVO\NJ{T̂MOQJKT[MOKJOKLMOklQMNOJWOU][LOT_\MQ̂TQ̀OJNOP[K]PVO[PQ[MVVPKTJQOJNO
MZ\TNPKTJQbO�\JQONM[MT\KOJWOQJKT[MOWNJ_OKLMOsJQKNP[KJNYOKLMOklQMNOULPVVYO]QVMUUOKLMOVP\UMOTQO[J{MNP̀MOPNTUMUOWNJ_OPQOP[KO
JNOJ_TUUTJQOJWOKLMOklQMNYOLP{MOKLMONT̀LKOKJOUKJ\OKLMORJNSO]QKTVOKLMOVP\UMOTQO[J{MNP̀MOLPUOmMMQO[]NM̂OmaOKLMO
\NJ[]NM_MQKOJWONM\VP[M_MQKO[J{MNP̀MOmaOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNbOjLMOW]NQTULTQ̀OJWOQJKT[MOmaOKLMOsJQKNP[KJNOULPVVOQJKONMVTM{MO
KLMOsJQKNP[KJNOJWOPQaO[JQKNP[K]PVOJmVT̀PKTJQOKJO\NJ{T̂MOPQaONMt]TNM̂O[J{MNP̀Mb

cdeeg�d�£�~���d��������~
cdeeg�gedjLMOklQMNOULPVVO\]N[LPUMOPQ̂O_PTQKPTQOTQU]NPQ[MOJWOKLMOKa\MUOPQ̂OVT_TKUOJWOVTPmTVTKaYO[JQKPTQTQ̀OKLMO
MQ̂JNUM_MQKUYOPQ̂OU]m�M[KOKJOKLMOKMN_UOPQ̂O[JQ̂TKTJQUYOPUÔMU[NTmM̂OTQOKLMO�̀NMM_MQKOJNOMVUMlLMNMOTQOKLMOsJQKNP[KO
uJ[]_MQKUbOjLMOklQMNOULPVVO\]N[LPUMOPQ̂O_PTQKPTQOKLMONMt]TNM̂OTQU]NPQ[MOWNJ_OPQOTQU]NPQ[MO[J_\PQaOJNOTQU]NPQ[MO
[J_\PQTMUOVPlW]VVaOP]KLJNTrM̂OKJOTUU]MOTQU]NPQ[MOTQOKLMO�]NTÛT[KTJQOlLMNMOKLMO�NJ�M[KOTUOVJ[PKM̂bO

cdeeg�g�d¤�����~d��d¥���¦��~d�~¢���~�d¥��¡~��§d��������~gOzWOKLMOklQMNOWPTVUOKJO\]N[LPUMOPQ̂O_PTQKPTQOKLMONMt]TNM̂O
\NJ\MNKaOTQU]NPQ[MYOlTKLOPVVOJWOKLMO[J{MNP̀MUOPQ̂OTQOKLMOP_J]QKUÔMU[NTmM̂OTQOKLMO�̀NMM_MQKOJNOMVUMlLMNMOTQOKLMO
sJQKNP[KOuJ[]_MQKUYOKLMOklQMNOULPVVOTQWJN_OKLMOsJQKNP[KJNOTQOlNTKTQ̀O\NTJNOKJO[J__MQ[M_MQKOJWOKLMORJNSbO�\JQO

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

126



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKJLMNOPQORPNLKJOQIPSONTJOUVRJIWONTJOXPRNIYKNPIOSYZO[J\YZOKPSSJRKJSJRNOPQONTJO]PÎOYR[OSYZOP_NYLROLR̀aIYRKJONTYNO
VL\\OMIPNJKNONTJOLRNJIJ̀ǸOPQONTJOXPRNIYKNPIWOba_KPRNIYKNPÌWOYR[Oba_cba_KPRNIYKNPÌOLRONTJO]PÎdO]TJRONTJOQYL\aIJONPO
MIPeL[JOKPeJIYfJOTỲO_JJROKaIJ[OPIOIJ̀P\eJ[WONTJOXPRNIYKNObaSOYR[OXPRNIYKNOgLSJÒTY\\O_JOJhaLNY_\ZOY[iàNJ[dOjRONTJO
JeJRNONTJOUVRJIOQYL\̀ONPOMIPKaIJOKPeJIYfJWONTJOUVRJIOVYLeJ̀OY\\OILfTǸOYfYLR̀NONTJOXPRNIYKNPIWOba_KPRNIYKNPÌWOYR[O
ba_c̀a_KPRNIYKNPÌONPONTJOJkNJRNONTJO\P̀ ÒNPONTJOUVRJIOVPa\[OTYeJO_JJROKPeJIJ[O_ZONTJOLR̀aIYRKJONPOTYeJO_JJRO
MIPKaIJ[O_ZONTJOUVRJIdOgTJOKP̀NOPQONTJOLR̀aIYRKJÒTY\\O_JOKTYIfJ[ONPONTJOUVRJIO_ZOYOXTYRfJOUI[JIdOjQONTJOUVRJIO[PJ̀O
RPNOMIPeL[JOVILNNJRORPNLKJWOYR[ONTJOXPRNIYKNPIOL̀O[YSYfJ[O_ZONTJOQYL\aIJOPIORJf\JKNOPQONTJOUVRJIONPOMaIKTỲJOPIO
SYLRNYLRONTJOIJhaLIJ[OLR̀aIYRKJWONTJOUVRJIÒTY\\OIJLS_aÌJONTJOXPRNIYKNPIOQPIOY\\OIJỲPRY_\JOKP̀ǸOYR[O[YSYfJ̀O
YNNIL_aNY_\JONTJIJNPd

lmnnopoqmrstuvwmsxmyz{vw||ztus{ms}m~��u}ztus{msxm��{w}��m�w��u}w�m�}s�w}t�m�{��}z{vwoO]LNTLRONTIJJO���O_àLRJ̀̀O[YZ̀OPQO
NTJO[YNJONTJOUVRJIO_JKPSJ̀OYVYIJOPQOYROLSMJR[LRfOPIOYKNaY\OKYRKJ\\YNLPROPIOJkMLIYNLPROPQOYRZOMIPMJINZOLR̀aIYRKJO
IJhaLIJ[O_ZONTJOXPRNIYKNO�PKaSJRǸWONTJOUVRJIÒTY\\OMIPeL[JORPNLKJONPONTJOXPRNIYKNPIOPQÒaKTOLSMJR[LRfOPIOYKNaY\O
KYRKJ\\YNLPROPIOJkMLIYNLPRdO�R\J̀̀ONTJO\YM̀JOLROKPeJIYfJOYIL̀J̀OQIPSOYROYKNOPIOPSL̀̀LPROPQONTJOXPRNIYKNPI�O���ONTJO
XPRNIYKNPIWOaMPROIJKJLMNOPQORPNLKJOQIPSONTJOUVRJIWÒTY\\OTYeJONTJOILfTNONPÒNPMONTJO]PÎOaRNL\ONTJO\YM̀JOLROKPeJIYfJOTỲO
_JJROKaIJ[O_ZONTJOMIPKaIJSJRNOPQOIJM\YKJSJRNOKPeJIYfJO_ZOJLNTJIONTJOUVRJIOPIONTJOXPRNIYKNPI�O���ONTJOXPRNIYKNOgLSJO
YR[OXPRNIYKNObaSÒTY\\O_JOJhaLNY_\ZOY[iàNJ[�OYR[O���ONTJOUVRJIOVYLeJ̀OY\\OILfTǸOYfYLR̀NONTJOXPRNIYKNPIWO
ba_KPRNIYKNPÌWOYR[Oba_c̀a_KPRNIYKNPÌONPONTJOJkNJRNOYRZO\P̀ ÒNPONTJOUVRJIOVPa\[OTYeJO_JJROKPeJIJ[O_ZONTJOLR̀aIYRKJO
TY[OLNORPNOJkMLIJ[OPIO_JJROKYRKJ\\J[dOjQONTJOXPRNIYKNPIOMaIKTỲJ̀OIJM\YKJSJRNOKPeJIYfJWONTJOKP̀NOPQONTJOLR̀aIYRKJÒTY\\O
_JOKTYIfJ[ONPONTJOUVRJIO_ZOYROYMMIPMILYNJOXTYRfJOUI[JIdOgTJOQaIRL̀TLRfOPQORPNLKJO_ZONTJOUVRJIÒTY\\ORPNOIJ\LJeJONTJO
UVRJIOPQOYRZOKPRNIYKNaY\OP_\LfYNLPRONPOMIPeL[JOIJhaLIJ[OLR̀aIYRKJd

lmnnoqm�zu�w}�msxm���}s�ztus{
lmnnoqonOgTJOUVRJIOYR[OXPRNIYKNPIOVYLeJOY\\OILfTǸOYfYLR̀NO���OJYKTOPNTJIOYR[OYRZOPQONTJLIÒa_KPRNIYKNPÌWO
à_c̀a_KPRNIYKNPÌWOYfJRǸWOYR[OJSM\PZJJ̀WOJYKTOPQONTJOPNTJI�O���ONTJO�IKTLNJKNOYR[O�IKTLNJKN�̀OKPR̀a\NYRǸ�OYR[O���O
bJMYIYNJOXPRNIYKNPÌWOLQOYRZWOYR[OYRZOPQONTJLIÒa_KPRNIYKNPÌWÒa_c̀a_KPRNIYKNPÌWOYfJRǸWOYR[OJSM\PZJJ̀WOQPIO[YSYfJ̀O
KYàJ[O_ZOQLIJWOPIOPNTJIOKYàJ̀OPQO\P̀ ẀONPONTJOJkNJRNONTP̀JO\P̀ J̀̀OYIJOKPeJIJ[O_ZOMIPMJINZOLR̀aIYRKJOIJhaLIJ[O_ZONTJO
�fIJJSJRNOPIOPNTJIOMIPMJINZOLR̀aIYRKJOYMM\LKY_\JONPONTJO�IPiJKNWOJkKJMNÒaKTOILfTǸOỲONTJZOTYeJONPOMIPKJJ[̀OPQÒaKTO
LR̀aIYRKJdOgTJOUVRJIOPIOXPRNIYKNPIWOỲOYMMIPMILYNJWÒTY\\OIJhaLIJÒLSL\YIOVILNNJROVYLeJÌOLROQYePIOPQONTJOLR[LeL[aY\̀O
YR[OJRNLNLJ̀OL[JRNLQLJ[OY_PeJOQIPSONTJO�IKTLNJKNWO�IKTLNJKN�̀OKPR̀a\NYRǸWObJMYIYNJOXPRNIYKNPÌWÒa_KPRNIYKNPÌWOYR[O
à_c̀a_KPRNIYKNPÌdOgTJOMP\LKLJ̀OPQOLR̀aIYRKJOMaIKTỲJ[OYR[OSYLRNYLRJ[O_ZOJYKTOMJÌPROPIOJRNLNZOYfIJJLRfONPOVYLeJO
K\YLS̀OMaÌaYRNONPONTL̀ÒJKNLPRO��d�d�ÒTY\\ORPNOMIPTL_LNONTL̀OVYLeJIOPQÒa_IPfYNLPRdOgTL̀OVYLeJIOPQÒa_IPfYNLPRÒTY\\O_JO
JQQJKNLeJOỲONPOYOMJÌPROPIOJRNLNZO���OJeJRONTPafTONTYNOMJÌPROPIOJRNLNZOVPa\[OPNTJIVL̀JOTYeJOYO[aNZOPQOLR[JSRLQLKYNLPRWO
KPRNIYKNaY\OPIOPNTJIVL̀JWO���OJeJRONTPafTONTYNOMJÌPROPIOJRNLNZO[L[ORPNOMYZONTJOLR̀aIYRKJOMIJSLaSO[LIJKN\ZOPIOLR[LIJKN\ZWO
PIO���OVTJNTJIOPIORPNONTJOMJÌPROPIOJRNLNZOTY[OYROLR̀aIY_\JOLRNJIJ̀NOLRONTJO[YSYfJ[OMIPMJINZd

lmnnoqopOjQO[aILRfONTJO�IPiJKNOKPR̀NIaKNLPROMJILP[ONTJOUVRJIOLR̀aIJ̀OMIPMJINLJ̀WOIJY\OPIOMJÌPRY\OPIO_PNTWOYNOPIOY[iYKJRNO
NPONTJÒLNJO_ZOMIPMJINZOLR̀aIYRKJOaR[JIOMP\LKLJ̀ÒJMYIYNJOQIPSONTP̀JOLR̀aILRfONTJO�IPiJKNWOPIOLQOYQNJIOQLRY\OMYZSJRNO
MIPMJINZOLR̀aIYRKJOL̀ONPO_JOMIPeL[J[OPRONTJOKPSM\JNJ[O�IPiJKNONTIPafTOYOMP\LKZOPIOMP\LKLJ̀OPNTJIONTYRONTP̀JOLR̀aILRfONTJO
�IPiJKNO[aILRfONTJOKPR̀NIaKNLPROMJILP[WONPONTJOJkNJRNOMJISL̀̀L_\JO_ZÒaKTOMP\LKLJ̀WONTJOUVRJIOVYLeJ̀OY\\OILfTǸOLRO
YKKPI[YRKJOVLNTONTJONJIS̀OPQObJKNLPRO��d�d�OQPIO[YSYfJ̀OKYàJ[O_ZOQLIJOPIOPNTJIOKYàJ̀OPQO\P̀ ÒKPeJIJ[O_ZONTL̀ÒJMYIYNJO
MIPMJINZOLR̀aIYRKJd

lmnno�m�s��msxm��w m¡��u{w��m�{tw}}��tus{ mz{�m¢w|z�mu{mys£�|wtus{m�{��}z{vw
gTJOUVRJIWOYNONTJOUVRJI�̀OPMNLPRWOSYZOMaIKTỲJOYR[OSYLRNYLROLR̀aIYRKJONTYNOVL\\OMIPNJKNONTJOUVRJIOYfYLR̀NO\P̀ ÒPQO
àJOPQONTJOUVRJI�̀OMIPMJINZWOPIONTJOLRY_L\LNZONPOKPR[aKNORPISY\OPMJIYNLPR̀WO[aJONPOQLIJOPIOPNTJIOKYàJ̀OPQO\P̀ d̀OgTJO
UVRJIOVYLeJ̀OY\\OILfTǸOPQOYKNLPROYfYLR̀NONTJOXPRNIYKNPIOYR[O�IKTLNJKNOQPIO\P̀ ÒPQOàJOPQONTJOUVRJI�̀OMIPMJINZWO[aJONPO
QLIJOPIOPNTJIOTY¤YI[̀OTPVJeJIOKYàJ[d

lnno¥m¦�§��t£w{tmz{�m�wtt|w£w{tmsxm�{��}w�m�s��
lmnno¥onO�O\P̀ ÒLR̀aIJ[OaR[JIONTJOMIPMJINZOLR̀aIYRKJOIJhaLIJ[O_ZONTJO�fIJJSJRNÒTY\\O_JOY[iàNJ[O_ZONTJOUVRJIOỲO
QL[aKLYIZOYR[OSY[JOMYZY_\JONPONTJOUVRJIOỲOQL[aKLYIZOQPIONTJOLR̀aIJ[̀WOỲONTJLIOLRNJIJ̀ǸOSYZOYMMJYIWÒa_iJKNONPO
IJhaLIJSJRǸOPQOYRZOYMM\LKY_\JOSPINfYfJJOK\YàJOYR[OPQObJKNLPRO��d̈d�dOgTJOUVRJIÒTY\\OMYZONTJO�IKTLNJKNOYR[O
XPRNIYKNPIONTJLIOiàNÒTYIJ̀OPQOLR̀aIYRKJOMIPKJJ[̀OIJKJLeJ[O_ZONTJOUVRJIWOYR[O_ZOYMMIPMILYNJOYfIJJSJRǸONTJO�IKTLNJKNO
YR[OXPRNIYKNPIÒTY\\OSŶJOMYZSJRǸONPONTJLIOKPR̀a\NYRǸOYR[Oba_KPRNIYKNPÌOLRÒLSL\YIOSYRRJId

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

127



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKKLMLNOPQRSQOTSOUVTTWVXVYTOSZO[YORYU\QV]OWSUÛOT_VÒaYVQOU_[WWOYSTRZbOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOSZOT_VOTVQXUOSZOT_VOeQSeSUV]O
UVTTWVXVYTO[UOaVWWO[UOT_VOeQSeSUV]O[WWSd[TRSYOSZOT_VORYU\Q[YdVOeQSdVV]UfOg_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOU_[WWO_[hVOijO][bUOZQSXOQVdVReTO
SZOYSTRdVOTSOSklVdTOTSOT_VOeQSeSUV]OUVTTWVXVYTOSQO[WWSd[TRSYOSZOT_VOeQSdVV]UfOmZOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQO]SVUOYSTOSklVdT̂OT_VO
àYVQOU_[WWOUVTTWVOT_VOWSUUO[Y]OT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOU_[WWOkVOkS\Y]OkbOT_VOUVTTWVXVYTO[Y]O[WWSd[TRSYfOneSYOQVdVReT̂OT_VÒaYVQO
U_[WWO]VeSURTOT_VORYU\Q[YdVOeQSdVV]UORYO[OUVe[Q[TVO[ddS\YTO[Y]OX[oVOT_VO[eeQSeQR[TVO]RUTQRk\TRSYUfOg_VQV[ZTVQ̂ORZOYSO
ST_VQO[pQVVXVYTORUOX[]VOSQOT_VÒaYVQO]SVUOYSTOTVQXRY[TVOT_VOcSYTQ[dTOZSQOdSYhVYRVYdV̂OT_VÒaYVQO[Y]OcSYTQ[dTSQO
U_[WWOVqVd\TVO[Oc_[YpVÒQ]VQOZSQOQVdSYUTQ\dTRSYOSZOT_VO][X[pV]OSQO]VUTQSbV]OrSQoORYOT_VO[XS\YTO[WWSd[TV]OZSQOT_[TO
e\QeSUVfOmZOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOTRXVWbOSklVdTUOTSOVRT_VQOT_VOTVQXUOSZOT_VOeQSeSUV]OUVTTWVXVYTOSQOT_VO[WWSd[TRSYOSZOT_VO
eQSdVV]ÛOT_VÒaYVQOX[bOeQSdVV]OTSOUVTTWVOT_VORYU\QV]OWSUÛO[Y]O[YbO]RUe\TVOkVTaVVYOT_VÒaYVQO[Y]OcSYTQ[dTSQO[QRURYpO
S\TOSZOT_VOUVTTWVXVYTOSQO[WWSd[TRSYOSZOT_VOeQSdVV]UOU_[WWOkVOQVUSWhV]Oe\QU\[YTOTSOsQTRdWVOitfOPVY]RYpOQVUSW\TRSYOSZO[YbO
]RUe\TV̂OT_VÒaYVQOX[bORUU\VO[OcSYUTQ\dTRSYOc_[YpVOuRQVdTRhVOZSQOT_VOQVdSYUTQ\dTRSYOSZOT_VO][X[pV]OSQO]VUTQSbV]O
rSQof

vwxyz{|JKNJJJ}~z��|wy~�Jv~�Jz�ww|zxy�~J��J��w�
IJKNLKJ}���������J��J����
IJKNLKLKOmZO[OeSQTRSYOSZOT_VOrSQoORUOdShVQV]OdSYTQ[QbOTSOT_VOsQd_RTVdT�UOQV�\VUTOSQOTSOQV�\RQVXVYTUOUeVdRZRd[WWbO
VqeQVUUV]ORYOT_VOcSYTQ[dTOuSd\XVYTÛORTOX\UT̂ORZOQV�\VUTV]ORYOaQRTRYpOkbOT_VOsQd_RTVdT̂OkVO\YdShVQV]OZSQOT_VOsQd_RTVdT�UO
Vq[XRY[TRSYO[Y]OkVOQVeW[dV]O[TOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQ�UOVqeVYUVOaRT_S\TOd_[YpVORYOT_VOcSYTQ[dTOgRXVOSQOT_VOcSYTQ[dTO�\Xf

IJKNLKLNOmZO[OeSQTRSYOSZOT_VOrSQoO_[UOkVVYOdShVQV]OT_[TOT_VOsQd_RTVdTO_[UOYSTOUeVdRZRd[WWbOQV�\VUTV]OTSOVq[XRYVOeQRSQOTSO
RTUOkVRYpOdShVQV]̂OT_VOsQd_RTVdTOX[bOQV�\VUTOTSOUVVOU\d_OrSQoO[Y]ORTOU_[WWOkVO\YdShVQV]OkbOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQfOmZOU\d_O
rSQoORUORYO[ddSQ][YdVOaRT_OT_VOcSYTQ[dTOuSd\XVYTÛOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOU_[WWOkVOVYTRTWV]OTSO[YOV�\RT[kWVO[]l\UTXVYTOTSOT_VO
cSYTQ[dTO�\XO[Y]OcSYTQ[dTOgRXVO[UOX[bOkVO[eeQSeQR[TVfOmZOU\d_OrSQoORUOYSTORYO[ddSQ][YdVOaRT_OT_VOcSYTQ[dTO
uSd\XVYTÛOT_VOdSUTUOSZO\YdShVQRYpOT_VOrSQôO[Y]OT_VOdSUTOSZOdSQQVdTRSŶOU_[WWOkVO[TOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQ�UOVqeVYUVf

IJKNLNJz���������J��J����
IJKNLNLKJ������J�����������Jz���������
g_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOU_[WWOeQSXeTWbOdSQQVdTOrSQoOQVlVdTV]OkbOT_VOsQd_RTVdTOSQOZ[RWRYpOTSOdSYZSQXOTSOT_VOQV�\RQVXVYTUOSZOT_VO
cSYTQ[dTOuSd\XVYTÛO]RUdShVQV]OkVZSQVO�\kUT[YTR[WOcSXeWVTRSYO[Y]Oa_VT_VQOSQOYSTOZ[kQRd[TV]̂ORYUT[WWV]OSQOdSXeWVTV]fO
cSUTUOSZOdSQQVdTRYpOU\d_OQVlVdTV]OrSQôORYdW\]RYpO[]]RTRSY[WOTVUTRYpO[Y]ORYUeVdTRSYÛOT_VOdSUTOSZO\YdShVQRYpO[Y]O
QVeW[dVXVYT̂O[Y]OdSXeVYU[TRSYOZSQOT_VOsQd_RTVdT�UOUVQhRdVUO[Y]OVqeVYUVUOX[]VOYVdVUU[QbOT_VQVkb̂OU_[WWOkVO[TOT_VO
cSYTQ[dTSQ�UOVqeVYUVf

IJKNLNLNJv����J�����������Jz���������
IJKNLNLNLKOmYO[]]RTRSYOTSOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQ�UOSkWRp[TRSYUO\Y]VQO�VdTRSYO�ft̂ORẐOaRT_RYOSYVObV[QO[ZTVQOT_VO][TVOSZO�\kUT[YTR[WO
cSXeWVTRSYOSZOT_VOrSQoOSQO]VURpY[TV]OeSQTRSYOT_VQVSZOSQO[ZTVQOT_VO][TVOZSQOdSXXVYdVXVYTOSZOa[QQ[YTRVUOVUT[kWRU_V]O
\Y]VQO�VdTRSYO�f�fîOSQOkbOTVQXUOSZO[YbO[eeWRd[kWVOUeVdR[WOa[QQ[YTbOQV�\RQV]OkbOT_VOcSYTQ[dTOuSd\XVYTÛO[YbOSZOT_VO
rSQoORUOZS\Y]OTSOkVOYSTORYO[ddSQ][YdVOaRT_OT_VOQV�\RQVXVYTUOSZOT_VOcSYTQ[dTOuSd\XVYTÛOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOU_[WWOdSQQVdTORTO
eQSXeTWbO[ZTVQOQVdVReTOSZOYSTRdVOZQSXOT_VÒaYVQOTSO]SOUŜO\YWVUUOT_VÒaYVQO_[UOeQVhRS\UWbOpRhVYOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQO[O
aQRTTVYO[ddVeT[YdVOSZOU\d_OdSY]RTRSYfOg_VÒaYVQOU_[WWOpRhVOU\d_OYSTRdVOeQSXeTWbO[ZTVQO]RUdShVQbOSZOT_VOdSY]RTRSYfO
u\QRYpOT_VOSYV�bV[QOeVQRS]OZSQOdSQQVdTRSYOSZOrSQôORZOT_VÒaYVQOZ[RWUOTSOYSTRZbOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQO[Y]OpRhVOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQO
[YOSeeSQT\YRTbOTSOX[oVOT_VOdSQQVdTRSŶOT_VÒaYVQOa[RhVUOT_VOQRp_TUOTSOQV�\RQVOdSQQVdTRSYOkbOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQO[Y]OTSOX[oVO
[OdW[RXOZSQOkQV[d_OSZOa[QQ[YTbfOmZOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOZ[RWUOTSOdSQQVdTOYSYdSYZSQXRYpOrSQoOeQSXeTWbO]\QRYpOT_[TOeVQRS]O[ZTVQO
QVdVReTOSZOYSTRdVOZQSXOT_VÒaYVQOSQOsQd_RTVdT̂OT_VÒaYVQOX[bOdSQQVdTORTORYO[ddSQ][YdVOaRT_O�VdTRSYO ftfOg_VÒaYVQO
X[bOaRT_S\TOZ\QT_VQOYSTRdV̂OeQSdVV]OTSOdSQQVdTOT_VOrSQôOT_VÒaYVQOX[bO]RUeSUVOSZOX[TVQR[WUO[Y]OV�\ReXVYTO[UORTOUVVUO
ZRT̂O[Y]OT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOaRWWOkVOWR[kWVOZSQO[WWOdSUTUf

IJKNLNLNLNOg_VOSYV�bV[QOeVQRS]OZSQOdSQQVdTRSYOSZOrSQoOU_[WWOkVOVqTVY]V]OaRT_OQVUeVdTOTSOeSQTRSYUOSZOrSQoOZRQUTO
eVQZSQXV]O[ZTVQO�\kUT[YTR[WOcSXeWVTRSYOkbOT_VOeVQRS]OSZOTRXVOkVTaVVYO�\kUT[YTR[WOcSXeWVTRSYO[Y]OT_VO[dT\[WO
dSXeWVTRSYOSZOT_[TOeSQTRSYOSZOT_VOrSQof

IJKNLNLNL¡Og_VOSYV�bV[QOeVQRS]OZSQOdSQQVdTRSYOSZOrSQoOU_[WWOYSTOkVOVqTVY]V]OkbOdSQQVdTRhVOrSQoOeVQZSQXV]OkbOT_VO
cSYTQ[dTSQOe\QU\[YTOTSOT_RUO�VdTRSYOi f f

IJKNLNL¡Og_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOU_[WWOQVXShVOZQSXOT_VOURTVOeSQTRSYUOSZOT_VOrSQoOT_[TO[QVOYSTORYO[ddSQ][YdVOaRT_OT_VO
QV�\RQVXVYTUOSZOT_VOcSYTQ[dTOuSd\XVYTUO[Y]O[QVOYVRT_VQOdSQQVdTV]OkbOT_VOcSYTQ[dTSQOYSQO[ddVeTV]OkbOT_VÒaYVQf

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

128



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMLMNOPQROSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[O\RXWOVQROYTZVOT]OYTWWRYV̂U_ÒRZVWTaR̀OTWÒXbX_R̀OYTUZVWcYV̂TUOT]OVQROdeURWOTWOfRgXWXVRO
STUVWXYVTWZhOeQRVQRWOYTbg[RVR̀OTWOgXWV̂X[[aOYTbg[RVR̀hOYXcZR̀O\aOVQROSTUVWXYVTWiZOYTWWRYV̂TUOTWOWRbTjX[OT]OkTWlOVQXVO
ẐOUTVÔUOXYYTẀXUYROêVQOVQROWRmĉWRbRUVZOT]OVQROSTUVWXYVOnTYcbRUVZo

IJKLMLMpOqTVQ̂U_OYTUVX̂UR̀ÔUOVQ̂ZOfRYV̂TUOrsosOZQX[[O\ROYTUZVWcR̀OVTORZVX\[̂ZQOXOgRŴT̀OT]O[̂b̂VXV̂TUOêVQOWRZgRYVOVTO
TVQRWOT\[̂_XV̂TUZOVQROSTUVWXYVTWOQXZOcÙRWOVQROSTUVWXYVOnTYcbRUVZoOtZVX\[̂ZQbRUVOT]OVQROTURuaRXWOgRŴT̀O]TWO
YTWWRYV̂TUOT]OkTWlOXZÒRZYŴ\R̀ÔUOfRYV̂TUOrsososOWR[XVRZOTU[aOVTOVQROZgRŶ]̂YOT\[̂_XV̂TUOT]OVQROSTUVWXYVTWOVTOYTWWRYVOVQRO
kTWlhOXÙOQXZOUTOWR[XV̂TUZQ̂gOVTOVQROV̂bROêVQ̂UOeQ̂YQOVQROT\[̂_XV̂TUOVTOYTbg[aOêVQOVQROSTUVWXYVOnTYcbRUVZObXaO\RO
ZTc_QVOVTO\RORU]TWYR̀hOUTWOVTOVQROV̂bROêVQ̂UOeQ̂YQOgWTYRR̀ Û_ZObXaO\ROYTbbRUYR̀OVTORZVX\[̂ZQOVQROSTUVWXYVTWiZO
[̂X\̂[̂VaOêVQOWRZgRYVOVTOVQROSTUVWXYVTWiZOT\[̂_XV̂TUZOTVQRWOVQXUOZgRŶ]̂YX[[aOVTOYTWWRYVOVQROkTWlo

IJKLMvJwxxyz{|}xyJ~�J�~}x~}�~���}�J�~��
�]OVQROdeURWOgWR]RWZOVTOXYYRgVOkTWlOVQXVÔZOUTVÔUOXYYTẀXUYROêVQOVQROWRmĉWRbRUVZOT]OVQROSTUVWXYVOnTYcbRUVZhOVQRO
deURWObXaÒTOZTÔUZVRX̀OT]OWRmĉŴU_ÔVZOWRbTjX[OXÙOYTWWRYV̂TUhÔUOeQ̂YQOYXZROVQROSTUVWXYVOfcbOê[[O\ROWR̀cYR̀OXZO
XggWTgŴXVROXÙORmĉVX\[RoOfcYQOX̀�cZVbRUVOZQX[[O\ROR]]RYVR̀OeQRVQRWOTWOUTVO]̂UX[OgXabRUVOQXZO\RRUObX̀Ro

w������JKvJJJ�������w�����J����������
IJKvMKJ�~�y�}�}�J�|�
PQROSTUVWXYVOZQX[[O\RO_TjRWUR̀O\aOVQRO[XeOT]OVQROg[XYROeQRWROVQRO�WT�RYVÔZO[TYXVR̀hOR�Y[c̀ Û_OVQXVO�cŴZ̀ŶV̂TUiZO
YQT̂YROT]O[XeOWc[RZoO�]OVQROgXWV̂RZOQXjROZR[RYVR̀OXW\̂VWXV̂TUOXZOVQRObRVQT̀OT]O\̂Ù Û_Ò̂ZgcVROWRZT[cV̂TUhOVQRO�R̀RWX[O
�W\̂VWXV̂TUO�YVOZQX[[O_TjRWUOfRYV̂TUOr�o�o

IJKvMLJ��xxy��~��J|} Jw����}�
IJKvMLMKOPQROdeURWOXÙOSTUVWXYVTWOWRZgRYV̂jR[aO\̂ÙOVQRbZR[jRZhOVQR̂WOgXWVURWZhOZcYYRZZTWZhOXZẐ_UZhOXÙO[R_X[O
WRgWRZRUVXV̂jRZOVTOYTjRUXUVZhOX_WRRbRUVZhOXÙOT\[̂_XV̂TUZOYTUVX̂UR̀ÔUOVQROSTUVWXYVOnTYcbRUVZoOt�YRgVOXZOgWTĵ̀ R̀ÔUO
fRYV̂TUOr¡ososhOUR̂VQRWOgXWVaOVTOVQROSTUVWXYVOZQX[[OXZẐ_UOVQROSTUVWXYVOXZOXOeQT[ROêVQTcVOeŴVVRUOYTUZRUVOT]OVQROTVQRWoO
�]OR̂VQRWOgXWVaOXVVRbgVZOVTObXlROXUOXZẐ_UbRUVOêVQTcVOZcYQOYTUZRUVhOVQXVOgXWVaOZQX[[OURjRWVQR[RZZOWRbX̂UO[R_X[[aO
WRZgTUẐ\[RO]TWOX[[OT\[̂_XV̂TUZOcÙRWOVQROSTUVWXYVo

IJKvMLMLOPQROdeURWObXahOêVQTcVOYTUZRUVOT]OVQROSTUVWXYVTWhOXZẐ_UOVQROSTUVWXYVOVTOXO[RÙRWOgWTĵ̀ Û_OYTUZVWcYV̂TUO
]̂UXUŶU_O]TWOVQRO�WT�RYVhÔ]OVQRO[RÙRWOXZZcbRZOVQROdeURWiZOŴ_QVZOXÙOT\[̂_XV̂TUZOcÙRWOVQROSTUVWXYVOnTYcbRUVZoOPQRO
STUVWXYVTWOZQX[[OR�RYcVROX[[OYTUZRUVZOWRXZTUX\[aOWRmĉWR̀OVTO]XŶ[̂VXVROVQROXZẐ_UbRUVo

IJKvMvJ���¢{�J|} J�y�y �y�
IJKvMvMKOncV̂RZOXÙOT\[̂_XV̂TUZÔbgTZR̀O\aOVQROSTUVWXYVOnTYcbRUVZOXÙOŴ_QVZOXÙOWRbR̀ R̂ZOXjX̂[X\[ROVQRWRcÙRWO
ZQX[[O\RÔUOX̀`̂V̂TUOVTOXÙOUTVOXO[̂b̂VXV̂TUOT]ÒcV̂RZhOT\[̂_XV̂TUZhOŴ_QVZhOXÙOWRbR̀ R̂ZOTVQRWêZRÔbgTZR̀OTWOXjX̂[X\[RO
\aO[XeoOPQROSTUVWXYVTWiZOZT[ROWRbR̀aO]TWOY[X̂bZhÒ̂ZgcVRZOXÙOTVQRWObXVVRWZÔUOmcRZV̂TUOT]OVQROSTUVWXYVTWhÒ̂WRYVOTWO
Û̀ ŴRYVhOXŴẐU_OTcVOT]hOTWOWR[XV̂U_OVThOVQROSTUVWXYVOnTYcbRUVZOTWO\WRXYQOVQRWRT]hOR�YRgVOeQ̂YQOQXjRO\RRUOeX̂jR̀OcÙRWO
VQROVRWbZOT]OVQROSTUVWXYVOnTYcbRUVZhOQTeRjRWhÔZOVQRÒ̂ZgcVROWRZT[cV̂TUOgWTYR̀cWROT]O�WV̂Y[ROr�o

IJKvMvMLOqTOXYV̂TUOTWO]X̂[cWROVTOXYVO\aOVQROdeURWhO�WYQ̂VRYVhOTWOSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[OYTUZV̂VcVROXOeX̂jRWOT]OXOŴ_QVOTWÒcVaO
X]]TẀR̀OVQRbOcÙRWOVQROSTUVWXYVhOUTWOZQX[[OZcYQOXYV̂TUOTWO]X̂[cWROVTOXYVOYTUZV̂VcVROXggWTjX[OT]OTWOXYmĉRZYRUYRÔUOXO
\WRXYQOVQRWRcÙRWhOR�YRgVOXZObXaO\ROZgRŶ]̂YX[[aOX_WRR̀OcgTUÔUOeŴV̂U_o

£¤¥¦§¦§¦¤�]OXUaOgTWV̂TUOT]OVQ̂ZOSTUVWXYVÔZOQR[̀OVTO\ROjT̂̀ OTWOcURU]TWYRX\[RhOVQROWRbX̂ÙRWOT]OVQROSTUVWXYVOZQX[[O\RO
RU]TWYRX\[ROêVQTcVOZcYQOgTWV̂TUo

IJKvMNJ�y�{�J|} J�}�zyx{�~}�
IJKvMNMKOPRZVZhÔUZgRYV̂TUZhOXÙOXggWTjX[ZOT]OgTWV̂TUZOT]OVQROkTWlOZQX[[O\RObX̀ROXZOWRmĉWR̀O\aOVQROSTUVWXYVO
nTYcbRUVZOXÙO\aOXgg[̂YX\[RO[XeZhOZVXVcVRZhOTẀ̂UXUYRZhOYT̀RZhOWc[RZhOXÙOWR_c[XV̂TUZOTWO[Xe]c[OTẀRWZOT]Ogc\[̂YO
XcVQTŴV̂RZoÖU[RZZOTVQRWêZROgWTĵ̀ R̀hOVQROSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[ObXlROXWWXU_RbRUVZO]TWOZcYQOVRZVZhÔUZgRYV̂TUZhOXÙO
XggWTjX[ZOêVQOXUÔÙRgRÙRUVOVRZV̂U_O[X\TWXVTWaOTWORUV̂VaOXYYRgVX\[ROVTOVQROdeURWhOTWOêVQOVQROXggWTgŴXVROgc\[̂YO
XcVQTŴVahOXÙOZQX[[O\RXWOX[[OWR[XVR̀OYTZVZOT]OVRZVZhÔUZgRYV̂TUZhOXÙOXggWTjX[ZoOPQROSTUVWXYVTWOZQX[[O_̂jROVQRO�WYQ̂VRYVO
V̂bR[aOUTV̂YROT]OeQRUOXÙOeQRWROVRZVZOXÙÔUZgRYV̂TUZOXWROVTO\RObX̀ROZTOVQXVOVQRO�WYQ̂VRYVObXaO\ROgWRZRUVO]TWOZcYQO
gWTYR̀cWRZoOPQROdeURWOZQX[[O\RXWOYTZVZOT]OVRZVZhÔUZgRYV̂TUZhOTWOXggWTjX[ZOVQXVÒTOUTVO\RYTbROWRmĉWRbRUVZOcUV̂[OX]VRWO
\̂̀ ZOXWROWRYR̂jR̀OTWOUR_TV̂XV̂TUZOYTUY[c̀R̀oOPQROdeURWOZQX[[Ò ŴRYV[aOXWWXU_ROXÙOgXaO]TWOVRZVZhÔUZgRYV̂TUZhOTWO
XggWTjX[ZOeQRWRO\ĉ[̀̂U_OYT̀RZOTWOXgg[̂YX\[RO[XeZOTWOWR_c[XV̂TUZOZTOWRmĉWRo

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

129



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNMOPQRPSTUPVWXTYSUXSZP[\]UWZP̂WP_̀abYXPc̀ST̂WYSYUdPTceY]fPg̀WYdhYXSŶ]PhUSUWiY]UPSTcSP_̂WSŶ]dP̂RPSTUPj ŴkPWUl̀YWUP
chhYSŶ]cbPSUdSY]fZPY]d_UXSŶ]ZP̂WPc__ŴecbP]̂SPY]Xb̀hUhP̀]hUWPmUXSŶ]PnopqpnZPSTUPVWXTYSUXSP\YbbZP̀_̂]P\WYSSU]P
c̀ST̂WYrcSŶ]PRŴiPSTUP[\]UWZPY]dSẀXSPSTUPŝ]SWcXŜWPŜPickUPcWWc]fUiU]SdPR̂WPd̀XTPchhYSŶ]cbPSUdSY]fZPY]d_UXSŶ]ZP̂WP
c__ŴecbZPatPc]PU]SYStPcXXU_ScabUPŜPSTUP[\]UWZPc]hPSTUPŝ]SWcXŜWPdTcbbPfYeUPSYiUbtP]̂SYXUPŜPSTUPVWXTYSUXSP̂RP\TU]P
c]hP\TUWUPSUdSdPc]hPY]d_UXSŶ]dPcWUPŜPaUPichUPd̂PSTcSPSTUPVWXTYSUXSPictPaUP_WUdU]SPR̂WPd̀XTP_ŴXUh̀WUdpPm̀XTPX̂dSdZP
UuXU_SPcdP_ŴeYhUhPY]PmUXSŶ]PnopqpoZPdTcbbPaUPcSPSTUP[\]UWvdPUu_U]dUp

IJKLMNMLJQRP_ŴXUh̀WUdPR̂WPSUdSY]fZPY]d_UXSŶ]ZP̂WPc__ŴecbP̀]hUWPmUXSŶ]dPnopqpnPc]hPnopqpwPWUeUcbPRcYb̀WUP̂RPSTUP
_̂WSŶ]dP̂RPSTUPj ŴkPŜPX̂i_btP\YSTPWUl̀YWUiU]SdPUdScabYdTUhPatPSTUPŝ]SWcXSPx̂ X̀iU]SdZPcbbPX̂dSdPichUP]UXUddcWtPatP
d̀XTPRcYb̀WUZPY]Xb̀hY]fPST̂dUP̂RPWU_UcSUhP_ŴXUh̀WUdPc]hPX̂i_U]dcSŶ]PR̂WPSTUPVWXTYSUXSvdPdUWeYXUdPc]hPUu_U]dUdZPdTcbbP
aUPcSPSTUPŝ]SWcXŜWvdPUu_U]dUp

IJKLMNMNPyUl̀YWUhPXUWSYRYXcSUdP̂RPSUdSY]fZPY]d_UXSŶ]ZP̂WPc__ŴecbPdTcbbZP̀]bUddP̂STUW\YdUPWUl̀YWUhPatPSTUPŝ]SWcXSP
x̂ X̀iU]SdZPaUPdUX̀WUhPatPSTUPŝ]SWcXŜWPc]hP_Ŵi_SbtPhUbYeUWUhPŜPSTUPVWXTYSUXSp

IJKLMNMzPQRPSTUPVWXTYSUXSPYdPŜP̂adUWeUPSUdSdZPY]d_UXSŶ]dZP̂WPc__ŴecbdPWUl̀YWUhPatPSTUPŝ]SWcXSPx̂ X̀iU]SdZPSTUP
VWXTYSUXSP\YbbPĥPd̂P_Ŵi_SbtPc]hZP\TUWUP_WcXSYXcabUZPcSPSTUP]̂WicbP_bcXUP̂RPSUdSY]fp

IJKLMNM{J|UdSdP̂WPY]d_UXSŶ]dPX̂]h̀XSUhP_̀Wd̀c]SPŜPSTUPŝ]SWcXSPx̂ X̀iU]SdPdTcbbPaUPichUP_Ŵi_SbtPŜPcêYhP
]̀WUcd̂]cabUPhUbctPY]PSTUPj Ŵkp

}~������~QRPSTUP[\]UWPYdPWUd_̂]dYabUP̀]hUWPSTUPŝ]SWcXSPx̂ X̀iU]SdZPbc\P̂WPWUf̀bcSŶ]PŜP_ctP̂]btPR̂WPc]PY]d_UXSŶ]P̂RP
c]tPY]d_UXŜWZPX̂]d̀bSc]SP̂WPVWXTYSUXSZPSTUP[\]UWPdTcbbPaUPWUl̀YWUhPŜP_ctP̂]btPR̂WPSTUPRYWdSPcXS̀cbPY]d_UXSŶ]pPQRPSTUP
ŝ]SWcXŜWPcWWc]fUdPR̂WPc]PY]d_UXSŶ]Pc]hPSTUPY]d_UXŜWPYdPWUl̀YWUhPŜP\cYSZPŜPbUceUP\YST̂ S̀PY]d_UXSY]fZPŜP_UWR̂WiPcP
_cWSYcbPY]d_UXSŶ]ZPŜPWUS̀W]PŜPX̂i_bUSUP̂WPWUY]d_UXSZP̂WP̂STUW\YdUPŜPUu_U]hPSYiUP̂STUWPSTc]PR̂WPSTUP_WYicWtPY]d_UXSŶ]ZP
STUPŝ]SWcXŜWPdTcbbPaUPWUd_̂]dYabUPR̂WPcbbPd̀XTPX̂dSdpPQRPSTUPŝ]SWcXŜWPĥUdP]̂SP_ctPSTUPXTcWfUdPR̂WP\TYXTPYSPYdP
WUd_̂]dYabUP\YSTY]Po�PhctdP̂RPaYbbY]fZPSTUP[\]UWPictP_ctPSTUPXTcWfUdPhYWUXSbtPc]hPacXkPXTcWfUPSTUPŝ]SWcXŜWP̂]PSTUP
]UuSP_ŴfWUddP_ctiU]SPSTUPcî ]̀SP_cYhP_b̀dPn��PTc]hbY]fPRUUp

}~������~�̂PcXXU_Sc]XUPatPSTUP[\]UWP̂RPc]tPj ŴkPdTcbbPaUPX̂]dSẀUhPŜPWUd̀bSPRŴiPc]tPY]d_UXSŶ]dZPSUdSdP̂WPRcYb̀WUdPŜP
Y]d_UXSP̂WPSUdSPatPSTUP[\]UWZPSTUP[\]UWdPWU_WUdU]ScSYeUdZPSTUPVWXTYSUXSP̂WPc]tP̂STUWP_UWd̂]PdTcbbPWUbYUeUPSTUPŝ]SWcXŜWP
R̂PYSdPWUd_̂]dYaYbYStPR̂WPiUUSY]fPSTUPWUl̀YWUiU]SdP̂RPSTUPŝ]SWcXSPx̂ X̀iU]SdP̂WPYi_cYWPSTUP[\]UWvdPWYfTSPŜPWUgUXSP
hURUXSYeUP̂WP]̂]X̂]R̂WiY]fPYSUidP̂WPWYfTSPŜPcecYbPYSdUbRP̂RPc]tP̂STUWPWUiUhtPŜP\TYXTPSTUP[\]UWPictPaUPU]SYSbUhZP
]̂S\YSTdSc]hY]fPSTUP[\]UWvdPk]̂\bUhfUP̂RPSTUPhURUXSP̂WP]̂]X̂]R̂WiYStZPYSdPd̀adSc]SYcbYStZP̂WPSTUPUcdUP̂RPYSdPhYdX̂eUWtp

IJKLMzJ��������
�ctiU]SdPh̀UPc]hP̀]_cYhP̀]hUWPSTUPŝ]SWcXSPx̂ X̀iU]SdPdTcbbPaUcWPY]SUWUdSPcdPd_UXYRYUhPatPysjPo�p��ZP�Q]SUWUdSP̂]P
�]_cYhP�̀abYXPŝ]SWcXSdp�

}~����~��������
|TUPŝ]ScXŜWPdTcbbPcaYhUPatPSTUP_ŴeYdŶ]dP̂RPcbbPjcdTY]fŜ]PmScS̀SUdpPVbST̂ f̀TPcP]̀iaUWP̂RPdScS̀SUdPcWUPWURUWU]XUhP
Y]PSTUPŝ]SWcXSPx̂ X̀iU]SdZPYSPYdP]̂SPiUc]SPŜPaUPcPX̂i_bUSUPbYdSPc]hPdT̂ b̀hP]̂SPaUPWUbYUhP̀_̂]PcdPd̀XTp

}~����~����������~������������
�̀Wd̀c]SPŜPsTc_SUWPo�p��ZPysjZP�yUfYdSWcSŶ]ZP YXU]dY]fP̂RPŝ]SWcXŜWdZ�PSTUPŝ]SWcXŜWPdTcbbPaUPWUfYdSUWUhP̂WP
bYXU]dUhPcdPWUl̀YWUhPatPSTUPbc\dP̂RPSTUPmScSUP̂RPjcdTY]fŜ]ZPY]Xb̀hY]fPàSP]̂SPbYiYSUhPŜPsTc_SUWPn¡pw�ZPysjZP
�yUfYdSWcSŶ]P̂RPŝ]SWcXŜWdp�

}~����~¢�£~�������~¤�����¥�������
|TUPŝ]SWcXŜWPdTcbbPX̂i_btP\YSTP_UWSY]U]SPdScS̀ŜWtP_ŴeYdŶ]dPWUbcSY]fPŜP_̀abYXP\̂WkdP̂RPsTc_SUWPq�p��ZPysjZP
�xYdXWYiY]cSŶ]p�

}~���¦~§��̈ ������~©��~���¤~��¤~ª��¤���§§�¤~§������
|TUPŝ]ScXŜWPdTcbbPX̂i_btP\YSTP_UWSY]U]SPdScS̀ŜWtP_ŴeYdŶ]dPWUbcSY]fPŜP_̀abYXP\̂WkdP̂WPysjZP��p�wZP��ŴeYdŶ]dPY]P
«̀YbhY]fdPR̂WPVfUhPc]hP¬c]hYXc__UhP�UWd̂]dZ�Pc]hPSTUPViUWYXc]dP\YSTPxYdcaYbYSYUdPVXSp

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

130



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMKNJOPQRSTJOSPUVPWVO
XYZ[\]̂_̀a_]b[cỲdd[a]efdg[hi_Y[fZb_îẐ_[c_̀_j_]bg[fb]kici]̂c[bZd̀_îl[_][fjmdia[h]bnc[]o[\Ỳf_Zb[pqrstu[v\wu[
xw c̀Yîl_]̂[ŷzjc_bìd[{̀oZ_g[̀̂ z[|Z̀d_Y[}a_ux[̀̂ z[\Ỳf_Zb[~q��s��[w}\u[x{̀oZ_g[{_̀̂ z̀bzc[o]b[\]̂c_bja_i]̂[
w]bnrx

IJKLMKKJ�UR����T�RUSJ����RUOPS��U
�jbcj̀ _̂[_][\Ỳf_Zb[��r~pu[v\wu[x\]̂_bimj_i]̂c[mg[�efd]gZbcux[î[lẐZb̀d[̀̂ z[v\w[��r~prs��[î[f̀b_iajd̀bu[_YZ[
\]̂_b̀a_]b[cỲdd[f̀g[a]̂_bimj_i]̂c[o]b[h̀lZc[o]b[fZbc]̂ d̀[cZbkiaZc[fZbo]beZz[ĵzZb[_Yic[\]̂_b̀a_[]b[̀bb̀̂ lZ[o]b[̀[m]̂z[
àaZf_̀mdZ[_][_YZ[a]eeicci]̂Zbr

IJKLMK�JVW���QWRRJ��W���P�R
IJKLMK�MKJXYZ[\]̂_̀a_]b[̀̂ z[̀dd[{jma]̂_b̀a_]bc[]o[̀̂ g[_iZb[cỲdd[ojddg[a]efdg[hi_Y[̀dd[̀ffdiàmdZ[oZzZb̀du[c_̀_Zu[̀̂ z[
d]àd[d̀hc[̀̂z[bZljd̀_i]̂c[bZl̀bzîl[zbjl�obZZ[h]bnfd̀aZu[îadjzîl[_YZ[�bjl�obZZ[w]bnfd̀aZ[}a_[]o[sq��r

IJKLMK�M�J}̂g[fZbc]̂[̂]_[oi_[o]b[zj_g[o]b[̀̂g[bZ̀c]̂u[îadjzîl[jcZ[]o[̀da]Y]du[a]̂_b]ddZz[cjmc_̀̂aZcu[]b[zbjlcu[cỲdd[
ieeZzì_Zdg[mZ[bZe]kZz[ob]e[_YZ[w]bnr

���������������������� �� ��¡¢¡£��¡� �� ¤��¥��� ������
¦���§���̈©ª«¬®«̄¬�°±�®²̈��̄¬®©³®̄©
¦���§�§�[XYZ[\]̂_b̀a_]b[èg[_Zbeî̀_Z[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_[io[̀dd[]o_YZ[w]bn[ic[c_]ffZz[o]b[̀[fZbi]z[]o[��[a]̂cZaj_ikZ[z̀gc[
_Yb]jlY[̂][̀a_[]b[òjd_[]o[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_]bu[̀[{jma]̂_b̀a_]bu[̀[{jm�cjma]̂_b̀a_]bu[_YZib[̀lẐ_c[]b[Zefd]gZZcu[]b[̀̂g[]_YZb[
fZbc]̂c[]b[Ẑ_i_iZc[fZbo]beîl[f]b_i]̂c[]o[_YZ[w]bnu[o]b[̀̂g[]o[_YZ[o]dd]hîl[bZ̀c]̂ć

§� yccj̀ âZ[]o[̀̂[]bzZb[]o[̀[a]jb_[]b[]_YZb[fjmdia[̀j_Y]bi_g[Ỳkîl[µjbiczia_i]̂[_Ỳ_[bZ¶jibZc[̀dd[w]bn[_][mZ[
c_]ffZz·

§̧ }̂ [̀a_[]o[l]kZb̂eẐ_u[cjaY[̀c[̀[zZad̀b̀_i]̂[]o[̂ _̀i]̂ d̀[ZeZblẐagu[_Ỳ_[bZ¶jibZc[̀dd[w]bn[_][mZ[
c_]ffZz·�]b

§¹ XYZ[ºĥZb[Ỳc[òidZz[_][ojb̂icY[_][_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_]b[bZ̀c]̂ m̀dZ[ZkizẐaZ[̀c[bZ¶jibZz[mg[{Za_i]̂[~r~r

¦���§�§̧[XYZ[\]̂_b̀a_]b[èg[_Zbeî̀_Z[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_[iou[_Yb]jlY[̂][̀a_[]b[òjd_[]o[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_]bu[̀[{jma]̂_b̀a_]bu[̀[
{jm�cjma]̂_b̀a_]bu[_YZib[̀lẐ_c[]b[Zefd]gZZcu[]b[̀̂ g[]_YZb[fZbc]̂c[]b[Ẑ_i_iZc[fZbo]beîl[f]b_i]̂c[]o[_YZ[w]bnu[
bZfZ̀_Zz[cjcfẐci]̂cu[zZd̀gcu[]b[î_Zbbjf_i]̂c[]o[_YZ[Ẑ_ibZ[w]bn[mg[_YZ[ºĥZb[̀c[zZcabimZz[î[{Za_i]̂[spr�u[a]̂c_i_j_Z[
î[_YZ[̀llbZl̀_Z[e]bZ[_Ỳ [̂s��[fZbaẐ_[]o[_YZ[_]_̀d[̂jemZb[]o[z̀gc[caYZzjdZz[o]b[a]efdZ_i]̂u[]b[s~�[z̀gc[î[̀̂ g[
����z̀g[fZbi]zu[hYiaYZkZb[ic[dZccr

¦���§�§¹[yo[]̂Z[]o[_YZ[bZ̀c]̂c[zZcabimZz[î[{Za_i]̂[sprsrs[]b[sprsr~[Z»ic_cu[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_]b[ègu[jf]̂[cZkẐ[z̀gc¼[
hbi__Ẑ[̂]_iaZ[_][_YZ[ºĥZb[̀̂ z[}baYi_Za_u[_Zbeî̀_Z[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_[̀̂ z[bZa]kZb[ob]e[_YZ[ºĥZb[f̀geẐ_[o]b[w]bn[
fb]fZbdg[Z»Zaj_Zzu[̀ ẑ[o]b[f̀geẐ_[]o[a]c_c[zibZa_dg[bZd̀_Zz[_][w]bn[_YZbZ̀o_Zb[fZbo]beZz[mg[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_]b[î[
_Zbeî̀_îl[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_u[îadjzîl[bZ̀c]̂ m̀dZ[zZe]midi½̀_i]̂[̀̂ z[à âZdd̀_i]̂[aỲblZc[̀̂ z[o]b[fb]kẐ[d]cc[hi_Y[
bZcfZa_[_][è_Zbìdcu[Z¶jifeẐ_u[_]]dc[̀̂z[a]̂c_bja_i]̂[Z¶jifeẐ_[̀̂z[èaYîZbgu[îadjzîl[bZ̀c]̂ m̀dZ[]kZbYZ̀z[̀̂z[
fb]oi_r[

¦���§�§�[yo[_YZ[w]bn[ic[c_]ffZz[o]b[̀[fZbi]z[]o[��[a]̂cZaj_ikZ[z̀gc[_Yb]jlY[̂][̀a_[]b[òjd_[]o[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_]bu[̀[
{jma]̂_b̀a_]bu[̀[{jm�cjma]̂_b̀a_]bu[]b[_YZib[̀lẐ_c[]b[Zefd]gZZc[]b[̀̂g[]_YZb[fZbc]̂c[]b[Ẑ_i_iZc[fZbo]beîl[f]b_i]̂c[
]o[_YZ[w]bn[mZàjcZ[_YZ[ºĥZb[Ỳc[bZfZ̀_Zzdg[òidZz[_][ojdoidd[_YZ[ºĥZb¼c[]mdil̀_i]̂c[ĵzZb[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_[�]ajeẐ_c[
hi_Y[bZcfZa_[_][è__Zbc[ief]b_̀̂_[_][_YZ[fb]lbZcc[]o[_YZ[w]bnu[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_]b[ègu[jf]̂[cZkẐ[̀zzi_i]̂ d̀[hbi__Ẑ[z̀gc¼[
]̂_iaZ[_][_YZ[ºĥZb[̀ ẑ[_YZ[}baYi_Za_u[_Zbeî̀_Z[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_[̀ ẑ[bZa]kZb[ob]e[_YZ[ºĥZb[̀c[fb]kizZz[î[
{Za_i]̂[sprsr�r

¦���§̧��̈©ª«¬®«̄¬�°±�®²̈� ¾¬̈©�¿̄©��ÀÁ̈
¦���§̧§�[XYZ[ºĥZb[èg[jf]̂[cZkẐ[z̀gc¼[hbi__Ẑ[̂]_iaZ[_][_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_]bu[_Zbeî̀_Z[Âhi_Y]j_[fbZµjziaZ[_][̀̂g[bilY_[
]b[bZeZzg[]o[_YZ[ºĥZbÃ[_YZ[hY]dZ[]b[̀̂g[f]b_i]̂[]o[_YZ[w]bn[o]b[àjcZu[îadjzîl[mj_[̂]_[diei_Zz[_][_YZ[o]dd]hîl[
aibajec_̀̂aZcr[XYZ[\]̂_b̀a_]b[cỲdd[a]̂_îjZ[_YZ[fZbo]bè âZ[]o[_Yic[\]̂_b̀a_[_][_YZ[Z»_Ẑ_[̂]_[_Zbeî̀_Zz[YZbZĵzZb́[
MK XYZ[\]̂_b̀a_]b[òidc[_][fb]cZaj_Z[_YZ[w]bn[]b[̀̂ g[f]b_i]̂[_YZbZ]o[hi_Y[cjooiaiẐ_[zidilẐaZ[_][ẐcjbZ[_YZ[
{jmc_̀̂_ìd[\]efdZ_i]̂[]o[_YZ[w]bn[hi_Yî[_YZ[\]̂_b̀a_[XieZr
M� XYZ[\]̂_b̀a_]b[ic[î[è_Zbìd[zZòjd_[]o[]b[è_Zbìddg[mbZ̀aYZc[̀̂g[fb]kici]̂[]o[_Yic[a]̂_b̀a_r

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

131



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJ KLMNOPQRSTURPSNVWNTXYZWRMXN[TQ\SZ]R̂N_T\MWNTǸMQMSTaNTWWV̀Q_MQRNbPSNRLMN[MQMbVRNPbNVRWNUSMXVRPSŴNPSNVbNTN
SMUMVcMSNVWNT]]PVQRMXNPQNTUUPZQRNPbNVRWNVQWPacMQUde
If KLMNOPQRSTURPSNSMbZWMWNPSNbTVaWNRPNWZ]]adNTNWZbbVUVMQRNQZ_[MSNPbN]SP]MSadNW\VaaMXNgPS\MSWNPSN]SP]MSN_TRMSVTaWe
Ih KLMNOPQRSTURPSNbTVaWNRPN_T\MN]SP_]RN]Td_MQRNXZMNRPNiZ[UPQRSTURPSWNPbNTQdNRVMSNbPSN_TRMSVTaWNPSNaT[PSNVQN
TUUPSXTQUMNgVRLNRLMNSMW]MURVcMNT̀SMM_MQRWN[MRgMMQNRLMNOPQRSTURPSNTQXNRLMNiZ[UPQRSTURPSWjNPS
Ik KLMNOPQRSTURPSNXVWSM̀TSXWNaTgŴNPSXVQTQUMŴNPSNSZaMŴNSM̀ZaTRVPQŴNPSNPSXMSWNPbNTN]Z[aVUNTZRLPSVRdNLTcVQ̀N
YZSVWXVURVPQe

lmnopqpqN
rLMQNTQdNPbNRLMNT[PcMNSMTWPQWNMsVWR̂NRLMNtgQMŜN_TdNgVRLPZRN]SMYZXVUMNRPNTQdNPRLMSNSV̀LRWNPSNSM_MXVMWNPbNRLMNtgQMSN
TQXNTbRMSǸVcVQ̀NRLMNOPQRSTURPSNTQXNRLMNOPQRSTURPSuWNWZSMRd̂NVbNTQd̂NWMcMQNXTdWuNgSVRRMQNQPRVUM̂NTQXN_Td̂NWZ[YMURNRPNTQdN
]SVPSNSV̀LRWNPbNRLMNWZSMRdNRT\MNTURVPQWNXMWUSV[MXNVQNiMURVPQNvwewevx
Iy zsUaZXMNRLMNOPQRSTURPSNbSP_NRLMNWVRMNTQXNRT\MN]PWWMWWVPQNPbNTaaN_TRMSVTaŴNM{ZV]_MQR̂NRPPaŴNTQXNUPQWRSZURVPQN
M{ZV]_MQRNTQXN_TULVQMSdNRLMSMPQNPgQMXN[dNRLMNOPQRSTURPSj
I| }UUM]RNTWWV̀Q_MQRNPbNWZ[UPQRSTURWN]ZSWZTQRNRPNiMURVPQN~ewjNTQX
IJ �VQVWLNRLMNrPS\N[dNgLTRMcMSNSMTWPQT[aMN_MRLPXNRLMNtgQMSN_TdNXMM_NMs]MXVMQReN�]PQNgSVRRMQNSM{ZMWRNPbNRLMN
OPQRSTURPŜNRLMNtgQMSNWLTaaNbZSQVWLNRPNRLMNOPQRSTURPSNTQNTUUPZQRVQ̀NPbNRLMNUPWRWNVQUZSSMXN[dNRLMNtgQMSNVQNbVQVWLVQ̀NRLMN
rPS\e

lmnopqp�NrLMQNRLMNtgQMSNRMS_VQTRMWNRLMNOPQRSTURNbPSNPQMNPbNRLMNSMTWPQWNWRTRMXNVQNiMURVPQNvwe�ev̂NRLMNOPQRSTURPSNWLTaaN
QPRN[MNMQRVRaMXNRPNSMUMVcMNbZSRLMSN]Td_MQRNZQRVaNRLMNrPS\NVWNbVQVWLMXe

lmnopqpoN�bNRLMNZQ]TVXN[TaTQUMNPbNRLMNOPQRSTURNiZ_NMsUMMXWNUPWRWNPbNbVQVWLVQ̀NRLMNrPS\̂NVQUaZXVQ̀NUP_]MQWTRVPQNbPSN
RLMN}SULVRMURuWNWMScVUMWNTQXNMs]MQWMWN_TXMNQMUMWWTSdNRLMSM[d̂NTQXNPRLMSNXT_T̀MWNVQUZSSMXN[dNRLMNtgQMŜNWZULNMsUMWWN
WLTaaN[MN]TVXNRPNRLMNOPQRSTURPSeN�bNWZULNUPWRWNTQXNXT_T̀MWNMsUMMXNRLMNZQ]TVXN[TaTQUM̂NRLMNOPQRSTURPSNWLTaaN]TdNRLMN
XVbbMSMQUMNRPNRLMNtgQMSeNKLMNT_PZQRNRPN[MN]TVXNRPNRLMNOPQRSTURPSNPSNtgQMŜNTWNRLMNUTWMN_TdN[M̂NWLTaaN[MNUMSRVbVMXN[dNRLMN
�QVRVTaN�MUVWVPQN�T\MŜNZ]PQNT]]aVUTRVPQ̂NTQXNRLVWNP[aV̀TRVPQNbPSN]Td_MQRNWLTaaNWZScVcMNRMS_VQTRVPQNPbNRLMNOPQRSTURe

��yfI|Ih��b̂NTbRMSNRLMNOPQRSTURPSNLTWN[MMQNRMS_VQTRMXN]ZSWZTQRNRPNRLVWN]TST̀ST]L̂NVRNVWNXMRMS_VQMXNRLTRNQPQMNPbNRLMN
UVSUZ_WRTQUMWNWMRNbPSRLNVQNiZ[]TST̀ST]LNvwe�evNMsVWRŴNRLMQNWZULNRMS_VQTRVPQNWLTaaN[MNUPQWVXMSMXNTNRMS_VQTRVPQNbPSN
UPQcMQVMQUMN]ZSWZTQRNRPN�TST̀ST]LNvwewe

lmnop�m����������m��m���m�����m���m�����������
lmnop�pnNKLMNtgQMSN_Td̂NgVRLPZRNUTZWM̂NPSXMSNRLMNOPQRSTURPSNVQNgSVRVQ̀NRPNWZW]MQX̂NXMaTdNPSNVQRMSSZ]RNRLMNrPS\̂NVQN
gLPaMNPSNVQN]TSRNbPSNWZULN]MSVPXNPbNRV_MNTWNRLMNtgQMSN_TdNXMRMS_VQMe

lmnop�pqNKLMNOPQRSTURNiZ_NTQXNOPQRSTURNKV_MNWLTaaN[MNTXYZWRMXNbPSNVQUSMTWMWNVQNRLMNUPWRNTQXNRV_MNUTZWMXN[dN
WZW]MQWVPQ̂NXMaTd̂NPSNVQRMSSZ]RVPQNZQXMSNiMURVPQNvwe�eveN}XYZWR_MQRNPbNRLMNOPQRSTURNiZ_NWLTaaNVQUaZXMN]SPbVReN�PN
TXYZWR_MQRNWLTaaN[MN_TXMNRPNRLMNMsRMQR

pn RLTRN]MSbPS_TQUMNVŴNgTŴNPSNgPZaXNLTcMN[MMQ̂NWPNWZW]MQXMX̂NXMaTdMX̂NPSNVQRMSSZ]RMX̂N[dNTQPRLMSNUTZWMN
bPSNgLVULNRLMNOPQRSTURPSNVWNSMW]PQWV[aMjNPS

pq RLTRNTQNM{ZVRT[aMNTXYZWR_MQRNVWN_TXMNPSNXMQVMXNZQXMSNTQPRLMSN]SPcVWVPQNPbNRLMNOPQRSTURe

lmnopom������ ����m��m���m�����m���m�����������
lmnopopnNKLMNtgQMSN_Td̂NTRNTQdNRV_M̂NRMS_VQTRMNRLMNOPQRSTURNbPSNRLMNtgQMSuWNUPQcMQVMQUMNTQXNgVRLPZRNUTZWMe

lmnopopqN
�QaMWWNXVSMURMXNPRLMSgVWMN[dNRLMNtgQMSNPSN}SULVRMUR̂NZ]PQNSMUMV]RNPbNgSVRRMQNQPRVUMNbSP_NRLMNtgQMSNPbNWZULN
RMS_VQTRVPQNbPSNRLMNtgQMSuWNUPQcMQVMQUM̂NRLMNOPQRSTURPSNWLTaa
Iy WRP]NrPS\NZQXMSNRLMNOPQRSTURNPQNRLMNXTRMNTQXNTWNW]MUVbVMXNVQNRLMN�PRVUMNPbNKMS_VQTRVPQe
I| ]aTUMNQPNbZSRLMSNPSXMSWNPSNWZ[UPQRSTURWNbPSN_TRMSVTaŴNM{ZV]_MQR̂NWMScVUMWNPSNbTUVaVRVMŴNMsUM]RNTWN_Td[MN
QMUMWWTSdNbPSNUP_]aMRVPQNPbNTQdN]PSRVPQNPbNrPS\NRLTRNVWNQPRNRMS_VQTRMXe
IJ ]SPUMWWNUTQUMaaTRVPQNPbNTaaNPSXMSWNTQXNWZ[UPQRSTURŴNZ]PQNRMS_WNTUUM]RT[aMNRPNRLMNtgQMŜNRPNRLMNMsRMQRNRLTRN
RLMdNSMaTRMNRPNRLMN]MSbPS_TQUMNPbNrPS\NRMS_VQTRMXe

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

132



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GG

HI JKKLMNOPQOPRSOTUNSVOJWWOQXOPRSOVLMRPYOPLPWSYOJNZOLNPSVSKPOQXOPRSO[QNPVJ\PQVO]NZSVOJN̂OQVOJWWOQVZSVKOJNZO
K]_\QNPVJ\PKYOJKOZLVS\PSZO_̂OPRSOTUNSVYOLNOURL\RO\JKSOPRSOTUNSVOKRJWWORJ̀SOPRSOVLMRPYOLNOLPKOZLK\VSPLQNYOPQOKSPPWSOQVOaĴO
JN̂OQVOJWWO\WJLbKOJVLKLNMOQ]POQXOPRSOPSVbLNJPLQNOQXOK]\ROQVZSVKOJNZOK]_\QNPVJ\PKc
Hd ULPROPRSOTUNSVeKOJaaVQ̀JWYOKSPPWSOJWWOQ]PKPJNZLNMOWLJ_LWLPLSKOJNZOJWWO\WJLbKOJVLKLNMOQ]POQXOK]\ROPSVbLNJPLQNOQXO
QVZSVKOJNZOK]_\QNPVJ\PKONQPOJKKLMNSZOPQOPRSOTUNSVc
Hf PVJNKXSVOPLPWSOJNZOZSWL̀SVOPQOPRSOSNPLP̂OQVOSNPLPLSKOZSKLMNJPSZO_̂OPRSOTUNSVOPRSOXJ_VL\JPSZOQVO]NXJ_VL\JPSZOaJVPKYO
gQVhOLNOaVQ\SKKYOaJVPLJWŴO\QbaWSPSZOK]aaWLSKOJNZOSi]LabSNPYObJPSVLJWOaJVPKYOPQQWKYOZLSKYOjLMKYOJNZOQPRSVOXLkP]VSKO
\QbaWSPSZOgQVhYOK]aaWLSKOJNZOQPRSVObJPSVLJWKOaVQZ]\SZOJKOaJVPOQXYOQVOJ\i]LVSZOLNO\QNNS\PLQNOULPROPRSOaSVXQVbJN\SOQXYO
PRSOgQVhOPSVbLNJPSZYOJNZOPRSO\QbaWSPSZOQVOaJVPLJWŴO\QbaWSPSZOaWJNKYOZVJULNMKYOLNXQVbJPLQNOJNZOQPRSVOaVQaSVP̂O
VSWJPSZOPQOPRSOgQVhc
Hl ]KSOLPKO_SKPOSXXQVPKOPQOKSWWOJN̂OaVQaSVP̂OQXOPRSOP̂aSKOVSXSVVSZOPQOLNOm]_aJVJMVJaROnococpcqcOrRSO[QNPVJ\PQVOKRJWWO
NQPO_SOVSi]LVSZOPQOSkPSNZO\VSZLPOPQOJN̂O_]̂SVYOJNZObĴOJ\i]LVSOJN̂OK]\ROaVQaSVP̂O]NZSVOPRSO\QNZLPLQNKOaVSK\VL_SZO_̂O
JNZOJPOJOaVL\SOQVOaVQ\SKKOJaaVQ̀SZO_̂OPRSOTUNSVYOJNZOPRSOaVQ\SSZKOQXOJN̂OK]\ROPVJNKXSVOQVOZLKaQKLPLQNObĴO_SOJaaWLSZO
LNOVSZ]\PLQNOQXOJN̂OaĴbSNPKOPQO_SObJZSO_̂OPRSOTUNSVOPQOPRSO[QNPVJ\PQVc
Hs PJhSOK]\ROJ\PLQNOJKObĴO_SONS\SKKJV̂OQVOJKOZLVS\PSZO_̂OPRSOTUNSVOPQOaVSKSV̀SOJNZOaVQPS\POPRSOgQVhOJNZO
aVQaSVP̂OVSWJPSZOPQOPRSO[QNPVJ\POLNOPRSOaQKKSKKLQNOQXOPRSO[QNPVJ\PQVOLNOURL\ROPRSOTUNSVORJKOJNOLNPSVSKPc
Ht \QNPLN]SOaSVXQVbJN\SOQNŴOPQOPRSOSkPSNPONQPOPSVbLNJPSZc

uvwxyxyzO{NO\JKSOQXOK]\ROPSVbLNJPLQNOXQVOPRSOTUNSVeKO\QǸSNLSN\SYOPRSOTUNSVOKRJWWOaĴOPRSO[QNPVJ\PQVOXQVOgQVhO
aVQaSVŴOSkS\]PSZ|O\QKPKOLN\]VVSZO_̂OVSJKQNOQXOPRSOPSVbLNJPLQNYOLN\W]ZLNMO\QKPKOJPPVL_]PJ_WSOPQOPSVbLNJPLQNOQXO
m]_\QNPVJ\PK|OJNZOPRSOPSVbLNJPLQNOXSSYOLXOJN̂YOKSPOXQVPROLNOPRSO}MVSSbSNPc

~��IHIHI�{NOJVVL̀LNMOJPOJN̂OJbQ]NPOZ]SOPRSO[QNPVJ\PQVOJXPSVOPSVbLNJPLQNYOPRSOXQWWQULNMOZSZ]\PLQNKOKRJWWO_SObJZS�
H� JWWO]NWLi]LZJPSZOJZ̀JN\SOQVOQPRSVOaVLQVOaĴbSNPKOQNOJ\\Q]NPObJZSOPQOPRSO[QNPVJ\PQVOJaaWL\J_WSOPQOPRSO
PSVbLNJPSZOaQVPLQNOQXOPRSO\QNPVJ\Pc
H� JN̂O\WJLbOURL\ROPRSOTUNSVObĴORJ̀SOJMJLNKPOPRSO[QNPVJ\PQVc
H� JNOJbQ]NPONS\SKKJV̂OPQOaVQPS\POPRSOTUNSVOJMJLNKPOQ]PKPJNZLNMOQVOaQPSNPLJWOWLSNKOQVO\WJLbK|OJNZ
HI PRSOJMVSSZOaVL\SOXQVOQVOPRSOaVQ\SSZKOQXOKJWSOQXOJN̂ObJPSVLJWKYOK]aaWLSKYOQVOQPRSVOPRLNMKOJ\i]LVSZO_̂OPRSO
[QNPVJ\PQVOQVOKQWZYOa]VK]JNPOPQOPRSOaVQ̀LKLQNKOQXOm]_aJVJMVJaROnococpc�YOJNZONQPOQPRSVULKSOVS\Q̀SVSZO_̂OQVO\VSZLPSZOPQO
PRSOTUNSVc

~��IHIHd�{XOPRSOPSVbLNJPLQNOa]VK]JNPOPQO�JVJMVJaROnoc�OLKOaJVPLJWYOPRSO[QNPVJ\PQVObĴOXLWSOJO[WJLbOXQVOJNOSi]LPJ_WSO
JZj]KPbSNPOQXOPRSOaVL\SOQVOaVL\SKOKaS\LXLSZOLNOPRSO[QNPVJ\POVSWJPLNMOPQOPRSO\QNPLN]SZOaQVPLQNOQXOPRSO[QNPVJ\PcO}N̂O\WJLbO
_̂OPRSO[QNPVJ\PQVOXQVOJNZOSi]LPJ_WSOJZj]KPbSNPO]NZSVOPRLKOm]_aJVJMVJaROb]KPO_SOJKKSVPSZOULPRLNOq�OZĴKOXVQbOPRSO
SXXS\PL̀SOZJPSOQXOPRSOrSVbLNJPLQNc

~��IHIHf�rRSO[QNPVJ\PQVOKRJWWOVSX]NZOPQOPRSOTUNSVOJN̂OJbQ]NPKOaJLZO_̂OPRSOTUNSVOPQOPRSO[QNPVJ\PQVOLNOSk\SKKOQXO\QKPKO
VSLb_]VKJ_WSO]NZSVO�JVJMVJaROnoc�c

~��IHIHl�rRSOZJbJMSKOJNZOVSWLSXOXVQbOPSVbLNJPLQNO_̂OPRSOTUNSVOKaS\LXL\JWŴOaVQ̀LZSZOLNO}VPL\WSOnoOKRJWWO_SOPRSO
[QNPVJ\PQVeKOKQWSOSNPLPWSbSNPOLNOPRSOS̀SNPOQXOPSVbLNJPLQNcO

~��IHIHs��aQNOJOZSPSVbLNJPLQNO_̂OJO\Q]VPOQXO\QbaSPSNPOj]VLKZL\PLQNOPRJPOPSVbLNJPLQNOQXOPRSO[QNPVJ\POa]VK]JNPOPQOmS\PLQNO
nocpOUJKOUVQNMX]WOQVOQPRSVULKSOLbaVQaSVYOK]\ROPSVbLNJPLQNOKRJWWO_SOZSSbSZOJOPSVbLNJPLQNOXQVO\QǸSNLSN\SOa]VK]JNPOPQO
mS\PLQNOnocoOJNZOPRSOaVQ̀LKLQNKOQXOmS\PLQNOnococpYOJKObQZLXLSZORSVSLNYOKRJWWOJaaŴc

�������vw�vvv������v���v��������
uvw�ywv������v
uvw�ywywv�������� �
}O[WJLbOLKOJOZSbJNZOQVOJKKSVPLQNO_̂OQNSOQXOPRSOaJVPLSKOKSShLNMYOJKOJObJPPSVOQXOVLMRPYOaĴbSNPOQXObQNŜYOJO\RJNMSOLNOPRSO
[QNPVJ\POrLbSYOQVOQPRSVOVSWLSXOULPROVSKaS\POPQOPRSOPSVbKOQXOPRSO[QNPVJ\PcOrRSOPSVbO¡[WJLb¡OJWKQOLN\W]ZSKOQPRSVOZLKa]PSKO
JNZObJPPSVKOLNOi]SKPLQNO_SPUSSNOPRSOTUNSVOJNZO[QNPVJ\PQVOJVLKLNMOQ]POQXOQVOVSWJPLNMOPQOPRSO[QNPVJ\PcO[WJLbKOb]KPO_SO
LNLPLJPSZO_̂OUVLPPSNONQPL\ScOrRSOVSKaQNKL_LWLP̂OPQOK]_KPJNPLJPSO[WJLbKOKRJWWOVSKPOULPROPRSOaJVP̂ObJhLNMOPRSO[WJLbcO}O
NQPL\SOQXOJOaQPSNPLJWOQVO\QNZLPLQNJWOX]P]VSO\WJLbOZQSKONQPO\QNKPLP]PSOJO\WJLb|OJWWO\WJLbKOb]KPOKPJPSOXJ\PKOURL\ROKaS\LX̂O
PRSO_JKLKOJNZOJbQ]NPOQXOPRSO\WJLbOJNZOPRSONJP]VSOQXOPRSOLKK]SOLNOZLKa]PScO[WJLbKOb]KPOLN\W]ZSOLNXQVbJPLQNOJNZO
K]_KPJNPLJPLQNOVSi]LVSZO_̂OPRSO[QNPVJ\PO¢Q\]bSNPKcOrRLKOmS\PLQNOn£cncnOZQSKONQPOVSi]LVSOPRSOTUNSVOPQOXLWSOJO[WJLbOLNO
QVZSVOPQOLbaQKSOWLi]LZJPSZOZJbJMSKOLNOJ\\QVZJN\SOULPROPRSO[QNPVJ\PO¢Q\]bSNPKc

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

133



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMKMNJOPQRJSPQPTUJVWJXYZPQU
[\]̂_̀ a]b̂cad̂efagbchgfb̂i\cjĵhfkk]ah]̂cjĵejclkîcad̂hcmi]îfn̂chglfâcoclaiĝg\]̂fg\]b̂cad̂cblilaôfmĝfn̂fb̂
b]jcg]d̂gf̂g\]̂efagbchgp̂̀\]g\]b̂lâhfagbchgp̂gfbgp̂qb]ch\̂fn̂̀ cbbcagr̂fb̂fg\]b̀li]p̂lâchhfbdcah]̂̀ lg\̂g\]̂b]smlb]k]agî
fn̂g\]̂qladlaôdlitmg]̂b]ifjmglfâk]g\fd̂i]j]hg]d̂lâg\]̂uob]]k]aĝcad̂̀ lg\lâg\]̂t]blfd̂it]hlnl]d̂qr̂cttjlhcqj]̂jc̀p̂
qmĝlâcar̂hci]̂afĝkfb]̂g\câvŵr]cbîcng]b̂g\]̂dcg]̂fn̂xmqigcaglcĵefktj]glfâfn̂g\]̂yfbz{̂[\]̂_̀ a]b̂cad̂
efagbchgfb̂̀ cl|]̂cjĵejclkîcad̂hcmi]îfn̂chglfâafĝhfkk]ah]d̂lâchhfbdcah]̂̀ lg\̂g\lîx]hglfâv}{v{~{

IJKLMKM�J�VTP�RJV�JXYZPQU
IJKLMKM�MK̂ejclkîqr̂]lg\]b̂g\]̂_̀ a]b̂fb̂efagbchgfbp̂̀ \]b]̂g\]̂hfadlglfâol|laôbli]̂gf̂g\]̂ejclk̂lînlbiĝdlihf|]b]d̂
tblfb̂gf̂]�tlbcglfâfn̂g\]̂t]blfd̂nfb̂hfbb]hglfâfn̂g\]̂yfbẑi]ĝnfbg\̂lâx]hglfâv~{~{~p̂i\cjĵq]̂lalglcg]d̂qr̂̀ blgg]â
afglh]̂gf̂g\]̂fg\]b̂tcbgr̂cad̂gf̂g\]̂ubh\lg]hĝcad̂i\cjĵq]̂]�tb]iijr̂igcg]d̂gf̂q]̂ĉejclk̂mad]b̂g\lîx]hglfâv}{v{�{v{̂
ejclkîqr̂]lg\]b̂tcbgr̂mad]b̂g\lîx]hglfâv}{v{�{v̂i\cjĵq]̂lalglcg]d̂̀ lg\lâ~v̂dcrîcng]b̂fhhmbb]ah]̂fn̂g\]̂]|]aĝol|laô
bli]̂gf̂imh\̂ejclk̂fb̂̀ lg\lâ~v̂dcrîcng]b̂g\]̂hjclkcaĝnlbiĝb]hfoal�]îg\]̂hfadlglfâol|laôbli]̂gf̂g\]̂ejclkp̂
\̀lh\]|]b̂lîjcg]b{

IJKLMKM�MN̂ejclkîqr̂]lg\]b̂g\]̂_̀ a]b̂fb̂efagbchgfbp̂̀ \]b]̂g\]̂hfadlglfâol|laôbli]̂gf̂g\]̂ejclk̂lînlbiĝdlihf|]b]d̂
cng]b̂]�tlbcglfâfn̂g\]̂t]blfd̂nfb̂hfbb]hglfâfn̂g\]̂yfbẑi]ĝnfbg\̂lâx]hglfâv~{~{~p̂i\cjĵq]̂lalglcg]d̂qr̂afglh]̂gf̂g\]̂
fg\]b̂tcbgr{̂

IJKLMKM�JXVWTPW�PW�JXVWT�Z�TJ�R��V�QZW�R
IJKLMKM�MK̂�]adlaônlacĵb]ifjmglfâfn̂ĉejclkp̂]�h]tĝcîfg\]b̀li]̂cob]]d̂lầ blglaôfb̂cîtbf|ld]d̂lâx]hglfâ�{�̂cad̂
ubglhj]̂v�p̂g\]̂efagbchgfb̂i\cjĵtbfh]]d̂dljlo]agjr̂̀ lg\̂t]bnfbkcah]̂fn̂g\]̂efagbchĝcad̂g\]̂_̀ a]b̂i\cjĵhfaglam]̂gf̂
kcz]̂tcrk]agîlâchhfbdcah]̂̀ lg\̂g\]̂efagbchĝ�fhmk]agi{̂

�������������������
IJKLMKMLJXYZPQUJ�V�J���PTPVWZYJXVUT
�n̂g\]̂efagbchgfb̂̀ li\]îgf̂kcz]̂ĉejclk̂nfb̂câlahb]ci]̂lâg\]̂efagbchĝxmkp̂afglh]̂cîtbf|ld]d̂lâx]hglfâv}{v{�̂
i\cjĵq]̂ol|]âq]nfb]̂tbfh]]dlaôgf̂]�]hmg]̂g\]̂tfbglfâfn̂g\]̂yfbẑg\cĝlîg\]̂imq ]hĝfn̂g\]̂ejclk{̂xmh\̂afglh]̂i\cjĵ
lahjmd]p̂gf̂g\]̂]�g]aĝg\]âzaf̀ âqr̂efagbchgfbp̂nmjĵd]gcljîcad̂imqigcaglcglaôdcgĉgf̂t]bklĝ]|cjmcglfâqr̂g\]̂_̀ a]b̂
cad̂g\]̂ubh\lg]hg{̂�n̂nmbg\]bp̂fb̂fg\]b̂lanfbkcglfâimqi]sm]agjr̂q]hfk]îzaf̀ âgf̂g\]̂efagbchgfbp̂lĝi\cjĵq]̂tbfktgjr̂
nmbali\]d̂gf̂g\]̂_̀ a]b̂cad̂g\]̂ubh\lg]hĝlầ blglao{̂�blfb̂afglh]̂lîafĝb]smlb]d̂nfb̂ejclkîb]jcglaôgf̂câ]k]bo]ahr̂
]adcao]blaôjln]̂fb̂tbft]bgr̂cblilaômad]b̂x]hglfâvw{�{

¡¢£¤¥£¥¤¥£¢�n̂g\]̂efagbchgfb̂q]jl]|]îcddlglfacĵhfiĝlîla|fj|]d̂nfb̂b]cifaîlahjmdlaôqmĝafĝjlklg]d̂gf̂¦v§̂ĉ̀ blgg]â
lag]btb]gcglfânbfk̂g\]̂ubh\lg]hgp̂¦~§̂câfbd]b̂qr̂g\]̂_̀ a]b̂gf̂igft̂g\]̂yfbẑ̀ \]b]̂g\]̂efagbchgfb̂̀ cîafĝcĝncmjgp̂¦�§̂
ĉ̀ blgg]âfbd]b̂nfb̂ĉklafb̂h\cao]̂lâg\]̂yfbẑliim]d̂qr̂g\]̂ubh\lg]hgp̂¦�§̂ncljmb]̂fn̂tcrk]aĝqr̂g\]̂_̀ a]bp̂¦}§̂
g]bklacglfâfn̂g\]̂efagbchĝqr̂g\]̂_̀ a]bp̂¦̈§̂_̀ a]b©îimit]ailfâfb̂¦�§̂fg\]b̂b]cifacqj]̂obfmadip̂ejclk̂i\cjĵq]̂
nlj]d̂lâchhfbdcah]̂̀ lg\̂g\lîx]hglfâv}{v{}{

IJKLMKMªJXYZPQUJ�V�J���PTPVWZYJOPQR
IJKLMKMªMK̂�n̂g\]̂efagbchgfb̂̀ li\]îgf̂kcz]̂ĉejclk̂nfb̂câlahb]ci]̂lâg\]̂efagbchĝ[lk]p̂afglh]̂cîtbf|ld]d̂lâx]hglfâ
v}{v{�̂i\cjĵq]̂ol|]a{̂[\]̂efagbchgfb©îejclk̂i\cjĵlahjmd]̂câ]iglkcg]̂fn̂hfiĝcad̂fn̂tbfqcqj]̂]nn]hĝfn̂d]jcr̂fâ
tbfob]iîfn̂g\]̂yfbz{̂�âg\]̂hci]̂fn̂ĉhfaglamlaôd]jcrp̂fajr̂fa]̂ejclk̂lîa]h]iicbr{̂�n̂g\]̂d]jcr̂̀ cîafĝhcmi]d̂qr̂g\]̂
_̀ a]bp̂g\]̂efagbchgfbp̂ĉxmqhfagbchgfb̂fn̂car̂gl]bp̂g\]̂ubh\lg]hgp̂fb̂carfa]̂chglaôfâq]\cjn̂fn̂fa]̂fb̂kfb]̂fn̂g\]kp̂
g\]̂efagbchgfb̂lî]aglgj]d̂fajr̂gf̂câlahb]ci]̂lâg\]̂efagbchĝ[lk]̂¦qmĝafĝĉh\cao]̂lâg\]̂efagbchĝxmk§{̂�n̂g\]̂d]jcr̂
c̀îhcmi]d̂qr̂g\]̂efagbchgfbp̂ĉxmqhfagbchgfb̂fn̂car̂gl]bp̂fb̂carfa]̂chglaôfâq]\cjn̂fn̂fa]̂fb̂kfb]̂fn̂g\]kp̂g\]̂
efagbchgfb̂lîafĝ]aglgj]d̂gf̂câlahb]ci]̂lâg\]̂efagbchĝ[lk]̂fb̂lâg\]̂efagbchĝxmk{

IJKLMKMªMN̂�n̂cd|]bi]̂̀ ]cg\]b̂hfadlglfaîcb]̂g\]̂qcilînfb̂ĉejclk̂nfb̂cddlglfacĵglk]p̂imh\̂ejclk̂i\cjĵq]̂dfhmk]ag]d̂
qr̂dcgĉimqigcaglcglaôg\cĝ̀]cg\]b̂hfadlglfaîcĝg\]̂�bf ]hĝilg]̂̀ ]b]̂cqafbkcĵnfb̂g\]̂t]blfd̂fn̂glk]p̂hfmjd̂afĝ\c|]̂
q]]âb]cifacqjr̂caglhltcg]dp̂cad̂\cd̂câcd|]bi]̂]nn]hĝfâg\]̂ih\]dmj]d̂hfaigbmhglfâcad̂g\cĝ]lg\]b̂g\]̂yfbẑ̀ cîfâ
ih\]dmj]̂¦fb̂afĝq]\lad̂ih\]dmj]̂g\bfmo\̂g\]̂ncmjĝfn̂g\]̂hfagbchgfb§̂cĝg\]̂glk]̂g\]̂cd|]bi]̂̀ ]cg\]b̂hfadlglfaî
fhhmbb]dp̂fb̂g\]̂cd|]bi]̂]nn]hĝfâg\]̂ih\]dmj]d̂hfaigbmhglfầ fmjd̂\c|]̂fhhmbb]d̂̀ \]g\]b̂fb̂afĝg\]̂yfbẑ̀ cîfâ
ih\]dmj]{{

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

134



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMKMNJOPQRSTJUVJWXPQYZJVUTJWU[ZS\]S[̂QPXJ_PYP̀SZ
abcdefghijkhfidjgldmngcidnjopcdeqjorsdjtjogshdcjkbdfhbcidufidkfgscvwcghojqdljrjtcsdjiosogtdfwhdfudfidicqjhogtdhfdhbosd
efghijkhxdabosdrwhwjqdnjopcidogkqwlcs

MK ljrjtcsdogkwiicldyzdhbcdmngcidufidicghjqdc{|cgscs}dufidqfsscsdfudwsc}dogkfrc}d|ifuoh}duogjgkogt}d
ywsogcssdjgldic|whjhofg}djgldufidqfssdfudrjgjtcrcghdfidcr|qfzccd|iflwkhopohzdfidfudhbcdscipokcsdfudswkbd
|cisfgs~djgl

M� ljrjtcsdogkwiicldyzdhbcdefghijkhfidufid|iogko|jqdfuuokcdc{|cgscsdogkqwlogtdhbcdkfr|cgsjhofgdfud
|cisfggcqdshjhofgcldhbcic}dufidqfsscsdfuduogjgkogt}dywsogcssdjgldic|whjhofg}djgldufidqfssdfud|ifuoh}dc{kc|hd
jghoko|jhcld|ifuohdjiosogtdloickhqzduifrdhbcd�fi�x

abosdrwhwjqdnjopcidosdj||qokjyqc}dnohbfwhdqorohjhofg}dhfdjqqdkfgscvwcghojqdljrjtcsdlwcdhfdcohbcid|jihz�sdhcirogjhofgdogd
jkkfiljgkcdnohbd�ihokqcd��xd�fhbogtdkfghjogcldogdhbosd�ckhofgd��x�x�dsbjqqdycdlccrcldhfd|ickqwlcdjsscssrcghdfud
qovwoljhcldljrjtcs}dnbcgdj||qokjyqc}dogdjkkfiljgkcdnohbdhbcdicvwoicrcghsdfudhbcdefghijkhd�fkwrcghsx

IJKLM�J�[Q̂QPXJ�S�UYYS[�P̂QU[
IJKLM�MKdeqjors}dc{kqwlogtdhbfscdnbcicdhbcdkfglohofgdtopogtdioscdhfdhbcdeqjordosduoishdloskfpcicldjuhcidc{|oijhofgdfudhbcd
|ciofldufidkfiickhofgdfudhbcd�fi�dschdufihbdogd�ckhofgd��x�x�dfidjiosogtdwglcid�ckhofgsd��x�}d��x�}djgld��x�}dsbjqqdycd
icuciicldhfdhbcd�ikbohckhdufidogohojqdickfrrcgljhofgx

IJKLM�M�dabcd�ikbohckhdnoqqdicpocndeqjorsdjgldnohbogdhcgdljzsdfudhbcdickco|hdfudjdeqjordhj�cdfgcdfidrficdfudhbcd
ufqqfnogtdjkhofgs�d���dicvwcshdjllohofgjqdsw||fihogtdljhjduifrdhbcdkqjorjghdfidjdics|fgscdnohbdsw||fihogtdljhjduifrdhbcd
fhbcid|jihz}d���dickfrrcgldic�ckhogtdhbcdeqjordogdnbfqcdfidogd|jih}d���dickfrrcgldj||ifpjqdfudhbcdeqjor}d���d
ickfrrcgldjdkfr|ifrosc}dfid���djlposcdhbcd|jihocsdhbjhdhbcd�ikbohckhdosdwgjyqcdhfdicsfqpcdhbcdeqjordoudhbcd�ikbohckhd
qjk�sdswuuokocghdogufirjhofgdhfdcpjqwjhcdhbcdrciohsdfudhbcdeqjordfidoudhbcd�ikbohckhdkfgkqwlcsdhbjh}dogdhbcd�ikbohckh�sd
sfqcdloskichofg}dohdnfwqldycdogj||if|iojhcdufidhbcd�ikbohckhdhfdrj�cdjdickfrrcgljhofgx

IJKLM�M�d�gdcpjqwjhogtdeqjors}dhbcd�ikbohckhdrjz}dywhdsbjqqdgfhdycdfyqotjhcldhf}dkfgswqhdnohbdfidscc�dogufirjhofgduifrd
cohbcid|jihzdfiduifrd|cisfgsdnohbds|ckojqd�gfnqcltcdfidc{|cihoscdnbfdrjzdjssoshdhbcd�gohojqd�ckosofgd�j�cidogd
icglciogtdjdlckosofgxdabcd�ikbohckhdrjzdicvwcshdhbcdmngcidhfdjwhbfio�cdichcghofgdfudswkbd|cisfgsdjhdhbcdmngci�sd
c{|cgscx

IJKLM�M�d�udhbcd�ikbohckhdicvwcshsdjd|jihzdhfd|ifpolcdjdics|fgscdhfdjdeqjordfidhfduwigosbdjllohofgjqdsw||fihogtdljhj}dswkbd
|jihzdsbjqqdics|fgl}dnohbogdhcgdljzsdjuhcidickco|hdfudhbcdicvwcsh}djgldsbjqqdcohbcid���d|ifpolcdjdics|fgscdfgdhbcdicvwcshcld
sw||fihogtdljhj}d���djlposcdhbcd�ikbohckhdnbcgdhbcdics|fgscdfidsw||fihogtdljhjdnoqqdycduwigosbcl}dfid���djlposcdhbcd
�ikbohckhdhbjhdgfdsw||fihogtdljhjdnoqqdycduwigosbclxd�|fgdickco|hdfudhbcdics|fgscdfidsw||fihogtdljhj}doudjgz}dhbcd
�ikbohckhdnoqqd|jihj�cdfgcdfudhbcdqjshdufwid���dgwrycicldjkhofgsdkfghcr|qjhcldogd�ckhofgd��x�x�}dogdniohogt}dshjhogtdhbcd
icjsfgsdhbcicuficx

����� ��¡¢£¤¥¦§¦̈¦¥©
IJKLM�Jª«_�¬�®̄
°±²³́µ́²d�gzdeqjordjiosogtdfwhdfudfidicqjhcldhfdhbcdefghijkh}dc{kc|hdeqjorsdicqjhogtdhfdjcshbchokdcuuckhdjgldc{kc|hdhbfscd
njopcldjsd|ifpolcldufidogd�ihokqcsd¶x��x�}d¶x��x�djgld��x�x�}dsbjqq}djuhcidogohojqdickfrrcgljhofgdyzdhbcd�ikbohckhdfid��d
ljzsdjuhcidswyrossofgdfudhbcdeqjordhfdhbcd�ikbohckh}dycdswy�ckhdhfdrclojhofgdjsdjdkfglohofgd|ickclcghdhfdjiyohijhofgdfid
hbcdogshohwhofgdfudqctjqdfidcvwohjyqcd|ifkcclogtsdyzdcohbcid|jihzxd

°±²³́µ́·±abcd|jihocsdsbjqqdcglcjpfidhfdicsfqpcdhbcoideqjorsdyzdrclojhofgdnbokb}dwgqcssd|jihocsdrwhwjqqzdjticcd
fhbcinosc}dsbjqqdycdjlrogoshcicldyzdhbcd�rciokjgd�iyohijhofgd�ssfkojhofgdogdjkkfiljgkcdnohbdohsdefgshiwkhofgd�glwshizd
�clojhofgḑifkclwicsdogdcuuckhdfgdhbcdljhcdfudhbcd�ticcrcghxd�dicvwcshdufidrclojhofgdsbjqqdycdrjlcdogdniohogt}d
lcqopcicldhfdhbcdfhbcid|jihzdhfdhbcdefghijkh}djglduoqcldnohbdhbcd|cisfgdfidcghohzdjlrogoshciogtdhbcdrclojhofgx

°±²³́µ́µ±abcd|jihocsdsbjqqdsbjicdhbcdrclojhfi�sduccdjgldjgzduoqogtduccsdcvwjqqzxdabcdrclojhofgdsbjqqdycdbcqldogdhbcd|qjkcd
nbcicdhbcḑif�ckhdosdqfkjhcl}dwgqcssdjgfhbcidqfkjhofgdosdrwhwjqqzdjticcldw|fgxd�ticcrcghsdicjkbcldogdrclojhofgdsbjqqd
ycdcgufikcjyqcdjsdschhqcrcghdjticcrcghsdogdjgzdkfwihdbjpogtd�wioslokhofgdhbcicfux

����� ��¡¢¤¥¦§¦̈¦¥©
IJKLM�J_�¹º»«J�«¹®¼»�®̄

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

135



�����

�

����	
��������������������
�������������� ����! ����" ����! ���#� ���!� ���!" ���$� ���$# ���$$ ����� ����$ ���"� ����� ������%�&��������''������(�
��(��)�&��*+��������%����(�������
,����������( -�*�����%����(�������
,����������( -�*��� -���������.
�
 �%�&�*�����
���%���	
�����(-�%�����%&�%�/(�
,�+���
�����%����(�������
,����������(��+��(�&
������0%(���
&���&�%����1�212"�3+�
���!4�$4���2���&���5�&���6
�#��2�#"�""�0������7����(�
����4�$4���2 ��(��
��,
��
��(%'� ��(�'����(�&�,
��
��8�����(��
�'� �%�&�%��
�'��9���(�&����%��
�&%����0�������������
���%���	
�����(:�+��(�
,�;��)�����+
����
����
��������)�
'%��
�( �
�8%�'�&
���,
<%�%�
���%��(��
�
=>?@ABC�?>D� E�22"�$�#!�F

GH

IJKLMNMKOPQROSTUVWXOYVZ[\]̂O_̀O_]â ÒWU]]̂̀OVQOb\̂Z]V_QOÙVZVQcO_\]O_dO_̀Ò̂TU]̂YO]_O]aVZOPc̀̂ Ŵ̂Q]OZ\ef̂S]O]_XOe\]OQ_]O
`̂Z_TĝYOeRXOŴYVU]V_QOZaUTTOêOZ\ef̂S]O]_OÙeV]̀U]V_QOUSS_̀YVQcO]_O]âO[̀_ŜY\̀̂ ZO_dOO]âOh\[̂ V̀_̀Oi_\̀]Oj\T̂ZOd_̀O
kUQYU]_̀ROP̀eV]̀U]V_QXOVQST\YVQcO]âOl_SUTOkUQYU]_̀ROP̀eV]̀U]V_QOj\T̂ZO_dO]âOi_\Q]ROh\[̂ V̀_̀Oi_\̀]OVQO]âOi_\Q]RO
VQOmaVSaO]âOnmQ̂ ÒVZOT_SU]̂YXOUZOUŴQŶYXO\QT̂ZZO]âO[Ù]V̂ZOUc̀̂ ÔVQOm̀V]VQcO]_OUQOUT]̂̀QU]VĝOYVZ[\]̂Ò̂Z_T\]V_QO
[̀_ŜZZoOpâOÙeV]̀U]V_QOZaUTTOêOêd_̀̂ OUOYVZVQ]̂̀ Ẑ]̂YOÙeV]̀U]_̀OẐT̂S]̂YO[\̀Z\UQ]O]_O]âOkUQYU]_̀ROP̀eV]̀U]V_QOj\T̂ZO
mV]aOe_]aO[Ù]V̂ZOZaÙVQcÔb\UTTROVQO]âOS_Z]O_dO]âOÙeV]̀U]_̀oOOpâOT_SU]V_QO_dO]âOÙeV]̀U]V_QOZaUTTOêOW\]\UTTROUc̀̂ ŶO
_̀ÔZ]UeTVZâYOeRO]âOUZZVcQ̂YOP̀eV]̀U]_̀XOUQYO]âOTUmZO_dOqUZaVQc]_QOmVTTOc_ĝ Q̀OV]ZO[̀_Ŝ ŶVQcZoOOpâO[̀̂ gUVTVQcO
[Ù]ROVQO]âOÙeV]̀U]V_QXOZaUTTOêÔQ]V]T̂YO]_OV]ZÒ̂UZ_QUeT̂OU]]_̀Q̂ROd̂̂ZOUQYOS_Z]ZOVQST\YVQcÔr[̂ ]̀OmV]Q̂ZZOd̂̂ZoO

stuvuwvuxyz{|}|~|{�
IJKLMNM�OPOŶWUQYOd_̀OÙeV]̀U]V_QOZaUTTOêOWUŶOQ_ÔÙTV̂̀O]aUQOS_QS\̀̀ Q̂]TROmV]aO]âOdVTVQcO_dOUÒ̂b\̂Z]Od_̀OŴYVU]V_QXO
e\]OVQOQ_ÔĝQ]OZaUTTOV]OêOWUŶOUd]̂̀O]âOYU]̂OmâQO]âOVQZ]V]\]V_QO_dOT̂cUTO_̀Ôb\V]UeT̂O[̀_Ŝ ŶVQcZOeUẐYO_QO]âOSTUVWXO
YVZ[\]̂O_̀O_]â ÒWU]]̂̀OVQOb\̂Z]V_QOm_\TYOêOeÙ̀ ŶOeRO]âOU[[TVSUeT̂OZ]U]\]̂O_dOTVWV]U]V_QZoO�_̀OZ]U]\]̂O_dOTVWV]U]V_QZO
[\̀[_ẐZXÒ̂ ŜV[]O_dOUOm̀V]]̂QOŶWUQYOd_̀OÙeV]̀U]V_QOeRO]âO[̂ Z̀_QO_̀ÔQ]V]ROUYWVQVZ]̂̀VQcO]âOÙeV]̀U]V_QOZaUTTO
S_QZ]V]\]̂O]âOVQZ]V]\]V_QO_dOT̂cUTO_̀Ôb\V]UeT̂O[̀_Ŝ ŶVQcZOeUẐYO_QO]âOSTUVWXOYVZ[\]̂O_̀O_]â ÒWU]]̂̀OVQOb\̂Z]V_Qo

IJKLMNM�OpâOd_̀̂ c_VQcOUc̀̂ Ŵ̂Q]O]_OÙeV]̀U]̂OUQYO_]â ÒUc̀̂ Ŵ̂ Q]ZO]_OÙeV]̀U]̂OmV]aOUQOUYYV]V_QUTO[̂ Z̀_QO_̀ÔQ]V]RO
Y\TROS_QẐQ]̂YO]_OeRO[Ù]V̂ZO]_O]aVZOPc̀̂ Ŵ̂Q]OZaUTTOêOZ[̂SVdVSUTTRÔQd_̀ŜUeT̂OVQOUSS_̀YUQŜOmV]aOU[[TVSUeT̂OTUmOVQO
UQROS_\̀]OaUgVQcOf\̀VZYVS]V_QO]â`̂_do

IJKLMNMNO�_TT_mVQcO]âOÙeV]̀U]_̀�ZOVZZ\UQŜO_dOUÒ\TVQc�UmÙYXÔV]â Ò[Ù]ROZaUTTOaUĝO��OSUT̂QYÙOYURZOd̀_WO]âOYU]̂O_dO
]âÒ\TVQc�UmÙYO]_OdVT̂OUQYOẐ̀ĝOUOŶWUQYOd_̀OUOêQSaO]̀VUTOŶOQ_g_OVQO]âOi_\Q]ROh\[̂ V̀_̀Oi_\̀]OVQO]âOi_\Q]ROVQO
maVSaO]âOnmQ̂ ÒVZOT_SU]̂YoOOpâOS_\̀]OZaUTTOŶ]̂̀WVQ̂OUTTOb\̂Z]V_QZO_dOTUmOUQYOdUS]OmV]a_\]ÔW[UQ̂TTVQcOUOf\̀ROd_̀OUQRO
[\̀[_ẐoO�dO]âO[Ù]ROŶWUQYVQcO]âO]̀VUTOŶOQ_g_OY_̂ZOQ_]OVW[̀_ĝOV]ZO[_ZV]V_QOd̀_WO]âOÙeV]̀U]_̀�ZÒ\TVQc�UmÙYO
d_TT_mVQcOUOdVQUTOf\YcŴQ]XO]aU]O[Ù]ROZaUTTO[UROUTTOS_Z]ZXÔr[̂QẐZOUQYOU]]_̀Q̂ROd̂̂ZO]_O]âO_]â Ò[Ù]RXOVQST\YVQcOUTTO
S_Z]ZXOU]]_̀Q̂ROd̂̂ZOUQYÔr[̂QẐZOUZZ_SVU]̂YOmV]aOUQROU[[̂UTZo

stuvuwvuxy�z{|}|~|{�
IJKLMNMLJ�QT̂ZZO_]â m̀VẐOUc̀̂ ŶOVQOm̀V]VQcXO]aVZOYVZ[\]̂Ò̂Z_T\]V_QO[̀_ŜZZOZaUTTOêO]âOZ_T̂XÔrST\ZVĝOUQYOdVQUTO
`̂ŴYRO]_O_̀Od_̀ÔV]â Ò[Ù]ROd_̀OUQROYVZ[\]̂Ò̂cÙYVQcO]aVZOPc̀̂ Ŵ̂Q]XOUQYOV]ZOVQ]̂̀[̀̂ ]U]V_QXOU[[TVSU]V_QO_̀Oè̂ USaXO
`̂cÙYT̂ZZO_dOmâ]â Ò]âOYVZ[\]̂OVZOeUẐYOVQOS_Q]̀US]XO]_̀]XOUQROgV_TU]V_QO_dOd̂Ŷ ÙTOTUmXOZ]U]̂OZ]U]\]̂O_̀OT_SUTO_̀YVQUQŜO
_̀Od_̀OUQROè̂ USaO_dOUYWVQVZ]̀U]VĝÒ\T̂O_̀Ò̂c\TU]V_QOUQYÒ̂cÙYT̂ZZO_dO]âOUW_\Q]O_̀O]R[̂O_dÒ̂TV̂dOŶWUQŶYo

���������������������������������
IJKLMNM�MKJ�V]â Ò[Ù]RXOU]OV]ZOZ_T̂OYVZS̀̂]V_QXOWUROS_QZ_TVYU]̂OUQOÙeV]̀U]V_QOS_QY\S]̂YO\QŶ Ò]aVZOPc̀̂ Ŵ̂Q]OmV]aOUQRO
_]â ÒÙeV]̀U]V_QO]_OmaVSaOV]OVZOUO[Ù]RO[̀_gVŶYO]aU]O� ¡O]âOÙeV]̀U]V_QOUc̀̂ Ŵ̂Q]Oc_ĝ Q̀VQcO]âO_]â ÒÙeV]̀U]V_QO
[̂ ẀV]ZOS_QZ_TVYU]V_Q¢O�£¡O]âOÙeV]̀U]V_QZO]_OêOS_QZ_TVYU]̂YOZ\eZ]UQ]VUTTROVQg_TĝOS_WW_QOb\̂Z]V_QZO_dOTUmO_̀OdUS]¢O
UQYO��¡O]âOÙeV]̀U]V_QZÔW[T_ROWU]̂̀VUTTROZVWVTÙO[̀_ŜY\̀UTÒ\T̂ZOUQYOŴ]a_YZOd_̀OẐT̂S]VQcOÙeV]̀U]_̀�Z¡o

IKLMNM�M�O�V]â Ò[Ù]RXOU]OV]ZOZ_T̂OYVZS̀̂]V_QXOWUROVQST\ŶOeROf_VQŶ Ò[̂ Z̀_QZO_̀ÔQ]V]V̂ZOZ\eZ]UQ]VUTTROVQg_TĝYOVQOUO
S_WW_QOb\̂Z]V_QO_dOTUmO_̀OdUS]Oma_ẐO[̀̂ ẐQŜOVZÒ̂b\V̀̂YOVdOS_W[T̂]̂Ò̂TV̂dOVZO]_OêOUSS_̀ŶYOVQOÙeV]̀U]V_QXO[̀_gVŶYO
]aU]O]âO[Ù]ROZ_\ca]O]_OêOf_VQ̂YOS_QẐQ]ZOVQOm̀V]VQcO]_OZ\SaOf_VQŶ òOi_QẐQ]O]_OÙeV]̀U]V_QOVQg_TgVQcOUQOUYYV]V_QUTO
[̂ Z̀_QO_̀ÔQ]V]ROZaUTTOQ_]OS_QZ]V]\]̂OS_QẐQ]O]_OÙeV]̀U]V_QO_dOUQROSTUVWXOYVZ[\]̂O_̀O_]â ÒWU]]̂̀OVQOb\̂Z]V_QOQ_]O
ŶZS̀VêYOVQO]âOm̀V]]̂QOS_QẐQ]o

IJKLMNM�M�OpâOnmQ̂ ÒUQYOi_Q]̀US]_̀Oc̀UQ]O]_OUQRO[̂ Z̀_QO_̀ÔQ]V]ROWUŶOUO[Ù]RO]_OUQOÙeV]̀U]V_QOS_QY\S]̂YO\QŶ Ò]aVZO
ĥS]V_QO ¤o¥XOmâ]â ÒeROf_VQŶ Ò_̀OS_QZ_TVYU]V_QXO]âOZUŴ ÒVca]ZO_dOf_VQŶ ÒUQYOS_QZ_TVYU]V_QOUZO]âOnmQ̂ ÒUQYO
P̀SaV]̂S]O\QŶ Ò]aVZOPc̀̂ Ŵ̂Q]o

DocuSign Envelope ID: 728326CE-2464-4032-8E4C-597BE718D18A

136



Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue/GenCap Construction AIA1101-2017 Exhibit A  1 

AIA A101-2017 
Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue 

GenCap Construction Corp 
Exhibit A 

Insurance and Bonds 
 
Section 1. Contractor’s Insurance. 
 
The Contractor shall obtain the insurance described in this Exhibit.  The Owner reserves the right 
to approve or reject the insurance provided, based on the insurer (including financial condition), 
terms and coverage, the Certificate of Insurance, and/or endorsements. 
 
A. Insurance Term 
  
The Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance, as required in this Section, without 
interruption from commencement of the Contractor’s work through the term of the Contract and 
for thirty (30) days after the Physical Completion date, unless otherwise indicated herein. 
  
B. No Limitation 
  
The Contractor’s maintenance of insurance, its scope of coverage and limits as required herein 
shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Contractor to the coverage provided by such 
insurance, or otherwise limit the Public Entity’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in 
equity. 
  
C. Minimum Scope of Insurance 
  
The Contractor’s required insurance shall be of the types and coverage as stated below: 
  

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and leased 
vehicles.  Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 
00 01. 

  
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO occurrence form 

CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, stop gap liability, 
independent contractors, products-completed operations for a period of three years 
following substantial completion of the work for the benefit of the Public Entity, personal 
injury and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract.  The 
Commercial General Liability insurance shall be endorsed to provide a per project 
general aggregate limit, using ISO form CG 25 03 05 09 or an endorsement providing at 
least as broad coverage.  There shall be no exclusion for liability arising from explosion, 
collapse or underground property damage.  The Public Entity shall be named as an 
additional insured under the Contractor’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy 
with respect to the work performed for the Public Entity using ISO Additional Insured 
endorsement CG 20 10 10 01 and Additional Insured-Completed Operations endorsement 
CG 20 37 10 01 or substitute endorsements providing at least as broad coverage. 

137



Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue/GenCap Construction AIA1101-2017 Exhibit A  2 

  
3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the 

State of Washington. 
  

4. Builders Risk insurance covering interests of the Public Entity, the Contractor, 
Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors in the work.  Builders Risk insurance shall be on 
a special perils policy form and shall insure against the perils of fire and extended 
coverage and physical loss or damage including flood, earthquake, theft, vandalism, 
malicious mischief, and collapse.  The Builders Risk insurance shall include coverage for 
temporary buildings, debris removal, and damage to materials in transit or stored off-
site.  This Builders Risk insurance covering the work will have a deductible of $5,000 for 
each occurrence, which will be the responsibility of the Contractor.  Higher deductibles 
for flood and earthquake perils may be accepted by the Public Entity upon written request 
by the Contractor and written acceptance by the Public Entity.  Any increased deductibles 
accepted by the Public Entity will remain the responsibility of the Contractor.  The 
Builders Risk insurance shall be maintained until the Public Entity has granted substantial 
completion of the project. An installation floater may be acceptable in lieu of Builders 
Risk for renovation projects only if approved in writing by the Public Entity.       

  
D. Minimum Amounts of Insurance 
  
The Contractor shall maintain the following insurance limits: 
  

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily injury 
and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

  
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

$2,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate, and $2,000,000 products- 
completed operations aggregate limit. 

  
3. Builders Risk insurance shall be written in the amount of the completed value of the 

project with no coinsurance provisions. 
  
E. Public Entity Full Availability of Contractor Limits 
  
If the Contractor maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the Public 
Entity shall be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or 
Umbrella liability maintained by the Contractor, irrespective of whether such limits maintained 
by the Contractor are greater than those required by this Contract or whether any certificate of 
insurance furnished to the Public Entity evidences limits of liability lower than those maintained 
by the Contractor. 
  
F. Other Insurance Provision 
  
The Contractor’s Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability and Builders Risk 
insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain that they shall be primary insurance 

138



Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue/GenCap Construction AIA1101-2017 Exhibit A  3 

as respect the Public Entity.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage 
maintained by the Public Entity shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 
  
G. Contractor’s Insurance for Other Losses 
  
The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for all loss or damage from any cause whatsoever 
to any tools, Contractor’s employee-owned tools, machinery, equipment, or motor vehicles 
owned or rented by the Contractor, or the Contractor’s agents, suppliers, contractors or 
subcontractors as well as to any temporary structures, scaffolding and protective fences. 
  
H. Waiver of Subrogation 
  
The Contractor and the Public Entity waive all rights against each other, any of their 
Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, agents and employees, each of the other, for damages 
caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered by Builders Risk insurance or other property 
insurance obtained pursuant to the Insurance Requirements Section of this Contract or other 
property insurance applicable to the work.  The policies shall provide such waivers by 
endorsement or otherwise. 
  
I.   Acceptability of Insurers 
  
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 
  
J.  Verification of Coverage 
  
The Contractor shall furnish the Public Entity with original certificates and a copy of the 
amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured 
endorsements, evidencing the Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance 
of the Contractor before commencement of the work.  Before any exposure to loss may occur, 
the Contractor shall file with the Public Entity a copy of the Builders Risk insurance policy that 
includes all applicable conditions, exclusions, definitions, terms and endorsements related to this 
project.  Upon request by the Public Entity, the Contractor shall furnish certified copies of all 
required insurance policies, including endorsements, required in this Contract and evidence of all 
subcontractors’ coverage. 
  
K. Subcontractors 
  
The Contractor shall cause each and every Subcontractor to provide insurance coverage that 
complies with all applicable requirements of the Contractor-provided insurance as set forth 
herein, except the Contractor shall have sole responsibility for determining the limits of coverage 
required to be obtained by Subcontractors.  The Contractor shall ensure that the Public Entity is 
an additional insured on each Subcontractor’s Commercial General liability insurance policy 
using an endorsement as least as broad as ISO CG 20 10 10 01 for ongoing operations and CG 
20 37 10 01 for completed operations. 
  

139



Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue/GenCap Construction AIA1101-2017 Exhibit A  4 

L. Notice of Cancellation 
  
The Contractor shall provide the Public Entity and all Additional Insureds for this work with 
written notice of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 
  
M. Failure to Maintain Insurance 
  
Failure on the part of the Contractor to maintain the insurance as required shall constitute a 
material breach of contract, upon which the Public Entity may, after giving five business days’ 
notice to the Contractor to correct the breach, immediately terminate the Contract or, at its 
discretion, procure or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection 
therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid to the Public Entity  on demand, or at the sole 
discretion of the Public Entity, offset against funds due the Contractor from the Public Entity. 
  
Section 2. Performance Bond and Payment Bond 
 
The Contractor shall provide surety bonds, from a company or companies lawfully authorized to 
issue surety bonds in the jurisdiction where the Project is located, as follows: 
(Specify type and penal sum of bonds.) 
 

Type Penal Sum ($0.00) 
Payment Bond   100% of contract sum 
Performance Bond   100% of contract sum 

 
Payment and Performance Bonds shall be AIA Document A312™, Payment Bond and 
Performance Bond, or contain provisions identical to AIA Document A312™, current as of the 
date of this Agreement. 
 

140



 (Lump Sum)  (Add+/Subtract-)  (Lump Sum)  (Add+/Subtract-) 

Bayley Construction 3 Y $2,452,000.00 $200,000.00
+

$637,289.00
+

$2,652,000.00 $3,089,289.00 $3,289,289.00

Cdk Construction Services 6 Y 2,557,600.00$            $226,000.00

+

$759,000.00

+

$2,783,600.00 $3,316,600.00 $3,542,600.00

Gencap Construction 5 Y 2,230,000.00$            $1,000.00 $227,000.00
+

$782,000.00
+

Y Y $2,457,000.00 $3,012,000.00 $3,239,000.00

Kassel and Associates 2 Y 2,327,000.00$            $193,000.00
+

$890,167.00
+

$2,520,000.00 $3,217,167.00 $3,410,167.00

Klinge & Associates, Inc. 1 Y $2,727,191.00 $283,711.00
+

$831,101.00
+

$3,010,902.00 $3,558,292.00 $3,842,003.00

Langsholt Contracting Inc.
+ +

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Optimus Construction and 
Development

+ +
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Trico Companies, LLC. 7 Y $2,863,726.00 $133,975.00
+

$640,776.00
+

$2,997,701.00 $3,504,502.00 $3,638,477.00

Valdez Construction
+ +

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Western Ventures 4 Y $2,876,000.00 $230,000.00
+

$830,000.00
+

$3,106,000.00 $3,706,000.00 $3,936,000.00

Woodridge Construction LLC
+ +

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BID TABULATION 

Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue
Station 31

Bid Opening:  April 22,2024 -2:15 pm 
 Location:  Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue Station 31

163 Village Court Monroe, WA 98272

 Alternate 1:
Carport 

 Alternate 2:
Re-Roof of Entire Existing 

Membrane Roof 
 Trench Excavation 
Safety Provisions 

(Included in the Base 
Bid) 

 Base Bid
(Lump Sum) 

Acknowledg
ment of 

Addendum
(3) Total 
Issued
(Y/N)O

rd
er

 O
pe

ne
d

Bidder 

Bid has 
Original 

Signature
(Y/N)

Bidders 
Qualification 

Certificate  
Included

(Y/N)

Subcontractor 
List Included (if 

Base Bid + 
Alternate is 

$1M or more. 
Spec Section 

004336)
(Y/N)

Bid Bond 
Included

(Y/N) Base + Alt 1 Base + Alt 2 Base + Alt 1&2

141



 

SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE

FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 

MONROE, WA

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE

ESTIMATE ISSUE DATE: March 11, 2024

ESTIMATE REVISION: 1

Submitted To:

GUNNAR GLADICS

RICE FERGUS MILLER

275 FIFTH STREET, SUITE 100

BREMERTON, WA 98337

BAINBRIDGE ISLAND, WA | TACOMA, WA | PORTLAND, OR | www.rccostgroup.com

142



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE

CLARIFICATIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

RC Cost Group Estimating Team:

Lead Estimator: Dan Cassady

Managing Principal: Mark Richardson

QA/QC : John Perry

Exclusions from Construction Cost:

Cost for Temporary Facility

Removal of unforeseen underground obstructions

Hazardous Material Abatement

Phasing Premium

Assumption used in establishing the estimate:

The project will be procured utilizing the Design, Bid, Build Delivery Method

Open and competitive bidding among all proportions of the work

Construction Bid Date: 4/15/24

Escalation beyond April 2024 at 4.5% per Year

Items that may affect the cost estimate:

Modifications to the scope of work included in this estimate.

Special phasing requirements other than mentioned above.

Restrictive technical specifications or excessive contract conditions.

Any non-competitive bid situations.

Bids delayed beyond the projected schedule.

Page 2 of 20

143



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Date: March 11, 2024

OVERALL SUMMARY CONSTRUCTION COST

GFA $/SF $

Building    3,365 SF 694.61                2,337,362

Sitework 182,498

2,519,861

Alternates:

Alt.1-Carport 1 LS 239,880

Alt.2-Replace Membrane Roof at Entire Building 1 LS 896,755

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST

Page 3 of 20

144

hinoue
Image

hinoue
Text Box
(Table by HI)



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE DATE: March 11, 2024

BUILDING DATA

Building Area:

Area of work 3,365 SF
Total Gross Floor Area 3,365 SF

Page 4 of 20

145



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE

FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 

MONROE, WA

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE GROSS FLOOR AREA: 3,365 SF

BUILDING DATE: March 11, 2024

No. ELEMENT DESCRIPTION ELEMENT TOTAL GROUP TOTAL

A10 FOUNDATIONS 165,711$                      49.25$               

A1010 Standard Foundation 112,746$                        33.51$                 

A1020 Special Foundation -$                                -$                      

A1030 Slab on grade 52,965$                          15.74$                 

A20 BASEMENT WALL CONSTRUCTION -$                               -$                    

A2010 Basement Excavation -$                                -$                      

A2020 Basement Wall Construction -$                                -$                      

B10 SUPERSTRUCTURE 210,576$                      62.58$               

B1010 Floor & Roof Construction 210,576$                        62.58$                 

B20 EXTERIOR ENCLOSURE 523,479$                      155.57$             

B2010 Exterior Walls 428,551$                        127.36$               

B2020 Exterior Windows 22,528$                          6.69$                   

B2030 Exterior Doors 72,400$                          21.52$                 

B30 ROOFING 155,084$                      46.09$               

B3010 Roofing 155,084$                        46.09$                 

C10 INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION 46,589$                        13.85$               

C1010 Partitions 20,606$                          6.12$                   

C1020 Interior Doors 16,000$                          4.75$                   

C1030 Fittings and Specialties 9,983$                            2.97$                   

C20 STAIRS -$                               -$                    

C2010 Stair Construction -$                                -$                      

C30 INTERIOR FINISHES 55,056$                        16.36$               

C3010 Wall Finishes 23,583$                          7.01$                   

C3020 Floor Finishes 18,091$                          5.38$                   

C3030 Ceiling Finishes 13,383$                          3.98$                   

D10 CONVEYING -$                               -$                    

D1010 Elevators & Lifts -$                                -$                      

D20 PLUMBING 140,000$                      41.60$               

D2010 Plumbing 140,000$                        41.60$                 

D30 HVAC 250,000$                      74.29$               

D3010 HVAC 250,000$                        74.29$                 

D40 FIRE PROTECTION 25,000$                        7.43$                  

D4010 Sprinkler System 25,000$                          7.43$                   

D50 ELECTRICAL 120,000$                      35.66$               

D5000 Electrical 120,000$                        35.66$                 

E10 EQUIPMENT 9,850$                           2.93$                  

E1010 Equipment 9,850$                            2.93$                   

E20 FIXED FURNISHINGS 600$                              0.18$                  

E2010 Fixed Furnishings 600$                               0.18$                   

F10 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION -$                               -$                    

F1010 Special Structure -$                                

F1020 Special Construction -$                                

F20 SELECTIVE BUILDING DEMOLITION 31,327$                        9.31$                  

F2010 Building Elements Demolition 31,327$                          
Z10 GENERAL RQUIREMENTS 400,000$                      118.87$             

Z1010 General Requirements 400,000$                        

Sub-Total Direct Cost 2,133,271$                  633.96$            

Estimating / Design Contingency 1.50% 31,999$                        9.51$                  

Sub-Total 2,165,271$                  643.47$            

General Contractor's OH&P 7.50% 162,395$                      48.26$               

Sub-Total 2,327,666$                  691.73$            

Escalation to April 2024 0.42% 9,697$                           2.88$                  

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST 2,337,362$                  694.61$            

COST PER SF

Page 5 of 20

146



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 3,365 SF

BUILDING Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

A10 FOUNDATIONS

A1010 Standard Foundation

A1011 Foundations

Reinforced concrete continuous footings

Excavate for continuous footings 75                CY 42.00 3,150

Backfill, assume imported fill 59                CY 50.00 2,962

Disposal of excavated material off-site within 8 miles, 

assumed a 33% swell factor
16                CY 26.00 410

Fine grade bottom of footing 320              SF 1.08 346

Formwork to foundations - sides 330              SF 12.45 4,109

Reinforcing steel in foundations 1,719           LB 1.85 3,179

Concrete, 4,000 psi 12                CY 260.00 3,081

Finish to top of footing 320              SF 1.08 346

Reinforced concrete brace frame footings

Excavate for continuous footings 102              CY 42.00 4,284

Backfill, assume imported fill 29                CY 50.00 1,475

Disposal of excavated material off-site within 8 miles, 

assumed a 33% swell factor
73                CY 26.00 1,885

Fine grade bottom of footing 464              SF 1.08 502

Formwork to foundations - sides 592              SF 12.45 7,370

Reinforcing steel in foundations 10,086        LB 1.85 18,659

Concrete, 4,000 psi 55                CY 260.00 14,175

Finish to top of footing 464              SF 1.08 502

Modify existing continuous footing 34                LF 205.00 6,970
Exterior stem walls 20                CY 1,100.00 22,000
Interior stem walls 37                LF 70.00 2,590
Column footings 5                   EA 850.00 4,250

Tie into existing footing 1                   LS 3,000.00 3,000

Hand excavation/underpinning allowance 1                   LS 7,500.00 7,500

Total For Standard Foundations 112,746

A1020 Special Foundation

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Special Foundations

A1030 Slab on Grade

A1031 Standard slab on grade

Reinforced concrete slab on grade, 8" 3,240           SF 13.50 43,740

Gravel below slab in site

Slab connections 63                EA 75.00 4,725

Slab patching at below grade plumbing 1                   LS 2,500.00 2,500

Blockouts and drains 1                   LS 2,000.00 2,000

Total For Slab on Grade 52,965

A20 BASEMENT CONSTRUCTION

A2010 Basement Excavation

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Basement Excavation

A2010 Basement Walls

No work anticipated N/A

Page 6 of 20

147



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 3,365 SF

BUILDING Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

Total For Basement Walls

B10 SUPERSTRUCTURE

B1010 Floor & Roof Construction

B1012 Upper floors construction

No work anticipated N/A

B1020 Roof construction

Wood roof structure, 18" RED-I65 @ 24" oc 2,868           SF                              22.50 64,530

Wood roof structure, 14" RED-I65 @ 24" oc 268              SF                              20.50 5,494

Wood roof structure, 33" RED-H @ 18" oc 698              SF                              28.00 19,544

Wood roof structure, 33" RED-H @ 36" oc 210              SF                              23.35 4,904

Premium for roof top equipment 1                   LS                        2,500.00 2,500

Premium for crane truss upgrade 2                   EA                        1,000.00 2,000

5/8" roof sheathing at new roof framing 4,044           SF                                5.75 23,253

Glulam beams 518 7                   LF                            105.00 735

Glulam beams 624 21                LF 325.00                          6,825

LVL beams, 3 1/2 x 11 7/8 76                LF                              75.00 5,700

8x8 posts 2                   EA                            895.00 1,790

6x6x3/8 column with base plate 1                   EA                        1,865.00 1,865

W24x84 columns 6,720           LB                                3.95 26,544

W24x84 beams 2,688           LB                                3.95 10,618

4x8 TS bracing 2,750           LB                                3.95 10,863

Moment frame connections 24                EA                            500.00 12,000

Misc steel/connections 1,824           LB                                5.15 9,392

Beam to wall connections 5                   EA                            135.00 675

Beam to beam connections 3                   EA                            135.00 405

Miscellaneous

Fireproofing steel, assumed not required

Asphalt emulsion at wide flange columns 4                   EA 235.00 940

Total For Floor & Roof Construction 210,576

B20 EXTERIOR CLOSURE

B2010 Exterior Walls   

B2011 Exterior wall construction

Gross exterior wall area

Metal siding 1,798           SF 26.50 47,647

CMU veneer, smooth/scored 840              SF 41.75 35,070

CMU veneer, split face/scored 1,246           SF 43.25 53,890

Masonry below grade 184              LF 38.00 6,992

Precast sills at windows 54                LF 70.00 3,780

Wall type 61C 2,941           SF 36.00 105,876

Wall type 62C 2,448           SF 37.50 91,800

Paparet adjustment between new and existing 95                SF 75.00 7,125

Parapet wall 650              SF 51.50 33,475

Premium for double stud framing 1                   LS 1,550.00 1,550

Strap above and below window 32                LF 75.00 2,400

Misc supports/hardware 2,941           SF 1.00 2,941

Framing/steel around openings at app bay doors 120              LF 150.00 18,000

Shear wall 2-4,  premium 36                LF 125.00 4,500

Caulking, sealants and firestopping 6,134           SFA 1.05 6,441

Page 7 of 20

148



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 3,365 SF

BUILDING Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

B2016 Exterior soffits

Soffit repair allowance 1                   LS 650.00 650

Miscellaneous

Wall connection, assumes no seismic joint 3                   EA 1,000.00 3,000

Hold downs 10                EA 195.00 1,950

Clean exterior wall 1                   LS 1,465.00 1,465

Total For Exterior Walls 428,551

B2020 Exterior Windows

3,430           
B2021 Windows

Windows, 4'x8' 64                SF 88.00 5,632

Windows, 6'x8' 192              SF 88.00 16,896

Total For Exterior Windows 22,528

B2030 Exterior Doors

B 2030 Exterior Doors

Exterior door, HM, flush, single 3                   EA 3,450.00 10,350

Special hardware allowance 1                   LS 2,500.00 2,500

Card reader 3                   EA 2,850.00 8,550

Coiling door, 14x14 2                   EA 17,500.00 35,000

Coiling door, 12x12 1                   EA 16,000.00 16,000

Total For Exterior Doors 72,400

B30 ROOFING

B3010 Roof Covering

B3011 Roof finishes

Membrane roofing system 3,912           SF 27.25 106,602

Tapered insulation premium 1                   LS 3,500.00 3,500

Membrane at parapet 862              SF 15.00 12,930

B3014 Flashings and trim

Sheet metal flashings and trim 3,912           SFA 1.50 5,868

New parapet cap/flashing 325              LF 35.00 11,375

Membrane cap at low parapet 95                LF 25.00 2,375

B3016 Gutters and downspouts

Scuppers/connections to internal drains 1                   LS 5,000.00 5,000

Miscellaneous

Rough carpentry 3,912           SFA 0.75 2,934

Roof ladder 1                   LS 4,500.00 4,500

Total For Roofing 155,084

C10 INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION

C1010 Partitions

C1011 Fixed partitions
Interior partitions

Wall type 71B 29 LF 225.00 6,525
Wall type 71C 10 LF 250.00 2,375
Shear wall 2,  premium 14 LF 125.00 1,750
Furred wall 1257 SF 6.25 7,856

Page 8 of 20

149



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 3,365 SF

BUILDING Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

C1017 Interior windows and storefronts

No work anticipated N/A

Miscellaneous

Blocking and backing, sealants, ratings 1                   LS 850.00 850
Bent plate header at opening 1                   LS 1,250.00 1,250

Total For Interior Partitions 20,606

C1020 Interior Doors

C1021 Interior doors

HM door 5                   EA                        2,800.00 14,000
Premium for special hardware/rating 1                   LS                        2,000.00 2,000

Total For Interior Doors 16,000

C1030 Specialties

C1035 Identifying devices

Code signage 3,365           SFA 0.25 841

C1037 General fittings and misc. metals

Misc specialties 3,365           SFA 1.25 4,206
Storage shelving, assumed by owner
Cornerguard 1 5                   EA 210.00 1,050
Cornerguard 2 6                   EA 210.00 1,260
Cornerguard 3 75                LF 35.00 2,625

Total For Fittings and Specialty Items 9,983

C20 STAIRS

C2010 Stair Construction

C 2010 Stair Construction including railings and finish

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Stair Construction

C30 INTERIOR FINISHES

C3010 Wall Finishes

C3012 Wall finishes to interior walls

Plywood wall protection at maintenance bays 1,560           SF 7.25 11,310
Interior painting 3,365           SFA 3.00 10,095
Misc wall patching 1                   LS 1,000.00 1,000
Misc trim/finish carpentry 3,365           SFA 0.35 1,178

Total For Wall Finishes 23,583

C3020 Floor Finishes

C3024 Flooring 

Oil resistant sealer/hardener 3,365           SF 3.50 11,778

Prep slab at area to remain, assumes none required

C3026 Bases, curbs and trim

Misc base 1                   LS 825.00 825

Metal base 196              LF 28.00 5,488

Total For Floor Finishes 18,091

Page 9 of 20

150



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 3,365 SF

BUILDING Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

C3030 Ceiling Finishes

C3031 Ceiling finishes

Paint exposed structure 3,122           SF 2.95 9,210

ACT, office 232              SF 12.75 2,958

Minor patching at existing space 486              SF 2.50 1,215

Total For Ceiling Finishes 13,383

D10 VERTICAL TRANSPORTATION

D1010 Elevator & Lift

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Elevator & Lifts

D20 PLUMBING

D20 PLUMBING

D2010 Plumbing

Based on Sider & Byers estimate dated 4/14/23

Plumbing 1                   LS 140,000.00 140,000

Total For Plumbing 140,000

D30 HVAC

D3010 HVAC

Based on Sider & Byers estimate dated 3/6/24

HVAC 1                   LS 250,000.00                  250,000

Total For HVAC 250,000

D40 FIRE PROTECTION

D4010 Fire Protection

Based on Sider & Byers estimate dated 3/6/24

Fire suppression system 1                   LS 25,000.00 25,000

Total For Fire Sprinkler System 25,000

D50 ELECTRICAL 

D5000 Electrical

Based on Sider & Byers estimate dated 3/6/24

Electrical 1                   LS 100,000.00 100,000
Communications 1                   LS 15,000.00 15,000
Safety & security 1                   LS 5,000.00 5,000

Total For Electrical 120,000

E10 EQUIPMENT
E1010 Equipment

E1000 Misc equipment

Flammable cabinet 2                   EA 2,750.00                       5,500

Page 10 of 20

151



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 3,365 SF

BUILDING Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

Misc equipment/FOIC 1                   LS 1,850.00                       1,850

Install owner supplied floor mounted lift 1                   LS 2,500.00                       2,500

Total For Equipment 9,850

E20 FIXED FURNISHINGS
E2010 Fixed Furnishing

E2012 Fixed casework

No work anticipated N/A

E2013 Blinds and other window treatments
Assumes office only 1                   LS 600.00 600

Total For Fixed Furnishings 600

F10 SPECIAL STRUCTURES
F1010 Special Structure

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Special Structure
F1020 Special Construction

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Special Construction

F20 SELECTIVE BUILDING DEMOLITION
F2010 Building Elements Demolition

F2011 Building interior demolition

Demo roof structure 1,342           SF 10.00 13,420
Demo roofing/sheet metal 1,342           SF 3.25 4,362
Demo masonry wall 14                LF 75.00 1,050
Demo door/frame 4                   EA 200.00 800
Demo column and footing 1                   LS 750.00 750
Create door opening in old ext wall 2                   EA 450.00 900
Demo window/enlarge opening 1                   LS 500.00 500
Misc sawcutting/core drilling 1                   LS 1,500.00 1,500
Demo slab 435              SF 7.00 3,045
Misc demo/dump fees 1                   LS 5,000.00 5,000

F2020 Hazardous Components Abatement
Hazardous material removal, none assumed

Total For Selective Building Demolition 31,327

Z10 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Z1010 General requirements

General conditions 8                   MTH 50,000.00 400,000

Total For General Requirements 400,000

Page 11 of 20

152

hinoue
Line

hinoue
Ellipse



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE

FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 

MONROE, WA

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE GROSS FLOOR AREA:

SITEWORK DATE: March 11, 2024

No. ELEMENT DESCRIPTION ELEMENT TOTAL GROUP TOTAL

G10 SITE PREPARATION 48,337$                        

G1010 Site Clearing -$                                

G1020 Site Demolition and Relocations 25,937$                          

G1030 Site Earthwork 22,400$                          

G1040 Hazardous Waste Remediation -$                                

G20 SITE IMPROVEMENTS 58,929$                        

G2010 Roadways -$                                

G2020 Parking Lots 52,018$                          

G2030 Pedestrian Paving -$                                

G2040 Site Development 2,200$                            

G2050 Landscaping 4,711$                            

G30 SITE MECHANICAL UTILITIES 56,298$                        

G3030 Utilities 56,298$                          

G3040 Heating Distribution -$                                

G3050 Cooling Distribution -$                                

G3060 Fuel Distribution -$                                

G3090 Other Site Mechanical Utilities -$                                

G40 SITE ELECTRICAL UTILITIES 3,000$                           

G4010 Electrical Distribution 3,000$                            

G4020 Site Lighting -$                                

G4030 Site Communications and Security -$                                

Sub-Total Direct Cost 166,563$                     

Estimating / Design Contingency 1.50% 2,498$                           

Sub-Total 169,061$                     

General Contractor's OH&P 7.50% 12,680$                        

Sub-Total 181,741$                     

Escalation to April 2024 0.42% 757$                              

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST 182,498$                     

Page 12 of 20

153



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 

SITEWORK Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

G10 SITE PREPARATION

G1010 Site Clearing

G1011 Clearing and grubbing

No work anticipated

Total For Site Clearing

G1020 Site Demolition and Relocations

G1022 Demolition of site components

Asphalt demolition 6,250          SF 3.00 18,750
Sawcut asphalt 330             LF 3.25 1,073
Demo curb at drive widening, none shown

Remove trees 1                  EA 400.00 400
Misc sawcutting 1                  LS 350.00 350
Misc. demo 1                  LS 3,000.00 3,000
Demo catch basin 1                  LS 300.00 300
Cap lines at pipe demo 4                  EA 150.00 600
Demo piping 122             LF 12.00 1,464
Remove covered tent, by owner

Total For Site Demolition and Relocations 25,937

G1030 Site Earthwork

G1031 Site grading excavation

Site Mobilization 1                  LS 2,500.00 2,500

Rough grading 6,250          SF 0.35 2,188

Foundation excavation in bldg

Gravel fill for slab subgrade (1') 120             CY 45.00 5,400

Dispose of unsuitable soil 50                CY 40.00 2,000

Fine grading 6,250          SF 0.45 2,813

G1037 Erosion control

Erosion control 1                  LS 7,500.00 7,500

Total For Site Earthwork 22,400

G1040 Hazardous Waste Remediation

No work anticipated N/A 

Total For Hazardous Waste Remediation

G20 SITE IMPROVEMENTS

G2010 Roadways

No work anticipated N/A 

Total For Roadways

G2020 Parking Lots

Asphalt patching 35                SF 16.50 578

Misc asphalt repair due to construction activities 1                  LS 2,500.00 2,500

Page 13 of 20

154



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 

SITEWORK Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

Concrete apron 2,820          SF 17.00 47,940

Concrete curb, none shown

Pavement markings 1                  LS 1,000.00 1,000

Total For Parking Lots 52,018

G2030 Pedestrian Paving

G2031 Paving and surfacing

No work anticipated N/A 

Total For Pedestrian Paving

G2040 Site Development

Slab for test pump shed 88                SF 25.00 2,200

Bollards, none shown

Shed for test pit equipment, OFOI

Total For Site Development 2,200

G2050 Landscaping

Finish Grading 148             SF 1.50 222

Import/Place Shrub Topsoil (8" x1.2) 5                  CY 65.00 325

Shrubs/Accents/Groundcover 148             SF 18.00 2,664

Misc. landscaping, allowance 1                  LS 1,500.00 1,500

Sprinkler work, excluded 

Total For Landscaping 4,711

G30 SITE MECHANICAL UTILITIES

G3011 Potable water distribution and storage

Connections to existing line 2                  EA 2,500.00 5,000

8" DI pipe 113             LF 75.00 8,475

Backfill at water line line 50                CY 45.00 2,250

8" bends 4                  EA 680.00 2,720

Dispose of unsuitable soil 50                CY 45.00 2,250

G3023 Sanitary disposal systems

New oil/water separator 1                  LS 15,000.00 15,000

Connections to existing line 1                  EA 1,950.00 1,950

Clean outs 1                  EA 920.00 920

4" PVC line w/trenching 68                LF 42.50 2,890

Backfill at sanitary line 35                CY 45.00 1,575

Disposal of unsuitable soil 35                CY 45.00 1,575

G3031 Storm piping

8" D.I. storm pipe 25                LF 75.00 1,875

Dispose of unsuitable soil 15                CY 45.00 675

Connections to existing lines 2                  EA 975.00 1,950

Backfill at storm line 15                CY 45.00 675

Footing drains 202             LF 21.50 4,343

Page 14 of 20

155



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 

SITEWORK Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

G3032 Manholes

Catch basin type I 1                  EA 2,175.00 2,175

Total For Utilities 56,298

G3040 Heating Distribution

No work anticipated N/A 

Total For Heating Distribution

G3050 Cooling Distribution

No work anticipated N/A 

Total For Cooling Distribution

G3060 Fuel Distribution

No work anticipated N/A 

Total For Fuel Distribution

G3090 Other Site Mechanical Utilities

No work anticipated N/A 

Total For Other Site Mechanical Utilities

G40 SITE ELECTRICAL UTILITIES

G4010 Electrical Distribution

G4010 Electrical Distribution

Protect existing service line, allowance 24                LF 125.00 3,000

Total For Electrical Distribution 3,000

G4020 Site Lighting

G4020 Site Lighting

All exterior lighting included in building estimate

Total For Site Lighting

G4030 Site Communications and Security

G4030 Site Communications and Security

No work anticipated N/A 

Total For Site Communications and Security

Page 15 of 20

156



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE

FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 

MONROE, WA

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE GROSS FLOOR AREA: 2,210 SF

CAR CANOPY DATE: March 11, 2024

No. ELEMENT DESCRIPTION ELEMENT TOTAL GROUP TOTAL

A10 FOUNDATIONS 40,365$                        18.26$               

A1010 Standard Foundation -$                                -$                      

A1020 Special Foundation -$                                -$                      

A1030 Slab on grade 40,365$                          18.26$                 

A20 BASEMENT WALL CONSTRUCTION -$                               -$                    

A2010 Basement Excavation -$                                -$                      

A2020 Basement Wall Construction -$                                -$                      

B10 SUPERSTRUCTURE -$                               -$                    

B1010 Floor & Roof Construction -$                                -$                      

B20 EXTERIOR ENCLOSURE -$                               -$                    

B2010 Exterior Walls -$                                -$                      

B2020 Exterior Windows -$                                -$                      

B2030 Exterior Doors -$                                -$                      

B30 ROOFING -$                               -$                    

B3010 Roofing -$                                -$                      

C10 INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION -$                               -$                    

C1010 Partitions -$                                -$                      

C1020 Interior Doors -$                                -$                      

C1030 Fittings and Specialties -$                                -$                      

C20 STAIRS -$                               -$                    

C2010 Stair Construction -$                                -$                      

C30 INTERIOR FINISHES 16,354$                        7.40$                  

C3010 Wall Finishes -$                                -$                      

C3020 Floor Finishes 7,735$                            3.50$                   

C3030 Ceiling Finishes 8,619$                            3.90$                   

D10 CONVEYING -$                               -$                    

D1010 Elevators & Lifts -$                                -$                      

D20 PLUMBING -$                               -$                    

D2010 Plumbing -$                                -$                      

D30 HVAC -$                               -$                    

D3010 HVAC -$                                -$                      

D40 FIRE PROTECTION -$                               -$                    

D4010 Sprinkler System -$                                -$                      

D50 ELECTRICAL 25,000$                        11.31$               

D5000 Electrical 25,000$                          11.31$                 

E10 EQUIPMENT -$                               -$                    

E1010 Equipment -$                                -$                      

E20 FIXED FURNISHINGS -$                               -$                    

E2010 Fixed Furnishings -$                                -$                      

F10 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION 106,080$                      48.00$               

F1010 Special Structure 106,080$                        

F1020 Special Construction -$                                

F20 SELECTIVE BUILDING DEMOLITION 16,135$                        7.30$                  

F2010 Building Elements Demolition 16,135$                          
Z10 GENERAL RQUIREMENTS 15,000$                        6.79$                  

Z1010 General requirements 15,000$                          

Sub-Total Direct Cost 218,934$                     99.07$               

Estimating / Design Contingency 1.50% 3,284$                           1.49$                  

Sub-Total 222,218$                     100.55$            

General Contractor's OH&P 7.50% 16,666$                        7.54$                  

Sub-Total 238,884$                     108.09$            

Escalation to April 2024 0.42% 995$                              0.45$                  

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST 239,880$                     108.54$            

COST PER SF

Page 16 of 20

157



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 2,210 SF

CAR CANOPY Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

A10 FOUNDATIONS

A1010 Standard Foundation

A1011 Foundations

Foundation, allowance 2,210           SFA 15.00 33,150

Total For Standard Foundations

A1020 Special Foundation

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Special Foundations

A1030 Slab on Grade

A1031 Standard slab on grade

Reinforced concrete slab on grade, 8" 2,210           SF 13.50 29,835

Slab adjacent to canopy 780              SF 13.50 10,530

Total For Slab on Grade 40,365

A20 BASEMENT CONSTRUCTION

A2010 Basement Excavation

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Basement Excavation

A2010 Basement Walls

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Basement Walls

B10 SUPERSTRUCTURE

B1010 Floor & Roof Construction

B1012 Upper floors construction

No work anticipated N/A

B1020 Roof construction

Included in division F10 PEMB N/A

Total For Floor & Roof Construction

B20 EXTERIOR CLOSURE

B2010 Exterior Walls  

B2011 Exterior wall construction

No work anticipated N/A

B2016 Exterior soffits
N/A

Open to structure

Total For Exterior Walls

B2020 Exterior Windows

3,430           

Page 17 of 20

158



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 2,210 SF

CAR CANOPY Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Exterior Windows

B2030 Exterior Doors

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Exterior Doors

B30 ROOFING

B3010 Roof Covering

B3011 Roof finishes

Included in division F10 PEMB N/A

B3014 Flashings and trim

Included in division F10 PEMB N/A

B3016 Gutters and downspouts

Included in division F10 PEMB N/A

Total For Roofing

C10 INTERIOR CONSTRUCTION

C1010 Partitions

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Interior Partitions

C1020 Interior Doors

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Interior Doors

C1030 Specialties

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Fittings and Specialty Items

C20 STAIRS

C2010 Stair Construction

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Stair Construction

C30 INTERIOR FINISHES

C3010 Wall Finishes

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Wall Finishes

C3020 Floor Finishes

C3024 Flooring 

Page 18 of 20

159



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 2,210 SF

CAR CANOPY Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

Oil resistant sealer/hardener 2,210           SF 3.50 7,735

Total For Floor Finishes 7,735

C3030 Ceiling Finishes

C3031 Ceiling finishes

Paint exposed structure 2,210           SF 3.00 6,630

Bird spikes 2,210           SF 0.90 1,989

Total For Ceiling Finishes 8,619

D10 VERTICAL TRANSPORTATION

D1010 Elevator & Lift

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Elevator & Lifts

D20 PLUMBING

D20 PLUMBING

D2010 Plumbing

Downspout connections, assumes none required

Slab drains, assumes none required

Total For Plumbing

D30 HVAC

D3010 HVAC

No work anticipated N/A

Total For HVAC

D40 FIRE PROTECTION

D4010 Fire Protection

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Fire Sprinkler System

D50 ELECTRICAL 

D5000 Electrical

Based on Sider & Byers estimate dated 3/6/24

Electrical/lighting work 1                   LS 25,000.00 25,000

Total For Electrical 25,000

E10 EQUIPMENT
E1010 Equipment

Lubrication system, by owner N/A

Total For Equipment

E20 FIXED FURNISHINGS
E2010 Fixed Furnishing

Page 19 of 20

160



SNOHOMISH REGIONAL FIRE & RESCUE
FIRE STATION 31 ADDITION 
MONROE, WA
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT/CHECK ESTIMATE Gross Floor Area: 2,210 SF

CAR CANOPY Date: March 11, 2024

ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT  UNIT COST TOTALS

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Fixed Furnishings

F10 SPECIAL STRUCTURES
F1010 Special Structure

Pre-manufactured canopy 2,210           SF 48.00 106,080

Total For Special Structure 106,080
F1020 Special Construction

No work anticipated N/A

Total For Special Construction

F20 SELECTIVE BUILDING DEMOLITION
F2010 Building Elements Demolition

Misc demo 1                   LS 1,500.00 1,500
Asphalt demo 2,990           SF 3.00 8,970
Sawcut asphalt 220              LF 3.25 715
Potholing allowance 1                   LS 4,950.00 4,950

Total For Selective Building Demolition 16,135

Z1010 General requirements

General conditions 1                   LS 15,000.00 15,000

Total For General Requirements 15,000

Page 20 of 20

161



 

 

 

New Business 
Action 

162



 

 

 

 

 

 

Initiative Name: Station 83 CO & Do not exceed-Cost Increase 

 

Executive member responsible for guiding the initiative:  DC Rasmussen 

 
Type of Action:                                                            ☐ 
 
Initiative Description: 

• Brief Description 
• Goal of Initiative 
• Initiative Results (deliverables) 
• Connection to Strategic Plan 
• Supporting Documentation 

(attach) 
o Scope of work 
o Contract(s) 
o Project proposal(s) 
o Presentation(s) 

• If Financial: Reason RAB must 
be approved outside of the 
annual budget process 

We would like to increase dollars allotted to the Station 83 Remodel Project 
to cover costs incurred by unforeseen issues. We are recommending a 10 % 
Do not exceed amount over Proposed cost of the project. Also increased cost 
to cover COP 6 (Siding) and COP 7 (Water Damage) The cost increase will 
help cover the cost of replacing the siding. The cost to replace the Fire Alarm 
Panel and the cost of water damage to the front of the building and other 
smaller Change Orders and any future unforeseen issues. The original Do not 
exceed amount was $1,250,000.00  
 

Cost Old New Increase 
Base Bid Price $1,103,817.30 $1,103,817.30  
Siding Cost COP 6 $5782.30  

Bid alt #1 
$63,219.93  

Water Damage COP7  $15,296.00  
Fire Panel 
Replacement 

 $14,495.00  

Tax $100,447.37 $111,305.02  
Do not exceed (10%) $39,953.10  $130,813.32  
Total $1,250,000.00 $1,438,946.50 $188,946.50 

 
The increase to the original do not exceed/project amount is $188,946.50. 
The new project cost total is $1,438,946.50 without approval by the Fire 
Chief and Board of Commissioners. 
 
Please Find Attached supporting documents: 

• New RAB for increase 
• Original RAB 
• Water Damage COP #7 
• Metal Siding Replacement COP #6 
• Additional siding quote we got internally (Several were requested 

we received one) 
• Fire Alarm Panel Replacement cost 

 
Financial Impact: 
 

Expense:        Increase      ☐ Decrease    ☐ N/A  
Revenue:      ☐ Increase      ☐ Decrease    ☐ N/A  

Request for Action by the Board (R.A.B) 
The purpose of the RAB is to provide a standardized format 
for presenting initiatives requiring action by the Board of Fire 
Commissioners. The RAB serves as a guide and checklist 
intended to provide the detailed, relevant, information 
needed to help the Board take action on projects, programs, 
and other initiatives.  

Motion Resolution 

163



  
Total amount of initiative (attach amount breakdown if applicable): $  
Initial amount: $ 188,946.50 
Long-term annual amount(s): $  
 
 
Currently Budgeted:                   ☐ Yes      ☐ No    Amount: $  
 
Budget Amendment Needed:   ☐ Yes     ☐ No    Amount: $  

• If yes: Fund(s)/line item(s) to be amended: 
 

 
Risk Assessment: Risk if approved:  

 
 
 
Risk if not approved:  
 
 
 

 
Legal Review: 
 
 

       
☐      Initiative conforms with District policy/procedure number (attach):  
☐      Initiatives that require legal review (contracts, other initiatives):  

• Contracts 
• Has been reviewed and approved by legal 
• Includes all costs 
• Includes term 
• Includes ‘do not exceed’ language 

 ☐     N/A 
 

 

Presented to, and Approved by, Senior Staff              ☐  Yes      ☐     No     

 

Commissioner Sub-Committee Approval 

    
Initiative presented to commissioner sub-committee:    ☐ Yes    ☐  No 
Approved by commissioner sub-committee:        ☐  Yes     ☐  No    
N/A:        ☐   
 

 
For Fire Chief Approval: ☐  RAB document complete 

 
☐  Supporting documentation attached 
 
☐  Information sent to Fire Chief, Senior Staff, and Board Support (Laana Larson) 
 

Fire Chief will approve and distribute by email to the Board of Commissioners – RAB 
executive/senior staff will be cc’d on the email distribution 

 
Fire Chief will coordinate with Senior Staff for RAB introduction 

 

164



 

RAB Executive: Confirmed email sent to Board by Fire Chief            ☐   Yes        ☐    No      

 
Board of Fire 
Commissioners 

RAB initiatives go through the following process: 
 

1. Senior Staff approval to move forward to a committee/board 
2. Initiatives are introduced to the appropriate committee for review 
3. Initiatives are introduced at an initial commissioner meeting as a Discussion Item 

o The Senior Staff member assigned to develop the initiative presents initiative to the 
Board (maximum time for presentation is ten minutes) 

4. At a second commissioner meeting, initiatives may be assigned as an action item for 
approval 
 

 

Execution: It is the responsibility of the RAB Executive to execute implementation, processing, and tracking. 

 
 

165



 

 

 

 

 

 

Initiative Name: Station 83 Remodel-Contractor Recommendation and approval to proceed 

 

Executive member responsible for guiding the initiative:  DC Ron Rasmussen 

 
Type of Action:                                                            ☐ 
 
Initiative Description: 

• Brief Description 
• Goal of Initiative 
• Initiative Results (deliverables) 
• Connection to Strategic Plan 
• Supporting Documentation 

(attach) 
o Scope of work 
o Contract(s) 
o Project proposal(s) 
o Presentation(s) 

• If Financial: Reason RAB must 
be approved outside of the 
annual budget process 

Station 83 Remodel went to bid in June and sealed bids were due July 11th. 
All bids were announced in an open meeting on July 11th. All contractors 
that submitted bids were present along with District representatives DC 
Rasmussen, DC McConnell, and AC Lundquist. Bids were opened in the order 
they were received and announced. Axthelm construction was the low 
bidder with a base bid price at $1,103,817.30 not including tax and a Bid 
alternate of $5300.00 not including tax to replace the vinyl siding of the 
entire building. The base bid price was a $265, 619.30 increase from the 
original estimate in 2021 of $838,198.00. After taking some time to review 
bids for accuracy and completeness we then checked references of the low 
bidder. The following references were checked with favorable reviews: Rice-
Fergus-Miller, Fred Owen (Lakewood School District), and Robb Stanton 
(Lake Stevens School District. It is our recommendation to the Board of 
Commissioners to have Axthelm Construction proceed to complete the 
proposed Remodel of Station 83. 

 
Financial Impact: 
 
 

Expense:        Increase      ☐ Decrease    ☐ N/A  
Revenue:      ☐ Increase      ☐ Decrease    ☐ N/A  
 
Total amount of initiative (attach amount breakdown if applicable): $1,250,000.00 tax included. 
 
$ 1,103,817.30 plus $100,447.37 in sales tax @ 9.1% = $1,204,264.67  
 
Bid alternate 1- Replace entire siding. $5,300.00 plus $482.30 in sales tax @ 9.1% = $5782.30 
 
Total with Base Bid Cost and Bid Alternate 1 = $1,210,046.97 
 
With a do not exceed price of $1,250,000.00 without authorization from the Fire Chief and 
Board of commissioners.  
 
Initial amount: $ Estimated in 2021 @ $838,198.00 tax not included. 
 
Long-term annual amount(s): $  
 
Currently Budgeted:                    Yes      ☐ No    Amount: $  

Request for Action by the Board (R.A.B) 
The purpose of the RAB is to provide a standardized format 
for presenting initiatives requiring action by the Board of Fire 
Commissioners. The RAB serves as a guide and checklist 
intended to provide the detailed, relevant, information 
needed to help the Board take action on projects, programs, 
and other initiatives.  

Motion Resolution 

166



 
Budget Amendment Needed:   ☐ Yes      No    Amount: $  

• If yes: Fund(s)/line item(s) to be amended: 
 

 
Risk Assessment: Risk if approved: N/A 

 
 
 
Risk if not approved: N/A 
 
 
 

 
Legal Review: 
 
 

       
☐      Initiative conforms with District policy/procedure number (attach):  
☐      Initiatives that require legal review (contracts, other initiatives):  

• Contracts 
• Has been reviewed and approved by legal 
• Includes all costs 
• Includes term 
• Includes ‘do not exceed’ language 

      N/A 
 

 

Presented to, and Approved by, Senior Staff              ☐  Yes      ☐     No     

 

Commissioner Sub-Committee Approval 

    
Initiative presented to commissioner sub-committee:    ☐ Yes    ☐  No 
Approved by commissioner sub-committee:        ☐  Yes     ☐  No    
N/A:        ☐   
 

 
For Fire Chief Approval: ☐  RAB document complete 

 
☐  Supporting documentation attached 
 
☐  Information sent to Fire Chief, Senior Staff, and Board Support (Mindy Leber) 
 

Fire Chief will approve and distribute by email to the Board of Commissioners – RAB 
executive/senior staff will be cc’d on the email distribution 

 
Fire Chief will coordinate with Senior Staff for RAB introduction 

 
 

RAB Executive: Confirmed email sent to Board by Fire Chief            ☐   Yes        ☐    No      

 
Board of Fire 
Commissioners 

RAB initiatives go through the following process: 
 

1. Senior Staff approval to move forward to a committee/board 

167



2. Initiatives are introduced to the appropriate committee for review 
3. Initiatives are introduced at an initial commissioner meeting as a Discussion Item 

o The Senior Staff member assigned to develop the initiative presents initiative to the 
Board (maximum time for presentation is ten minutes) 

4. At a second commissioner meeting, initiatives may be assigned as an action item for 
approval 
 

 

Execution: It is the responsibility of the RAB Executive to execute implementation, processing, and tracking. 

 
 

168



COP  Summary

Contractor: Axthelm Construction Date: 3/25/2024

Project Name: Snohomish Fire Station 83 COP 006

Description: Proposal to revise from Vinyl Siding to Vertical Metal Siding as requested. 

Includes Credit for Vinyl from SOV  (as shown)

Includes  WRB - No Spec - Tyvek or Similar Basic Commercial Wrap. 

Gutters and Downspouts.( Excluded)

Fascia.( Excluded)

Repair of Rotten Materials (Excluded)

Contract Adj. Type: Lump Sum

Increase  in Contract Amount : Increase

Schedule Impact: Yes

Schedule Impact Number of Days: 30 days

Contractor is Authorized to Proceed: NO

1.  General Contractor  - Direct Costs  (see attached Cost Breakdown sheet for more detail) -$            -$            63,220.00$  

1 30,989.51$    

2 21,166.78$    

3 4,500.00$      

4 4,477.00$      

5 929.69$         

6 1,200.00$      

7 929.69$         

8 (6,720.00)$     

DIRECT COSTS SUBTOTAL 57,472.67$    

2. GC Fee

5,747.27$      

3. Subcontractor Costs Direct Costs Subs 

Overhead 

Allowance on 

subs direct 

cost (10%)

Sub tier 

Direct cost

Subs Fee on 

Subs Sub tier 

Work

Total Direct 

Costs 

Total Mark-Up Total

(must be less than) (must be less than)

10% 6%

1 -$                  -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               

DIRECT LABOR SUBTOTAL -$                  -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               

GC mark up on direct costs  6% -$               

4

57,472.67$        

5,747.27$          

-$                  

-$                  

63,219.93$        

TOTAL 63,219.93$    

Supervision  (15% on direct labor)

Labor (Direct)

Small Tools (3% on direct labor)

Materials

GC Fee on GCs own work (10%)

Markups

None

Equipment 

Credit for Vinyl per SOV 

Safety  (3% on direct labor)

Disposal

Subtotal

GC  Direct Cost 

GC Fee on GCs Own Work 

Subs Direct Cost 

GC Mark-up on Sub Direct Cost

COP-006 - Metal Siding Page 1 of 1 Printed 3/27/2024

169



8 #REF! #REF!

Contractor: Axthelm Construction 3/25/2024

Project Name: Snohomish Fire Station 83 006

Description : Proposal to revise from Vinyl Siding to Vertical Metal Siding as requested. 

Unit Labor Material Other Total

Quantity Type Unit $ Cost Unit $ Cost Unit $ Cost Cost

55 MH $71.83 3,950.65$         -$                  -$                  3,950.65$         

0 MH -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

1 ea. -$                  -$                  $1,200.00 1,200.00$         1,200.00$         

55 MH $71.83 3,950.65$         -$                  -$                  3,950.65$         

1 LS -$                  $3,825.00 3,825.00$         -$                  3,825.00$         

1 ea. -$                  $15,079.81 15,079.81$       -$                  15,079.81$       

1 ea. -$                  $2,261.97 2,261.97$         -$                  2,261.97$         

0 ea. -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

0 ea. -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

0 ea. -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

321.43 MH $71.83 23,088.21$       -$                  -$                  23,088.21$       

1 ls -$                  -$                  $4,500.00 4,500.00$         4,500.00$         

37 MH $121.00 4,477.00$         -$                  -$                  4,477.00$         

1 ls -$                  -$                  $929.69 929.69$            929.69$            

1 ls -$                  -$                  $929.69 929.69$            929.69$            

-$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

1 ls -$                  -$6,720.00 (6,720.00)$        (6,720.00)$        

-$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

-$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

35,466.51$       21,166.78$       839.37$            57,472.67$       

-$                  -$                  

35,466.51$       21,166.78$       839.37$            57,472.67$       

Fascia.( Excluded)

Small Tools (3% on direct labor)

Small Tools (3% on direct labor)

Remove Existing Vinyl Siding & WRB

Dispose of Removed Siding

WRB - Tyvek Commercial Wrap (basic)

WRB - Tyvek Commercial Wrap (basic)

Equipment ( Man Lifts, ATV)

Repair of Rotten Materials (Excluded)

Installation of metal siding and trim

Safety (3% on direct labor)

Credit for Vinyl siding from SOV

Metal Siding and trim  (contingency) 

Remove Existing Sheathing (Excluded)

New White 26 Gauge Metal Wall Siding and 

soffit. and New Red 24 Gauge Trim. No gutters. 

No fascia.  

Gutters and Downspouts.( Excluded)

Foreman

Supervision

 COP     General Contractor Breakdown

Date:

COP

 

Description

Total Cost of Work

Freight/Delivery Costs

Subtotal

COP-006 - Metal Siding Page 1 of 1 Printed 3/27/2024

170



171



172



173



174



COP  Summary

Contractor: Axthelm Construction Date: 4/22/2024

Project Name: Snohomish Fire Station 83 COP 007

Description : Water Damage Repair on 6 line

Remove OH Door 

Temp wall  to secure Building

Remove and replace Structural Damage per assessment made 4-17-24

Contract Adj. Type : Lump Sum

Increase or Decrease in Contract Amount : Increase

Schedule Impact: Yes

Schedule Impact Number of Days: 14 days

Note that Notice of water Damage was provide on 4/2/24

Contractor is Authorized to Proceed: _______________________________

1.  General Contractor  - Direct Costs  (see attached Cost Breakdown sheet for more detail) -$            -$            11,797.00$  

1 6,895.68$      

2 2,200.00$      

3 250.00$         

4 1,034.35$      

5 137.91$         

6 -$               

7 206.87$         

DIRECT COSTS SUBTOTAL 10,724.82$    

2. GC Fee

1,072.48$      

3. Subcontractor Costs Direct Costs Subs 

Overhead 

Allowance on 

subs direct 

cost (10%)

Sub tier 

Direct cost

Subs Fee on 

Subs Sub tier 

Work

Total Direct 

Costs 

Total Mark-Up Total

(must be less than) (must be less than)

10% 7%

1 1,005.00$          100.50$          -$               -$               1,005.00$       100.50$          1,105.50$       

2 1,960.00$          196.00$          -$               -$               1,960.00$       196.00$          2,156.00$       

5 -$                  -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               

DIRECT LABOR SUBTOTAL 2,965.00$          296.50$          -$               -$               2,965.00$       296.50$          3,261.50$       

GC mark up on subs work   8% 237.20$          

4

10,724.82$        

1,072.48$          

GC mark up on direct costs  8% 237.20$             

2,965.00$          

296.50$             

15,296.00$        

TOTAL 15,296.00$    

Labor 

Small Tools (3% on direct labor)

Materials

GC Fee on GCs own work (10%)

Markups

Integrity Electric  - (Disconnect and  & Re-Connect  OH Door)

Crawford OH Door - (Remove & Re-Install OH Door)

Equipment

Supervision  (15% on direct labor)

Safety  (2% on direct labor)

Travel

Subtotal

GC  Direct Cost 

GC Fee on GCs Own Work at 10%

Subs Direct Cost 

Subs Overhead Allowance on subs direct cost (10%)

COP-007 - Water Damage Repair on 6 line Page 1 of 4 Printed 4/22/2024

175



Contractor: Axthelm Construction 4/22/2024

Project Name: Snohomish Fire Station 83 007

Description : Water Damage Repair on 6 line

71.83

Unit Labor Material Equipment Total

Quantity Type Unit $ Cost Unit $ Cost Unit $ Cost Cost

Remove and Replace  Water Damaged Framing 1 ea. -$                  $2,200.00 2,200.00$         250.00$            2,450.00$         

Remove and Replace  Water Damaged Framing 96 hrs $71.83 6,895.68$         -$                  -$                  6,895.68$         

(Crew of 3  for 4 days)

Remove  Coping , Rough-Sawn Wood & Trim 1 ea. $0.00 -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Included in the labor estimate above. 

Replace  Coping , Rough-Sawn Wood & Trim 0 ea. $0.00 -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

EXCLUDED - PENDING DETAIL FROM DESIGN TEAM

6,895.68$         2,200.00$         250.00$            9,345.68$         

 COP     General Contractor Breakdown

Date:

COP

 

Description

Total Cost of Work

COP-007 - Water Damage Repair on 6 line Page 2 of 4 Printed 4/22/2024

176



Contractor: Axthelm Construction 4/22/2024

Project Name: Snohomish Fire Station 83
007

Subcontractor: Integrity Electric

Description : Water Damage Repair on 6 line

Unit Labor Material Equipment Total

Quantity Type Unit $ Cost Unit $ Cost Unit $ Cost Cost

-$                  

Integrity Electric 8 hrs. $106.00 848.00$            -$                  -$                  848.00$            

Materials 1 LS -$                  $157.00 157.00$            -$                  157.00$            

Freight 0 ls -$                  $40.00 -$                  -$                  -$                  

0 ls -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

848.00$            157.00$            -$                  1,005.00$         

-$                  100.50$            

Total Cost of Work 1,105.50$         

 COP     Subcontractor Breakdown

Date:

Description

COP

 

Small tools

Subtotal

Subs Overhead Allowance on subs direct cost 

COP-007 - Water Damage Repair on 6 line Page 3 of 4 Printed 4/22/2024

177



CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY
Project name

Location of work

Project manager Tyler Brogna Client Axthelm Construction

Requesting party Date of request 4/22/2024

CHANGE REQUEST OVERVIEW
Description of

changes needed

Reason for

change

Support and

Justification docs.

Specifications

Additional

information

LABOR No. of hours Rate Amount

Regular pay 8 $106.00 848.00$                                  

Overtime pay -$                                         

Total 848.00$                                  

MATERIAL
Material name QTY. Unit price Amount

1/2" Flex 1 $125.00 125.00$                                  

Four Square box 2 $5.85 11.70$                                    

Covers 2 $2.75 5.50$                                       

Misc. Hardware 1 $15.00 15.00$                                    

0 -$                                         

Total 157.20$                                  

Change in contract Change in contract

price times/schedule

Original price Original times

Increase/decrease for Increase/decrease for

change order change order

Total price with Total time/schedule with

changes changes

Accepted by Approved by Tyler Brogna

Name and title Name and title

Date Date 4/22/2024

N/A-$                                  

Station 83

13717 Division St. Snohomish WA

Removal and reinstallation of garage door motor for beam replacement.

Beam above garage door is rotten and needs to be replaced.

178



Contractor: Axthelm Construction 4/22/2024

Project Name: Snohomish Fire Station 83
007

Subcontractor: Crawford Door 

Description : Water Damage Repair on 6 line

Unit Labor Material Equipment Total

Quantity Type Unit $ Cost Unit $ Cost Unit $ Cost Cost

-$                  

Crawford Door -  See attached Quote 1 ls $1.00 1,960.00$         -$                  -$                  1,960.00$         

0 -$                  -$                  -$                  

1,960.00$         -$                  -$                  1,960.00$         

-$                  196.00$            

Total Cost of Work -$                  

2,156.00$         

 COP     Subcontractor Breakdown

Date:

COP

 

Cressy Door (Contacted but they said will not 

Provide a Quote)  per Mike Pitzen@ Cressy Door 

Description

Subtotal

Subs Overhead Allowance on subs direct cost 

COP-007 - Water Damage Repair on 6 line Page 4 of 4 Printed 4/22/2024

179



17979 State Route 536
Mount Vernon, WA  98273
360-336-5046
www.crawforddoors.com

Estimate
ADDRESS
Axthelm Construction, Inc.
P.O. Box 2947
Mount Vernon, WA  98273

ESTIMATE # 3968
DATE 04/19/2024

  

P.O. NUMBER
Snohomish Fire 83

ITEM QTY RATE AMOUNT

Labor
Remove and reinstall 12'x12' door and 
operator.  Crawford doors not responsible for 
installation or termination of low or high 
voltage wiring.

1 1,960.00 1,960.00T

 

SUBTOTAL 1,960.00
TAX 0.00
TOTAL $1,960.00

Accepted By Accepted Date

180



PO BOX 3711 
ARLINGTON, WA 98223 
LIC. # BHFIRHF842KW 
PH: 425-244-1445 

 

BID PROPOSAL 

 
CUSTOMER:         DATE: 5/31/2024 
Snohomish Regional Fire and Rescue 
Attn: Ron Rasmussen 
 
PROJECT: 
Station 83 
13717 Division St 
Snohomish, WA 98292 
 
 
 
SCOPE: 
Design Build Fire Alarm installation based upon Conformance CD Set of drawings provided dated 9/22/2023. 
Proposal is to replace discontinued fire alarm control panel and audible/visual appliances to new code 
requirements for low frequency.  
 
 
 
MATERIALS USED IN SCOPE: 
1- Silent Knight Fire Alarm Control Panel 
1- Space Age Document Cabinet 
1- Silent Knight Smoke Detector 
1- Silent Knight Pull Station 
4- Spectra Alert Horn Strobes 
2- Spectra Alert Strobe Only 
3- Spectra Alert Low Frequency Sounders 
1- Spectra Alert Weatherproof Horn Strobe 
4- Silent Knight Monitor Modules 
5- Sprinkler Monitoring Connections Switches Provided, Installed and Adjusted by Others 
2- 12 Volt 7 Amp Hour Batteries 
1- CAD 
1- Electrical Permit 
1- Fire Alarm Submittal and Permit 
1- Testing with AHJ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

181



EXCLUSIONS: 
Sales Tax    Performance and Bid Bonds 
Intents/Affidavits    Prevailing/Davis Bacon Wage Rates 
Core Drilling/X-Rays   Cutting/Patching of Drywall 
Fire Caulk/Sealing   Shift Work/Overtime 
Lift Rentals    Conduit/Sleeves 
AC     HVAC Connections 
Smoke Control    Area of Rescue 
DAS System (ERRCS) and Connections Fire Fighter Phones 
2 Way Communication   Voice Evacuation 
3rd Party Programming   Fire Pump/Connections 
Dampers/Connections   CO/NO2 System Installation/Connections 
 
 
PRICING: 
$14,495.00 plus applicable taxes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

182



TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
Payment Terms- Material, Permits and Installation Labor will be billed in progress increments. Payment terms are 
net 30 from date of invoice. All late payments will be assessed with a finance charge of 5% per month. 
 
Change Orders- If changes are required during the course of the project a change order will be provided for review 
and acceptance. Upon acceptance of the change order additional work will commence. 
 
Warranty- B&H Fire and Security, LLC warrants each installation free from defects in materials and workmanship 
for 1 year from date of completion and or acceptance. Upon modification and or changes to the original 
installation performed by B&H Fire and Security, LLC by any other vendor will void any and all warranties and 
liabilities applicable. Any programming of equipment provided and or installed by B&H Fire and Security, LLC by 
any other vendor voids any and all warranties and liabilities applicable.     
 
Confidentiality- This bid proposal is confidential and proprietary to the customer listed above and shall not be 
disclosed and or shared with any other parties.  
 
All equipment, products and materials supplied and or installed by B&H Fire and Security, LLC remain property of 
B&H Fire and Security, LLC until receipt of final payment. Lack of payment forfeits all equipment, products and 
materials supplied and or installed by B&H Fire and Security, LLC. Additional costs and or liabilities for or due to 
removal of said equipment, products and materials is customer’s responsibility. 
 
B&H Fire and Security, LLC shall not be liable for damages to material or bodily injury arising from causes beyond 
reasonable control. 
 
All work will be performed in accordance with standards in effect at the time of bid proposal per State and Local 
codes.    
 
Bid proposal prices are valid for 30 days from the date listed above. 
 
 
Thank you for allowing B&H Fire and Security, LLC to provide you with this bid proposal. Should you accept this bid 
proposal please sign and return this proposal in its entirety or have your purchase order reflect B&H Fire and 
Security, LLC’s terms and conditions. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Jeff Brossard at 425-244-1445. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Jeff Brossard 
Construction Manager 
 
 
Acceptance of Bid Proposal: Station 83 Snohomish, WA $14,495.00 plus applicable taxes. 
 
 
 
______________________________    ______________________________ 
 SIGNATURE       DATE 
 
 
______________________________    ______________________________ 
 PRINT NAME/TITLE      PO NUMBER 

183



 

 

 

Executive Session 

184


	01 Board Meeting Cover SRFR
	02 Agenda
	02.a 24-06-27 Agenda 2ND UPDATE

	03 Chief's Report
	04 Commissioner Reports
	05 Comittee Meeting Minutes
	05.a Committee Mtg Notes - Policy 05.09.2024

	06 Consent Agenda
	06.a Benefits Vouchers 01517-01527
	06.b AP Vouchers Docket of Claims Register 24-01529 to 24-01613
	06.c AP Voucher Claims Summary 24-01529 to 24-01613
	06.d 2024-6-15 Board Auth
	06.e 24-06-13 Minutes
	06.f 24-06-18 Minutes
	06.g 24-06-20 Minutes

	07a Old Business - Discussion
	07b Old Business - Action
	07b.a PERS Resolution 2024-5 Retirement Medical

	08a New Business - Discussion
	08a.a Policy Approval - SeniorStaff_Policy_Approval_DraftRAB_POL-2406_June_2024
	08a.b Policy 103 Governing_Rules_and_Board_Policies_asof_6.25.24
	08a.c Policy 215 Community_Advisory_Committee 5.14.2024
	08a.d Policy 330 Ride-Along_Program 5.14.2024
	08a.e Policy 607 Heat_Illness_Prevention_Training 5.14.2024
	08a.f Policy 904 High-Visibility_Safety_Vests 5.14.2024
	08a.g Policy 905 Body_Armor 5.14.2024
	08a.h Policy 920 Roadway_Incident_Safety 5.14.2024
	08a.i Policy 1028 Uniform_Regulations_asof_6.25.24
	08a.j Policy 4 SCFD7 - 4. POLICY 04 Entrance Requirements for All Personnel
	08a.k Policy 22 SCFD7 - 22. POLICY 22 Response to Requests for Assistance
	08a.l Policy 49 SCFD7 - 49. POLICY 49 Automobile Usage
	08a.m Policy 68 SCFD7 - 68. POLICY 68 Paid Family and Medical Leave
	08a.n Station 31 Remodel - Shop Addition
	RAB-Staion 31 Shop remodel (002)
	2024-0605-SRFR-31-A201-2017 Executed
	AIA A101Exhibit A
	240422 SRFR 31 Bid Tabulation
	Bid Tab

	Snohomish Regional Fire & Rescue Station 31 CD Estimate Revision 1 (HI notes)


	08b New Business - Action
	08b.a Station 83 Do not exceed increase- 10%
	08b.b Station 83 Axthelm to Procede
	08b.c COP-006 - Metal Siding (002)
	08b.d 20240501113842611
	08b.e COP-007 - Water Damage Repair on 6-Line Rev
	08b.f STATION 83 BID PROPOSAL

	09 Executive Session



